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vision
Through our innovation and growth we will be a powerful

- source of endless possibilities.

mission
We create unrivalled value for all stakeholders of our

diversified resources business through our processes,
thinking and passion. -

EXXARO BELIEVES IN CREATING
LEADERS AT EVERY LEVEL,
ALLOWING EVERY EMPLOYEE THE
FREEDOM TO.GROW AND DEVELOP.
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Short-wall mining section at Matla mine, Mpumalanga

Developing and depioying our knowledge and
ingenuity to achieve our vision. We focus on people,
create freedom to innovate and collaborate, respect
individuality, have fun and rise to challenges.

We succeed together through a climate of respect and
equality.

We take ownership, provide visible leadership and
encourage collaboration, commitment and creativity
for the benefit of all.

We speak the truth and accept accountability for our
actions.

Exxaro produces an integrated annual report which details our economic, social and environmental performance.
Feedback from consultation with stakeholders has determined the structure of this report, and cross-referencing
quides readers to their particutar areas of interest.




FOURTH-LARGEST COAL PRODUCER
IN SOUTH AFRICA
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Exxaro Kumba
Target Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
FINANCIAL TARGETS' ' '
* Return on equity (ROE) (%) 25 15 33 . 1 12
* Return on capital employed 28 23 59 17 12
(ROCE]) (%)
* EBITDA interest cover >4 10 20 7 6
{times)
NON-FINANCIAL TARGETS
* Safety
- fatalities 0 52 B 4 2 4
- lost-time injury frequency rate 0,21 0,36 0.42 0,52 0,51 0,42
(LFIFR) {per 200 000 hours)
» Safety, health and 12 9 10 10 8 2
environmental certification
(number of operations)
* Employment equity
- — management (%) 40 36 35 32 28 20
— women (%) 123 12 11 13 12 10
¢ HIV/Aids voluntary testing a5 30 41 54 a0
and counselling at pilot
sites (%)
* Human resources 6,0 8,5 51 8,3 57 57
development (% spend of '
payroll)
* Procurement from HDSA 40 35 37 24 18
companies (%}
* HDSA ownership (%)
2008 (15%)° 56 " 56 56
2014 (26%)° 56 56 56

'Financial targets are set with reference to a peer group of companies while actual ratios reported are based on
statutory financlals that have not been restated for comparative purposes. Comparatle key financial ratios appear on
page 4. No financial ratios are reported for 2006 as the empowerment transaction leading to the creation of Exxaro in

November 2006 resuits in the ratios not being meaningful.

inciudes one public road fatality.

*Requirement of the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act and mining charter is 10%.

“Under review.

SRequirement of the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act and mining charter.



Successful merger at operational and
corporate levels of the former Kumba
Resources and Eyesizwe Coal

Revenue exceeds R1Q billion

Total dividend of R1,60 per share paid
to shareholders, including R17 million
to Exxaro's empioyee share incentive
scheme, MPOWER

Commissioning of the 1,.5Mtpa export-
dedicated Inyanda coal mine

Conclusion of a 45-year agreement to
supply 8,5Mtpa of power station coal
to phase 1 of Eskom's new 2 400MW
Medupi power station consisting of
three generating units

Sample testing at KZN Sands, KwaZulu-Natal

Acquisition through subscription

or participation of 6,3Mtpa export
entitlement in the Richards Bay Coal
Terminal (RBCT) by 2009

Socio-economic assessments
completed for seven of 12 operations

Clean energy policy approved,
impiementation under way

Carbon footprint baseline assessments
initiated at all operations and
completed for head office

Smooth transition to new chief
executive officer, Sipho Nkosi, with a
positive response from stakeholders

Employee retention and succession
strategies being impfemented
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12 months ended 31 December

2007 2006 2005
RATIOS
Profitability and asset management
Return on net assets {%) 23 28 34
Return on ordinary shareholders” equity
- Attributable earnings (%) 15 14 21
- Headline earnings (%} 15 13 19
Return on invested capital (%) 19 18 14
Return on capital employed (%) 24 22 18
Operating margin (%) 14 14 14
Solvency and liquidity
Net financing cost cover {times) - EBIT .7 4
Net financing cost cover {times) — EBITDA 10 6
Current ratio (times}) 2
Nat debt to equity (%} 5 1.5
Net debt to earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (times) 0,2 0,3 3,3

MNumber of years to repay interest-bearing debt

Key ratios for 2005 and 2006 have heen restated to mirror the 2007 organisational configuration i.e. Eyesizwe Coal has been

100% consolidated; a 20% intarest in Sishen Iron Ore Company has been equity accounted; all non-recurring accounting

entries relating to the creation of Exxaro have been eliminated, and the impairment of the carrying value of the KZN Sands

assets in 2006 has been excluded.




tndustrial | Eyesizwe . Eyabantu

Development ; ! . Tiso _ B;Zagln Ea
Corporation [ i ‘ p

Angio BEE Exxaro -
American Holdco MPOWER® Minorities
plc* 52,9% 3% (free float)

100% 100%

e,'\,ar'u (()?\"r' R‘v’/‘(i% SISHEN
Sl 4‘3-.’/\;8 rn k‘\'j‘a ru IRON ORE

COAL SANHDS BASE METALS & INDUSTRIAL MINERALS COMPANY
As at 31 December 2007

* Heid through Anglo South Africa Capital (Pty} Lid.
T} These are special purpose vehicles for shareholders it ‘our Black-owned holding company.
* Employee share ownership programme.
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BUSINESSES

Eight coal mines produce 41,3Mtpa of power station,
steam and coking coal. All of the power station coal
produced is supplied to the national power utility,
Eskom. Grootegeluk is one of the lowest-cost and
maost efficient mining operations in the world, and
operates the world's largest coal beneficiation
complex. A strong pipeline of greenfield and
expansion projects at various stages of development
will result in Exxaro becoming one of the largest coal
producers in South Africa.

Exxaro's mineral sands operations include KZN Sands
in South Africa, and Australia Sands whose principal
asset is a 50% share in the Tiwest joint venture with
Tronox Inc. KZN Sands produced 176kt of slag while
Austratia Sands produced 100kt of synthetic rutite
and 54kt of pigment in 2007. Once the acquisition
MINERAL of the Namakwa Sands operation on the west coast

SANDS of South Africa is finalised, Exxaro will be one of

the world's targest suppliers of titanium dioxide

feedstock and zircon.

The Rosh Pinah zinc/lead mine in southern Namibia
and the Zincor etectrolytic refinery in Gauteng
comprise one of the few integrated zinc mining and
BASE refinery operations in the world. Zincor is also a low-
METALS cost producer of zinc metal. Exxaro has an interest
in the Chifeng zinc refinery in China. During the
year, Rosh Pinah and Zincor produced 95kt of zinc
concentrate and 101kt of zinc metal respectively.
A dedicated plant in Pretoria manufactures high-
quality, gas-atomised ferrosilicon, whilst the Glen
Douglas dolomite quarry provides a range of
products for the steel, construction and agricultural

INDUSTRIAL [l
MINERALS

®

Exxaro holds 20% of Sishen Iron Ore Company
: (Pty) Limited. The company cperatés the Sishen
. . and Thabazimbi mines, pragducing some 32, 4Mipa
INVESTMENTS IRON ORE of lumpy and fine iron ore, two-thirds of which is
‘ axported. Sishen is one of the largest single open-pit
: . mines in the world, known for its high grade and
_consistent product quality,
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'Run-of-mine tonnage from inyanda mine was beneficiated at New Clydesdale and is reported as part of this mine’s tolal. .
¢Production tonnes disclosed reftect Exxaro Australia Sands’ 50% interest in the Tiwest joint venture.
? Sales tennes disclosed represent the effective interest in the physical information of the Chifeng (Hongyes refinery.

SALES
REGIONAL 000 %
_ OPERATION LOCATION OWNERSHIP PRODUCTS TONNES EXPORTS
Grootegeluk Limpopo Division of Exxaro Coal Power station coal (Eskom) 14 587
mine (Pty) Limited Serni-soft coking coal 2547 23
- Steam coal 1459 g
. Leeuwpan mine  Mpumalanga Division of Exxaro Coal  Power station coal (Eskom) 965
{Pty) Limited Steam coal 1348 20
Tshikondeni mine Limpopo Division of Exxaro Coal Coking coal (ArcelorMittal) 449
. (Pty) Limited
Arnot mine Mpumalanga Division of Eyesizwe Coal Power station coal (Eskom) 3702
(Pty) Limited
. Matla mine Mpumalanga Division of Eyesizwe Coal Power station coal (Eskom) 12 997
{Pty) Limited
New Clydesdale Mpumalanga Division of Eyesizwe Coal Power station coal (Eskom) 120
. ming’ {Pty) Limited Steam coal 862 96
North Block Mpumalanga Division of Eyesizwe Coal Power station coal (Eskom) 1855
Complex (Pty) Limited Steam coal 393
Mir;erai sands KwaZulL]- } édb;id-iari-es-of E-XJ-(aI:O- ) Ziréon S o —2:1' ) a3 ]
- South Africa Natat Resources Limited Rutile 18 97
{Imenite 50 100
Chloride stag 163 100
Sulphate slag 29 100
Low manganese pig iron N 66 |
{(LMPI) |
I
. Mineral sands Western Subsidiary of Exarro Zircon 29 100 |
- Australia? Australia Resources Limited Rutile 16 100’
Iimenite 20 100!
Synthetic rutite 57 100 '
Leucoxene 17 100 ! ,
. E_ivncor refinery Gaute;q— Division of Exxaro Base Zinc metal 99 6
Metals (Pty) Limited Sulphuric acid 133 7
Rosh Pinah mine  Namibia Subsidiary of Exxaro Zinc concentrate g7 100
. Base Metals (Namibia) Lead concentrate 19 100
(Pty) Limited (93,9%)
Chifeng refinery® China Associate {229, Zinc metal 23 100
. Sulphuric acid 14 100
Glen Douglas Gauteng Subsidiary of Exxaro Dolomite 548
mine Resources Limited Aggregate 740
. Lime 57
FerroAlloys Gauteng Subsidiary of Exxaro Atomised ferrosilicon ‘6
Resources Limited
Sishen ing - Mafma_m , Divisian of SJShenw ' gg



THE ONLY INTEGRATED ZINC PRODUCER IN SOUTH AFRICA
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Grootegeiuk
Leeuwpan
Arnot

Matla

North Block Complex (NBC)
New Clydesdale
Tshikondeni

Beffast

Mmamabula Central
Eerstelingsfontein
Inyanda

Moranbah South
Mafube

RBCT Phase V
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Beneficiation plant at Grootegeluk mine which produces power statlon, semi-soft coking and steam coal

Detailed maps on pages 62-64
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MINERAL SANDS

KZN Sands
Toliara Sands
Namakwa Sands

Australia Sands

BASE METALS AND INDUSTRIAL MINERALS

Chifeng Zinc Refinery
Rosh Pinah

Zincor

Glen Douglas

FerroAlioys

Black Mountain

Sishen Iren Ore Company




A conveyor carrying coal from Grootegeluk mine to Eskom’s
Matimba power station near Lephalale, Limpopo

we create veiue for all stakeholcers

CASH DISBURSED AMONG CASH DISBURSED AMCNG
STAKEHOLDERS 2007 STAKEHOLDERS 2006
7%
6%
29%
42%
24%
. 5%
a Remunerate employee for service & Provide lenders with a return on borrowings
2 Pay direct taxes to the state ® Provide shareholders with cash dividends
Comprehensive cash value-added statements on paée 150
* We have a multi-stakeholder - Commitment to communities
approach to business where we operate
- Track record of value release - Supporting national initiatives

for shareholders » Exemplary corporate

- Proud to be an employer of governance is a hallmark of
choice our business philosophy
F4)

) See page 80




Hydraulic mining at KZN Sands, KwaZulu-Natal. In 2007, it is estimated that Exxare trained meore
than 10% of all South Africa’s artisans and more than 26% of its mining engineers (Page 122)
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comparable group review at a glance

12-months ended 31 December

2007 2006 2005
Audited Unaudited Unaudited
Am Rm Rm
INCOME STATEMENTS
Revenue 10 1-57 §814 7248
Net operating profit 1444 1261 994
Net finanging costs’ (214} {315) {173}
Investrent and equity accounted incoma 730 638 417
Taxation? (512) {595) (321)
Minority interest {20) 27 B1) -
Reconciling items to headling earnings 21 (69) (76)
Headline earnings 1448 893 780
Headline eamings per share (cents) 425 285 256
Average realised exchange rate on export sales (R/US$) 7.25 . 6,76 6,36
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
Cash flows from operating activities 1807 (1003) 332
Cash flows from investing activities {1 119) (729) (3 550}
Cash flows from financing activities (453) 2 260 3521
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (65) 528 303

'Spiit of net financing cost for 2005 and 2006 based on the assumption that Exxaro incurred the majerity of external borrowings as S10C was cash

positive.

2Split of taxation charge for 2005 and 2006 based on the assumption that STC incurred on dividend deciarations was borne by Exxaro.

EXXARC ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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At 31 December

2007 2006 2005
Audited Unaudited Unaudited
Rm Rm Rm
GROUP BALANCE SHEETS
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 235 8 367 7714
Biological assets 30 26 28
Intangible assets 73 69 81
Investments in associates and joint ventures 757 384 513
Deferred taxation . 732 521 339
Financiat assets 101 693 307
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 850 1 367 889
Inventories, trade and other receivables 3 462 3054 2 441
Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale 2 2 11
Total assets 15175 14 483 12 303
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent & BO4 91860 4178
Minority interest 19 27 g
Total equity 9823 9187 4187
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 1259 1214 5139
Cther fong-term payables
Non-current provisions 1329 93 543
Deferred taxation 1077 1116 502
Current liabilitias
Interest-bearing borrowings 74 613 549
Trade and other payables and provisions 1613 1422 1283
Total equity and liabilities 16175 14 483 12 303
Net debt 483 4680 4799
ANALYSIS PER SHARE
Number of shares in issue {million) 353 351 306
Weighted average number of shares in issue {million) 341 313 304
Earnings per ordinary share
— Altributable earnings (cents) 418 307 282
— Headline earnings (cents) 425 285 256
Dividend declared per ordinary share (cents) 160 525 470
Dividend cover (times) — based on headline earnings 2,66 0,54 0,55
Net asset value per ordinary share {cents) 2778 2610 1365
Attributable cash flow per ordinary share {cents) 440 (328) 107

Supplementary information is compiled using the following assumptions to achieve comparability:

- The empowerment transaction resulting in the creation of Exxaro was efiective from 1 January 2005.

_- Eyesizwe Coal was fully consolidated from 1 January 2005.

- The 20% equity interest in Sishen Iron Ore Company was equity accounted from 1 January 2005.

- All non-recurring accounting entries associated with the transaction that led to the creation of Exxaro have been eliminated.

- The impairment in 2006 of the carrying value of the KZN Sands assets, has been excluded.

EXXARQ ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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summary of business operations

12 months ended 31 December

000 tonnes 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
COAL

Coking coal

Production

Grootegeluk 2 48 2133 1859 1972 1781
Tohikondeni 453 363 414 437 381
Total 2652 2 496 7 2273 2 409 2162
Power station coal (Eskom)

Production’

Grootegeluk 14 510 14 268 ‘ 14 060 14017 13 869
Leeuwpan 256 021 513" 366

Matla’ 13030 13613

Arnot! 3702 3985

New Clydesdale’ 153 33

North Block Complex! 1882 1481

Total 34248 34 599 14 573 14 383 13 869
Steam coal ) )
Production 4132 4 665 2993 2652 2933
Grootegeluk 1483 1585 1 551 1 403 1323
Leeuwpan 1421 1504 1442 1249 . 1810
New Clydesdale’ 814 1107

North Block Complex! 3n 469

Total coal production 41 320 41 760 . 19839 19 444 18 964
MINERAL SANDS - SOUTH AFRICA

Production

- imenite 337 319 356 262 176
- Zircon 34 50 a7 49 50
- Rutile 17 25 23 20 17
- Pig iron g0 75 _ 89 63 25
— Scrap pig iron 20 10 8 5 6
- Chloride slag 150 134 134 96 27
- Sulphate slag 26 36 30 40 20

EXXARQ ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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- 12 months ended 31 December

00C tonnes 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
MINERAL SANDS - AUSTRALIA?

Production

- limenite 216 227 220 236 217
- Zircon 33 36 35 38 40
- Rutile 17 18 16 18 17
- Synthetic rutile 100 a8 111 112 a7
- Leucoxeng 16 14 12 11 16
- Pigment 54 54 53 53 48
BASE METALS

Production

Rosh Pinah (zinc concentrate) 95 104 126 124 108
Zincor (zZInc metal) 101 a0 102 104 111
Zinqor (sulphuric acic) 147 142 168 169 173
Chifeng {zinc metal)® 23 16 15 : 12 3
Rosh Pinah (lead concenirate) 22 21 25 27 3
INDUSTRIAL MINERALS

Glen Douglas

Production

Metallurgical dolomite 543 661 689 653 668
Aggregate 749 672 666 705 579
Lime 54 59 26 73 76
FerroAlloys

Production

Atomised ferrosilicon 6 6 6 6 5
IRON ORE

Production

Sishen* 5946 5738 28 458 27 609 27110
Thabazimbi* 535 484 2529 2503 2484
Total 6 481 6 222 30987 30112 29 594

1 Physical information includes Eyesizwe Coal mines for 12 months in 2006 even though only acquired effective | November 2006.
? physical information reflects Exxaro Australia Sands® 50% interest in the Tiwest joint venture with Tronox Jncorporated Western Australia.

* Physical information represents the effective interest in Chifeng (Hongye) refinery.

* Physical information for 2006 and 2007 reflects Exxaro's 20% interest in SI0C.

EXXARO ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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approach to sustainable development

Sustainability

is defined as

the capacity for
continuance into
the long-term
future, By contrast,
sustalnable
development is the
process by which
we move towards
sustainability.

Philosophy

As a resources group, our challenge is to demonstrate that the way we approach our business contributes to
sustainable development. This means finding that perfect balance between the opportunities for growth and
development that responsible citizenship presents and ensuring that the social, environmental and economic
impacts of mining - positive and negative - are managed in a transparent and ac_countabie manner.

In Exxaro, sustainable development has been refined to support the group’s strategy of consolidation, optimisation
and innovation. Underpinned by an analysis of the business case for sustainable development and the triple
bottom-line drivers in each area, our approach is determined by formal charters that define our goals and
commitment to stakeholders. These charters are, in turn, guided by South African legislation, recommendations on
corporate governance, the JSE Socially Responsible Investment index requirements and international benchmarks
such as the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) and its sectoral supplements, the United Nations Global Compact,

and the International Council on Mining and Metals. In line with our commitment, sustainability is an integral
performance indicator in the economic, social and environmental aspects of our business.

We believe that reporting on sustainable development is integral to our fiduciary duty to shareholders and, by
extension, to stakeholders. In providing the assurance that Exxaro is a weli-run and credible group, with sound
longer-term prospects, our stakeholders need to understand the coherent process that underpins the way we do
business: from the strategy that drives our group, to our understanding of the risks and issues that may impede
that strategy and the commitment of our management teams to achieving our goals. In consclidating the elements
relevant to Exxaro, we gave equal emphasis to strategy and sustainable develapment, acknowledging that our
success rests on their interdepéndence.

Exxaro's approach is to incrementally move beyond reporting on legal compliance to comprehensive sustainability
reporting. This requires an understanding of legislative requirements, international and other protocols and
industry-specific targets (some of which are illustrated below) to ensure the necessary systems and processes are
in place to facilitate meaningful reporting standards.

GOOD CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP IMPERATIVE INCLUDES:
I 1
SOUTH AFRICAN LEGAL COMPLIANCE PROTOCOLS

* The constitution * International Council on Mining &

- Biodiversity management acts Metals (ICMM)

* Pollution and waste management acts * United Nations Global Compact
» Global Reporting Initiative {GRI)
* FTSE 4 Good

» JSE - SRiindex

+ Mineral and Petroleum Resources

Development Act
* Various labour tegislation
+ Employment Equity Act « King 1l report on corporate governance

+ Broad-based black economic
empowerment

* Skills Development Act

Sustainability - based on strateqy and national priorities
Several years ago - before Exxaro’s formation but consistent with the phitosophy that underpins this group - we
initfated a process of understanding what sustainability meant for our business.

The exercise entailed cne-on-one interviews with key decision makers, teading to a strategic framework of
key elements, set out on page 19. This framework remains relevant to Exxaro and formed the basis of the
implementation model shown on page 23. This model is reviewed regularly.

EXXARO ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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Key elements of Exxaro’s sustainability framework

AREA

Social impact
management

Employment equity

Natural environment

Ownership
and control

by historically
disadvantaged
South Africans

Stakeholder
engagement

Natural resource
management

KEY ISSUES

Direct and indirect effects on community
and society (operations, social stability and
influence on family life, housing and living
conditions}.

Equitable recruitment and employment
practices to meet legislative targets for
employing and developing individuals from
designated groups.

Understanding our impact on the physical
environment and conforming to nationally
and internationally recognised standards,
policies and measures to address
detrimental environmental effects, and
ensure sustainable development of our
operations.

Managing the black economic
empowerment imperative in South
Africa through ownership control and
management participation.

Implementing effective and transparent
engagement, communication and
independently verified reporting
arrangements with stakeholders.

Responsible use of non-renewable mineral
and other natural resources.

PROGRESS

Seven socig-economic assessments
completed. in 2008, the focus will

be on completing the outstanding

five assessments and implementing
management action plans in response to
identified stakeholder issues.

At the end of 2007, designated groups
represented 36% of Exxaro's management
and 14% of these positions were held by
women. Exxaro is well on frack fo achieve
its 2008 targets of 40% for management
overall.

Environmental impact assessments have
been completed or are under way for
the majority of operations. Results will
be incorporafed into site environmental
management systems.

We are consolidating data systems
throughout the group, and will continue the
process as we integrate Namakwa Sands
in 2008. Key issues have been identified
for major operations and this process will
be rolled out to other operations in 2008,
See pages 25 and 101 for efements to be
managed.

With 56% of the group owned by

black shareholders, including our own
empioyees, Exxaro has exceeded fhis
target. Previously disadvantaged Exxaro’
employees own 3% of the group, and 36%
of management comprises HDSAs.

Stakeholder engagement plans were
completed for every operation. Ongoing
interaction will ensure the group remains
abreast of changing stakeholder needs.
Our stakeholder engagement has further
been enhanced with the development of a
stakeholder management system.

Dedicated specialist unit established to
intensify focus on addressing risks and
impacts.

EXXARO ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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approach to sustainable development continued

AREA

Business
sustainability

Mine closure

Sacial development/
national social
pricrities

HIV/Aids

EXXARO ANNUAL REPORT 2007
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KEY ISSUES

Ensuring our long-term financial viability;
contributing value to all stakeholders; and
accounting for the distribution of value
created through business activities.

Our aim is to leave self-sufficient
communities after mine closure with
appropriate infrastructure, skilled people
and rehabilitated land.

In balancing our interests with those of our

stakeholders, specific areas are quided by

the social needs of the community, and by

the national priorities of society at large,

including:

* Education, training and skills
development

« Healthcare promotion, particularly HIV/
Aids programmes

* Job creation

* SMME (small, medium and micro
enterprises) and other business
opportunity development

» Conservation of the environment,
including awareness programmes

* Infrastructure development, including
schools, clinics, potable water, sanitation,
etc.

Approaching the pandemic on two
levels: as a workplace issue (specifically
preventative, educaticnal and clinical

« support practices including anti-

retrovirals) and as a community issue,

PROGRESS

The integration of former Kumba
Resources and Eyesizwe Coal operations
has been successful to date. The
integration of systems, pracesses and
policies will take a little longer, as
anticipated in the business planning that
preceded Exxaro’s listing.

Results from the most recent closure

. plan to date - Durnacel mine in rural

KwaZulu-Natal - have been excellent. The
success in rehabilitating Hlobane mine has
received worldwide recognition. Extensive
consultation between all stakeholders has
resulted in a sustainable community with
the infrastructure, skills and determination
to succeed. Closure plans for current
operations are devefoped and reviewed
against prevailing life-of-mine plans and
current best practice.

Social and fabour plans have been
submitted ta the authorities for mest
operations. Similar plans are being
developed for the remaining operations,
which will be submitted by April 2008.

in 2007, 58 projects were completed at
various operations af a cost of R22 million.

———— o e i

By the end of 2007, some 30% of the

total workforce had participated in
voluntary counselling and testing (VCT).
In 2007, 1 889 people attended awareness

sessions, 1 784 participated in VCT and

145 tested positive. Over 240 people are on

anti-retroviral treatment (ART).




AREA

Health and safety
in the work
environment

Labour relations

Corporate
governance

Human resource

development

Shareholders’ rights

Supplier relations/
developmental
procurement

KEY ISSUES

Exceeding legislative compliance on
workplace conditions for employees to
facilitate greater satisfaction, efficiency
and productivity.

Managing the relationship with our
employees and their represenfatives. to
foster appropriate engagement, a climate
of trust and widespread participation on
issues of mutual interest.

The extent and sophistication of
Exxaro’s board, executive management
and governance structures supporting
our practice of triple bottom-line risk
management.

The range and extent of training and
skills development practices, moving
beyond current job training requirements
to include future and potential work
orientation, personal skills development,
and training in corporate citizenship and
sustainable development.

Equal treatment of all shareholders and
protecting their rights
= specifically mincrity shareholders

- s through equal, accurate and timely

disclosure.

Managing procurement processes
and nurturing small enterprises and
disadvantaged individuats, developing
suppliers through preferential
procurement.

PROGRESS

Nine of the group’s 12 operations have
achieved QSHAS 18001 certification. In
2008, the focus will be on certifying our
remaining operations.

Some 60% of the Exxaro group’s
employees are members of five recognised
unions.

Exxaro subscribes to the spirit and
principles of the King Reporf an Corporate
Governance (King 1) (page 80).

Exxaro spent 6,5% of total payroli on
human rescurces devefopment in 2007,
above its own target of 6% and well
above the mining industry average of
3,4%. This transiated into 66% of our
workforce receiving an average of 27 hours
of training during the review period
(page 121}, In line with our commitment to
encourage our people to become literate
and numerate (NQF tevel 1 and higher
qualification), 66% of Exxaro employees
have at least an NQF level 1 qualification.

The group has programmes and guidelines
for providing detailed information fo
shareholders through formaf and informal
communication channels and media.

- Small enterprises are exposed to a variety

of opportunities in Exxaro to accelerate
their diversification process along the
commodity value chain.
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approach to sustainable development continued

AREA.

Human rights

Product stewardship

Supply chain
compliance

Leadership in
sustainability
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KEY ISSUES

Ensuring basic human rights are respected

by all direct operations.

Managing the impact of our products or
services on the marketplace and society
at large.

Ensuring business parthers in our
supply chain are themselves responsible
corporate citizens.

Demonstrating our leading role in
promoting and implementing corporate
citizenship and sustainability as a business
philosophy in our industry peer group, in
our sector of operation, in our country
and against international benchmarks and
standards.

PROGRESS

Exxaro complies with all applicable
labour tegislation in South Africa and

_ with International Labour Organisation

guidefines. Accordingly the group
encourages freedom of association and
coflective bargaining, and ensures that child
labour and forced or compulsory labour

are not tolerated. Induction programmes
ensure employees are educated about

their rights. Policies on discrimination,
harassment and racism are in place, as are
structures to protect employees’ rights in

" the workplace.

Exxaro is developing policies to manage
this efement in line with accepted practice.

.

- Exxaro’s tender criteria include jegisiative

compliance and good corporate citizenship
standards by prospective suppliers and an
integrated supplier engagement process is

in place,

Exxaro’'s manager of corporate sustainable
development serves as the Africa business
representative on the Global Reporting
Initiative, on Unisa‘s Centre for Corporate
Citizenship and on the African Institute

far Corporate Citizenship. Exxaro is also
sponsoring a chair in business and climate

change at the University of South Africa.



STRUCTURE AND MODEL FOR IMPLEMENTING SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Managing sustainability into the future

Following the formation of Exxaro, a decision was taken to form a sustainable development steering committee of
senior managers. The intention is to give impetus to efforts to manage all key impacts faced by the new group ina
proactive and consistent manner, '

Five task teams that support the work of the steering committee have been formed. These task teams (graphically
represented below) are mandated to manage the major thrusts, namely energy and climate change; safety, health,
and environmental stewardship; stakeholder relations; and human resources management and governance.

This structure will be replicated at each operation to ensure that all the aspects listed on page 24 and 25 are
properly managed. In future reports, Exxaro intends to detail progress on these aspects.

- I
STAKEHOLDERS
ENERGY AND

CLIMATE CHANGE

» Clean energy

» Shareholder rights
» Community issues

. = Suppliers’ issues
- Alternative energy P
- « Customers’ issues
+ Energy efficiency

. vy
LEADERSHIP
AND
COMMUNICATION
- )
SAFETY, HEALTH &
ENVIRONMENTAL

HUMAN RESQURCES STEWARDSHIP

» Natural resource management
= Governance issues (water, land, air, waste)

« Workplace issues

» Rehabilitation management
\. - J

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MODEL - MAJOR THRUSTS

In implementing this model, which was formally approved after year end, workshops were held across the group's
central support departments to identify key issues for triple bottom-line reporting in a process founded on the
group strategy and closely aligned with risk identification and management. These workshops will be extended to
our operations in 2008, ‘

Practically, and in a top-down/bottom-up process, strategic direction is provided by the sustainabie development
steering committee, reporting to the executive committee and board. Teams af each operation and Exxaro's '
support departments implement and monitor initiatives, and report to the steering committee. This creates a
virtual circle of development that is both sustainable and meaningful because it responds to identified needs.

Many of these aspects (listed overl.eaf) are already well developed. Equally, while some are limited to a specific
area of the triple bottom-line, others span two or three areas and highlight the interaction between operations and
support services. As Exxaro's sustainable development model is implemented and appropriate cross-departmentat
structures to manage each aspect entrenched, longer-term aspects will be incorporated.
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approach to sustainable development continued

ASPECTS

Zero harm

Programme to ensure zero fatalities

Identify and set targets to reduce the number of significant envfroﬁmental incidents

No transgressions of the principles'embodied in the UN Universal Eéeclaration of Human Rights

Legal compliance
Zero fines and prosecutions

Management systerﬁs

All operations to undertake annual self-assessments against Exxar6 health, safety, environment and community
management standards and develop plans and target dates te conform to standards

All operations to obtain and maintain International Standards Orqénisation 14001 and 18001 certification
All operations to have an effective stakeholder management system as per Accountability AA1000SES standard

Risk Management
Risk registers {finance and sustainable development risks) to be in place and maintained at all operations and at
Exxaro corporate centre

Health

All operations to implement a baseline survey on occupational exposure hazards and establish accupational
monitoring and health surveillance programmes

All operations to establish annual reduction in exposures above occupational exposure limits, expressed as
percentage of workfaorce

All operations to establish targeted reduction in incidence of occup;ational disease and target dates

Safety .
All operations ta establish targeted reduction in LTIFR (excluding first aid treatments)' by targeted date

Environment

Energy and greenhouse gas management
Identify and set targets for all operations with carbon dioxide {CO,) equivalent emissions above pre-determined
level to have and maintain energy conservation plans and targets

Idenfify and set targets for all operations with CQ, equivalent emiss;ions above pre-determined level te have and
maintain greenhouse gas management plans and targets

All gperations to develop programmes and targets for alternative, éleaner energy

Aggreqate group target for reduction in greenhouse gas emissions per unit of praduction to be developed

Water
Identify and set targets for all operations that consume fresh water in Ifne with water management plans

Aggregate group target to reduce fresh water consumption per unit of production to be developed
All operations to establish level of water contamination

Aggregate group target to reduce water contaminaticn to be develc}ped
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ASPECTS

Waste
All operations to develop and maintain waste minimisation programmes

Aggregate group target to reduce waste (excluding recycled and mining-related materials, such as waste rock,
tailings, coal rejects and slag) per unit of production to be developed

Land management
All operations to have and maintain land management plans te protect and enhance agreed beneficial uses

All operations to identify bicdiversity risks and implement biodiversity management and closure plans

Product stewardship
Life-cycle assessments prepared for all major Exxaro products (incorporating participation in industry
programmes where appropriate}

Community

~ All operations to prepare public sustainable development reports {including incidents, community complaints

and operation-specific emissionsy annualky

Ail operations to conduct and maintain socio-ecanomic and environmental impact survey with inputs from
relevant stakeholders

All operations to have and maintain a stakeholder management database and plan, including community
engagement plan

Aggregate contribution to community programmes, includin(j in-kind support, of a target of at (east 1% of net
operating profit after tax

Aggregate contribution to enterprise development of a target of 3% of net operating profit after tax
Community health prograrﬁmes to help local communities fight major diseases such as HIV/Aids and malaria

Qur people

All operations to have and maintain a talent management plan for all grading levels to increase and retain
skilled people in the local community

All operations to set and achieve race, gender and disability targets as stipuléted by the mining charter

All hostel employees to be accommodated in single or family units

All operations and corporate centre to have an approved workplace skilis plan and submit an annual training
report

All operations to roll-out an HIV/Aids management plan based on corporate strategy and targets

All operations to implement a wef[ness plan that includes nutrition, injury management, employee counselling
and health promotion

Procurement
Developmental procurement - all operations to set annual targets to increase local historically disadvantaged -
South African (HDSA} procurement services accerding to corporate policy

Corporate qoirernance
Company to have policy and procedures to satisfy King il
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approach to sustainable development continued

Process to engage with stakeholders and apply international standards

For the review period, Exxaro reports against the revised GRI guidelines, issued in 2006 and referred to as G3

to differentiate them from GRI's 2002 guidelines. In addition to the revised scope of the G3 indicators, we are
integrating the former Kumba Resources and Eyesizwe Coal operations, and in future NamakWa Sands. The focus
therefore is on standardising data coflection and analysis for meaningful reporting that complies with King Il and
the new GRI guidelines. As such, Exxaro has not declared a GRI application tevel for 2007, hut will do so in the
2008 annual report.

Exxaro qualified for inclusion in the JSE's reviewed SRl index in November 2007. This index assesses the
performance of companies in relation te econemic, environmental and social sustainability as well as corporate
governance.

We initiated several innovative practices in preparing to repart to stakeholders for the 2007 financiat year - our

first full year as Exxaro:

= To remain abreast of the changing needs of our stakeheolders and the impact of our operations and initiatives,
seven Exxaro opérations completed comprehensive socio-economic assessments of their sustainable
develepment footprints and management responses to identified impacts. The remaining five assessments are
under way. '

* Issues raised during the internal workshops were presented to a representative stakeholder panel {from
government departments to analysts, community members and organised labour) convened by an independent
third party, African tnstitute for Corporate Citizenship (AICC). The aim was to elicit stakeholder feedback on
whether we are covering the issues of concern (or materiality of reporting) to individual panel members, and to
obtain feedback on the completeness of this reporting. The AICC report appears on page 135. This approach is in
line with the standard set by AAIQQQSES.

Where possible, additional issues raised by the panel have been incorporated in this report.

We believe this process will over time ensure that Exxaro reports prowde a measurable indicator of progress and
underscores our commitment to stakeheolder engagement.

t
Sustainable development assurance - broad-based verification
Exxaro has internai systems to record and monitor the guality (accuracy, fuilness and consistency) of management
information and any data gaps in the group. These are continually assessed-and improved, aiming for best
practice.

Inline with our commitment to the triple bottom-line, an integral part of reporting to stakeholders is assurance
on the guality of disclosure, Previous integrated annual reports have been externally assured, albeit on a limited
range of elements. In this report, we have extended our approach to assurance by commissioning a mere in-depth
external assurance by KPMG (page 132). We have also initiated a more gualitative appreach by including a range
of stakeholders in a formal panel in the process of identifying issues for comprehensive coverage (page 135).

The recommendations of both third parties have been noted and will form part of the implementation of our
sustainable development madel.

In addition, our previous integ'rated annual report (Kumba Rescurces 2005) was externally assessed by KPMG.
Our report was compared to a basket of internationally and locally relevant triple bottom-line reporting guidelines,
such as the GRI G3 reporting framework and report assessment methaods.
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Scope of sustainable development elements of the report
In this report, we have concentrated on former Kumba Resources operations while we integrate reporting systems
from former Eyesizwe Coal operations.

This report also excludes the following operations where we do not exercise management control:

» Australia Sands - Austratia Sands' principal asset is its 50% ownership in the Tiwest joint venture with
Tronox Incorporated.

+ Chifeng Refinery - As a first step for potential investment in China, Exxaro established an equity joint venture
with an existing refinery facility. Exxaro has & 38% shareholding in Phase 2, and a 25% interest in Phase 3 of
this venture, resulting in an effective 22% economic interest in the expanded operation.

Exxaro has representatives at Chifeng and Australia operations to influence and advise on sustainable
development matters. '
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chief executive officer’s review

SIPHO NKOSI
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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A remarkable first year,
characterised by the willingness and
ability of all our people to change,

. and the smooth integration of two

Sizeable groups.

HIGHLIGHTS

R10.16 billion

15% increase in revenue’

Consolidating | e a d I n g position in our

commodity businesses

Poised to realise Coal g rOWt h
100% acquisition

of Namakwa Sands and 26% interest in
Black Mountain/Gamsberg



Exxaro's first full year of operation was remarkable for a number of reasons: following the conclusion of a |
significant black economic empowerment transaction in November 2006, we established the Exxaro brand across
southern Africa. In the process, we empowered some 8 GO0 employees who now own 3% of Exxaro - and

who watched the henefits of being shareholders unfold as our share price rose from R58,50 on listing to

R107,00 in December 2007.

The process of integrating the former Kumba Resources and Eyesizwe Coal operations to form Exxaro has been
smooth and overwhelmingly positive, although it will take a little more time to fully integrate people, processes
and operations. Mare impertantly, what this process has highlighted is the innate ability of all Exxaro's people to
adapt, a vital component of success in an era of ongoing change.

Powering possibility
While the highlights of our first year are detailed on page 3, | believe that the following underscore the potential to
power possibility that is becoming the hallmark of this company and its top-calibre professionals:
= While we recorded five fatalities this'year - four on-mine and one public road incident (page 97} - excellent
safety performances were achieved at Inyanda, Leeuwpan, FerroAlloys, Alloystream, Research and Development
and Durnacol. FerroAlioys, in particutar, has had no injuries since May 2006, while Zincor achieved 480 lost-time
injury-free days and our Research and Development unit reached its target of 730 lost-time injury-free days.
"We are creating a safer work environment by implementing systems, processes and standards to ensure safety
becomes a habit for every Exxaro employee, and a pervasive awareness of both personal safety and the safety
of colleagues. We extend our deepest condolences to the families, friends and colleagues of the deceased.
We received shareholder approval to acquire Namakwa Sands and an interest in the Black Mountain mine/
Gamsberg project.
The inyanda mine sod-turning ceremony in July 2007 followed the fast-tracking of that mine's development to
add value and support the New Clydesdale mine after closure of its underground workings. Board approval was -
received for the Ri136 million Diepspruit project to produce 1,.3Mtpa run-of-mine coal for beneficiation at
New Clydesdale to supply the export‘market. ’
We achieved an R89-million turnaround of the North Block Complex by mining block C, negotiating better prices
with Eskom and increasing sales volumes to key custdmers. . :
We secured Phase | of the new Medupi power station off-take agreement with Eskom as the first major building
block of our Waterberg development strategy.
We increased our export allocation through Richards Bay Coal Terminat to 6,3Mtpa (effective end 2009) in line
with our strategy of diversifying our market.
Exploration at Rosh Pinah has added seven years to the mine's life.
Cooljarloo mine in Australia successfully replaced the outer shell of the floating feed preparation unit in situ: a
world first for the industry that took 14 days versus a dry-dock approach that would have taken three months.
Our shareholder structure changed during the year when Anglo American reduced its shareholding to just below
10%, which pleasingly increased our free float to above 34%.
We have made significant progress in enlarging participation by Namibian citizens in our Rosh Pinah mine.

.
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chief executive officer's review continued

+ Exxaro's research and development is at the forefront of innovation in creating excellent competencies in
terms of equipment, people and knowledge - our R&D team has implemented the first phase of a highly capable
mineralagy facility to support Namakwa Sands and other mineral sands projects and operatiens.

* Grootegeluk’s technicians won a national award for the computer software program they developed for plant
automation.

+ Exxaro's emplayee newsletter, xxplore, won a trophy for excellence in communication skills in the publication
category of the International Association of Business Communicators' Africa Quill Awards.

Qur first year was, however, not withodt its challenges:
* The closure of the Vaalkrantz South underground operations at New Clydesdale and subsequent production
tosses that were mitigated by fast-tracking Inyanda.
* The reclaimer collapse at Leeuwpan due to structural failure in September, but which was mitigated by excellent
contingency plans. '
« Although we experienced 85% of cold feed capacity at our mineral sands smelter operations in KwaZulu-
Natal, this still falls short of design capacity. In addition to existing improvement initiatives, we plan to review
technology employed at the furnaces in the year ahead to further improve furnace perfarmance.
« The three-week industrial strike at Rosh Pinah which affected production volumes.
* The shortage of skills, especially artisan and miner categories.
*+ The process for obtaining new mining rights and conversion into new-order rights, which:
- lowered production volumes and increased costs due to higher stripping raties as the Weltevreden reserve
extension at Leeuwpan could not be mined.
- reduced mining options and complicated mining activities at Hillendale mjne as the Braeburn deposits could
not be accessed.
- delayed planned construction of the Fawbreeze ming requlred to supply ilmenite to the Empangeni smelter in
future,
* The persistent strong Australian dollar affected the profitability of our Australian Sands business.

Safety

Overall, the year 2007 has been a particularly dismal period for safety, with an unacceptable number of deaths
across the industry, resulting in protest action by organised labour and an inquiry commissioned by the President
of South Africa.

Health, safety, sustainability and productivity are key challenges facing the mining industry in South Africa which
the Chamber of Mines is addressing through a number of initiatives, and to which Exxaro is fully committed.

Safety heads the [ist of pricrities for Exxaro, and one of my key tasks is to ensure that we make tangible progress
towards the collective goal of zero fatalities and harm.

Exxaro reviewed its SHE strategy during the year - to integrate the most effective elements of previous plans
into a single strategy for the group and to support its commitment to a working environment that is both
fatality-and injury-free by reducing exposure to workplace hazards. As part of our awareness and continuous
improvement pragramme, we organise and sponsor a biennial industry-wide SHE conference (2007 was the fourth
such conference) during which industry stakehofders, our management and employees interact to advance SHE
objectives across the mining industry and share best practices locally and internationally. The outcome was a
strategy that prioritised aspects of safety, health and environment. The implementation of each of the legs of this
strategy will be monitored quarterly. ’
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Business environment

Robust corrimodity prices and sustained global economic growth characterised the review period, albeit dampened
in the final months by economic developments in the United States and their concomitant impact on global
markets.

In South Africa economic growth remained strong, reflected in the unprecedented levels of infrastructural
devetopment and capacity expansions across a range of key sectors,

Arguably the most important of these is energy where South Africa’s power utility, Eskom, is rolling out its
largest infrastructural expansion in decades to meet the country’s spiralling power needs. As one of Eskom's
largest suppliers, Exxaro has an important role in supplying product for coal-fired power stations, facilitating the
development of clean energy technology {page 106) and helping to solve the energy conundrum South Africa is
facing. Transpart and fogistics are other key sectors underpinning national economic development. Exxara fully
supports the capacity expansions and infréstr’uctural upgrades under way by the state-owned transport utility,
Transnet, and is actively participating in the expansion of export facilities through Richards Bay Coal Terminal.

Legislation

In recent years, South Africa has introduced significant and wide-ranging legislation governing the mining industry,
most specifically the Mineral and.Petroleum Resources Development Act (MPRDA), the mining charter and its
attendant scorecard, and the draft royalty bill which is in the final stages of drafting and comment.

Exxaro fully supports the intent of this legislation to ensure eguitable participation in the country’'s natural
resources, although the process of implementation has had some impact on day-to-day business and longer-term
planning.

During the year, Exxaro secured new-order mining rights for Inyanda and New Clydesdale mines. Following a
productive workshop with the Department of Minerals and Energy, the group has adopted a phased approach to
the conversion process, with all applications for rights associated with the former Kumba Resources submitted and
those for the conversion of farmer Eyesizwe Coal mining rights scheduled for submission in April 2008.

Strateqy
The essence of our first board-approved strateqy is to consolidate in the short term, optimise growth plans over
two to five years and innovate in the [onger term.

This strategy forms the platferm for integrating our assets, people and business approaches. To buiid saolid
foundations for the growth that lies ahead, we need to extract maximum value from our existing operating
asset base, pursue expansion projects already under way and maintain a sound balance sheet structure. At the
same time acknowledging the long lead times required for implementation, we must continue to identify growth
prospects and selective acquisition opportunities.

Skills

The scarcity of certain skills in the local mining profession is very real, and mirrors the glebal experience. While
this presents Exxaro with a challenge to attract and retain the required skills sets, we are making tangible progress
in developing people to their fullest potential and retaining this talent.

£xxaro exposes its people to multiple commodities while training to industry standards, even though this makes
our trainees extremely attractive to the rest of the industry. In 2007, our company invested almost double the
industry average to train more than 10% of all South Africa’s artisans and over 24% of artisans in the mining
industry. This underscores our belief that skills development is a valuable investment, ane that reflects the
confidence we have in our people and their individual and ¢ollective worth to our group. For me, this was best
summed up by one of our own people when he said, “Exxare offers more than just training; it offers a future™.
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chief executive officer's review continued

Sustainable development
One of the benefits of being a young company.is the ability to forge a new entity that draws on the world's best
practices to tailor a model that suits your particular operating environment.

Sustainable development was at the heart of Kumba Resources and it is no different for Exxaro. By stipulating
leadership in sustainable development as one of the elements of our strategic framework, we have committed
ourselves to setting and achieving targets that will ensure the legacy we leave is positive for today’s children and
tomorrow's leaders.

While the integration of the former Kumba Resources and Eyesizwe Coal has been smooth, it will take a little
longer to completely integrate sustainable development processes and systems within Exxaro. integrated policies
and reporting guidelines are currently being developed and revised in fine with the new sustainable development
strategy and framework.

Following the external assurance process, a number of reporting matters on data relating to lost-time injur‘ies,
water used, environmental incidents, CO, emissions and total energy use have been identified for refinement and
improvement on a group-integrated basis. Exxaro is committed to ensuring that these issues are resolved and that
policies and reporting guidelines are implemented as soon as possible. Explanatory notes are included where data
have been reportéd"on these para'meters in the hady of this report.

Directorate and governance
Best-practice governance is the de facto standard at Exxaro, made possihle by directors who bring an array of
skills and experience to bear in their deliberations.

On 31 August 2007, Or Con Fauconnier retired as chief executive and director of Exxaro. His contribution to the
group has been extraordinary in every respect and his legacy will live on in the carporate ethos he helped mould.
We thank him and trust that this new phase of his life will be as rewarding, albeit less frenetic. :

In March 2007, we welcomed Mavuso Msimang as an independent non-executive director. Regrettably, he resigned
after three months to concentrate on his new appointment as director-general of the Department of Home Affairs
and we wish him every success.

Subsequent to the yearl-end, Ms Nonkululeko Nyembezi-Heita resigned from the board effective 29 February 2008.
We thank her for her services while in office, -

Exxaro was not able to appoint an independent chairman in thé review period, but an acting chairman -
independent director, Dr Len Konar - was appointed to ensure continuity in the board's activities and its effective
functioning. We expect to appoint a chairman in the first half of 2008.

Appreciation

Exxaro took many giant steps in its first year, testimany to the calibre, commitment and entrepreneurial spirit
of our people. The energy that permeates this group is both inspiring and humbling and | thank every one of my
colleagues and fellow directors for their contribution and their support as | assume my new role.

Exxaro's empowerment partners have played a valuable rofe in the genesis of this group, and we will concentrate
on further cementing these mutually beneficial relationships.
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Outlook

It has been a year of consolidation and integration - operationally and in terms of people. The sethacks we
did encounter were well managed and approgriate action taken to entrench Exxaro's position in its chosen
commedities.

In coal, we will continue to diversify our presence in the industry by expanding on our prominent position as a
reliable supplier of power station coal to Eskom, strengthening our entry into metallurgical and export markets,
and maximising downstream opportunities, such as char, market coke and energy-related ventures.

Subsequent to year-end, South Africa has been negatively affected by serious power constraints. We believe it is
unlikely that future production at our coal mines will be affected by Eskom's load-shedding/rationing programme.
Most of the group’s coal mines supply some or all their production to Eskom. However, both KZN Sands and Zincor
have an agreement with the electricity utility which may result in some 10% ot production heing lost.

~

To address coal shortages at its power plants, Eskom has recently requested an additional 45Mtpa to be supplied
over two years, beginning immediately. Exxaro has offered to supply approximatety 13,5Mtpa of this tonnage to the
utility of which 9,6Mtpa has already been contracted.

The mineral sands industry worldwide still faces signiicant challenges{. Given the quality of our mineral sands
operations, the imminent acquisition of Namakwa Sands, our position as one of the largest titanium feedstock
suppliers worldwide, and our focus on enhancing operational efficiencies and new growth, Exxaro will be wel!
placed to compete aggressively when the market turns.

In our base metals and industrial minerals division, the focus will be on further improving operational efficiencies
and refining our product range. In addition, we are examining industry fundamentals worldwide in considering
opportunities to expand into other base metals and build on the significant existing capabilities in our group.

Continued buoyant iron ore market conditions should benefit the group in respect of its equity interest in Sishen
Iran Ore Company. :

Although a weaker rand will impact positively on US doilar-depominéted revenue, continued cost pressure from
rising inflation, the skills shortage and rising oil prices will negatively impact the business.

With its focused strategy and project pipeline, the Exxaro group is well positioned to exploit value-adding
opportunities presented by strong commedity markets in fulfilling its mission to create unrivalled value for all
. stakeholders, ’

SIPHO NKOSI
Chief executive officer

13 March 2008
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macro-economic and commodity review

World gross domestic product (GDP} growth slowed somewhat to 3,8% in 2007, after strong expansion of 4,0% in
2006. An important factor in this slowdown was the credit market turmoil that originated in the US in the second
half of 2007, causing a slump in the housing market in that country.

We believe that despite subsequent monetary easing in the US and elsewhere aimed at calming global financial
markets, the risk of a recession remains, particularly in the US. The ensuing weakening of the US dollar caused
growth in Europe to falter due to the strong euro, as well as the spill-over effects of the credit squeeze. Housing
market problems also spread to the UK, Spain and Ireland, The effects of the ¢redit crunch are expected to be felt
well into 2008, in our apinion.

We believe that despite this financial turbulence, global economic growth continued at a healthy pace, increasingly
being driven by the strong perfarmance of emerging market ecanomies, especially China, However, leading
economic indicators point to a slowdown in world economic growth in 2008 to an anticipated 3,2%. This is still
equal to the long-run historical average world growth rate.

In China, real GDP increased by 11,5%, driven by fixed investment and exports. Industrial production expanded by a
phenomenal 17,9%. The consensus view is that the Chinese economy continues to show signs of overheating, which
could result in slower growth in the next few years as the Chinese government endeavours to cool its economy.

Key risks to the global economy remain the possibility of faltering growth due te the spreading impact of the credit
crisis and a slump in housing markets, bursting asset bubbles, especially in Asia and Europe, and a recession in the
US. In addition, cantinuing high, and even increasing, oil and other energy prices will dampen economic growth

in oil-importing countries. This is especially relevant as China, other Asia-Pacific countries and the Middle East
accounted for 70% of global growth in petroleum demand in 2007.

In Scuth Africa, economic growth continued at a strong rate of 51% in 2007. Consumer price inflation rose above
the South African Reserve Bank's target range of 3-6%, leading to credit tightening measures, Strong inflationary -
pressures are expected o result in consumer inflation falling within the Reserve Bank range onty well into 2008, The
strength of the rand against the US dollar continued to have a negative impact on export earnings of the mining and
manufacturing industries, even though the mining industry operated in an environment of robust commeodity prices.

Infrastructure bottlenecks in terms of electricity supply and rail, road and harbour capacities, as well as the acute
shortage of skilled and experienced human resources, will limit the potential growth rate of the South African
economy to below 5% per annum. Real GDP growth of 3,8% is expected in 2008, but negative developments
internationally could also have an adverse impact on economic expansion in South Africa.

COMPARATIVE GDP GROWTH RATES
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Commodity review

in 2007, robust materials-intensive economic growth in China and other emerging economies pushed oil and
commodity prices to record levels. This was the fourth consecutive year of increasing prices. Supply bottlenecks in
many commadities supported these price levels. We believe that base metals prices probably peaked in 2007, but
bulk commodity prices continue to strengthen,

Market projections for global steet production indicate that crude output increased by 93Mt (some 7,5%) to
1344Mt in 2007. Output increased by some 66Mt (or 15,7%) in China alone, indicating an aggregate increase in
production in the rest of the world of about 3,3%. Growth in WOrld_ raw steel production is expected to slow to
between 5% and 6% in 2008.

After a 16% decrease in the contracted benchmark price for hard coking coal in 2007, the market started to tighten
against strong demand and declining net experts from China, as well as rail and shipping bottlenecks, particularly in
Australia. This is expected to result in large benchmark price increases being negotiated for 2008. Semi-soft coking
and low-volatile PCl-contracted coal prices improved moderately in 2007, but further tightening of market conditions,
in line with hard coking coay, is farecast to lead to contract prices being settled significantly higher for 2008.

The average Richards Bay spot steam coal price for 2007, at U5362,82/tonne, was 21,3% higher than the average for
2006. In 2008, the price is expected to trade at over USS100/tonne due to China reverting from being a net exporter
of steamn coal to a net impoerter in 2007 and strong demand growth from India leading to tight market conditions. In
addition, logistical bottienecks and high energy prices generally are alsé expected to support steam coal prices.

The world iron ore market continued to tighten in 2007, as production expansions in major exporting countries
could not keep pace with increasing demand fram China in particular. This forced Chinese consumers to satisfy
their demand by buying spot cargoes of high-priced indian and Chinese ores. In 2008, the global market for

iron ore is expected to remain buoyant, given continued growth in the economies of China and the rest of Asia.
However, the global shortage in engineering and construction resources may hamper planned capacity expansions
by major suppliers, while logistical constraints associated with rail and port capacity and shortages in dry bulk
vessel capacity are expected to affect the supply side of the seaborne iron ore market. As a result, prices are
expected to increase substantially in the current iron ore year and remain firm in the medium term. With spot
prices at times reaching levels double those of contract ore out of Australia in 2007, benchmark prices for 2008
are expected to be settled 65% to 71% higher, compared to the 9,5% increase negotiated for 2007.

The 2007 average London Metals Exchange (LME) cash zin¢ price was US$3 250/tonne, some 0,7% lower than the
average for 2006. The price was driven by good market fundamentals, reflected in a continuing refined zinc supply
deficit of about 15kt, as well as investment fund-based activity. Nonetheless, the deficit was much smaller than in
20086, indicating that refined zinc supply was catching up with demand. This trend was confirmed in the concentrate
market, where treatment charges changed from the negative spot charges of 2006 to above $300/tonne in the fourth
quarter of 2007, LME zinc stocks declined to a (ow of 58,1kt in October 2007 but then increased rapidly to end the
year at a similar level to January 2007, at about 90kt. Continuing supply expansions are expected to result in a
refined zinc surplus in 2008 of more than 100kt. The concentrate market will also show a surplus. We believe that

. these developments are expected to result in zinc prices declining to an average of USS2 400/tonne in 2008,

Realised titanium dioxide pigment prices increased marginally in most global regions in 2007, with the market
remaining in near balance. Declining GDP expansion in the US will slow pigment demand growth and might have a
negative impact on prices in 2008 in that region. However, the impact of consolidation in the pigment industry in
the review period could support prices, in our opinion.

Prices for most titanium feedstocks increased moderately during the year, mainly due to the fact that only a
modest market surplus was experienced and this trend is expected to continue in 2008,

The zircon market experienced a record year in terms of prices, with an average free-on-board (FOB) price of
almost US$790/tonne being realised in Australia. Nevertheless, increasing supply from, especiaily, Indonesia
resufted in consumer stocks building up and prices easing in the second half of the year. with supplies continuing
to increase, and weak demand from consumers, we expect further softening in zircon prices in 2008.
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macro-economic and commodity review continued

The US doltar generally weakened against the currencies of major commodity-exporting countries in 2007,
especially after menetary easing in response to the credit crisis in the US. Commaodity price increases in the
currencies of these countries were thus lower than in dollar terms. Except for South Africa, the US dellar is
expected to weaken further against the currencies of commodity-producing countries, again impacting negatively
on local currency export receipts, although a weaker dollar tends to support commaodity prices.

The significant increases in mining cests and mining project capital costs since 2005 continued in 2007, Capacity
shortages with regard to'contractors, machinery, equipment and mining professionals worldwide persisted. The
skills shortage in particufar is expected to endure for the foreseeable future, exacerbated by higher energy costs
and infrastructure constraints.

Global bulk freight rates increased significantly in 2007, following ongoing strong demand for bulk commodities
from China and other emerging economies. This was reflected in a 150% surge in the Baltic Dry Freight Index
during the year. The year 2007 was also characterised by major infrastructure bottlenecks which caused berthing
delays at ports, especially in Australia.

Estimates of global exploration expenditure in 2007 indicate an increase for the fifth consecutive year, by some
25% over 2006. This trend is expected to continue into 2008, although forecast declining base metal prices could
see the rate of growth decreasing. In time, increased exploration expenditure will result in increased mineral
supply and contribute to the downward progression of the commodity price cycle,
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NOMINAL HISTORICAL COAL PRICES

140 -
120 -
100 -
& 80 -
2
g s0-
o
]
40 - —-—_._/"_""*'-“\\-—-—..
0_
1950 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

= Semi-soft coking coal benchmark price = RBCT spot steam coal price = Hard-coking coal benchmark price

NOMINAL HISTORICAL ZINC AND LEAD PRICES

1
7

I

N

\

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

= US pigment price == Rutile price = Zircon price = Chloride slag price = Chioride ifmenite price

3500 - - 450
3000 - -
c - 350 5
& 2500 - 2
= - 300 o
3 =g
£ 2000 -. - 250 2
E 1500~ Rl - 200 §
o / g
2 | | - 150 §
S 1000 - ™~ L ] \%______/ 150 8
[ I \_'_—/ - 100 £
|1 ~N
500 - | — | - 50
0 - - 0
1990 1991 1992 (593 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1939 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
= | ME spot lead price = Zinc treatment charge = LME spot zinc price
NOMINAL HISTORICAL TITANIUM DIOXIDE PIGMENT, FEEDSTOCK AND ZIRCON PRICES
900 - - 2500
2 o \\ : P / \7“5‘: 2600
= 700 - -
3 \ /"-—-_/\__‘_h/ \// P L~ z
% 600 - &
< \\______ L’ - 1500 2
8 s00- | A — 2
2 400 - N N |1 1 T R B 1 1000 2
o = ~J - — E
2 300 - P 3 ~ -1 E.
] N - £
g 200- . & - 500
g 100 - T
2
o- - 0

1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

EXXARC ANNUAL REPORT 2007

37




financial review
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Introduction

The 2007 year marked Exxaro's first full year's financial reporting since its
revised listing late in November 2006. Accordingly, comments are for comparable
purposes based on an analysis of the group's audited financial results for the

12 months ended 31 December 2007 compared with the unaudited supplementary

financial results for the corresponding 12-month period ended 31 December 2006.

To ensure comparability, the investment in Sishen Iron Ore Company (Pty) Limited
{S10C) has been equity accounted from 1 January 2006, while Eyesizwe Coal (Pty)
Limited (Eyesizwe} has been consolidated from the same date. All non-recurring
accounting entries associated with the empowerment transaction in November
2006 and the impairment of the assets of the KwaZulu-Natal mineral sands
operation in June 2006 have been excluded. The financial results do not include
the Namakwa Sands business and a 26% interest in Black Mountain/Gamsberg as
the acquisitions of these interests will only be completed after conversion of the
mining rights and their subsequent cession fo Exxaro.

Overview of group operating results

TABLE 1
12 months ended
31 December
R million 2007 2006
Revenue 10157 8814
Operating expenses 8713 7 553
Net operating profit 1444 1261
Net operating profit margin (%) 14 14

The group experienced strong demand at higher commodity prices despite the
significant decrease in LME zinc prices in the last guarter of 2007. This, together
with a stronger rand of R6,80 to the US dollar on 31 December 2007, resulted in
revaluation of stock to net realisable value in the base metals and mineral sands
commodity businesses decreasing by R133 million compared to the end of 2006. .

Revenue increased by 15% to above R10 billion with net operating profit
R183 million higher at R1 444 million.

An average exchange rate of R7,26 to the US dollar was realised on exports
compared with R6,76 for the corresponding 12-month period in 2006. The
significant strength of the Australian dollar to the US dollar, at a 23-year high
(USS0,83 to the AUD realised against US$0,75 for 2006}, however, impacted
negatively on the financial results of the mineral sands operations in Australia.




Segmental results
Segmental results are shown in tables 2 and 3.

TABLE 2
12 months ended
31 December

R million ) 2007 2006
Revenue )

Coal 5 087 4 433
- Tied operations’ 1768 1625
- Commercial operations 3319 2 808
Mineral sands 2172 18569
- KZN Sands 984 B17
- Australia Sands ’ 1188 1042
Base metals 2732 2379
- Rosh Pinah 941 888
- Zincor 2558 2234
- Consolidation entries (767) {743)
tndustrial minerals 159 122
Other 7 21

Total 10157 8814

'Tied operations refer to mining operations that supply their entire production to either Eskom or ArcelorMittal SA Limited in
terms of contractual arrangements,

TABLE 3
12 months ended 31 December

Net operating profit
(Rm)/Margin (%) 2007 % 2006 4%
Coal 885 17 620 14 -
- Tied operations 88 5 105 6
- Commercial operations 797 24 515 18
Mineral sands 97) 4 86 5
- KZN Sands' © (157 {18) (114) (14)
- Australia Sands : 60 5 200 19
Base metals 688 25 609 26
- Rosh Pinah 457 49 404 45
- Zincor 298 12 238 11
- Consoliddation entries (67) (33)
Industrial minerals (3) (2) (1) 1
— Current operations 24 26
- Alloystream™ (27} (27
Other {(29) (53)
Total net operating profit 1444 14 1261 14
Non-cash costs . 798 620
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA) 2 242 22 1881 21

IExcludes the impact of the impairment of carrying value of assets of a pre-tax amount of R784 mifiion in 2006,

Coal

Revenue from the coal commodity business increased by 15% to RS OB7 million due to significantly higher
free-on-rail export prices, increased selling prices to ArcelorMittal SA Limited {(ArcelorMittal) based on higher
international coking coal prices, and stronger power station coal prices to Eskom,
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financial review continued

Despite a lower net operating income at the tied operations brought about by a non-recurring R30 million
payment from Eskom in 2006 to the Arnot mine for committed reserves, Exxaro Coal achieved a record net
operating profit of R885 million, 43% higher than in 2006. '

The higher revenue, profitable turnaround at the North Block Complex and savings realised from integrating the
Kumba Coal and Eyesizwe Coal corporate offices, offset inflationary pressures primarily in respect of labour and
diesel costs.

Mineral sands

KZN Sands

The KZN mineral sands operation reported revenue of R984 million, up R167 million from 2006 due to increased
chloride slag and LMPI sales. However, net cperating loss increased by R43 million which includes a R45 million
write down of the crude ilmenite stockpile from cost to net realisable value as a result of the stronger rand at the
end of the financial year.

Australia Sands

Although revenue increased 14% primarily as a result of substantially-higher synthetic rutile sales and

modest increases in zircon and pigment prices, net operating profit decreased by R140 million caused by the
20% strengthening of the Australian dollar to the US dollar, and continued cost increases in energy consumables.

Base metals

Revenue increased by 15% to R2 732 million with a net operating margin of 25% as a result of the 2% increase

in the rand zinc price for the year to R22 824/tonne, compared with R22 311/tonne in the corresponding period in
2006. The increased revenue was partially offset by inflationary production cost increases and a write down to net

. realisable value of zinc metal stocks in the amount of R88 million due to the decline in LME zinc prices converted

to rand terms at the end of the current reporting period.

Industrial minerals
Despite an increase in revenue at the Glen Douglas dolomite mine and FerroAlloys plant, net operating profit
declined attributable to higher maintenance expenditure and lower offtake of higher premium metallurgical

dolomite products by ArcelorMittal,

Expenditure on the Alloystream™ technalogy was incurred in respect of the Furnace 1 feasibility study which allows
for the demonstration of the furnace's beneficiation of manganese ore.

The following graph reconciles net operating profit for the 2006 year to the R1 444 million reported for 2607:
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The pro forma comparable EBITDA contribution of the various businesses, on
the assumption that 100% of the Namakwa Sands business, 26% of the Black
Mountain/Gamsberg interest, 20% of Sishen Iron Ore Company (Pty) Limited
(St0C) held by Exxaro and the 22% effective interest in Chifeng are included in

EBITDA, are shown in the respective pie charts:

Attributable earnings

TABLE 4
’ 12 months ended
. 31 December

R million 2007 2006
Net operating profit 1444 12861

Income from invastments 2

Net financing cost (215) {315)
Equity-accounted income 728 638
Taxation {512) (595)
Mincrity interest (20) 27
Comparable attributable earnings 1427 962
Weighted average number of shares 341 33
Comparabie attributable earnings (cents per share) 418 aor

Net financing costs

An analysis of the compasition of the disclosed comparable net financing cost is:

12 months ended

31 December

R million 2007 2006
Interest expense and loan costs 153 241
Finance leases {IAS 17 and IFRIC 4) 59 39
Interest income (96) (12
116 268
Interest adjustment on non-current provisions 99 47
Total 215 315

Income from equity-accounted investments

TABLE 5
12 months ended
31 December
R million 2007 2006
SI0C 746 598
Chifeng Zinc {18) 40
Total 728 638

EBITDA CONTRIBUTION

13%

12 MONTHS 2007
= Iron ore R1 243 million
= Coal R1 289 million
u Mineral sands R451 million

m Base metals and industrial
minerals R921 million

EBITDA CONTRIBUTION

12 MONTHS 2006
® Iron gre R812 million
" ».Coal R937 million
® Mingral sands R711 million

» Base metals and industriat
minerals R810 million
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financial review continued

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Rian Strydom (42)
General manager: financial accounting

Riaan Koppeschaar (37)
General manager: corporate finance
and treasury

Sakkie Prinsloo (54)
Group manager: taxation
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Kumba lron Qre - the holding company of SIOC in which Exxaro holds a 20%
interest in iron ore - increased revenue by 33% to R11,5 billion for 2007 on the back
of record preduction, higher sales velumes, increased benchmark prices and quality
premiums on certain praducts. Kumba's aperating margin increased to 52% and
profit for the year was R3.9 billion. Headline earnings increased 44% to R3,1 billion,

Kumba Iron Ore expects to increase production from 32Mt to 40Mt in 2008 as the
first of its expansion projects begin to deliver.

The results of SIOC are fully reported on by Kumba Iron Ore Limited in its
publication of the financial results to 31 December 2007.

The significant decline in the demand for zinc, especially zing alloys, in the local
Chinese market as well as the sharp decline in zinc prices at year-end, combined
with higher operating expenditure during the ramp-up of the expanded operation
of the Chifeng refinery in inner-Mongolia, resulted in Exxaro's equity accounted
interest reducing by R58 million to an R18 million loss in 2007.

Taxation
The corporate rate of 29% is reduced to an effective rate of 26,1% primarily due to:
» Share of associates and joint ventures differences . -10,8%
+ Secondary tax on companies (STC) on the deemed dividend

in respect of the share buy-back +2,9%
* Tax rate differences on offshore entities +2,1%
* Disallowable expenditure, mainly IFRS 2 share-based payments +2,1%

Headline earnings

The 15% increase in net operating profit and R90 million higher equity-accounted
income from that reported for the comparative 12-month period in 2006, together
with lower net finance charges resulting from lower debt levels, and a lower
taxation charge, resulted in profit attributable to ordinary shareholders increasing
by 48% to R1427 mitlion. Headline earnings were R1 448 million at 425 cents per
share, 49% higher than the comparable period's 285 cents per share.

TABLE 6
12 months ended
) 31 December

R million 2007 2006
Comparable net profit attributable to equity
holders of the parent 1427 962
- Impairment of property, plant and equipment {(PPE) 23
- Share of associate’s gain on disposal of PPE {3) {1}
- Share of associates recycling of re-measurements

to profit or loss (4]
- Excess of acquirer’s interest in the net tair value

of the acquiree’s net assets and contingent

liabilities over cost (36}
- (Gains or losses on disposal or scrapping of PPE 17 3
- (GGain on disposal of associate or joint ventures (39
- Investment impairment reversal (6)
- Taxation effect of adjusiments (3 10
Comparable headline earnings 1448 893
Headline earnings per share 425 285




Dividends

Exxaro intends progressing to the distribution of 50% of attributable earnings to shareholders. Dividend
declarations in the medium term may, however, be lower to adequately provide for funding the current growth
pipeline of projects, comply with contractually agreed joan covenants, and maintain heatthy key financial metrics.

Since the creation of Exxaro in November 2006, the following dividends have been declared:

Period Dividend R million ) Date Date paid/
ended (cps) R million incl STC' declared payable
30 June 2007 60 211 211 15 August 2007 10 September 2007
31 December 2007 100 353 333 20 February 2008 17 March 2008

No STC is payable due lo the utilisation of STC credits arising from the dividend receipts from SIOC.

Total dividends declared in respect of the 2007 financial year of R564 million equate to a dividend covered

2.5 times by attributable earnings and are paid or payable to the shareholders as follows:

Total Final Interim
Rm Rm Am
Gross dividend declared 564 353 211
BEE Holdco 297 185 112
Anglo 58 37 21
Pubtic 192 120 72
Exxaro empowerment scheme (MPOWER} 17 11 6
Cash flow
TABLE 7
12 months ended
31 December
R million 2007 2006
Net cash retained from operations 2308 1980
* Net financing cost, taxation and dividends (801) (2 983}
Cash used in investing activities
» New capacity (727 (283)
+ Sustaining and environmental capital {569} (640)
* Invesiments acquired (257} (40}
Dividends received ar7e
Proceeds on sale of non-core assets and investments S50 239
Other 5 &)
Cash inflow/(outflow) 3388 (1733)
Share issue 114
Increase in net debt on acquisition of a subsidiary (25)
Other movements in net debt {39)
Decrease in net debt 438
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financial review continued

Cash retained from operations of R2 308 million was mainly applied to taxation payments of R461 million, capital
axpenditure of R1 296 million, an investment of R239 million in the Richards Bay Coal Terminal to secure 2,5Mtpa
export entitlement, and the interim dividend payment of R211 million in September 2007. The group had a net cash
inflow of R388 million for the year.

A net surplus of R91 mitlion was realised on the repurchase of 10 million shares from Anglo South Africa Capital
(Pty) Ltd and the subsequent market placement of the same number of new shares. After taking into account
the cash dividends of R373 million from SIQC, RS02 million of cash and cash equivalents was available for the
repayment of borrowings.

Net debt of R921 million at 31 December 2006 decreased by R438 million to R483 million at a net debt to equity
ratio of 5% on 31 December 2007.

Debt structure and financial covenants
Compliance with the qroup's,finangial loan covenants with its external financiers is as follows:

Ratio Covenant
* Net debt to equity (%) 5 <125
* EBITDA interest cover (times) ’ 10 >4
* HDSCR' . 1,85 >1,3
* CHDSCR? 3.86 >1.5

A Historical debt service cover ratio (HDSCR) being cash earnings, less unfunded capital expenditure and taxation paid, plus dividends
received (collectively referred to as free cash flow), divided by mandatory capital and interest payments on financing facilities,

?Cumulative HDSCR being cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period, plus free cash flow, less dividends paid, divided by
mandatory capital and interest payments on financing facilities. Dividend payments may not result in this ratio being less than 1,5.

The group’s debt structure at 31 December 2007 is:

Debt structure

R million Drawn Undrawn Repayment profile

Long term 1333 2 858 74 2008
— Corporate 923 2450 100 2009
— Australia Sands. 410 408 44 2010

Short term - 43 2011

Total debt 1333 , 1072 After 2011

Cash and cash equivalents (850} 1333

Net deit 483

Net debt of R483 million at 31 December 2007 will increase with the payment commitment of R2 353 million,
subject to the disclosed price adjustments, for the acquisition of Namakwa Sands and a 26% interest in Black
Mounta_in/Gamsberq on cenversion and subseguent cession of their mining rights.

Exxaro has sufficient committed term facilities for its intended growth aspirations as well as adequate short-term
standby facilities.
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Organisational structure

Exxaro will divest 43,8% of its current investment in Rosh Pinah Zinc Corporation (Pty) Ltd'(Rosh Pinah)

to Namibian shareholder groupings planned for the first half of 2008. The divestment will reduce Exxaro’s
shareholding in Rosh Pinah to 50,049, Exxaro will continue to manage the mine in terms of a management
agreement.

In anticipation of the divestment and in order to accommodate the stand-alone funding structure arranged,
hedging of up to 60% of Rosh Pinah’s zinc and lead production over a 42-month peried has commenced. A total
of 13kt, representing 30% of the projected lead sales was hedged by 31 December 2007, at forward prices ranging
from US$1 700 to US$940 per tonne while a further 30% of the intended 60% of the projected zinc sales up to
mid 2011 was hedged subsequent to year-end at prices ranging from US$2 098 to US$2 435 per tonne.

Details of hedging concluded to date are as follows:

2008 2009 2010 2011
Zinc sales tonnes hedged ("000) 15 16 18 2|
Lead sales tonnes hedged ('000) 4 4 2
Hedged zin¢ price (US$/tonne) 2356 2335 2293 2265
Hedged zinc price (ZAR/tonne) 17 829 19193 19 568 20 889
Hedged lead price (US$/tonne) 1508 1183 939
Hedged lead price ZAR/tonne) 11 830 10038 8 235

Capital expenditure

Table 8 compares capital expenditure for the 12-manth periods ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 together
with an estimate for the 2008 financial year. Investment in the Waterberg coal fields will dominate our capital

“expenditure programmes on new production capacity over the next two calendar years. Sustaining and

environmental capital in 2008 includes the reline of Furnace 2 and the development of the Fairbreeze mine at
KZN Sands, primary equipment replacements at the coal operations, and two smal! roaster rebuilds together with
major maintenance on the cell house at the Zincor refinery.

TABLE 8
Capital expenditure Financial 12 months ended
year 2008 31 December

R million Estimate’ 2007 2006
Sustaining and environmental 1168 563 640
Expansion

* Coal 1179 679 235
* Mineral sands 63 16 29
* Base metals 40 25 8
* [ndustrial minerals and othar 20 7 11
Total " 2470 1296 923

'Excludes the acquisition of Namakwa Sands and a 26% interest in Black Mountain/Gamsberg.
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financial review continued

Changes to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS, with accounting policies consistent with
those applied for the correspending period ended 31 December 2006.

Exxaro intends to early-adopt proposed improvements to the following standards in 2008:

* |1AS 1 Presentation of financial statements: including a statement of comprehensive income to separatety
disclose ‘other comprehensive income’, being items of income and expenses that are non-owner related and not
recagnised in profit or loss, and which were previausly recognised directly in equity.

* IFRS B Operating segments: Disclosure of the components or segments that management uses to make
decisions on operational issues.,

The standards and circulars that required additional disclosures for the 2007 financial year were:

* IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures requiring an extensive list of both quantitative and qualitative
disclosures for financial instruments aimed primarily at disclosures of risks and sensitivities to risks.

* IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements: Disclosure in respect of an entity’s objectives, policies and processes
for managing capital.

+ Circular CCO8/07 Headline earnings: Clarifies what should be included and excluded from headline earnings.

Post-retirement benefit liability
Accredited medical aid funds are structured to exclude any employer liability for post-retirement medical benefits
in respect of either existing or past emptoyees.

The merger with Eyesizwe and creation of Exxaro in November 2006 resulted in the nécessity to raise a provision
for a post-employment healthcare benefit that had been provided to a group of continuation and in-service
members on the Witbank Coal Medical Aid Scheme (WCMAS) and BHP Billiton SA Medical Scheme. This benefit,
which is no longer offered, applied to selective employees previously employed by Eyesizwe or Ingwe Coal and
comprises a subsidy of contributions.

An actuarial valuation of the employer liability was performed and a provisicn was raised in the amount of )
R36,3 millien, of which R33,7 million was simultaneously raised as a receivable, being recoverabte from Eskom as
part of tied coal supply arrangements.

Exxaro is a participating employer in a number of defined contribution funds that provide retirement, death and
disability benefits to employees. Exxaro no longer participates in any defined benefit funds.

Share price performance

A year-on-year 12 months to 31 December 2007 comparison shows that the volume-weighted average share
price was R75,49 against R54,86 for the previous year, while the daily trade in shares averaged 849 137 in 2007
compared to 453 084 in the previous period. During the year under review, the share price peaked at RI07,00

in December 2007 (against a high of R59,82 in the previous financial period) and bottomed at R51,75 in January
2007 versus a low of R40,40 in January 2006. Post the financial year-end, the share has traded at a new high of
R119,99 on the back of higher-than-anticipated bulk commaodity prices and a weaker rand scenario.

In the year since the revised listing of Kumba Resources as Exxaro, the share has significantly outperformed both
the JSE overall index (+13%) and the JSE Resources index (+3%). The disposal by Anglo American plc of more
than 10% of its shareholding in the group during the second half of 2007 has significantly increased and improved
Exxaro's liguidity and tradeability. This has in turn improved the share's attractiveness to large, offshore investors
and also Exxaro’s overall rating. :
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SHARE PRICE AND RELATIVE PERFORMANCE SECTOR AND MARKET COMPARISON QVER ONE YEAR
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business operations review

MIKE KILBRIDE
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
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Overview

In Exxaro's first full year, our business units recorded good operating performances
despite the impact of excessive rain in the first half and difficult mining conditions
at some operations.

Coal markets enjoyed the benefits of very strong glebal demand for bulk
commodities which translated into increased domestic demand and favourable
coal pricing. A number of new projects are under way to satisfy requirements and
Exxaro is also well positioned to supply rising domestic demand from Eskom due to
the growing demand for electrical energy in South Africa. To meet increased global
demand, we have expanded our available export entitlement to 6,3Mtpa by end
2009.

In mineral sands, feedstock supply surpluses continued to affect markets and the
economic slowdown in the US had a negative impact on pigment demand. Exxaro's
2007 financial results were also negatively influenced by the weakness of the

US dollar against the Australian currency. Zircon enjoyed good global demand

and pricing during 2007, although a supply surpius in 2008 is likely to lead to a
softening in prices. Modest price increases for titanium dioxide feedstock products
are expected in 2008.

In base metals, our zinc business has enjoyed prices that were at historical

highs in the first half of 2007 due to a supply deficit and low stock fevels. The
corresponding treatment charges reflected a shortage of concentrate, however,
in the last quarter of the year. an oversupply resulted in a correction to the metal
price and this trend is expected to prevail in 2008. Lead prices have remained at
high levels due to strong demand from China and various supply constraints.

Safety

Regrettably we recorded four on-mine fatal accidents during the year and one
fatal incident involving a contractor on a public highway. Although this was an
improvement on the six fatalities in 2006, our goal remains zero fatal accidents.
We extend our deepest condelences to those families and colleagues on this 1oss of
life and reaffirm our commitment to the programmes and processes that will vield
an injury- and fatality-free waorking environment,

Measured against the lost-time injury frequency rate (LTIFR), there has been an
overalt improvement from Q,42 injuries per 200 000 man-hours in 2006 to 0,36 in
2007. The systems currently in place for reporting safety data are being refined to
enable consistent future reporting, Currently nine of 12 operations have achieved
international health and safety certification {OHSAS 18001) and environmental
certification (IS0 14001 and the balance are working towards accreditation by
December 2008.




Operational performance

Despite challenges during the year as a result of extreme weather patterns, difficult geological conditions and the

increasing scarcity of skills, there were a number of notable achievements: )

« When underground operations at New Clydesdale mine were closed due to concern about the safety of support
pillars, the new Inyanda opencast operation was able to access and truck coal to New Clydesdale within four
months of site establishment to mitigate the loss of production.

‘Grootegeluk set a sales production record of 18,5Mt and continued to improve output from its new GG6 plant.
Zincor continued with its roaster rebuild programme and enjoyed the resultant benefit of improved throughput.
An RBY-million profitability turnaround of the North Block Complex was achieved by optimising mine planning,
increasing throughput and securing better prices from customers. .
The roll-out of an intensified business improvement process coupled with a structured review of performance
have renewed the focus on operational efficiency.

There has been a substantial improvement in the safety performance of several operations, notably Zincor,
Leeuwpan and the Tiwest operation in Australia.

Slag and pig iron output of the furnaces at KZN Sands improved despite difficulties experienced due to Eskom
supply interruptions and chatlenges associated with commissioning the pre-heaters.

Maintaining production despite frequent periods where operations were affected by Eskom interrupting power
supply through load-shedding in the last quarter of the year.

Record pigment production from the Tiwest operation in Australia.

Good ramp-up of zinc preduction from the Chifeng refinery in China.

.

New operations
Exxaro's expansion remains healthy with a number of exciting projects either under construction or in the final
stages of investigation and approval. :

The export-orientated opencast Inyanda mine is on track to full production of 1,5Mtpa. Since establishment,
Inyanda has been supplying run-of-mine product to New Clydesdale. Inyanda's beneficiation plant should be
commissioned in the second quarter of 2008, -
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business operations review continued

Coal

OVERVIEW

The review period was Exxaro Coal's first full year in operation
after the merger between Kumba Coal and Eyesizwe Coal in
November 2006. Management's new strategic intent and focus
centres on creating exceptional value by being an innovative
carbon and enerqy division, with a global faetprint, using and
developing excellence in people and superior processes to produce
B85Mtpa of coal and 3000MW of energy equivalents by 2015.

1 Underground pick changing at Arnot mine,

Mpumalanga HIGHLIGHTS

1,5Mtpa

Inyanda mine commissioned

R89 million

profitability turnaround at North Block Complex

2 Operatlons at Leeuwpan mine, Mpumalanga

90%

of design capacity reached at Grootegeluk 6 project

New 45-year Medupi power station supply

agreement from Eskom for 8 ’ 5 M t pa

2008 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE ESTIMATE
4%

16%

& Sustaining
m Expansion

& Safety, health
and environmental

B0%

EXXARO ANNUAL REPORT 2007

50



To achieve the strategic objectives, Exxaro Coal is conéentratinq on operational
excellence in current operations as well as optimising and growing its market
position in supplying coal to Eskom, and to the domestic and export markets.
Considerable emphasis has been placed on value growth by downstream
integration, typifled by the Sintel char piant at Grootegeluk mine and advanced
studies on a market coke plant.

The focus during the year was on optimising existing assets and growing the
business. Grootegeluk's GG6 plant is achieving over 90% of its design capacity.
The turnaround at North Block Complex was unfortunately countered by the
discontinuation of underground activities at New Clydesdale mine due to safety
considerations which have severely affected activities at this business unit in the
current year, In addition to supplementing semi-soft coking coal to ArcelorMittal
Steel South Africa's coking plants, the GG6 project contributes té alleviating the
shortage of market coke for the ferroalloy industry.

To mitigate the loss of production at New Clydesdale, commissioning of the
Inyanda mine was fast tracked and first run-of-mine coal was supplied to the

New Clydesdale plant four months after site establishment. Construction of

the beneficiation plant at Inyanda is progressing well, with hot commissioning
planned for the second quarter of 2008. The R269-million Inyanda mine is the first
greenfields project to be developed under the Exxaro banner and is expected to
produce up to 1,5Mtpa of high-grade export-quality product.

Leeuwpan mine's reclaimer suffered a structural failure in September and is only
expected to be repaired by the third quarter of 2008. Front-end loaders have been
deployed to minimise the impact on sates.

Favourable international prices and increased domestic demand, mainly from
Eskom, resulted in increased domestic coal prices for both power station and
steam application. Where sales contracts allowed, Exxaro Coal was able to capture
value from both international and domestic coai price movements,

"Physical information and operating results

Production volumes were marginally lower than 2006 (1%), with power station
volumes being the main contributor to the variance.

Power station coal production at Eskom-tied mines was lower than 2006 due to
difficult geological conditions at Arnot and delays at Matla due to a protracted
waiting period for the necessary regutatory approvals for a river diversion. This
was partially countered by the commercial mines (North Block Complex, Leeuwpan
and Grootegeluk) meeting increased demand from Eskom. North Block Complex
started mining a new reserve this year.{referred to as Block C) which yielded
increased product volumes.

Coking coal production showed a marked increase year on year due to pillar
extraction at the Nyala shaft at Tshikondeni as well as the ramp-up of the

GG6 plant at Grootegeluk. Steam coal production was lower mainly as a resuit of
the closure of New Clydesdale's underground sections:

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

» Improving operational excellence by
maintaining and strengthening our
position in the lower quartile of the
coal free-on-rail (FOR) cost curve in
South Africa.

» Strengthening our dominant market
position as a supplier to domestic
metals and energy markets, and
increasing our presence in the power
station coal export market.

« Ensuring exceptional value growth
by executing brown- and greenfields
coal growth projects to produce
85Mtpa by 2015,

» Diversifying our portfolic by moving
downstream into the reductant and
energy business sectors.

« Maintaining and improving our
high-performance culture.

+ Ensuring sustainability in the
communities where we operate.

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Ernst Venter (51)
Executive general manager

Lean Groenewald (38)
Manager: finance

Johan Myburgh (5%)
Manager: marketing .

Mongezi Veti (42)
General manager: Arnot,
New Clydesdale and Tshikondeni

Johan Wepener {50}
General manager: Leeuwpan, Inyanda,
North Block Complex and Mafube

Danie Mouton (40}
Manager: business devefopment

Jan Oberholzer (42)
Programme manager: Waterberg

Reinette Prosch-Bekker (38)
Manager: business improvement

Ashiey Wailburgh (42)
Manager: human resaurces
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business operations review continued

Sales to Eskom were lower year on year, in line with the decrease in production, Other domestic sales were
boosted by higher production at Tshikondeni and a 28% increase in semi-soft coking coal sales to ArcelorMittal in
line with increased demand. This swing to domestic velumes towered export volumes which were atso affected by
the closure of the New Clydesdale underground operations.

Capital expenditure for 2007 was higher than 2006 and included expenditure for the construction of Inyanda mine
and the Sintel char plant at Grootegeluk.

Unaudited physical information (*000 tonnes) 2007 2006 Variance Y-0-Y %

Coal'

Production

Power station ) 34 246 34 5099 8353 (1.0)
~ Tied operations? 16 732 17 598 {866) {5.0)
- Commercial operations 17 614 17 001 513 30
Coking 2 962 2 496 466 18,7
- Tied operations? 463 363 100 27,5
- Commarcial operations 2499 2133 366 17,2
Other commercial operations 4112 4 665 (653) (11,9
Total : 41 320 41 760 {440) (1,1)
Sales

Eskom - 34 226 34 665 (439) 1.3
- Tied operations? ‘ 16 699 17 588 (899) B5.1)
- Commercial mines 17 527 17 067 460 2,7

Other domestic 5237 4892 345 71

- Tied operations? 449 381 68 17,8

- Commercial mines 4788 4511 277 6.1

Export commercial mines ‘ 1821 2434 613) (25,2)
Total 41284 41 991 {707) {(1.7)
Revenue (Rm) 5087 4433 B54 14,8

Net operating profit {Rm) 885 620 2865 42,7

Capital expenditure (Rm) 876 465 @y 88,4

‘VFor comparative purposes the Eyesizwe Coal mines are included for the full periods disclosed.
2Tied operations refer to mining operations that supply their entire production to either Eskom or ArcelorMittal SA Limited in terms
of contractual arrangements. :
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Prospects

In 2008, the focus will be on the continued strong operational performance from all mines with Mafube,
Inyanda, Sintel char and Diepspruit (New Clydesdale) all ramping up in 2008. Grootegeluk is expected to begin
implementing a seven-day work week, ahead of expansion projects to supply the new Medupi power station.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2008 (estimate} (Rm):
Sustaining

Expansion’

Safety, health and environmental

Total

'Expansion capital includes expenditure on the Inyanda beneficiation plant, the Mafube joint venture, the Sintel char project at

Grootegeluk and the Grootegeluk expansion for the Medupi power plant.

Exxaro Coal expects improved coking coal and coke prices during 2008 with continued strong demand driven
by Asia, particularly China. Steam coal prices are expected to increase due to high demand and global logistical

constraints.

The coal business also expects to improve on its solid performance in 2007 with the successful commissioning of
projects scheduled for 2008 and a solid tonger-term project pipeline, all prioritised, managed and executed in line

with its strategy.

239
1179
56

1474
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business operations review continued

OVERVIEW

Mineral
‘ Once the acquisition of Namakwa Sands is complete, Exxaro's
S a n d S mineral sands operations in South Africa and Australia will make

the group one of the world's largest suppliers of titanium dioxide
feedstock and zircon.

HIGHLIGHTS

186,06kt

record at KZN Sands for titanium slag tapped

1 Hydraulic mining at Hillendale mine
2 KZN Sands central processing complex site

~ T

ReCO rd pigment production maintained

at Australia Sands

-
»

S

SRL R NPT I h
.‘ !

2008 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE ESTIMATE
2%

a Sustaining
m Expansion

w Safety, health
and environmental
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KZN Sands

KZN Sands reported improved production results from both furnaces for

2007 in contrast with the negative impact of the Furnace 1 shut on production

in 2006. Titanium slag tapped was 35,7kt higher at 186,6kt (a new annual
production record) and increased slag throughput boosted low manganese pig
iron (LMPI) production. llmenite production was aligned with higher smelter feed
requirements, resulting in 48kt more than 2006.

Business improvement initiatives during the year continued to focus on increasing
smetter output.

The pre-heater was not introduced as planned due to instability in the furnaces,
exacerbated by Eskom'’s power supplv'shortaqes and subsequent load-shedding in
the tast quarter of the year. In anticipation of acquiring operational control of the
Namakwa Sands business, a number of synergistic and value-adding projects have
been identified. A review will be undertaken at KZN Sands of the current furnace
technology with the objective to improve the performance of the furnaces.

Zircon and rutile production, however, declined due to lower mineral grades in
the area mined during the review period, but are expected to improve in the next
reporting period,

In March 2008, Furnace 2 was shut down for scheduled maintenance earlier than
planned following a water ingress incident that caused substantial damage ta the
furnace at the KZN Sands Empangeni central processing complex. This will resutt
in total estimated downtime of eight months (including a month-long ramp-up) and
significantly lower production of both slag and low manganese pig iron in 2008

when compared to the 2007 {inancial year.

The average in situ heavy minerals grade at the Hillendale mine, which is nearing
the end of its life, is expected to be lower in 2008, unti! mining and development of
the Fairbreeze and Braeburn deposits can begin once mining rights are obtained.

Australia Sands

Record pigment production was maintained during the period due to continuous
de-bottlenecking of the pigment plant and business improvement initiatives. Zircon
and rutile volumes increased marginally as initiatives to increase recoveries more
than oftset reduced feed into the dry mill, in turn caused by iower mining grades
resulting in reduced concentrate production.

A planned five-week shut for the synthetic rutile plant was successfully completed
on schedule in July 2007, The benefits of the shut led to increased synthetic rutile
production. A successful fwo-week shut was also completed at the Cooljarloo mine
and included replacing the outer shell of the floating feed preparation unit.

The 2008 mining plan indicates unavoidable mining of a low-grade area for
most of the year. This is expected to result in lower heavy minerals concentrate
production.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

* Maintain position as third-largest
producer of high-grade titanium
dioxide.feedstock.

*» Second-largest producer of zircon.
* Downstream value addition.

* Increase share in world chloride
pigment production,

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Wim de Klerk (44)
Executive general manager

Willem van Niekerk (48)
General manager: marketing and
business development

Mellis Walker (41)
Manager: finance

Hendrik Graham (54)
Manager: China business development

Robbie Gleimius (38)
Manager: marketing

Johan Mever (39}
Manager: business improvement and
technology

Zanemvula Jojwana (49)
Manager: human resources '
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business operations review continued

Unaudited physical information {000 tonnes) 2007 2006 Variance Y-0-Y %
Mineral sands -~ RSA

Production

- Iimenite 367 319 48 15,0
- Zircon 34 50 (16) 32,00
~ Rutile 17 2b (8) (32,0)
- Pig Iron 90 75 15 20,0
.~ Scrap pig Iron 20 10 10 100,0
- Chloride slag 150 134 16 1.9
— Sulphate slag 28 36 (10} (27.8)
Sales

- limenite (external sales) 50 50

- Zircon 27 48 (21) (43.8)
- Rutile 18 31 (13) {41.,9)
- Pig Iren 91 80 3 51,7
- Scrap pig Iron 8 9 ] {11,%)
- Chloride slag 163 104 59 56.7
- Sulphate slag 28 3¢ )] 3.3
Minerals sands - Australia®

Production

- limenite 216 227 (11) 4.8)
- Zircon 36 36

- Rutile 17 i8 (1} (5.6)
- Synthetic natile 100 98 2 2.1
- Leucoxene 16 14 3 143
- Pigment 54 654

Sales

- limenite 20 30 (10} 33.3)
- Zircon 29 32 3 9.4
- Rutile 16 18 @ (11.1)
- Synthetic rutile 57 27 30 11,1
- Leucoxene 17 10 7 70,0
Revenue (Rm) 2172 1859 . 313 16,8
Net operating profit (Rrm) {97) 86 {183} (212,8)
Capital expenditura {(Rm) 193 266 (73) (27.4)
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Prospects

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2008 (estimate) (Rm):

Sustaining 570
Expansion’ 2240
Salety, health and environmental 46
Total 2 856

'Expansion capital includes the acquisition of 100% of the Namakwa Sands business.

Global growth rates are expected to continue slowing in 2008, As pigment demand is closely linked to GDP growth,
any downturn will affect pigment sales. Reduced Chinese pigment exports however should lend some support for
other pigment producers to increase prices. In addition, demand for pigment in China-Pacific is expected to grow
strongly for many years.

There is rising demand for titanium metal, driven by the aerospace sector. Although the number of titanium
sponge plants has increased, mainly in China, product quality determines into which industry it is sold.

Prices for most titanium feedstocks increased during the year, mainly driven by the tight supply of feedstocks and
strong demand from the titanium sponge and welding-rod industries. Prices are forecast to increase marginally in
2008.

Zircon prices may remain under some pressure in 2008.

The demand for low manganese pig iron remains strong, although industry analysts believe the market is peaking.
The strong upward trend in the price is attributed primarily to China, the largest exporter of pig iron, curtailing
exports to meet local demand. Japanese steel producers have announced plans to increase production, and these
larger orders for pig iron are also supporting higher prices.
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business operations review continued

Base
metals and
industrial
minerals

1 The Glen Douglas mine, Gauteng

2 Analysing drill core samples at Rosh Pinah,
Namibia

2008 CAPITAL EXPENCITURE ESTIMATE
6%

w Sustaining
& Expansion

» Safety, health
and environmental
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OVERVIEW

Exxaro's base metals and industrial minerals division comprises
the cperations of Rosh Pinah zinc and lead mine in southern
Namibia which is 94% owned by Exxaro, the Zincor zinc refinery
in Gauteng, a 22% effective interest in the Chifeng zinc refinery
in lnner Mongolia, China, as well as the Glen Douglas opencast
metaliurgical dolomite and aggregate mine and the Exxaro
FerroAlloys plant producing gas-atomised ferrosilicon powder, both
in Gauteng.

HIGHLIGHTS

1 01 kt zinc metal

produced at Zincor through plant performance

/-year

extension of Rosh Pinah mine life through focused
exploration




The division’s strategic intent is focused on operational improvement at Zincor,
Rosh Pinah and Glen Dguglas, Zincor and Rosh Pinah invested sustainable capital
in critical areas to ensure that the businesses remain robust even at the troughs
of the commodity cycle. Zincor is currently undertaking a study on leading
submerged lance fuming technaclogy. Potential benefits from this technology
include a significant improvement in zin¢ and by-product recoveries and a
decreased environmental impact, bringing Zincor closer to a zerg waste discharge
operation. ’

A further focus area is on finding a suitable long-term replacement for domestic
feedstock for Zincor. This includes focused exploration at Rosh Pinah. The

Rosh Pinah life of mine was increased from four years in 2004 to 11 years in 2007
through an intensified exploration programme. The ongoing programme continues
to deliver positive results and could further increase the life of mine.

In industrial minerals, a number of opportunities are under investigation to

enhance the value of current operations and meet the growing demands of the

aggregate market.

Zinc prices, in line with base metals commodity prices, were extremely volatile
during the year. The LME price for zinc reached a record level of above

US34 000/tonne in the first half of the year but retracted to levels of $2 300 at
year-end. The average zinc price for the year of $3 250 was in line with the
average price for 2006 of $3 274. Lead prices were extremely strong during the
year, increasing to an average of $2 580/tonne, $1 291 abave the 2006 average.

Refined zinc supply grew strongly during 2007, reducing the market supply
deficit to an expected 50kt compared to mare than 250kt in 2006, This growth
impacted on the zinc concentrate market, driving treatment charges higher than
U55%300/tonne in the fourth quarter of 2007.

Increased zinc metal preduction was achieved at the Zincor refinery as a result

of better quélity concentrates and improved plant performance. This resulted in
production volumes increasing from 90kt in 2006 to 101kt in 2007 and in improved
recoveries of zinc,

Zincor completed a rebuild of the no 4 roaster similar to roaster no 3 which was
rebuilt in the second half of 2006, resulting in a marked improvement in roaster
throughput.

The transaction to sell a 43,8% interest in Rosh Pinah to Namibian groups is
expected to be completed in the first half of 2008, effectively reducing Exxaro’s
sharehotding in Rosh Pinah to 50,04%. Exxaro will continue to manage the mine

" through a management contract.

Rosh Pinah's production of zinc concentrate of 95kt was 9% lower than 2006.
This was mainly as a result of floods in the early part of 2007 in southern
Namibia, industrial action at the mine in the second half of the year and numerous
stoppages due to equipment and plant failure. Focus on a capital replacement
programme and preventative maintenance plans is expected to enhance
performance.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

* Operational improvements at current
businesses

* Sustainable capital investments for
long-term growth through commodity
cycles

» Feedstock supply to Zincor including
_ exploration at Rosh Pinah

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mxolisi Mgojo (47)
Executive general manager

Riaan Smit (37)
Manager: finance

Sakkie Swanepoel (42)
Manager: marketing

Jaco Badenhorst (51}
Manager: business development

Frans Cillié (50}
Manager: human resources

Nanne Vegter (47)
Manager: technology

Marita Welgemoed (39}
Manager: business improvement
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business operations review continued

Unaudited physical information ('000 tonnes) 2007 2006 Variance Y-0-Y %

Base metals

Production

Zinc concentrate — Rosh Pinah 95 104 ©) (8,7}
Zinc metal 124 106 18 17,0
~ Zincor 101 a0 11 12,2
— Chifeng’ 23 16 . 7 43,7
Lead concentrate - Rosh Pinah 22 21 1 4.8
Zinc metal sales o122 115 7 6,1

- Comestic - 93 91 2 2.2
- Export 29 24 5 208

Lead concentrate sales — Rosh Pinah
- Export 19 32 (3 (40.6)

Industrial minerals

Production

Dolomite 543 661 (118) (17,9
Aggregate 749 672 77 11,5
Lime 54 59 (&) . (8.5)
Atomised ferrosilicon - 2] b

Revenue (Rm) ' 2891 2 501 350 15,6
Net operating profit (Rm) 685 608 77 12,7
Capital expenditure (Rm) 185 121 B84 52,9

'The effective interest in the physical information for the Chifeng (Hongye) refinery has been disclosed.

Production costs increased in line with current higher mining inflation, Expenditure on maintenance increased
from 2006 mainly due to equipment breakdowns and preventative maintenance programmes being put in place.
Skills shortages, mainty at Rosh Pinah, also contributed to higher cost and lower efficiencies.

The capacity expansion from 50kt to 110kt at the Chifeng refinery has been successfully commissioned, with
production being progressively ramped up to design capacity. Exxaro has an effective 22% interest in the A
expanded operation consisting of three phases. Production ramp up at the end of December reached 80% of
design capacity. Operating profit was under pressure in 2007 mainly due to a significant decline in demand for
zine, especially zinc alloys, in the local Chinese market as well as the sharp decline in prices at year end that
resuited in writing down inventory values to net reafisable value and higher operating expenditure during the
ramp-up phase.

Production at both the FerroAlloys plant and Glen Douglas mine was in line with 2006. Net operating income
declined by R3 million as a result of higher maintenance expenditure at Glen Douglas.

Capital expenditure of RI85 million for 2007 increased by 53% and was mostly focused on replacing the mining
fleet at Rosh Pinah and the replacement and upgrades to plant and equipment at Zincor, including the roaster
rebuild. In 2008, we will cantinue replacing mining and plant equipment, rebuild the two smaller roasters at Zincor
and implement major maintenance at Zincor's cell house.
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Prospects

Zinc concentrate supply is expected to grow at a stronger pace in 2008 and zinc refined production at a similar
rate. Both the refined zinc and concentrate markets are forecast to be in oversupply for 2008 which will exert
further pressure on the zinc price which is expected to average US$2 400/tonne in 2008. A feasibility study is
under way on further expansion of the Chifeng refinery to a capacity of some 130ktpa. The study is expected to be
complete by mid 2008, after which Exxaro will review its participation in the expanded operation,

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2008 {estimate} (Rm)

Sustaining 236
Expansion 60
Safety, health and environmental 18
Total 314

technology

The ability to produce a full range of commodity products in our chosen sectors, and high level of intetlectual
knowledge within the Exxaro group, lends itself to developing strategic opportunities. Accordingly, the role of our
centralised technology team in the development of clean beneficiation and smelting technologies, for example, is
integral to achieving our longer-term strategic goals and the sustainability of our business into the future.

The purpose of the technology team is to develop and execute medium and'large optimisation and growth
projects, develop new technology and provide technicat support to current operations. Exxaro has significant in-
house competencies in a range of technical areas spanning our mining and processing activities, including:

* mineral asset management

* mining processes

» research and development

* metallurgy

+ projects and engineering

* technology management.

The technotogy group supports our commodity businesses throughout the business life-cycle from strategy
formulation to feasibility studies for growth projects, technology development, engineering and construction to
operational support. Different centres of excellence stay abreast of technological and legislative developments,
drive the improvement of engineering practices and improve safety practices in each discipline.

The research and development group's activities are currently focused an developing and testing processing
technologies and their application. In addressing specific challenges and opportunities, examples of projects under
way that will have positive impacts on both social and environmental aspects include:
* dry processing
s microwave processing
Sintel char plant
zinc-fuming technology
low-grade ore processing
. fines beneficiation
co-generation of electricity
water-use reduction
bio-treatment and recycling of sewage.

»
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growth

Coal .

A supply agreement for 45 years was awarded to Exxare Coal by Eskom in March 2007 to supply 8,5Mtpa of power
station coal from Grootegeluk mine to Eskom's new 2 400MW Medupl power statlon. Phase | of the new power
station consists of three generating units and is adjacent to both the Matimba power station and Groctegeluk.
Feasibility studies are under way to also supply the additional three planned generating units at Medupi, which
could increase total coal supply from Grootegeluk mine to the new power station to 14,6Mtpa.

Construction of a four-retort Sintel char plant is almost complete and hot commissioning will begin in the

first quarter of 2008. The Sintel plant will produce char for the ferroalloy industry from coa! sourced from
Grootegeluk. Production is expected to ramp-up to 160kipa by the third quarter of 2008 at a revised project cost
of R320 million.

The feasibility study to investigate the viability of a market coke plant has been extended due to mare extensive
test work on the ceking characteristics of the process and is now scheduled for completion in the first half

of 2008. If viable, the plant witl produce high-quality market coke from semi-soft coking coal produced.at
Grootegeluk.

In May 2007, Exxaro was awarded a 2,5Mtpa export entitlement through RBCT by means of a subscription
process, in addition to the existing Q,&Mtpa entitlement. Exxaro also purchased a further 1Mtpa export
entitlement through RBCT from Billiton Energy Coal South Africa Limited, bringing the total export allocation to
4,3Mtpa. On completion of the RBCT Phase V expansion scheduled for the second quarter of 2009, Exxaro will
receive a further 2Mtpa export entitiement through the South Dunes Coal Terminal Company, bringing the total
entitlement to 6,3Mtpa by end 2009,

: g
EXXARO COAL - WATERBERG AREA F// N
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Grootegeluk is well pesitioned to supply Eskom's Limpopo power stations
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EXXARO COAL - MPUMAL ANGA
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Exxaro's operational and growth interests in Mpumalanga

The Mafube expansion project, in which Exxaro is a 50:50 joint venture partner with Anglo Coal, is expected to cost
approximately R1,9 billion on completion. Construction started in July 2006 with the first coal-to-washing ptant
delivered in January 2008 and ramp-up to full capacity under way. This is expected to take some seven months.

Geological drilling and modelling at Mmamabula in Botswana, a joint venture between Exxaro and Magaleng,
continued until the end of June 2007. An application for a mining licence or special extension of the prospecting
licence was submitted in March 2007. The feasibility study is ptanned to begin in 2008, subject to the special
extension being granted. : .

Mining of the Eerstelingsfontein reserves near Belfast to supply IMtpa power station coal to Eskom could begin in
2008, subject to environmental approvals being obtained. The feasibility study on the project has been completed
. and a mine authorisation has been received.

A feasibility study for accessing the Diepspruit reserve at New Clydesdale has been completed, with
implementation expected in the third guarter of 2008. The R136 millien project will preduce 1,3Mtpa run-ofsmine
coal which will be beneficiated at the existing New Clydesdale beneficiation plant to supply coal to the export
market,

Exploration and related work at the Moranbah hard-coking coal project, in the Bowan Basin in Queensland
Australia, is progressing according to plan. Exptoration during 2008 will focus on geophysical work to delineate
potential ong-wall mining resources and, pending the success of this work, there is the possibility of fast-tracking
an initial phase board-and-pillar/fopen-cut operation.
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g rowth continued
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Proximity of KZN Sands operations to central processing complex near Empangeni, KwaZulu-Natal

Mineral sands

The start of construction of the Fairbreeze mine, south of KZN Sands’ existing Hillendale mine in KwaZulu-Natal,
has been delayed to October 2008 subject to the approval of mining rights. The water-use licence has been
approved and production is planned to start in July 2010,

Feasibility studies on the Port Durnford project, located to the immediate_south-west of Hillendale mine, are on
track for completion by December 2008. The project, if viable, could potentially supply the current KZN Sands
furnaces for over 25 years. :

The Toliara Sands project in south-western Madagascar comprises two exploration areas, Ranobé and Monombo-

Marombe. Hand-auger drilling in the Monambo-Marombe area indicates resources capable of supplying long-term

ilmenite feedstock to the KZN Sands furnace complex. Further exploration drilling in this area is planned for 2008.
_ Completion of the feasibility study for the Ranobé deposit is targeted for the end of 2008.

The feasibility study on the pigment plant expansion by 40ktpa.to 160ktpa at Tiwest's Kwinana plant (at a revised
capital estimate of US$45 million for Exxaro's share), was completed in the last quarter of 2007, A decision on
implementation by Exxaro and its joint venture partner, Tronox Inc, is planned for the first half of 2008.

Bankable feasibility studies on the Dongara project, which forms part of the Tiwest joint venture, are ongoing. .
With a 20Mt reserve and 10% heavy minerals, the project will provide supplementary feedstock for Tiwest's
mineral separation plant and synthetic rutile facility. As a result of increased life expectancy at the Tiwest dry mine
at Cooljarioo, production at Dongara is planned to start in early 2011.
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The acquisition of Namakwa Sands was approved by Exxaro shareholders early in 2007 subject to the cession of
the mining right, which is expected in 2008. With this acquisition, Exxaro will be strategically positioned as one of
the world's top three suppliers of zircon and high-grade titanium dioxide feedstock to the pigment industry, with a
well-balanced mineral sands portfolio.

Base metals and industrial minerals

A feasibility study is being undertaken on further expansion of the Chifeng refinery to increase capacity by around
130ktpa. The outcome of this study is expected in 2008. This project could also include consolidating the three
phases and mining inte one company. Exxaro would review its participation at that time.

AlloyStream

The commercialisation of AlloyStream™ technology, which allows for the beneficiation of manganese ore into
ferromanganese, is advancing according to pian. Following the positive outcome of a pre-feasibility study for a
20ktpa demaonstration furnace in November 2007, it has been decided to proceed with a bankable feasibility study
for the project.

EXXARO MINERAL SANDS - KZN

Hillendale UVS & Brasbun
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Braebumn
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Expanded view of graphic on page 64,
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review of mineral.resources and reserves

The mineral resources and ore reserves attributed to Exxaro's current .operaiions and growth projects are
summarised in the tables on pages 68 to 73. In 2006 immediately after the split inte Exxaro Resources and
Kumba Iron Ore, Exxaro published only a statutory report and mineral resources and ore reserves were not
reported. Note that mineral resources are reported inclusive of ore reserves and at 100% irrespective of the
percentage attributable to Exxaro. Mineral resources and ore reserves were estimated by competent persons

on an operational basis and in accordance with the Samrec Code (2007) for South African properties and the
Jorc Code (2004} for Australian properties. Ore reserves in the context of this report have the same meaning as
mineral reserves, as defined by the Samrec Code of 2007. All associated people have sufficient relevant experience
in the style of mineralisation, type of deposit, mining method and activity for which they have taken responsibility
to qualify as a "competent person” as defined in these codes. These competent persons have signed off their
respective estimates in the original mineral resources and ore reserve statements for the various operations and
consent to the inclusion of the information in this report in the form and cantext in which it appears. A list of
Exxaro's competent persons is available from the company secretary upon written request.

The processes and calculations associated with the estimates have been audited by internal competent persons
and, on a three- to four-year cycle basis, by externat consuftants. in the case of the former Eyesizwe mines, this
process was started in 2007 and will be completed during 2008. Therefore the figures on Matla and North Block
Complex in the tables represent the tonnages guoted in the pre-listing independent competent person's report,
depleted by the tonnages mined post the pre-listing statement. The person within Exxaro designated to take
corporate responsibility for mineral resources and ore reserves, HJ van der Berg, the undersigned, has reviewed
and endorsed the reported estimates.

H. VAN.DER BERG

MSc (Geology), BSc (Hons)

Pr sci Nat (400099/01)

Manager: Mineral Asset Management
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Comment

Exxaro's tenure over its mineral assets as listed in the tables was audited and is confirmed with the following
considerations. The appeal against the refusal of a prospecting right over several farms included in the Leeuwpan
and Strehla mineral resource figures is still pending. This issue is being addressed at senior level and progress has
been made. Exxaro has also submitted a new mining right application over the Leeuwpan properties.

Exxaro has applied for the conversion of all former Kumba Resources old-order mining licences to new-order
mining rights. Additional information requested by the DME has been provided. It is anticipated that the
conversion process will result in Exxaro being granted new-order mining rights in due course. The compilation of
conversion applications for former Eyesizwe mine licences (excluding New Clydesdale, which was granted & new-
order mining right in the second haif of 2007) is under way and submission of these documents is planned for
April 2008, well ahead of the 2009 cut-off date. The mining right for Inyanda was granted and the new mine came
into production during 2007

Exxaro's mineral assets in the Waterberg coalfield and Eskom's expansion of electricity generation in this area
have created an excellent growth opportunity for the company. As a result, the status of the Grootegeluk mineral
resources and ore reserves has been reviewed and adjusted as explained in the accompanying tables. The
Grootegeluk mineral assets, combined with the expected additional resources assoclated with prospecting right
assets in the area, put Exxaro in a strong position to support Eskaom'’s future growth commitments in electricity

" supply.

One of the strategic drivers in Exxaro is management of its mineral assets. The strategy has three goals: firstty to
sustain existing aperations through the optimal use of or-mine ore reserves and the addition of near-mine mineral
resources. Secondly, replacing depleted ore reserves to maintain present production levels over the longer term.
Thirdiy, to grow the mineral asset base of the company bath in tonnage and commodity portfolio to ensure that
Exxaro's growth aspirations are based on a sound minerat resource foundation. The first objective is pursued by
focusing on on-mine and near-mine exploration. At Rosh Pinah, for example, the life of the mine was extended
from four to 11 years. This excludes the large low-grade orebody, which may become economically mineable in
future. To support cbjectives two and three, Exxaro holds 27 prospectinq rights (21 coal and six mineral sands) in
South Africa. Exploration activities will continue in 2008 to evaluate these opportunities and, if viable, progress
them to feasibility study. These objectives are also promoted internationally. Exxaro is evaluating its Moranbah
South coking coal asset in Austratia. '
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review of mineral resources and reserves continued

TABLE 1: EXXARO'S MINERAL RESQURCE ESTIMATES FOR 2005 AND 2007
{Mineral resource estimates reported here are inclusive of ore reserve estimates reported in table 2; resources have been estimated in
accordance with the Samrec and Jorc codes with respect to South African and Australian operations/projects respectively)

2007 2005
% attrib. to  Resource Tonnes Tonnes
COMMODITY Operation A Exxaro category {million) Grade (million) Grade % change
. Raw coal Raw coal
Coal Arnot mine 100,0 Measurad 171,7 Raw coal 102,6 Raw coal
{captive market) Indicated 74,0 Raw coal 113,5 Raw coal
Inferred 17,1 Raw coal 48,0 Raw coal
TOTAL 262,8 Raw coat 2641 Raw coal 0,5)
Matla mine™ 100,0 Measured 302,3 Raw coal 3280 Raw coal
{captive market) Incticated 112,8 Raw coal 1128 Raw coal
Inferred - - - -
TOTAL 415,1 Raw coal 441 8 Raw coal 8,01
Tshikondeni mine 100,0  Measured 253  Raw coal 25,7 Faw coal
(captive market) Indicated 10,1 Raw coal 10,1 Raw coal
Inferred - - - -
TOTAL 354  Raw coal 358  Raw coal a1
Grootegeluk ming®® 100,0 Measured 774 Raw coal 1428 Raw coal
Indicated 3534 Raw coal 2075 Raw coal
Inferred 1107 Raw coal 2513 Raw coal
TOTAL 5415 flaw coal 6016 Raw coal {10,0)
Grootegeluk West
Project 100,0 Measured - - Not reported
indicated - -
Inferred 5 290 Raw coal
TOTAL §290 Raw coal - - -
Inyanda mine™ 100,0 Measured 18,1 Raw coal 15.3 Raw coal
Indicated - - - -
Inferred - - - -
TOTAL 181 Rawcoal 153  Rawcoal 189
Leeuwpan mine 100,0 Measured 163,1 Raw coal 169,1 Raw coal
Indicated 6,5 Raw coal 9,8 Raw coal
Inferrad - - - : -
TOTAL 1696 Rawcoal 1780  Rawcoal (6,2)
Mafube mine 50,0 Measured 58,2 Raw coal 253 Raw coal
Indicated 41,9 Raw coal 79,2 Raw coal
Inferred 81,8 Raw coal 81,8 Raw coal
TOTAL 182,0 Raw coal 186,3 Raw coal (2.4
NBCH# 1000 Measured 71 Raw coal 1.6 Raw coal
{North Block Complex) Indicated 8,3 Raw coal 83 Raw coal
Inferred - - - =
TOTAL 15,4 Raw coal 9.9 Raw coal 55,8
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2007 2005
% attrib. to  Resource Tonnes Tonnes
COMMODITY Operation Exxaro category {million) Grade (million) Grade % change
New Clydesdale
ming (NCC)® 100,0 Measured 12,1 Raw coal 21,7 Raw coal
Indicated 0,6 Raw coal 1,7 Raw coal
Inferred - - - -
TOTAL 127  Raw coal 234  Raw coal (45.5)
New Clydesdale
mine {NCC) 100,0 Measured 1,6 Raw coal 1,88 Raw coal
{additicnal resources)™ indicated ‘ 26,8 Raw coal 15,4 Raw coal
Inferred - - - -
TOTAL 28,4 Raw coal 17,3 Raw coal 64,6
NCC (all included) ’ 41,1 Raw coal 40,7 Raw coal 1,3
Belfast 100,0 Measured 23,9 Raw coal 23,9 Raw coal
Indicated 24,0 Raw coal 240 Raw coal
Inferred 4.8 Raw coal 4.8 Raw coal
TOTAL 52,7 Raw coal 52,7 Raw coal 0,0
Moranbah South, 100,0 Measured - - - -
Australia Indicated 586 Raw coal 586 Raw coal -
Inferred 124 Raw coal 124 Raw coal
] TOTAL 710 Raw coal 710 Raw coal 0,0
Strehla® 100,0 Measured - - - -
Indicated 225 Raw coal 225 Raw coal
Inferred .= - - -
TOTAL 225  Raw coal 225 ' Raw coal 00
Mineral Hillendale Mine +
Sands Braeburn + Braeburn % ilmenite % iimenite
Extensiont? 100,0 Measursd 62,6 3,53 48,7 3,8
Indicated - - - -
Inferred - - - -
TOTAL 62,6 3,53 48,7 3,8 28,5
Fairbreeze A+8+C+C '
ext 100,0 Measured 202 3,7 202 3.7
indicated 27 2,5 27 25
Inferred - - - -
TOTAL 229 36 229 3,6 0,0
Gravelotte Sand 100,0 Measured 75,1 9,1 751 9.1
Indicatec - - - -
inferred - - - -
TOTAL 75,1 91 751 9,1 0.0
KwaZidu-Natal 100,0 Measured - - - -
- Block P Indicated 40,6 3,1 40,6 31
- Block P extension Inferred 42 2,7 Not reported
TOTAL 82,6 2,9 40,6 3.1 103,4
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review of mineral resources and reserves continued

2007 2005
% attrib. to  Resource  Tonnes ' Tonnes
coMMoDITY Operation Exxaro category (million) Grade (million} Grade % change
. % ilmenite % iimenite
Mineral KwaZulu-Natal 51,0 Measurad - - Mot reported
Sands
{continued)  Port Dunford Indicated 1004,6 28
Inferred 117,3 29
TOTAL 1121,9 2,9 - - -
- Fairbreeze D 100,0 Measured - - - -
Indicated 9,2 2,5 9,2 2,5
Inferred - - - - -
TOTAL 9,2 25 g,2 2,5 0,0
Eastern Cape 100,0 Measured 232,9 4,5 232,9 ) 4.5
{Nomoanjana, Ngcizele,
Sandy indicated - - - -
Point old and recent) Inferred - - - -
TOTAL 232,9 4,5 2329 45 0.0
Limpopo Sand 1000  Measured 12,5 10,5 12,5 10,5
{Gravelotie pebbles and
Letsitele sand) Indicated - - - - -
Inferred 31,3 4,0 31,3 4,0
TOTAL 43,8 5,9 438 59 0,0
Limpopo Rock 100,0 Measured - - - -
{Gravelotte rock and
Letsiiele Indicated 53,6 - 259 53,6 259
rock) Inferred 112,3 20,7 112,3 20,7
TOTAL 165,9 224 165.9 224 0,0
Ranobé, Madagascar ® 100,0 Measured 208,8 4,8 - -
— Upper sand unit Indicated 320,4 4,0 553 4,6
Inferred 181,3 35 - -
TOTAL 710,5 4,1 553 4,6 28,5
_ % THM ,
Tiwest, Australia 50,0  Measured 117 2,7 157 2,7
- Codljarloo Indicated 297 24 302 2.4
Inferred 25 1,8 25 1.8
TOTAL 439 2,4 484 2,5 9,3
Tiwest, Australia 50,0 Measured ta N - -
- Jurien _ Indicated 25,6 6,0 25,6 8,0
Inferred - - -
TOTAL 25,6 6,0 25,6 6.0 0.0
Tiwest, Australia 50,0 Measured 1,3 6,9 1,3 6,9
- Dongara Indizated 75,4 6,6 75,4 6,8
Inferred - - - -
TOTAL 76,7 6,6 76,7 6,6 0.0
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2007 2005
% attrib. to  Resource Tonnes Tonnes
COMMODITY Operation Exxaro category {mitlion} Grade {million) Grade % change
' %Zn %Pb %Zn  %Pb
Base metals Rosh Pinah mine® 939 Measured 5,0 86 19 35 104 23
(zinc and lead) Indicated 64 64 18 23 81 26
Inferred 1,7 49 09 11 88 24
TOTAL 131 - 70 18 8,9 9.2 2.4 20,4
Rosh Finah mine
low grade 93,9 Measured — - -
Not reported
(Additional resource ‘
excluded from LOM} Indicated -_— —_— —
Inferred 19,2 25 086
TOTAL 19,2 25 086 — — —
% Si0, % SO,
Industrial .
minerals Glen Douglas mine 100,0 Measured 180,3 <2,5 1423 <25
{metaliurgical ) ‘
dolomite} Indicated _ _ _ -
inferred 125,2 <2,5 163,9 <25
TOTAL . 305,5 <2,5 306,2 <2,5 0,2}
Gllenraouglas 100,0 Measured 37,7 Raw material 40,1  Raw material
[ggg;'egate dolomite} Indicated —-— _— — —
Inferred 193,7 Raw material 145,1  Raw material
TOTAL 231,4 Raw material 185,2  Raw material 25,0
Note

The tonnages are quoted in metric tonnes, and million tonnes are abbreviated as ML

Rounding-off of figures may cause computational discrepancies.

Figures are reported at 100% irrespective of percentage attributable to Exxaro.

All changes more than 109 (significant) are explained.

' Figures were calculated by depleting the SRK audited resource statement (Exxaro competent person’s report, January 2006)

? The decrease is the result of mining depletion and an update of the geclogical model in 2006 with all available information. Movements in categories are
based on a re-classification of resources according to borehole density (SAMREC compliant).

3 increase in resource is a result of less-than-predicted weathering determined by additional drifling.

1 Resources, reported in the SRK statement as reserves only, were added,

5 The decrease in the resources is the result of mine depletion and termination of pitlar extraction for safety reasons.

sThe increase is the result of the Middeldrift resources transfer from the LOM based on current economic factors,

& The mineral resource occurs in an area for which the prospecting right is under appeal.

7 The increase in mineral resources is mainly the result of the addition of Braeburn extension,

8 The significant increase in the mineral resource is the result of in-filf drilling and a modet upgrade during the reporting period.

% The increase in the mineral resources is the result of additional ore identified by drifling.

 The increase in aggregate resource is the resuit of an upgrade of the geolegical mode! in 2007, incorporating all avaitable information.
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review of mineral resources and reserves continued

TABLE 2: EXXAROQ'S ORE RESERVES ESTIMATES FOR 2005 AND 2007
(Ore reserve estimates reported here are included in the minerat resource estimates of table 1. They have been estimated in
accordance with the SAMREC and JORC codes with respect to South African and Australian operations/projects respectively)

2007 2005
% attrib.  Reserve ROM Saleable A0M Saleable %
COMMODITY  Operation toExaro  category MY Grade produet (M) MY Grade product (MY change
Power Power
Coking station  Steam Coking  station  Steam
coal coal  coal coal coal codl
Coal Amot mine'™ 1000 Proved 97,3 - N/A 943 N/A 703 - N/A 67,1 A
[captive markel) Probable - - N/A - N/A 00 - N/A - NA
TOTAL 973 - N/A 843 N/A 703 - NA 67,1 NA 34
Matla mine "2 1000 Proved 203,3 - NA 2013 NA - 2300 NA 2236 N/A
(captive markel) Probabie 67,3 - N/A 65,6 N/A 67,3 N/A 66,6 A
TOTAL 06 - - NA 2619 NA 2973 - NA 2002 NA 0
Tahdonden : :
mring" 1000 Proved 43 - 24 N/A 63 - 36 N/A
{captive marked) Probable - - - N/A - - - WA
’ TOTAL 43 - 24 NA 69 - 36 NA (85
Grootagelk
ming™ 1000 Proved 73 - KTA:) 8 35,7 &r3 - 419 245 84
Probable 2044 - 11,9 954 509 67 - 6,3 253 07
TOTAL 2780 - 498 132 %56 e - 48,2 20 392 2759
- A-grade export steam coal - A-grade export steam coal
Inyanda mine® 1000 Proved 163 - 02 146 - 10,1
Probable - - - - - -
TOTAL 163 - 10,2 148 - 10,1 1.7
Leetwpan mine 1000 Proved 95,2 - N/A 53,0 85,1 - N/A 458
Probabie 424 - NA 23S 476 - NA 27
TOTAL 1376 - NiA 76,9 1427 - /A 728 36
Power Power
Export  station Export  station
Mafube mine 8 500 Proved 443 - A8 1208  NA 20 - - 2 N
Probabie - - - - NA 9f - - 9,1 NiA
TOTAL 43 B8 1208 NA 19 - W1 NA 2976
NBCHa 1000 Proved 4% - NIA 45 NA 19 - NA 7% WA
{Noxth Block
Complex] Probabla - - NA - NA - - NA NA
TOTAL 49 - NA . 48 N/A 79 - NiA 76 NA @73
NCCHa 1000 Proved 105 - N/A I N/A 130 - N/A 9 NA
mme Probable 0,61 - N/A 04 N/A 14 - N/A i1 /A
TOTAL 1,1 - NA 81 NA 144 - NA 102 NA - (227)
’ Power Power
Export  station Export  station
Beifast 1000 Proved 20 - 146 T4 N/A 220 - 146 74 N/&
Probable 211 - 10,3 9,0 N/A 21 - 10,3 80 A
TOTAL 431 - M3 164 NA 43 - M9 184 NA 0D
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2007 2005
%attrib.  Reserve  ROM Total heavy mineral (THV) ROM Total heavy mineral (THM) %
COMMODITY _ Operation to Exxarc  category (Mt} Grade composition (MY Grade composition change
% %
% i) ] % Leuco- %% % % % Leuco-
THY Iimenite Rutile Zircon  xems THW Imente Rutle. Zrcon  xeme
Mineral Sands  HZendale Ming™ 1000 Proved 18,1 82 530 40 60 20 300 69 60 35 8 16
(inchuding. Braeburm) Probable 27 50 630 40 8D 20 0.0 - — - — - ‘
TOTAL N8 18 540 40 60 20 300 69 g0 35 8 15 @213
Faitbeeeze
AtBiC+Cext™ 1000 Proved 1374 6,1 80 31 8 14 1374 6,1 80 34 8 14
Probable 441 12 61 34 8 18 441 72 61 34 8 1.8
TOTAL 1815 64 60 33 8 1,7 1815 64 8¢ 33 8 1.7 00
Gravelotte Sand 100,0 Proved 524 130 8 NA NA NA 524 130 8% NA  NA NA
Probable - - - — - - - - — - - -
TOTAL 524 130 85 NA NA NA 524 130 85 NA  NA NA 00
Tiwest, Australia 50,0 Proved 4 27 59 47 10 28 2537 80 48 10 27
= Coolarioo? Probabia 9% 298 61 44 9 31 4 27 1 45 10 31
TOTAL 1360 28 al 45 10 30 74 28 61 46 10 3.0 220
Tiwest, Ausiralia 500 Proved - - - = = - - = - - = -
- Jurign . Probable 157 18 5 &8 10 23 1T 78 54 68 10 23
TOTAL 151 718 54 64 10 23 157 79 54 68 10 23 00
Twest, Austrata 500 Proved - - - - - - — - — — - —
- Dongara Probable 02 102 50 87 8 3 A2 102 5 67 9 1.3
TOTAL 02 162 50 87 9 13 202 102 5 67 9 13 0.0
€0 2005
% attrib.  Reserve RO Saleable ROM Saleable %
COMMODITY Operation to Exxare  category (Mi]__ Grade product {mi) Grade product change
lead
Zincmetal  metal % % zinc metallead metal
%In %Ph (x1,0001) (x1,0004 In Pb {x1,0001) {x1,0004)
Basemetals  Rosh Pinah
(zinc and lead) ming® 239 Proved 33 94 20 30 64 27 1 24 300 65
Prcbable 50 6,2 18 312 98 19 17 23 148 44
TOTAL 83 15 18 822 160 45 97 24 448 110 803
Metallurgical
dolomite
- % Si0, {M) %50, Metalurgical dolomite (MY
Industrial Glen Douglas 100,0 Proved 434 25 408 403 Ledd 363
minerals dolomite mine Probabia - — - - — -
TOTAL 434 <25 408 403 a5 383 7
' Aggregate
it Aggragate (M)
Raw Raw
Glen Douglas & 1000 Proved 11,3 dolomite 10,6 130 dolomite 123
doomwile mne Probable - - - - — —
Raw Raw
TOTAL 11,3 dolomite - 10,6 130 dolomie 123 (130)
Note

The tonnages are quoted in metric tonnes, and miilion tonnes are abbreviated as ML

Rounding-off of figures may cause computational discrepancies.

Figures are reported al 100% irrespective of percentage attributable to Exxaro.

Al changes more than 10% (significant} are explained.

1" ~35Mt has been added to the reserve thraugh the upgrade of the resource. Mining depletion is 8ML

2 Matia and NBC figures were calcuiated by depleting the SRK audited reserve statement (CPR, January 2006).
1 The change is the resuit of 1.4Mt mining depletion and the exclusion of ~2.3Mt from the LOM as a resuit of structural complexity.
“The increase in the reserves reported is the result of the expansion of the pit layout after the reclassification of the resources.

s Change reported is the result of the increase in the resource base.

6 Only the measured resource within the LOM is converted to reserves. The significant increase in reserves is the result of an upgrade of indicated

resources to measured resources in the LOM.
" The significant decrease is the resuit of mining depletion.

B The decrease in the reserve (3.3Mt) is the result of mine depletion and termination of pillar extraction for safety reasons.
® Braeburn is included for the first time as a reserve (-2.7Mt). A gain of ~2Mt is due to the review of the model and mining vutside the current reserve boundary.

The pveralf decrease in reserve is mainly the result of mining depletion (~13Mt).
wrairbreeze C is included pending the approval of the mining right application.

2 The decrease is primarily the result of mining depletion (42.7Mt) and a 1.6Mt ioss after reoptimisation. ~8.5Mt was added through reviewed mine design.

2The increase in reserves is the result of an increase In indicated and measured resources.
DThe decrease is the result of mining depletion and an upgrade of the geological model.
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executive committee

1-

SIPHO NKOSI (53)

Chief executive officer

BCom, BCom (HonsKEcon), MBA (Univ Mass,
USA), Diploma in Marketing Management

Sipho began his career as a market analyst

with Ford Motor Company South Africa in 1980.
In 1986 he moved to Anglo American Coal
Carporation where he worked as a marketing
coordinator. In 1992 he joined Southern Life
Association as senior manager, strategic
planning. In 1993 he accepted the position of
marketing manager, new business development
at Trans-Natal Coal Corporation, which later
became Ingwe Coal Corporation. In 1997 he
joined Asea Brown Boveri (South Africa) Limited
as vice president marketing, He joined ABB
Power Generation in 1998 as managing director.

As founder of Eyesizwe Holdings, he served as
f:hief executive officer. On 1 September 2007 he
was appointed chief executive officer,

DIRK VAN STADEN (58)

Chief financial officer

BJuris; LLB; Advanced Management
Programme (Insead)

Dirk joined lscor in Y997 as general manager,
corporate treasury, Prior to that he was
employed by the tDC as general manager
responsible for international finance, treasury
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operations and legal services. tn June 2001 he'was appointed executive director, finance at
Kumba.

MIKE KILBRIDE (56) Chief operating officer
BS¢ (Hons){Min Eng)(RSM), Senior Executive Pregrarnme (London Business School)

After his initial years working in the gold industry, Mike joined Iscor and gained experience
in &ll the commeodities of the group. Mike was appointed executive director, business
operations at Kumba in June 2001 and was responsible for iron ore, coal, mineral sands,
base metals and industrial minerals operations.

TREVOR ARRAN (40) Executive general manager: corporate affairs and investor refations
BSc (Hons)(Econ Geo), AMP (UP/GIBS), BEP, Diptoma Project Management

Trevor is responsible for cerporate affairs and invester relations, incorporating the company’s
sustainable devefopment department. He has a wide mining background supplemented by
financial experience gained in equity markets, investment banking and new business,

WIM DE KLERK {44) Executive general manager: mineral sands
CA(SA), TEP, EMP (Harvard}

Wim has served on the executive management team of tscor, responsible for strategy
and continuous improvement. Since 2001, he has been responsible for the mineral sands
commodity business.

RIAAN KOEPESCHAAR {37} General manager: corporate finance and treasury
CA{SA), Advanced Certificate (Taxation), member of the Association of Corporate
Treasurers, Advanced Management Programme {Insead}

Riaan joined Iscor in 1993. In 2001 he was appointed manager: corporate finance and

treasury. He has extensive experience in structuring complex financing and other corporate
fransactions.




7 DR HUMPHREY MATHE (57) Executive general manager: corporate services
MSc (Expl Geol), PhD (Univ Natal), Advanced Management Programme (Insead)

Responsibilities include engineering, projects and research and development. Previously at
Eyesizwe Coal, he served as head of the technical and new business development division.

B8 MXOLIS| MGOJO (47)  Executive general manager: base metafs and industrial minerals
BSc (Hons), MBA

Previously at Eyesizwe Coal he was responsible for marketing. Since June 2006, Mxolisi
has been responsible for the base metals and industrial minerals commodity business.

9 RETHA PIATER (53) Executive general manager: human resources

BCom (Hons), MBA, Advanced Management Programme (tnsead)

Retha has 21 years of human resources experience across the various business units and
commodities, specifically in the area of remuneration,

10 RIAN STRYDOM (42) General manager: financial accounting

CA(SA)

After tulfilling several financial management functions at Iscor, Rian was appointed head of
Kumba's financial accounting function in 2001 and has gained extensive experience in statutory

and management reparting in a listed environmenit, as well as enterprise-wide risk management. ’

11 DR NOMBASA TSENGWA (43) General manager - safety, health and environment

Senior secondary teacher's diploma, BSc (hong), MS¢, PhD (bidlechnologv)
(Univ of Maryland, USA), Advanced Management Programme (Insead)

Prior to her appointment in 2003, Nembasa was the deputy director-genera for the Department
of Environmental Affairs and Tourism, and served as a corporate manager at the Council for
" Scientific and Industrial Research (CSIR). She is a board member of South African National Parks.

12

i3

ERNST VENTER (51)

Executive general manager: coal

BEng (Hons), MBA, Advanced Management
Programme {Insead}

£rnst has headed a number of portfolios
including base metals, Zincor, consulting
services, mining technology, coal
beneficiation, process development and plant
metallurgy. Since November 2002 he has
been responsible for the coal commodity
business.

MARIE VILJOEN (61)

Company secretary

Marie has 21 years' experience in the

field. She assumes responsibility for the
group's corporate governance and business
administration to ensure alignment with
statutory and legal compliance requirements.
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directora‘te

1 SIPHO ABEDNEGO NKOSI (53)
Chief executive officer
BCom, BCom (Hons)(Econ), MBA (Univ Mass,
USA), Diploma in Marketing Management

2 DIRK JOHANNES VAN STADEN (58}
Chief financial officer
BJuris, LLB, Advanced Management
Programme (Insead)
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MICHAEL JAMES KILBRIDE {586)
Chief aperating officer
BSc (Hons)(Min Eng)(RSM), Senior Executive Programme (London Business School)

PHILIP MICHAEL BAUM (53) Non-executive director
BCom, LLB, H DIP Tax Law

JURIE JOHANNES GELDENHUYS {65)
Non-executive director
B5¢ (Eng)(Elec), BSc (Eng)(Min), MBA (Stanford), PrEng

UFIKILE KHUMALQ {42)
Non-executive director
BSc {Eng), MSc Eng, MAP, SEDP (Marvard}

DEENADAYALEN KONAR (54)
Non-executive director
BCom, CA{SA), MAS, DCom

i}




B VINCENT ZVIELIBANZI MNTAMBO (50)
Non-executive director
BJuris, LLB, LLM

9 RICHARD PETER MOHRING (60)
Non-executive director
BSc (Eng)(Mining), MOP, PMD (Harvard); Pr Eng

10 PINKIE KEDIBONE VERONICA NCETEZO (51)
Non-executive director
BA (Soc work), MBA, Diploma in Man, MAP, MEd {Ohia)

11 NONKULULEKO MERINA CHERYL NYEMBEZI|-HEITA (47)
Non-executive director
B5c {Hons)(Etec Eng), MSc, MBA (Open Univ Business School) (UK)

12 NKULULEKC LEONARD SOWAZ| (44)
Non-executive director
BA, MA {Urban and reg plan) (UCLA)

13 DALIKHAYA ZIHLANGU (47)
Non-executive director
BSc {Min Eng), MCP, MBA (Wits)

* Dr Con Fauconnier retired as chief executive officer and director of Exxaro on 31 August 2007,
after which Sipho Nkosi assumed office,

* Mavuso Msimang was appointed to the board on 28 February 2007 and resigned on 28 May
2007 due to business commitments.

* Nonkululeko Nyembezi-Heita resigned with effect from 29 February 2008,

R
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Grade 2 learners at Sifundise Primary School in Mpumalanga,
from teft: June Masanga, Lungile Ngwenya and Samuel Zunquza
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corporate governance

Introduction
As a new-era company, Exxaro understands that diversity, empowerment and development at every level can only
be achieved through effective, transparent and accountable leadership.

Exxaro's leadership, in turn, recognises that good corporate governance practices are vital in maintaining high
standards of integrity, professionalism and ethical behaviour. Exxaro's directors are fully committed to embedding
the principles of transparency and accountability in the group's various business operations, ensuring the creation
of value for all stakeholders.

In making good qbvernance a hallmark of Exxaro, the directors are quided by established tenets in creating long-

term value for all;

* Adhere to sound principles of direction and management

* Implement best practices on corporate management

* Keenly understand conceptual issues in corporate governance, including a review of recent developments in
better understanding corporate governance systems and mechanisms

» Clarify the issues pertaining to the board of directors and management

* Recognise share_holder/stakeholder rights and responsibilities.

Best-practice corporate governance structures ensure a dynamic cycle of improvement where every individual is
guided by a common set of values as we éxpand our quality portfolio of assets. At Exxaro, our values guide the way
the organisation is managed and controlled. These values appear on page 1,

in compliance with the mining charter, Exxaro is currently one of the largest black-owned and managed
resources companies listed on the JSE, comfortably exceeding charter requirements with a 56% black economic
empowerrment (BEE) shareholding.

Compliance with King Il

The Exxaro board, its committees and management believe compliance is key in maintaining the group’s values.
The group supports the provisions and principles of corporate governance as defined by the King Il report and the
Listing Requirements of the JSE. In the review period, the group complied in all material respects with the Code of
Corporate Practices and Conduct published in King Il and the Listing Requirements of the JSE.

To ensure that excellent corporate governance practices are entrenched in the Exxaro group, all entities are
obliged to subscribe to the spirit and principles of King Il. While the Exxaro board takes overall responsibility for
compliance with King II, the directors of subsidiaries are required to continuously monitor compliance with these
principles within their legai entities.

Ethics

In line with Exxaro's value of honest responsibility, compliance with the group's code of ethics is monitored by
an executive general manager, the group risk manager and the company secretary, and awareness of ethical

- behaviour is encouraged throughout the group by communicating regularly with employees.

During the year, all business units were assessed for risks related to corruption, Training in anti-corruption
policies and procedures is integrated into the Exxaro induction programme for new employees and during annual
competence update training for existing staff.

Formal disciplinary measures are in place to deal with any identified incidents of corruption. In addition to Exxaro's
other compliance and enforcement activities, a reporting hotline ("whistle-blowing™) has been established through
which all stakeholders can report suspected corruption, other reportable irregularities, or contraventions of grdup
values with guaranteed anonymity.

Hotline: 0800203579
Hotmail: Exxaro@tip-offs.com
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Numerous alleged irregularities were reported on the hotline with one case of corruption resuiting in criminal
prosecution,

Exxaro regularly participates in industry initiatives focused on developing equitable public policies for the mining
sector. However, the group does not directly or indirectly support political parties, individual politicians and related
institutions through financial or in-kind contributions.

Board of directors

Functions

'The board is the focal point of Exxarg's corporate governance system and remains ultimately accountable and
responsible for the company’s performance and affairs. The board charter clearly sets out the purpose and
composition of the board, responsibilities of board members, requirements for board meetings and remuneration
of directors. The charter was reviewed during the year to assess compliance with the current requlatory
framework and changes made where necessary.

The primary responsibility of the board is to determine the company's purpose and values and provide strategic
direction. It is atso responsible for identifying key risk areas and performance indicators, monitoring performance
against agreed objectives, advising on financial matters and reviewing the performance of executive management
against defined objectives and industry standards.

Composition
The board coflectively contains the skills, experience, demographic diversity and combination of personalities
appropriate to ensure effective leadership and sound governance within the organisation.

As a truly South African company that supports and actively drives transformation in everything we do, we are
proud that the majority of cur board members are historically disadvantaged South Africans.

Following the retirement of Dr Con Fauconnier and the appointment of Sipho Nkosi as chiet executive officer (CEQ)}
on 1 September 2007, the board currently comprises 13 directors:

= four independent non-executive directors

* three executive directors

* six non-executive directors.

In categorising the capacity of each director as éxecutive, non-executive or independent, Exxaro has been guided
by the provisions of King II.

Independence N

There is a clear distinction in Exxaro between the roles of chairman and CEQ to erlsure that no-one has unfettered .
powers of decision-making. Exxara is in the process of identifying suitabte candidates with the objective of
appointing an independent chairman. In the year under review, an acting chajrman was appointed to ensure
continuity in the board's activities. The acting chairman of Exxaro's beard is an independent director, responsible
for the effective functioning of that body.

The CEO is in charge of the company as a whole and is directly responsible to the board. Among others, he is
responsible for ensuring the company achieves its strategic and financial objectives, and for monitoring its day-to-
day operational requirements.

Appointments and succession planning
Within its powers, the entire board sefects and appoints directors, including the CEOQ and executive directors, on the
recommendations of the transformation, human resources, remuneration and nomination committee (TREMCQ).

TREMCO considers non-executive director succession planning and makes appropriate recommendations to the
board.

We have exceeded

all key South

African legisiative
requirements for
transformation. Best
practice corporate
governance structures
are in place and we
will continue to set the
standard in developing
and training people

- within and beyond
the company - to
address the critical
skills shortage in South
Africa.
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corporate governance continued

The group is currentiy
engaged in a process
to identify a suitable
chairman. s the
group’s intention

to have a chairman
appointed by mid-year
2008.

All appointments are in terms of a formal and transparent process. Candidates are selected against criteria
deemed appropriate for Exxaro, given the nature of the company, the industry in which it operates and its
transformation objectives.

The chairman is appointed for a term not exceeding one year and is nominated from the ranks of independent
non-executive directors.

To ensure efficient staggering of director rotation, directors are subject to retirement and may be nominated for
re-election every three years with the proviso that no director will hold office for more than three consecutive
periods. The retirement age for non-executive directors is 70 vears, effective at the annual general meeting after
the date on which they turned 70.

Accountability .

Exxaro's directors are reputable, skilled and experienced and bring appropriate judgement to bear on the issues at
hand. Non-executive directors understand Exxarg's mission, strategy and business and add specialist expertise to
the group.

Exxaro regards open communication with'its directors as a priority in ensuring their accountabiiity, Therefore all
material information is disseminated to them between board meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for the duties set out in section 268G of the Companies Act. In terms of
Exxaro policy, directors have free access to the company secretary and to independent professional advisers,
whether in legal, technical or accounting areas, at the company’s expense.

Remuneration

TREMCO considers and submits recommendations to the board on fees to be paid to each non-executive director.
Any changes to fees are approved by the board and submitted to shareholders at the annual general meeting for
approval prior to implementation and payment. '

In line with generally accepted governance practices, independent non-executive directors do not have service
contracts and are not members of the group’s pension scheme.

Non-executive directors’ remuneratton is summarised below:

Fees for Benefits and
services allowances!' - Total
Name R R R
PM Baum? 191 657 191 657
JJ Geldenhuys 240 659 3676 244 335
tJ Khumalo? . 154562 154 562
Or D Konar + 253 481 253 481
VZ Mntambo 176 201 176 201
RP Mohring? 183 414 5737 189 151
M Msimang® 23852 23852
PKV Ncetezo 176 201 7 383 183 584
NMC Nyembezi-Heita 197 840 197 8B40
NL Sowazi? 183414 183414
D Zihlangu 179 292 9233 188 525
1 986 602

'includes trave! allowances :
2 Fees paid to their respective employers and not ta individuals
3Resigned on 28 May 2007
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ATTENDANCE
Appointed

Board meetings to board Feb May June Aug *Oct Nov
Director
PM Baum 17 Febx 04 . A . . . .
Dr CJ Fauconnier 1 June 01 . . . . n/a n/a
JJ Geldenhuys 1 June O1 . . . . . .
U Khumalo 28 Nov 06 A . . . A .
MJ Kilbride 1 June 01 . A . . . .
Dr D Konar {acting chairman) 1 June 0% . . . . . .
VZ Mntambo 28 Nov 06 . A . . A .
RP Mohring 28 Nov 06 ‘ . . A . . .
PKV Ncetezo 28 Nov 06 . . . . . .
SA Nkosi 18 Oct 01 . . . . A .
NMC Nyembezi-Heita 28 Nov 06 . A . . A .
NL Sowazi 28 Nov 06 . A . . . .
DJ van Staden 1 June 01 . . . . . .
D Zihlangu 28 Nov 06 . . A . . .

*Special

A Apologies » Attended nfa Retired on 31 August

Board committees

The board has appointed three committees to assist in effectively discharging its responsibilities. All committees
fulfit their responsibilities within clearly defined written terms of reference, which deal explicitly with their purpose
and function, reporting procedures and written scope of authority.

To ascertain their performance and effectiveness, committees are subject to regular evaluation by the board.

The board believes these committees have effectively discharged their responsibilities for the year and that there
was transparency and full disclosure from the committees to the board.

Audit, risk and compliance committee

Composition and meeting procedures

The committee consists of three members and the majority (including the chairman) are independent directors.
Executive directors, the senior audit partner and head of the outsourced internal audit function also attend
meetings and have unrestricted access to the chairman and committee members. Non-gxecutive directors may
also attend at the invitation of the committee.

When required, suitably qualified people may be co-opted to render specialist services.

The committee meets at least four times a year.

Role, purpose and principal functions

The committee reviews the principles, policies and practices adopted in preparing the financial statements of the
company and its subsidiaries. It also ensures that interim and annual financial statements and any other formal
announcements relating to the company's financial performance comply with the Companies Act. the JSE Listing
Requirements and International Financial Reporting Standards.

The committee reviews the work of the group’'s external and internal auditors to ensure the adequacy and
effectiveness of Exxaro's financial, operating, compliance and risk management controls.
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corporate governance continued

Exxaro’s policy on non-audit services, which is annually reviewed by the committee, details which services may or
may not be provided by Exxaro’s external auditors and covers:

* basic accounting assistance

* payroll services

* fax services

* hurnan resources services

* information technology services

» appraisal or valuation services

« legislative and administrative decision-making and corporate governance

* internal audit and rlsk management,

The abave policy was complied with in the year under review.

ATTENDANCE
Appointed
Director . to committee Feb May Aug Nov
Dr D Konar {chairman) 11 Feb 02 . . . .
RP Mohring 30 May 07 rna . e .
NL Sowazi ) 30 May 07 n/a . . .

« Attended nfa Not on committee

Safety, health and environment committee (SHE)

Composition and meeting procedures

The committee consists of five members with an independent chairman, The CEQ and chief operating officer
(COO0) attend meetings as ex officio members.

General managers of commodity businesses, safety/health/environment, human resources and technology
management attend meetings by invitation. Suitably qualified pecple may be co-opted onto the committee when
necessary to render specialist services.

The committee meets at least three times a year,

Rale, purpose and prmclpai functions
The purpose of the committee is to develop the framework, polmes and guidelines for health, environmenta! and
safety management group-wide.

The role of the committee is to:

oversee the development of policies and guidelines for safety, health, environmental management

review the policies and performance of the company as a whole on the progressive implementation of SHE
policies

encourage independently managed subsidiaries, associates and significant investments to develop their own
SHE policies that are consistent with those of the group

receive reports on substantive SHE risks and I|ab1||t|es

monitor key indicators on accidents and incidents and, where appropriate, ensure this information is
communicated to other companies managed by or associated with the company

consider for adoption substantive national and international regulatory and technical developments
facilitate participation, co-operation and consultation on SHE matters with government, national and
international organisations, supernational authorities, other companies and other SHE associétions.
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ATTENDANCE
Appointed .

Director to committee April July Nov
JJ Geldenhuys {chairmany 11 April 02 . . .
Or CJ Fauconnier 11 April 02 . . n/a
MJ Kilbride 11 April 02 . . .
SA Nkosi 23 May 03 . . A
D Zihlangu 18 Aprit 07 . . .

+ Attended A Apologies nfa Retired on 31 August

TREMCO )

During the year, the human resources, remuneration and nomination committee was merged with the
transformation committee to form TREMCO. This was done to minimise duplicated responsibilities as

transformation has a strong human element.

Composition and meeting procedures

The committee consists of four members, with the chairman being an independent director. The CEOQ, chief
financial officer (CFO), executive general manager: human resources, and compensation and benefits advisers may

be invited to attend any meeting.

Suitably qualified people may be co-opted onto the committee to render the specialist services required to assist

the committee in its deliberations on any particular matter.

The committee meets at least five times a year.

Role, purpose and principal functions
The purpose of the committee is to:

« make recommendations on the composition of the board and board commitiees and to ensure that the board

consists of individuals equipped to fulfil the role of director of the company

objectives and delivering shareholder value

quide, monitor, review and evaluate the company’s progress on transformation, specifically the three primary
pillars of employment equity, community involvernent and preferential procurement
ensure the company's remuneration strategies, packages and schemes are related to achieving business

ensure compliance with statutory and best-practice requirements on labour and industrial relations
managesment, and that appropriate human resources strategies, policies and practices are in place.

ATTENDANCE
Appointed

Director to committee Feb May July  *Nov Nov
NMC Nyembezi-Heita (Chairman) 9 May 07 n/a . . . .
M Baum 16 Mar G4 . . . . .
VZ Mntambo 9 May 07 n/a . . A .
PKV Ncetezo 9 May 07 n/a . . . .
*Special

s Attended A Apologies
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corporate governance continued

Management committees
Executive committee

The executive committee (Exco) is chaired by the CEQ and consists of 13 members. It meets formally each month
and ad hoc when necessary.

Exco is mandated, empowered and held accountable for implementing the strategies, business plans and policies
determined by the Exxaro goard. 1t is aiso responsible for managin(j and monitoring the business affairs of the
company in line with approved plans and budgets, prioritising the altocation of capital and other resources as
approved by the board and establishing best management and operating practices.

Exxaro follaws a structured process to ensure it invests in projects aligned with group strategy and which yield

the required returns. In this proceés two forums are engaged: an initial assessment is completed by the strategic
co-ordination forum and a comprehensive review is then undertaken by the investment review committee. The offshore
review committee assists the board in financially co-ordinating Exxaro's portfolic of offshore investments and interests.

* The strategic co-ordination forum
The forum, chaired by the COO, meets every six weeks and its primary purpose Is to ensure that all new
initiatives are aligned with the Exxaro group strategy.

This torum has been mandated to:

» gnsure alignment of strategy execution and new developments

+ determine strategic priorities and co-ordinate, support and monitor strategic initiatives throughout the group
« altocate resources and accountabilities for investigations or studies.

tnvestment review committee

The committee, chaired by the CFQ, meets monthly and its primary responsibility is to undertake comprehensive
investment reviews and assess the technical feasibility and financiat viability of proposed capital projects or
investments prior to these requests being presented to the executive committee and Exxaro board for approval.

In fuffilling these objectives, the committee ensures that:

« each project meets the strategic, technical and investment requirements defined by the board

+ critical decisions, project parameters and potential risks are adequately addressed and researched prior to
recommending the commitment of funds

» each project enhances the portfolio value of Exxaro.

Offshore review committee

The committee meets gquarterly, with more frequent meetings convened if required.

The primary responsibilities of this committee include:

« financial controt and governance of Exxaro’s offshore investments and multi-disciptinary interests
+ efficient financial structuring

« providing for offshore investment funding and expenditure

* ensuring that financial reporting, auditing and tax-related issues are properly managed

* ensuring that the company's gverseas offices are effectively staffed, managed and used.

Intellectual property committee

Exxaro acknowledges the importance of mtellectual property and its proper management. Chaired by the executive
general manager: corporate services, an inteliectual property committee has been estahlished to ensure that
possible innovations are exploited and, if appropriate, patented and properly maintained. Copyright, trademark and
possiblte infringement issues are also addressed by this committee. The committee also comprises the company
secretary, representatives of the finance and technology departments, and Exxaro's legal representatives.
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Sustainability

Sustainability is a cornerstone of the Exxaro group and our approach is embedded in the first of our corporate
values which states “empowered to grow and contribute”. Our aim is to encourage entrepreneurship as far as
possible to transform this value into reality for as many stakeholders as possible (page 127).

Black economic empowerment codes of good practice

While we understand that companies need to verify the BEE status of suppliers in terms of the Codes of Good
Practice, Exxaro confines its reporting to the requirements set out in the Mineral and Petroleumn Resources
Development Act and its associated mining charter scorecard.

Exxaro's approach to transformation and empowerment, however fits wel! with the requirements of the BEE cotdes
and scorecard. In structuring the new group, we ensured that:

+ the majority of voting rights are exercised by black people

* the majerity of profits accrue to black people

+ the majority of the board comprises black people.

Disclosure policy
The board has adopted a formal continual disclosure of interests policy to ensure full and timely disclosure by
directors.

External communications

Exxaro believes that briefing analysts, investors and fund managers is an important element of maintaining
investor relations. However, it will only provide “price-sensitive” information after disclosing that infarmation to
the market.

Broader stakeholder communication plans have been developed and are currently being implermented. The group
believes in clear, transparent, concise and timely dissemination of relevant information to all stakeholders. This is
achieved through a multitude of channels and media, including written, electronic and verbal presentations.
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shareholder information

Market listings and other information
The principal market for Exxaro Resources Limited is the JSE. As a constituent of the All Share Top 40 index
(ALSI 40 index), Exxaro shares trade through the STRATE system.

STRATE is the authorised central securities depositary (CSD) for equities in South Africa that incorporates an
electronic settlement system. STRATE achieves secure, electronic settiement of share transactions on the JSE
and for off-market trades. Shares in companies listed on the JSE can no longer be bought or seld unless they
have been dematerialised on to the STRATE system. This process involves submitting paper share certificates to
a custodian bank or JSE member firm (broker) for conversion into an electronic record, an exercise referred to as
dematerialisation.

The introduction of the Johannesburg Equity Trading (JET) system a few years ago highlighted deficiencies in

the JSE's paper-based settlement system. Shares were no longer traded on a trading floor, and this contributed ~
to a massive leap in the number of trades each day. Back-office support services were incapable of handling this
increase in daily transactions efficiently in a paper-based environment. The transition to an efficient settiement
system has increased market activity and will certainly improve the international perception of the South African
market by reducing settlement and operational risk in ttre market, increasing efficiency and ultimately reducing
costs. Accordingly, by heightening investor appeal, STRATE enables Sauth Africa to compete effectively with other
international markets, and not just those of emerging countries. For additional information please refer to the
STRATE website: www.strate.co.za

Closing JSE share prices are published in most national and regional SA newspapers and are avaitable during the
day on the Exxaro and other websites. Share prices are also available on I-Net Bridge, Reuters and Bloomberg,
Exxaro has an over-the-counter (OTC) sponsored American depositary receipt (ADR) facility with the Bank of
New York (BoNY) under a deposit agreement. For additional information please refer to the BoNY website:
www.adrbony.com

ADR holders

ADR haolders may instruct BoNY on how shares represented by their ADRs should be voted. Registered holders

of ADRs will have annual and interim reports mailed to them at their recorded address. Brokers or financial
institutions that hold ADRs for shareholder clients are responsible for forwarding shareholder information to their
clients and will be provided with copies of annual and interim reports for this purpose.

Dividend determination _

Dividends are determined in South African rand (ZAR) and are decfared payable in the same currency by the
group. ADR shareholders are paid in US dollars by the group’s ADR bank, BoNY, BoNY effects the conversion of
ZAR-determined dividends in US dollars on behalf of its US ADR shareholders. Contact Computershare or BoNY
for further details.

Shareholder communication

General shareholder enquiries

Computershare is the registrar for Exxaro. All general enquiries and correspondence concerning shareholders
(other than shares held in ADR form) should be directed to the registrar. Computershare’s contact details are on
the inside back cover. Shareholders must notify Computershare praomptly in writing of any change of address.

All enguiries concerning shares held in ADR form should be directed to BoNY, whose contact details are given an
the inside back cover or visit its website at: www.adrbny.com

Shareholders can obtain details about their own shareholding on the internet. Full details, including
how to gain secure access to this personalised enquiry facility, are provided on the Computershare
website: www.computershare.com
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Publication of financial statements
Sharehotders wishing to view the annual repert and/or interim report in electronic rather than paper form can

access it on the Exxaro website: www.exxaro.com

Shareholder information

Major shareholders
As of 31 December 2007, the one entity known to Exxaro as owning more than 10% of its shares is Main Street

333 (Pty} Limited with 186 550 B73 shares representing 52,86% of the number of shares in issue. This entity is
commonly referred to as BEE Holdco (refer to page 5).

As of 31 December 2007, the total number of voting securities owned by directors of Exxaro was 2 319 ordinary
shares.
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shareholders' analysis

Registered shareholder spread Number of % of total Number % of issued
Shareholder spread shareholders shareholders of shares capital
1 - 1 000 shares 14137 83,73 4058 715 1,15
1 001 - 10 000 sharss 2181 12,92 6 424 465 1,82
10 001 — 100 000 shares 465 2,75 14 537 861 412
100 001 - 1 00¢ 000 shares 120 0,71 38 668 743 10,96
1 000 001 shares and over 24 0,14 289 217 416 81,95
16 884 100,00 352 907 400 100,00
Beneficial shareholder categories Total o5 of issued
Category shareholding capital
Black economic empowerment 186 550 873 52,86
Unit trusts/Mutual funds 37 302 988 10,57
Corporate holdings 35 330 282 10,01
Pansion funds 27 461 535 7.78
Insurance companies 14 581 631 413
Private investors 11900 761 3,37
Employees 10618 974 3,0
Other managed funds 10001 763 2,83
Custodians 2602 205 0,74
Hedge fund 2447 470 0,69
Investment trusts 2 300 000 0,65
Foreign government 770132 0.22
Charity 378100 0,1
American Depositary Receipts 151 472 0,04
Remainder 10 509 214 2,98
Total 352 907 400 100,00
Public and non-public shareholdings Number of % of total Number % of issued
Shareholder type shareholders shareholders of shares capital
Public shareholders 16 874 99,93 118 269 524 33,50
Non-public shareholders 11 0,07 234 637 876 86,50
- Directors and associates 4 0,01 2319 0,01
~ Main Street 333 (Pty) Ltd 1 0,01 186 550 873 52,86
- Anglo American Corporation of SA Ltd 1 0,01 34 730 282 9,84
- Exxaro Employee Empowerment Trust 1 0,M 10618974 3,01
- Assora Lid 1 0,01 600 000 017
- Kumba Management Share Trust 1 0,01 1970984 0,56
— Kumba Bestuursaandele Trust 1 0,01 164 444 0,05
Total 16 884 100,00 352 907 400 100,00
Total % of issued
Beneficial shareholdings of 3% or more shareholding capital
Main Street 333 (Pty) Ltd 186 550 873 52,86
Anglo American Corparation of SA Ltd 34 730 282 9,84
Public Investment Corporation 13515993 3,83
BExxaro Employee Empowerment Trust 10618 974 3,01
Total 245416122 69,54
Geographic split of beneficial shareholders
Region
South Africa 311 887 937 88,38
United States of America and Canada 22 469 378 6,37
United Kingdom 4 325 608 123
Rest of Europe 9 198 685 2,61
Rest of the World’ 5025 792 1,42
Total 352 907 400 100,00

! Represents all shareholdings except those in the above regions
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Investment management shareholdings of 3% or more Total % of issued
Investment manager shareholding capital
Main Sireet 333 (Pty} Lid 186 550 873 52,86
Anglo American Corporation of SA Ltd 34 730 282 9,84
STANLIB Asset Management 15224 323 4,31
Exxaro Employee Empowerment Trust 10618974 3,01
Total 247 124 452 70,03
Geographic split of investment managers and company-related holdings

Region

South Africa 305 640 107 86,61
United States of America and Canada 18 981 962 5,38
United Kingdom 11 158 591 3,16
Rest of Europe 5755839 1,63
Rest of the World' 11 370 901 3,22
Total 352 907 400 100,00
1 Represents all shareholdings except those in the above regions

Breakdown of non-public holdings Number

Directors and associates of shares % of shares
Nyembezi-Heita, NMC 1 00C 0,60
Kilbride, MJ 586 0,00
van Staden, DJ 565 0,00
Konar, D 168 C,00
Total 2319 0,00

ANALYSIS OF
INVESTMENT STYLES!

BENEFICIAL SHAREHOLDERS
OF 3% OR MORE

52,86%

3,00%
3,83

9,84%

GEOGRAPHIC SPLIT OF
BENEFICIAL SHAREHOLDERS

2.61%]' 429

1,23%

6,37%

[s]

88,38%

o Main Street 333 (Pty) Ltd

= Private client

m Anglo American ® Value
Corporation of SA Ltd a Remainder
@ Public Investment = Growth
Corporation .
o Black economic
® Exxaro Employee empowerment
Empowerment Trust
o Corporate
» QOther
o |ndex

Includes categories above 19 only

South Africa

United States of America
and Canada

United Kingdom
Rest of Eurcpe
Rest of the World
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managing risk, issues and opportunities
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk philosophy

Investors are more willing to invest in a company with a well-defined risk
philosophy and an integrated enterprise-wide risk management (ERM) programme.
The philosophy and ERM programme are underpinned by a risk-appetite strategy
to assess high-level risks which are then applied consistently in resource-allocation
decisions to mitigate risks that might impact on the company’s ability to increase
stakeholder value.

In line with its vision, Exxaro maintains an integrated ERM programme to guide
individual business units in their risk management endeavours to prevent

or reduce the adverse impacts of cperational losses, earnings surprises and
reputational damage, The board-approved methodology followed throughout the
group ensures a better understanding of the trade-off between risk and reward
which, in turn, enhances strategic decisions relating to improved capital allocation
to address strategic risks.

The effectiveness of the ERM process is measured by how well it aligns the key
fundamentals of governance, business objectives, ethics, policies, standards,
strategies and compliance. ’

4

In Exxaro, the focus is on bringing these fundamental components ever closer to
the operational risk management processes.

Our ERM approach is aimed at;

+ minimising losses caused by adverse events

* reducing earnings surprises and reputational damage
+ contributing to the protection of shareholder value.

Risk appetite

The board, guided and assisted by the audit, risk and compliance committee,
defines and approves Exxaro's risk appetite. Exxaro's risk-bearing capacity is a
function of its ability to withstand unexpected losses and the effect such losses
may have on the company's ability to continue operating as a going concern, '

In Exxaro, the embedded nature of the ERM programme is reflected in a
centralised ERM hub dedicated to strategic direction and policy development, and
risk committees operating at business unit level to implement this policy.

Risk culture
Exxaro has a policy of zero tolerance for compliance failures and its aim is to
speedily identify and rectify any deviation.

Promoting a risk-conscious culture is a constant focus throughout the company.
All risk owners are responsible for continually monitoring the existing and ever-
changing risk profile of the environment in which they conduct their business.
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managing risk, issues and opportunities

Divisional and business-unit risk committees play an important role in identifying operational risk and in the
development and application of generic mitigating strategies. They also have a risk oversight function by virtue of
being closer to activities that could have adverse results. Each committee is chaired by the head of the business
centre and meets quarterly. The group risk manager attends all meetings.

Risk management objectives

The risk management process is continual, with well-defined steps. When taken in sequence, these support better
decision making by contributing greater insight into risks and their impacts. Risks from all sources are identified
and once they pass the materiality threshold, a formal process begins in which causal factors and consequences
are identified and the correlation with other risks and the current risk-mitigating strategy is reviewed. One of

the challenges is to ensure that mitigating strategies are geared to deliver reliable and timely risk information to
minimise adverse impacts of risks that might materialise,

The top business risks based on impact, likelihood or the probability of occurrence, together with the mitigating
control measures, are disclosed in descending order.
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Top risks
Risk Severity Probability Control measures
* Operational High High Ensure compliance with mining charter

requirements. Continuous engagement with the

Granting of new mining rights
d 9 Department of Minerals and Energy (DME).

ar conversion of old rights

Operational High High Pursuing optimisation initiatives and projects
that can positively influence achieving
nameplate capacity, including investigation into
alternative hearth technology.

KZN Sands - furnace
production capacity

-

Profitability High High Maintaining a database on escalation of major
commodity items based on industry trends
and own experience to ensure comprehensive
provision for escalation on preject costing and
timing of long lead-time items.

impact of buoyant
construction and engineering
market on the cost of capital
projects

+* Human resources High High Implementation of effective retention strategy

Retention and availability for key disciplines.

of skills base impacting on Remain an employer of choice due to:
current production and future - reqularly benchmarked market-related
growth remuneration

- comprehensive training
- growth opportunities.

Focus on innovative recruitment initiatives
and succession planning. Continuous rotation
and exposure of own talent in multidisciplinary
project teams.
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued

Risks posed by continuously
changing and onercus
environmental legislation
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Risk Severity Probability Control measures
+ Strategic High Medium Finalise feedstock reserve prioritisation
. feasibility studies. Obtain DME approval of

KZN mineral sands business X ,‘ " Y vl ) Pe \.:a °
mining rights for Fairbreeze C extension and

feedstock resources .
Braeburn as delays are already affecting
operational activities.

« Strategic High Medium  Ranking value-adding opportunities in an
ligned growth strategy and i f
Funding value-added growth algne .gf y ratedy " terms.o .a.
. strategic investment framework. Optimising
within balance sheet and . S . -
. . . dedicated project finance facilities.
equity-raising constraints
* Profitability High Medium Judicious hedging policy. Continuous business
improvement initiatives with rigorous tracking.
impact of continued rand and p' ) . 9 9
. Optimised use of operating assets to leverage
Australian dollar strength ) ) .
) . henefits of higher throughput. Investigate
combined with forecast R . "
, downstream integration opportunities.
macro-ecenoimic parameters

and commaodity prices, on

operating margins and

returns on investment

« Profitability High Medium Participation in industry forums that engage
. o ! with Eskom and National Energy Regulator

Anticipated significant price i (.Jy . 9 .

. " of South Africa (Nersa). Investigation into

increases for electricity )
co-generation.

« Operational Medium High KZN Sands and Zincer have load-sharing
agreements with the electricity utility.

Power supply certainty and 9 . ! Ieeec rict y.u " y' .

. ) ) Commitment to assist Eskom with additional
the impact of interruptions . . -
R coal supply required to achieve stability in

an safety, production and . K

rofitabilit the power plant feed and transmission grid.

P Y Examination of alternatives with regard to the
conservation and use of electricity throughout
operations.

*» Environmental High Low Rehabilitation strategy developed with

continuous monitoring of work performed in line
with strategy. Ongoing rehabilitation is managed
out of operational budgets while the Exxaro
Environmental Rehabilitation Fund provides for
final closure costs. Continuous engagement with
authorities.




SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Performance

Exxaro's sustainable development reporting is guided by the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) and its sectoral
suppiements (page 18). As such, we have subdivided our sustainable development performance and progress into:
» safety, health and environment

* economic

* social

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT PERFORMANCE

Managing safety, health and environment (SHE) is central to the success of our business and, accordingly, the
potential for SHE risks and establishing suitable mitigation measures are integral to our journey towards zero
harm. As part of the recent merger process, a SHE integration project was launched at the beginning of 2007,
resulting in a new vision and strategy.

Our SHE Qision, leading the way to zero harm, is underpinned by six key principles {figure A) and an evelving
strategy for the next five years. To ensure that all aspects of SHE are implemented equitably, the new strategy has
focused plans for safety, health and hygiene and environment, each with clear goals and timelines.

The overall responsibility for mbnitorinq safety, health and environmental performance rests with the Exxaro
board, exercised through the SHE committee and representative consulting forums at corporate level and each
division, A number of SHE-related internal and external audits are conducted annually to assure the board

‘that pelicies, standards and procedures are implemented at operational level. To comply with all relevant SHE

management standards and legislation, the group aims for high standards of safety, heatth and environmental
perfarmance. We aim to continuously improve SHE management systems in all operations as an integral part of
our commitment to run a responsible business and accelerate sustainable development.

The integration project has also given us an opportunity to:

« Determine Exxaro's SHE risk profile

+ |dentify best practice from the SHE programmes of the former Kumba Resources and Eyesizwe Coal
s Integrate SHE programmes from these companies

* Daevelop supporting systems and procedures in line with our strategy

+ Set common SHE standards and adapt systems and processes

* Provide appropriate skills, governance structures and resources for SHE functions

« Establish integrated monitoring and auditing protocols.

Developed in consultation with relevant stakeholders, the aim of the new SHE programme, standards and protocols
is primarily to:

Provide an integrated risk-based SHE management system consistent with national fegislation

Ensure the progressive development and implementation of more specific and detailed SHE management
systems at all levels of Exxaro operations

Provide a framework for the implementation of integrated safety, health and environmental compliance audits
and reporting

Provide performance criteria against which SHE management systems across Exxaro business units can be
measured

Provide a platform for continuous improvement.

Compliance management is central {o good governance and in many ways gives us the ‘licence’ to continue to

operate. Having noted the need to ensure that our compliance processes are under control, we have established a

corporate SHE compliance management department which assists in:

* Implementing an ongoing assessment and review of the impact of existing and new legislation

« Formulating an Exxaro-wide compliance framework to manage SHE risks, ensure a strong compliance culture
and integrate fegal compliance reguirements into business processes

= Coordinate integrated compliance menitoring and reporting.
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued

1

SHE Is a value
and influences
everything we do

6

Competency
training is an
essential part of
SHE excellence

2

Compliance with |
legislationis a
prerequisite

SHE |

PRINCIPLES

5

We believe SHE per-
formance is exceflent
business and a
sign of exceptional
leadership

We are all
committed te
zero incidents

4

If we cannot do it
safely, we don't
do it at all

FIGURE A: SHE VISION “LEADING THE WAY TO ZERQO HARM"

A
This function complements the activities of corporate SHE technical advisers to provide management and the
executive with confirmation that business units are aware of their SHE risks, are managing these risks and taking
due consideration of risks when business decisions are made.

Awareness .

As part of our awareness and continuous improvement proqramme: in November 2007 we organised and
sponsored a biennial industry-wide SHE conference. This was the fourth such conference where industry
stakeholders, our management team and employees could interact to advance SHE objectives across our group,
" share experiences and examine best practices on particular chailenges. The 2007 SHE conference focused
partic'ularly on environmental challenges and opportunities the company faces regulariy.

SAFETY
Exxaro believes achieving zero injuries is possible by applying our management protocols, programmes and
systems. .

Key risks to meeting this target are the high number of incidents relating to vehicle safety and energy and
machinery isolation as well as general lack of risk awareness and discipline at all levels.

To address these risks, Exxaro has embarked on a number of initiatives. The ! Care Fatal Risk Controls are being
relaunched at all our sites to ensure special emphasis on the risks responsible for fatalities at Exxaro and the
preventative measures in place to manage these risks better. Linking into this drive, Exxaro has also revised

its HIRA (hazard identification and-risk assessment) standard to ensure a higher level of risk identification and
mitigation.
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The vehicle safety standard at Exxaro has also been revised, setting a minimum Figure B: Fatality-frequency rate
standard with which all vehicles should comply to operate on company property or per 100 000 man-hours: 2007
be used for company business.

Exxaro has alse embarked on a formal *visible felt leadership’ programme at all 020 -

business units to ensure improved communication and understanding of key safety 018 - A=

risks between management and employees with the main aim of improving risk 06 -

awareness and proaﬁtively addressing and mitigating safety risks an the floor L, M- —
before incidents occur. ‘g 02 -

Although the fatality frequency rate per million man-hours worked improved from g 010 -

018 in 2006 to 014 in 2007 (figure BY, it is still too high as any fatality is regarded as goos-

unacceptable. Regrettably, and despite excellent safety achievements at several mines, 006 -

we lost five colleagues during the reporting period, Two fatalities occurred in separate 004 -

incidents at Grootegeluk, one in January anpd the other in November. Cne fatality 0oz~ H

accurred at Rosh Pinah in March, another at Matla in May and the third at North e- < - ° N
Block Complex in December. Thorough investigations were conducted in all cases and § § ,S, §
lessons learnad from each incident have been incorporated into our ongoing safety

programmes focused on an injury-free work environment. .

a

Although there has been constant improvement in the lost-time injury frequency - I:-I:r?qet (ongoing)

rate (LTIFR) over recent years (figure C), improvements have fallen short of targets,

Exxaro has set a target of zero fatalities and an LTIFR of 0,21 for 2008, which is

a reduction of 30% on the LTIFR target set for 2007. Although we have not met

the target for 2007, we are confident that through renewed focus and committed

management and employees, we will reach our goal. The safety of our people is a - Figure C: Lost-time injury frequency
cornerstone of our business and, by making this target a collective responsibility, rate per 200 000 man-hours: 2007
we will reach and sustain it sooner.

Note: Exxaro is standardising reporting on man-hours and lost-time injuries across 12 -

the group. . ) M- —
. : 10 -

HEALTH AND HYGIENE ' 08"

Exxaro is committed to reducing employee exposures to workplace health risks. ~§ i’: :

Our group also continues to respond to the major challenge of HIV/Aids and has oy 0:6 _

committed additional resources for managing this pandemic in the workplace. % 05 - H

= 04-

Key risks ' : , 03 - []

The major occupationat hygiene risks are noise, dust and thermal stress. Other risks 0; : 1T ™ T
include gases and illumination. The risks vary according to the different commodities oo L

and by type of operation such as underground mine, opencast pit, or plant. é § § § §
Business units identify and rank their risks; and have a hygiene surveillance " " " T
programme to quantify risks. Workplace exposures are linked to individuals, and

medical surveillance is conducted on the basis of these exposures. For HIV/Aids, a o LTIFR

disease management programme is in place. = Target

.During 2007, we began a process to revise our corporate standards to manage = Target (2008)

identified risks better. These include the hearing-conservation and dust-control

programmes. We are also improving management standards for emergency

response; hazardous chemicals; tuberculosis and reporting. The review of our

management standard on reporting for the group includes the planned roll-out of an

electronic system for ensuring the timely reporting of health and hygiene incidents;

tracking outdated and outstanding medical certificates as well as referrals.
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued

Figure D: Accepted cases of occupational
diseases.
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Occupational diseases

Figure D shows the number of occupational diseases accepted for compensation
over the fast five years: 125 cases of noise-induced hearing loss (NIHL), 65 cases
of occupational tuberculosis (TB) and 17 of pneumoconiosis. In 2007, there were
seven cases of occupational diseases accepted for compensation: three cases of
NIHL; two of pneumoconiosis and two of occupational TB. This was a decrease

on the total number of accepted occupaticnal diseases from 2006. The most
significant decrease was in NIHL from 21 accepted cases in 2006 to three in 2007,
suggesting that the implementation of the hearing conservation programmeis
beginning to have a positive impact.

Monitering the reporting process to ensure that all incidents have been dealt with
will be the major focus during 2008,

Meeting mining sector targets

Exxarois a signatory to a letter of commitment for meeting industry health and
safety'tarqets by 2013. The targets for occupational health and hygiene are to
eliminate NIHL and silicosis by 2013, and Exxaro is committed to achieving these
goals.

Noise areas have been identified and zoned as have the nature of operations
and activities that pdse the greatest exposure to noise, Baseline audiograms of
employees were conducted by 2005 as per legisiative requirements and training
and awareness programmes are in place. Control measures inctude substitution,

‘engineering, administration, the use of personal protective equipment (PPE),

and personal exposure monitoring. Similarly, areas where there is dust exposure
have been demarcated; dust suppression measures put in place; PPE provided;
dust levels and employee exposure monitored. In addition, employees undergo
periodic medical examinations to monitor their health,

During 2007, an initial assessment to determine health and hygiene performance
against mining sector targets was undertaken. This was a company-wide review of
the implementation of the hearing-conservation and dust-contro! programmes to
identify any areas of nen-compliance. A company strategy to meet sector targets
was developed. This includes correction of identified gaps; compliance monitoring
of business units’ noise and dust control programmes; and communicating
awareness messages to employees on the importance of complying with these
targets. Each business unit has developed its own implementation commitments
and these will be tracked within the group to ensure Exxarc meets these targets,

HIV/Aids

Exxaro has allocated specific resources aimed at minimising the impact of HIV/Aids

on its workforce. The programme includes:

* Confidential testing and veluntary counselling

* Access to a 24-hour helpline for infermation

* Prophylactic treatment for employees who suspect they may have been exposed
to HIV/Aids ‘

+ Information for HIV/Aids patients an remaining healthy for as long as possible

* Access to antiretroviral medication

* Fair treatment and no discrimination

* Peer educators at business units to inform and educate colleagues.



During 2007, 1 889 individuals in the group were trained at awareness sessions.
Of these, 1784 people participated in voluntary counselling and testing (vVCT) and
the 145 individuals who tested positive were enrolled on the disease management
programme,

The cumulative number of individuals tested through the VCT programme since
inception is 3 542 or 30% of our employees. Of these, 498 are on the disease
management programme, Figure E shows the number of people on ART and those
who have not yet started treatment as well as those who have left the programme
due to retirement, incapacitation or death.

During 2008, the focus will be to:

« Encourage employees who have never tested for HIV to test; and those who have
already tested to continue participating in VCT.

+ Focus on employee knowledge of HIV/Aids and destigmatisation.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Exxare is committed to conserving natural resources and reducing the

environmental burden of pollutants to the natural environment by:

« Complying with all applicable environmental legislation

« Developing innovative policies and programmes for addressing environmental
impacts.

One of the measures employed has been the use of a dedicated in-house
environmental management specialist unit which was created as part of the

SHE organisational structure to address environmental risks and impacts to
enhance environmental legal compliance. This unit's members include an air-
quality specialist, hydroiogist, ecologist, environmental resource accountant,
environmental compliance specialist, environmental impact assessment specialist
and a geohydrologist.

Key risk areas and management activities

Key environmental risks emanating from our mining activities are:
« Water and waste management

« Air guality and climate change

« Biodiversity and land management

» Rehabilitation environmental liability management.

Water and waste management

Exxaro’s approach to water management is guided by South African environmental
legislation (National Environmental Management Act, Minerals and Petroleum
Resources Management Act, National Water Management Act). It is primarily
focused on sustainable use of water, pollution control and avoidance.

Exxaro's policy is to use appropriate measures at all operations to meet the intent
of the law through site-specific water management plans. Our water treatment
facilities ensure that water used in our operations meets legislated quality
standards for all receiving environments or discharge areas.

Exxaro is also actively participating in industry investigations that wilt inform the
overall direction of a water-management master plan and future water treatment plant

Figure E: HIV positive people on disease
management programme,

30% of employees have tested at least once.
14% of employees who participated in VCT
{or 498 people) tested positive.

*Exits refer to peaple who exited due to retirement,
incapacitation or death.
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued
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investments. These include plants treating discharged mine water to meet industrial
and potable water standards. A portion of the treatment casts will be recouped from
benefiting municipalities that in turn supply this water to general users,

As Exxaro's business activities are spread over several commodities requiring
various different mining, beneficiation and disposal activities, the associated risks
are diverse. The key challenges at present in this field are:

* Post-closure water rhanagement

* |dentification, separation and management of clean and dirty water areas

» Potential of excessive recharge to mine workings

+ Groundwater contamination from various waste sources.

To manage these risks the following actions were taken:

* Development and communication of a dedicated integrated water management
policy

» Baseling assessments

* Integrated water and waste management plans completed for New Clydesdale
and Leeuwpan, Plans in progress for Matla, char plant and Glen Douglas.
Grootegeluk, Zincor, Tshikondeni and Inyanda already have plans in place.

Business operation Revised water balance 2007
Matla In progress
Grootegeluk In place

Arnot No

New Clydesdale Yes

Leeuwpan Yes

Zincor In place

Char ptant In progress

KZN Sands - Hillendale " Mo

North Block Complex - Strathrae No

Glen Douglas In progress
Tshikondeni In place

Rosh Pinah Yes

Inyanda In place

North Block Complex - Glisa Yes {Eerstelingsfontein)
KZN Sands - Central processing complex - No

Actual data are set out on page 114.

Developing and updating water and salt balances at operational units is a
fundamentat water management tool to ensure the correct strategies and
decisions throughout the integrated water and waste management plans.




Case study
Tshikondeni co-disposal facility

The basis of the approach used at Exxaro on integrated water and waste

management at mines is the Department of Water Affairs and Forestry (DWAF)

resource protection and waste management hierarchy of decision-taking. This

in turn is based on a precautionary principle and sets the following order of

priority for mine water and waste management decisions or actions:

« Prevent or minimise pollution/contamination of water used by implementing
necessary management measures or strategies

» Reuse or reclaim contaminated water in ¢cases where complete pollution
prevention was not possible

» Treat water that cannot be reused or reclaimed

* Reuse treated water

= Discharge or dispose of excess water.

From a conservation perspective, reuse and reclamation ensure effective and
beneficial use of scarce water resources and overall environmental protection,
Reuse of waste water on a mine is preferred to potentially costly treatment
schemes prior to discharge of effluent in a water resource. For example, the
new tailings disposal facility at Tshikondeni mine is contained within the
discard dump which is continuously raised during construction to ensure
adequate containment of the tailings discharge. The discard is transported
mechanically using vehicles and compacted in 150mm layers to reduce the
risk of spontaneous combustion. The tailings material is pumped into the
taitings facility (containment area) via HDPE pipes from the plant in slurry
_form and altowed to consolidate.

The new facility was formally designed and constructed accerding to accepted
practice and in line with the industry norm, and allowance made for an
internal drainage system with effluent return infrastructure. The design was
approved by all the necessary authorities and the final closure elevation of
the facility was agreed. By re-using the seepage, the mine is able to reduce
the intake of raw (river) water, in turn decreasing water supply stress in this
area.

Air quality management

Legal compliance and natural ecosystem protection are the focus of Exxaro's air
guality management activities. Due to the nature of Exxaro's business practices,
certain activities present challenges in terms of adequate air quality management,
for example, emissions generated from:

« Blasting coal seams

* Spontaneous combustion of discard dumps

» Ore processing activities

» Wind erosion of exposed operational areas

+ Vehicular dust from unpaved operational roads.

Return water dam - Tshikendeni co-disposal
facility

— - -
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued
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Figure F: Air quality management system

Air gquatity management activities in Exxaro aim to ensure that:

» all business units and subsidiaries protect the environment through reasonable
measures to prevent the emission of criteria air pollutants

= the quality of ambient air in the immediate receiving environment is not
adversely affected by emission of air pollutants directly from operations.

To minimise the risks posed by our mining processes, Exxaro has adopted an air
quality management framework which is informed by the South African National .
Environmental Management Air Quality Act and guidelines recommended by the
World Health Organisation. Figure F illustrates a systematic approach used by
business operations to identify key risk areas in terms of air emissions.

Based on the Exxaro air quality management framework, in 2007 more than

50% of business operations completed a detailed emissions inventory and
accompanying dispersion models, with 90% of business operations monitoring
ambient concentration of fallout dust from mining activities. Monitoring activities
at business operations, where relevant, witl be expanded to include smaller particle
matter suspended in air. -

Actual data are presented on page 114.
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TOTAL ENERGY USED FROM
Case study ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION

Grootegeluk spontaneous combustion monitoring

Exxaro has investigated the atmospheric emission from maost of its operations 22%

to identify those with significant impact. Spontaneous combustion of discard
dumps was identified as a significant source of air quality risk given its duat
effect on both ambient air quality and climate change.

54%

Grootegeluk was identified as the pifot site to develop the methadology that 24%
can be applied across the group to guantify emissions from spontaneous

combustion, A three-menth monitoring campaign was initiated at Grootegeluk
where data on air quality were collected to manitor pellutant concentrations = Coal

near the dumps. e Base Metals and Industrial
Minerals

Given the results of the pilot study, we decided a more detailed assessment
= Mineral Sands

is required to determine the emission factars for spontaneous combustion.
For 2008, budget has been allocated to conduct rmore complex emission flux
measurements on known dumps at Grootegeluk, The proposed project will be
a collaborative initiative between Exxaro and University of Johannesburg.

TOTAL ENERGY USAGE FROM
DIESEL CONSUMPTION

5%

9%

a Ceal

®» Base Metals and Industrial
Minerals

= Mineral Sands
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued

CARBON DIOXIDE EMISSION
RESULTS OF ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION

22%
54%
24%
o Coal
8 Base Metals and Industrial
Minerals

® Mineral Sands

CARBON DIOXIDE EMISSION
RESULTS OF DIESEL CONSUMPTICN

5%
9%
86%
m Coal
® Base Metals and Industrial
Minerals

= Mineral Sands
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Climate change, energy and greenhouse gases

Exxaro recognises that a commitment to clean energy is éssential to remain
competitive while dealing effectively with:

+ potential energy shortages

+ climate change

+ related environmental concerns

* rising costs of energy.

Exxaro commits itself to both national and international protocols aimed at
encouraging countries and industries to adopt more responsible energy use
programmes. :

In particular, Exxaro has committed to optimising energy use by improving energy
efficiency by 15% hy 2015 as outlined in the national energy efficiency accord of
the Department of Minerals and Enérgy for the industrial and mining sectors. As
part of fulfilling this commitment, Exxaro has initiated an independent verification
of baseline energy use, using prior-year diesel and electricity figures.

The 2007 energy consumption baselihe assessment showed that the coal business
commodity is the largest consumer of t?oth electricity and diesel energy, mainly
from operational activities.

From this baseline data, it was possible to derive our greenhouse gases exposure
profile from primary energy use and express the results as carbon dioxide
equivalent (CO,-e). For 2007, Exxarg produced 237kt of CO,-e from primary energy
use, ie the consumption of electricity and diesel. As expected, our ¢oal business
commodity accounts for the largest share'of CO,-e emissions.

Clean energy policy }

Exxaro has established a clean energy forum that aims to reduce the company's
carbon footprint by becoming mare energy efficient and by using cleaner
technologies. The forum - made up of key members of senior management - has
compiled a clean energy policy which states that Exxaro will:

« improve energy efficiency by 15% within the next seven years

* minimise energy consumption and costs

« promote the use of energy-efficient equipment and designs

« ynderstand and reduce our carbon footprint

» use and develop ¢leaner technologies, ie co-generation and renewable energy
« reduce emissions and participate in the carbon trading market.

Specific timelines have been drawn up: .

* By the first quarter of 2008 we will have assessed and quantified the total
carbon footprint for Exxaro

* Within the second quarter of 2008, targets and timeframes will be in place for all
business units, and activities will begin

* By end May 2008 we will have submitted our co-generation proposal to Eskom,
and can expect feedback by mid August

* By March 2008 we will start assessing energy efficiency levels throughout the
group, as well as set goals and target dates.

Our vision is to become a zero carbon footprint company and we will benchmark
this footprint against other companies in South Africa and globally.




S

Case study
Renewable enerqy project in Namibia

Street lights in Tutungeni township, near Rosh Pinah, look ordinary. But their
source of power is extraordinary. These lights are run off zinc air fuel cells - an
affordable renewable energy technology recently developed through an Exxaro-
sponsored research project.

The fuel cells use zinc to generate safe, envirenmentally friendly electricity.
They can also be used to power appliances such as televisions, ragios, small
refrigerators and even certain computers,

Developed by the Alternative Energy Development Corporation after six years
of research and development, the technology was successfully trialled in
December 2006 when it was installed in 18 homes in Tutungeni.

in addition, zinc air fuel cells create opportunities for small businesses in

areas off the power grid as they can be used to power cellphone batteries,
sewing machines, haircutters and other small appliances. Capitalising on this,
service centres are already planned for Tutungeni which will create sustainable
employment for an increasing number of people. We plan to broaden the scope
of this successful project by rolling it out to other operations within the group
in 2008.

Quantifying Exxaro’s carbon footprint began in 2007 using globally accepted
standards such as 1SQ 14064-1. The exercise for our head office revealed that 80%
of emissions stemmed from electricity use. Various initiatives are under way to
reduce our footprint and we will report on progress annually. '

Actual data are presented an page 114,

Biodiversity management

The focus on censerving biodiversity becomes more important as the effect of
global warming starts to impact on habitats and richness of global biodiversity, The
National Environmental Management: Biodiversity Act (Act 20 of 2004) mainly
provides for:

* Management and conservation of South Africa’s biodiversity

» Protection of species and ecosystems that warrant national protection

* Sustainable use of our i'ndiqenous biological resources.

Exxaro owned and managed land has significant biodiversity due to the wide
geographical distribution of its operations (table 1 overieaf).

The Rosh Pinah mine in southern Namibia
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued

Curbie metre {million)

Hectare (000)

DISCARD PRODUCT VERSUS
PLACED IN FINAL PQOSITION

265 -
260 -
255 -
250 -
245 —
240 -
235 -
230 -
March 2007
June 2007
September 2007
December 2007
TOTAL AREA DISTURBED
VERSUS REHABILITATION
0 -
g -
a -
7 -
6 -
5 -
4 -
3 -
2 -
] -_
0 -
March 2007
June 2007
September 2007
December 2007
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Table 1: Summary of the biomes, vegetation types and associated business
unit to indicate diversity of veqetation

Business unit

Biome

Conservation status
{(NSBAR)

Tshikondeni
Tshikondeni
Fairbreeze.
Arnot, North Block

Complex, Strathrae and
Leeuwpan

Arnot, North Block
Complex, Strathrae,
Leeuwpan, Glen Douglas
and Zincor
Durnacol
Glisa
Inyanda

' Leeuwpan, Glen Douglas,
Zincor and FerroAlloys
Zincor
Hiobane
Matla
Fairbreeze
Fairbreeze and Hillendale
Tshikondeni
Central processing
complex
Grootegeluk

Tshikondeni

Rosh Pinah

Forest - azonal
Forest - zonal and
intrazonal

Forest - zonal and

intrazonat
Grassland

Grassland

Grassland
Grassland
Grassland
Grassland
Grassland
Grassland
Eastern Highveld
grassland

Indian Ocean
coastal belt
indian Ocean
coastal belt
Savanna
Savanna
Savanna - central

bushveld
Savanna - Lowveld

Succulent Karoo

Critically endangered with a
conservation target of 100%
Conservation target of 100%

Least threatened with a
conservation target of 43%
Endangered with
conservation target of 24%

Endangered with
Conservation target of 24%

. Vulnerable with conservation

target of 23%

Vulnerable with conservation
target of 27%

Endangered with
conservation target of 24%
Endangered with
conservation target of 24%
Endangered with
conservation target of 24%
Least threatened with
conservation target of 27%
Endangered

Endangered with
conservation target of 25%
Vulnerable with conservation
target of 25%

Least threatened with
conservation target of 19%
Endangered with
conservation target of 19%
Least threatened with
conservation target of 19%
Vulnerable with conservation
target 6f 19%

Not described

Endangered - ecosystem with a high risk of extinction in the near future

Vulnerable - ecosystern that is deteriorating and wili become threatened if certain factors are

nct addressed

An example in this case is the Gariep Centre of Plant Endemism, where Rosh Pinah
operations are situated. This forms part of the succulent Karoo region, considered
as one of the earth's 25 ‘hot spots’ - geographical areas which contain the world's
greatest plant and animal diversity. This area {(Gariep Centre) has the richest
variety of succulents on earth.

Exxaro is committed to conserve biodiversity and reduce the environmental
impacts of its operations an biodiversity.

The key'risks identifted to biodiversity within Exxaro are:

* Protection, conservation, menitoring and management of red data species

» Control, monitoring and management of alien invasive species

* Identification, protection and management of sensitive and highly biodiverse
hot-spot ecosystems, including wettands, pans and terrestrial ecosystems.




The identified risks are managed by means of:

+ A dedicated biodiversity policy and strategy aligned with national legisiation and
international conventions

« A wetland strategy aimed at protecting wetlands, pans and related water courses

« Detailed baseline assessments on fauna and flora and associated ecosystems

= Compilation and implementation of biodiversity action plans which focus on the
protection, conservation, monitoring and management of red data species and
biodiversity hot-spot areas by, among others, eradication, contro! and monitoring
of alien invasive species.

Various baseline studies on biodiversity within the business units have been
compiled since 2006. Biodiversity studies were conducted at Glen Douglas,
Grootegeluk, the new proposed Fairbreeze Extension C, Tshikondeni and

New Clydesdale (table 2). The current approach to future developments is to
include biodiversity studies prior to any development to ensure adequate impact
mitigation on the biodiversity of new areas of development.

Table 2: Summary of status of blodiversity assessment per business unit

Desktop
Business unit studies
representing (including Biodiversity
this vegetation PRECIS* baseline Blodiversity
type List) assessment actlon plan
Tshikondeni v N In compilation
Fairbreeze v v In compilation
Extensions C
Glen Douglas N Y In compilation
Arnot v Planned for 2008 End 2008
Zincor v Conducted March 2008
(January 2008}
Matla v Some parts End 2008
North Block - - -
Complex ’
Leeuwpan v Certain section - rest  End 2008
. planned for 2008
New Clydesdale v v End 2008
Inyanda 2009 2009 2009
Hillendale v Planned March 2008 End 2008
Central v Planned March 2008  End 2008
processing
complex
Grootegeluk v Conducted by land -
management in past
five years
Rosh Pinah v Planned for June End 2008
2008 '

*List of plant species recorded within a specific grid and identified by the South African
Biodiversity Institute Herbariums

Exxaro is committed to conserve biodiversity
and reduce the environmental impacts of its
operations on biodiversity
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Case study
Matla wetland management plan

The Matla wetland management project is
one of the main projects based on bicdiversity
and biodiversity conservation. This project is
unique in that the river diversion design and
mining method was adopted and changed to
maintain the water flow and function of the
wetland to protect its biodiversity. Exxaro had
an approved environmental management plan
for underground shoriwall mining (in limited
areas) and bord-and-pillar mining in adjacent
areas. An amendment to this approved plan was
submitted in June 2006 for the extension of
underground shortwall mining.

Concerns were raised by authorities as the
proposed area of mining includes sensitive
wetlands (the Blesbokspruit/Rietspruit wetland
is ane of three extensive alluvial wetland
systems within the Upper Olifants River
catchments).

The rerouting or river diversion of the
Rietspruit was required to route upsiope run-off
water past the high extraction area, reducing
the risk of water entering the underground
workings and minimising the disturbance to
surface drainage lines by surface subsidence
due to high extraction mining. We therefore
had to reduce the impact on the functionality
and biodiversity of the wetland to a minimum.
This was only possible through an innovative
engineering design that allowed for mining coal
underground with limited impact on the surface,

Figure G shows the position of the 530ha
wetland area that will be undermined, the

2 365ha of adopted wetland that foerms part

of the wetland conservation areas, the non-
channelled riparian wetland and the seasonally
inundated channel valley bottom floodplain with
footslope wetland.

The mining method, river diversion design

and various management principles were
therefore compiled to ensure the protection and
conservation of the wetland, and biodiversity
within the wetland.




Mine rehabilitation and provision for environmental liabilities
The MPRDA emphasises the importance of actively managing mine rehabilitation
and mine closure through the various phases of mining. In 2006, a specialist
rehabilitation department was created within SHE to advise Exxaro an strategic,
ongoing rehabilitation and mine-closure matters. In aligning Exxaro to the
requirements of the MPRDA, a rehabilitation framework was compiled and
completed in 2007. From this the Exxaro rehabilitation policy and management
standard will be developed in 2008 to inform physical processes and financial
provisions, including rehabilitation performance indicators.

Business units wilt in future report rehabilitation performance against ongoing
rehabilitation budgets quarterly to enable the company to track progress. A
challenge for Exxaro will be to optimise ongoing rehabilitation to minimise final
closure costs. This will also help address the shortfall between immediate and
final ciosure costs. A further challenge will be to assess rehabilitation cost from
pre-feasibility phase through the life of mine to closure as comprehensively and
accurately as possible, During 2007, physical rehabilitation at mines in closure
went according to plan. -

In the past year the group has successfully integrated its systems and established
an Exxaro rehabilitation trust fund to conselidate the previous Kumba and Eyesizwe
funds. In addition, the Eskom captive mines (Matla and Arnot) were aligned

with the group approach to rehabilitation provisions. To execute environmental
protection and restoration programmes effectively where envirgnmentat impact was
inevitable given the nature of our business, we have contributed R284 million for
rehabilitation of operations at the end of life. Our continual interventions in respect
of environmental impacts are provided from operational costs which effectively
reduce our operational ctosure liabilities over time. The resourced environmental
management expertise established prior to unbundling has also started to show
improvement in our compliance and environmental cost minimisation across our
value chain.

Case study

Mine rehabilitation: closure of adits at Hlobane mine

Mining adits (horizontal access or drainage passages) must be left in a safe

condition and in compliance with legisiative requirements. Potential hazards

associated with adits include subsidence, illegal access, fires, gas emissions,
pollution of surface or ground water and injury to humans and animals.

The main actions taken in Exxaro before adits can be closed include:

* Addressing water decanting from the adit, if any. MHydrological, geo-
hydrolagical and geochemical models are used to predict the quality and
guantity of water.

« All disused equipment and infrastructure are removed.

» Waste material containing hazardous substances is disposed of in an
approved manner at authorised waste disposal facilities.

 Sealing is done against an accurate plan drawn up in consultation with civil
engineers.

Successful sealing of adits at Hiobane mine

BEFORE

AFTER
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued

The Manketti Game Reserve next {o
Grootegeluk mine
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Land management

Kevy risks

Land management ensures mitigation or prevention of various business-related

risks including:

* Safety risks relating to physical mining legacies on previously mined areas,
ie inactive sites

* Environmental risk assessments of all inactive sites

+ Settlement of disputes arising from illegal occupation of land, invasion
prohibition

* Participating in government land claims involving Exxaro properties

* Applying best practices in reducing land holding cost to Exxaro

* Contract management and leases on Exxarg's non-mining properties

+ [nvolvement in social responsibility projects and adherence to government's
objectives on social upliftment, weaith, land and mineral rights distribution.

Land management, as an integral part of the SHE portfolio, is primarily involved

with managing land under Exxaro's controf. Qur approach is ‘cradle to grave’

management, encompassing acquisition, exploitation, rehabilitation and disposal

of land. Land management also forms part of the integrated SHE services offered

to business units inciuding expertise, advice, monitoring all data and specialist

environmental studies. The land management team performs a specialist service

for Exxaro in areas including:

* Advice on land-use options

= Land management {including conservation of land, natural resources and
ecotourism)

* Land disposal and land reform advice

» Active participation in ongoing management of and advice throughout the life,
cycle of the mine

* Risk mitigation - including land claims, settiement disputes and coordination of
safety risks, response measures associated with land under management.

An example of Exxaro's successful approach and responsible custodianship in
managing land includes the endangered black rhino and rare cheetah in the
conservation project at Manketti Game Reserve adjacent to Grootegeluk mine.

The planned introduction of elephant into Manketti in 2008, and the synergy with
the mine and local community, will transform this project into a conservation icon
and position Exxaro as the teader among respansible green mining companies.

ISO/OHSAS CERTIFICATION

_ Nine of the group's-12 operations have achieved both the international health and.

safety certification (OHSAS 18001) and environmental certification {ISQ 14001). Our
business units are also starting the process of converting from OHSAS 180011999
to OHSAS: 18001:2007. The group aims to have all business units fully compliant to
both standards by December 2008.




Environmental incidents: 2007

To measure our continuous improvement, guidelines are in place for all
business operations to report on relevant air quality, water quality and water
use performance indices. Reporting is through an electronic environmental
management system and, from captured data, trend anatyses can be conducted
for each business operation to determine compliance, among others, and to
investigate any complaints that might have been received.

Capturing and sharing lessons learned after completing a project is an important
part of process improvement. Incident reporting is mandatory at all our operations
and this is an indicator that our systems are fully functional.

A total of 941 environmental incidents were reported for the year, mostly minor to
moderate. Three significant or level 1 environmental incidents were reported: two
of these at North Block Complex (burning discard dump and slurry spillage, both at
Strathrae) while the third was a dieset spill at Leeuwpan, which was addressed by

" an external service provider. The incidents at North Block Complex were addressed

by mine personnel.

ENVIRONMENTAL INCIDENTS

Business unit Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Coal 3 4 606
Arnot 0 2 42
Grootegeluk 0 0 378
Leeuwpan 1 0 106
Matla 0 0 72
New Clydesdale 0 2 2
North Block Complex 2 0 c
Tshikondeni 0 0 B8
Base metals and
industrial minerals ¢ 3 185
" Glen Douglas -0 0 49
Rosh Finah 0 0 5
Zincor 0 3 131
Mineral sands 0 g 132
KZN Sands 0 9 132
Total 3 16 923

At one business unit the ground water quality does not comply with legislated
limits. This has been included as a reportabie incident and the relevant authorities
notified.

Rehabilitation at Leeuwpan mine, Mpumalanga
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued

ELECTRICITY, DIESEL, GAS CONSUMPTION AND WATER USE PER BUSINESS UNIT: 2007

]

Electricity Diesel Sasol gas Petrol
Business unit {Gj) (G]) (Gj) used (Gj)
Coal 1816119 1380903 o 13421
Arnot 202 432 113 892 0 3125
Grootegeluk 903 294 644 958 0 0
Leeuwpan 74 581 346 331 0 0
Matla 477 612 48 646 o} 7707
New Clydesdale 33133 103137 0 4]
North Block Complex 2820 88 315 0 0
Tshikondeni 122 247 35624 0 2 589
Base metals and industrial minerals 1852 900 145703 o 584
Glen Douglas 45 367 63 704 0 584
Rosh Pinah 146 126 51948 0 0
Zincor 1661 407 3C 051 ¢ 0
Mineral sands 1983715 72944 320 593 0
KZN Sands 1983715 72944 320 593 0
Total 5652 733 1599 549 320593 14 005

*Total energy figures comprise electricity, diesel, petroi and Sasof gas.

The potable water figures reported by sites are based on invoiced amounts from suppliers. Certain sites are
only measuring potable water consumption as a result of a lack of systems to collate water abstracted from
underground sources. We are currently looking at how to improve our systems and controls to ensure complete

and accurate collation of total water consumption data.

Reported CO, emissions reflect burning fossil fuels and electricity consumption. CO, emissions from processes

{spontanecus combustion, flaring, etc) are not currently reported as methodologies are currently being déveloped
and reviewed for the relevant operations.

CO, from electricity

CQO, from diesel

purchased (tonnes) ({tonnes}
Business unit MWh Tonnes Litres Tonnes
Coal 504 477 483289 38011 351 102 251
Arnot 56 231 53 869 3135033 8439
Grootegeiuk 250915 240 377 17 753 403 47 791
Leeuwpan 20717 19 847 9533273 25663
Matla 132 670 127 098 1339 061 3605
New Clydesdale 9204 8817 2 838 988 7642
North Block Complex 783 750 2430988 6 544
Tshikondeni 33 958 32 531 980 605 2 840
" Base metals and industrial minerals 514 694 493077 3909 448 10 524
Glen Douglas 12 602 12073 1753548 4720
Resh Pinah 40590 38 886 1429 932 3849
Zincor 461 502 442119 827 196 2227
Mineral sands 551 032 527 888 "2 048 348 5514
KZN Sands 551 032 527 888 2 007 885 5405
Total 1570 204 1504 255 43 969 148 118 363
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Total energy Water Product Energy Electricity Diesel Water
use (Gj) (m?) (kt) per tonne per tonne per tonne per tonne
3210442 7746713 40 534 259 0,08 0,04 0,03 0,19
319 448 894 620 - 3 704 009 0.09 0,05 0,03 024
1548 252 2980746 18 581 323 c.08 0.05 0,03 0,18
420913 516 904 2 358 998 0,18 0,03 0,15 0,22
533 965 1392 780 12 180 446 0,04 0,04 0,00 0,11
136 270 265170 g70 549 0,14 0,03 0,11 0,27
91134 151 450 2282 687 0,04 0,00 0,04 0,07
160 460 1565 042 476 247 0,34 0,26 0,07 3,29
1999 187 3844 548 1 664 507 1,20 1,11 0,09 2,3
109 655 881 682 1414924 0,08 0.03 0,05 0,62
198 073 1406 279 149392 1,33 0,98 0,35 9,43
1691 458 1566 587 100 191 16,88 16,58 0,30 15,54
2377 251 10 307 560 634 273 3,47 2,90 0,11 15,06
2377 251 10 307 560 684 273 3,47 2,90 G,11 15,06
7 252 283 21 898 820 42 883 039 0,17 , 0,13 0,04 0,51
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ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

ECONOMIC VALUE GENERATED AND DISTRIBUTED

Component Comment 2007
Direct economic value

generated l

* Revenues Gross value of goods and R10,16 hiltion

services invoiced and (page 174)
excludes VAT

Economic value

distributed
* Operating costs Total operating expenses R8,71 billion
(page 174)
* Employee wages and Total staff costs R211 billion
benefits (page 195)
= Payments to providers Interest expense and foan R153 million .
of capital costs ’ (page 198}
* Payments to " Gross taxes Note 7 on page 200
government (by
country)
= Community Voluntary contributions and  Page 128
investments investment of funds in the
broader community {includes
donation‘s)
Economic value Value-added statement Page 150

retained (calculated
as economic value
generated less economic

value distributed)

Retirement plans

All permanent employees must belong to a retirement fund. All recognised funds
are registered with the Pension Funds Board, and are adequately funded as per the
tatest actuarial vatuations on 31 December 2006 available from the funds. Exxaro
emptoyees anly belong to defined contribution funds.

Medical aid membership is voluntary for employees from the former Kumba
Resources (except at Zincor, Rosh Pinah and KZN Sands where membership is
compulsory). For former Eyesizwe employees, membership is compulsory. At
31 December 2007, Exxaro had 7 183 employees who were members of medical
aids with stipulated employer subsidies, representing R57.6 million.

In addition to the challenge of consolidating retirement funding and medical aid
benefits, and some legacy liabilities, Exxaro faces a ¢challenge shared by corporate
South Africa in pending legislative amendments that aim to make membership of a

_national basic retirement fund and medical aid compulsory. We are awaiting draft

legislation, scheduled for mid 2009, to prepare an appropriate plan of action.



Market presence

Approximatety 80% of all employees’ remuneration is based on collective
agreements with trade unions that determine minimum wages for each grade. The
remaining remuneratien is based on performance and market competitiveness.

Minimum conditions of employment in Exxaro exceed the reguirements of the
Basic Conditions of Employment Act. Less than 196 of employees are governed

by sectoral determinations issued by the Department of Labour aimed at

security, farm and forestry workers. Those employed by Exxaro are remunerated
substantially above minimum requirements. Wage agreements for bargaining unit
employees are in place at all employers within the group, while non-bargaining unit
employees’ remuneration is based on performance. Total remuneration levels are
benchmarked twice a year. '

Preferential procurement practices

In reporting expenditure with historically disadvantaged South African (HDSA)
suppliers, Exxara follows the narrow-based standard for mining houses due to

a statutory anomaly that will hopefully be short-lived. Currently, suppliers have
to be rated according to two sets of legislation (the codes of good practice from
the Department of Trade and Industry, and the stipulations of the Department of
Minerals and Energy). The biggest challenge, however, is rating agency capacity
and the availability of SANAS-verified rating agencies. Ideally, in time, rating PROCUREMENT TARGETS
agencies will be compliant with HDSA tegistation, use uniform rating standards,
and report their findings in a common and acceptable manner.

60 -
Exxaro nevertheless has approved policies and practices for spending with locaily
based suppliers at all significant locations. We also encourage our suppliers to
transform their operations and comply with new empowerment legislation. In 2007, we - T —‘
met our target for discretionary spending with HDSA suppliers of 35%, representing 11

R1,97 billion with HDSA-owned, -empowerment and -influenced companies.

50 -

30 -

Percentage

In categaries where no HDSA companies are found, Exxaro engages with

existing suppliers to transform. The intended HDSA status is thus contracted and
manitored for progress to ensure total compliance and the presence of HDSAs in 10 -
ali procurement categories.

20 -

0- - L - L 1|
Despite the industry-wide challenge of accurately tracking spending on supptiers 5812|8215
. <
by category, as required by the mining charter, annual targets are shown here, and SRR~ 8
reporting is in line with the requirements of the charter.
. o Target

Significant indirect economic impacts
In attempting to quantify the significant indirect economic impact of our activities,
we have concentrated an optimal use of resources and continuous exploration.

To ensure the aptimal use of resources available to Exxaro, a forum of all role
players was established towards the end of the review period. This forum is
mandated to formalise and embed mineral resource management policy across
the group. Examples of the practical application of the concept include Rosh Pinah,
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued

where the low-grade orebody has been remodelled and evaluated ahead of a feasibility study on its economics

" and mineability. This could, if proved viable, extend Rosh Pinah's life of mine significantly, Equally, at North Block
Complex, the previously discarded number 3 and 4 seams are now being mined, Apart from using resources more
efficiently and economically, both initiatives secure jobs in support of regional economic stability.

Continuous exploraticn is the lifeblood of any mining group. Exxare presently has 29 granted prospecting rights
in South Africa and a prospecting joint venture in Moranbah, Australia with Anglo Coal (page 63). During the year,
exploration activities confirmed substantially larger coal reserves at Eerstelingsfontein (Mpumalanga) and a large
resource of mineral sands at Port Durnford (KwaZulu-Natal), white drilliig increased the inyanda coal mineral
resource by 20% during the commissioning of the mine. Social impact assessments were completed for both Port
Durnford and Inyanda. Exxaro also has an option to participate in a joint venture with GVM Metals to explore coal
resources in the Soutpansberg area (Limpopo).

Although many of Exxaro’s operations are in remote locations, wheré the local economic contribution and
development impact is particularty significant to stakeholders, the specialised nature of these operations makes

it difficult to channel 100% of our expenditure to local suppliers. Across the group, the percentage spent with
local companies is 30%. Each mine's materials management department works closely with the local economic
development department to identify local suppliers that can be used immediately to supply goods and services.
Where entrepreneurial spirit and talent are identified, these departments collaborate to develop these individuals
into sustainable suppliers. Examples of these initiatives include furniture manufacturing, needlework, manufacture
of cleaning chemicals, civil construction, supply of mining spares and consumables.

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

Socio-ecenomic development

In Exxaro, socio-economic development is both a key responsibility towards our host communities, and a strategically sound
business imperative. We believe the most sustainable resulis in creating economically, socially and environmentally viable
local communities come from a three-way partnership between government, business and the communities themselves.

Acknowledging that community development is not our core competence, we have developed a systematic approach that
. defines real needs at community and government levels, and then harnesses the apprapriate skills to ensure success:

* Develop a stakeholder engagement and management pian {AA1DDOSES).

+ Understand key government objectives for growth and development.

« Study growth and development strategy of provincial government.

* Participate in local economic development structures and forums to fermulate a joint approach.

+ Focus on capacity buitding and knowledge transfer,

Our approach is matched by clear delivery principles and standards on projects which must:
* Meet real needs
* Be sustainable .
» Be aligned to government initiatives st local, district, provincial and national levels
+ Seek partnerships as far as possible :
- participation in existing local authority structures in each focus area
- co-funders for large projects
* Make measurable impact
+ Obtain stakeholder input in selection and prioritisation.

This report highlights several case studies of our approach in action, starting on page 128.
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Our people

Building on the leading practices entrenched by our predecessors, our focus remains on exceeding compliance
targets in South Africa and reducing the shortage of skills in our industry by training and development to
maximise individual potential. Other priorities include aligning all pecple processes and building a high-
perfarmance culture and sound relations with our growing workfarce.

Exxaro's current staff complement is 8 688, which will rise to over 9 643 after the acquisition of Namakwa Sands.
Our fuli-time workforce is split between South Africa (93,5%), Namibia (6,5%), Australia {0,1%) and China (0,04%).

Our employment equity reports presented to the Department of Labour in October 2007 reftect the
following levels of representation per occupational level by designated groups (historically disadvantaged
South Africans or HDSAs - blacks, coloureds, Indians and white females as per mining charter definition):

, Designated Non-designated
Foreign

Male Female Male nationals
Occupational levels Cc | A Cc | w W Male Female| Total
Top management 4 0 1 1 o] 0 1 15 o] 0 22
Senior management 1 4 ) 2 2 1 20 66 . 1 0O 213
Professional, specialists 137 & 25 3 3 14 85 415 - 1 0 77
and middle management
Skilted technical, 900 22 A4 126 20 25 335 1272 . 8 0 2749
academically qualified and
junior management
Semi-skilled staff 3035 4 26 143 8 8 71 152 96 0| 3543
Unskilled staff 1412 2 3 130 g 4] 5 34 19 0| 1605
Total permanent employees| 5 499 38 102 433 33 48 517| 2054 125 0| 8849
Non-permanent employees 380 2 4 83 1 1 16 66 1 0 555
Grand total 5879 40 106 516 34 49 533| 2120 126 0| 9404

+This table reflects South African operations only as at 31 August 2007, as reported to the Department of Labour
A African  C Coloured | Indian W White

This infarmation is summarised below for ease of reference. : '

2007 2006

HDSA overall ' 75% T2%

HDSA in management categories 36% 35%

- women 14% 22%

HDSA senior management 23% 42%

HDSA middie management 42% 28%

HDSA first-line management 29% 60%
HDSA board '

* Women overall 12% 1%
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An integral part of our empowerment transaction was broadening our
shareholder base to include employees. Through the innovative MPOWER
share incentive plan, Exxaro employees own 3% of the group. This transfers
meaningful value, aligns our interests and gives us a crucial tool to attract and
retain critical skills. In November 2006, 7 531 employees became shareholders
in a transaction valued at over R583 million. In October 2007, these
shareholders received maiden dividends of R3 185 692 or 30 cents per share
while a further S0 cents per share will be received in March 2008.

Exxaro has two main categories of employees: employees in bargaining units,
and the management and specialist category.

' Management and

Region Bargaining unit  specialist category Total
Gauteng 1254 698 1952
KwaZulu-Natal 477 ia2 619
Limpopo 2155 35t 2506
Mpumalanga 2672 382 3054
Namibia 454 103 © 557
Total 7012 1676 8 688

Our challenge remains in finding suitable skills to staff new projects. Accordingly,
we have an ongoing retention pregramme to maintain scarce skills that accounts
for 5% of total payroll.

Between 1 December 2006 and 31 October 2007, Exxaro had an average turnover
rate of 7%. The main reasons for terminations were death, resignations, dismissals
and disabilities. The turnover rate by employee group is shown below.

%

terminations
Employment equity - Dec 06 - Number of Current
occupational levels Oct O7 terminations workforce
Top management 14% ' 1 7
Senior management 5% 12 233

Professionally qualified and
experienced specialists and middle
management 1% 73 690

Skilled technical and academically
qualified workers, junior
management, supervisors, foremen,

and superintendents 13% 342 2 698
Semi-skilled and discretionary
decision making 3% 124 3665
Unskiiled and defined decision
making 4% 46 . 1284

The artisan and engineering occupation categories are identified as scarce and
critical to retain for the organisation. The turnover percentage is an alarming 18%
for artisans and more aggressive retention strategies are being developed for
these categories. i




Employee benefits

Full-time employees receive a range of benefits, including:
. retirement fund membership subsidised by the employer
+ medical aid membership subsidised by the employer

-« housing allowance/company accommodation

+ guaranteed annual bonuses/13th cheque for bargaining-unit employees

travel allowances

annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave, family responsibility leave, on-target
bonuses, share appreciation rights schemes, various circumstantial allowances
for shift work, continuous operations, standby and call outs, etc as well as
payment for overtime worked. *

Independent defined contribution funds provide retirement and other benefits for
all permanent employees. The employer contribution to retirement funds within
the group ranges from 10,0% to 14,5% of employee pensionable earnings, and is
expensed as it is incurred. All retirement funds are governed by the South African
Pension Funds Act {1956). Exxaro has no members on defined benefit plans,

Exxaro's approach to housing is focused on home ownership. To comply with the
mining charter and business needs, a new long-term housing strategy is being
developed.

\ Number of
Description employees %
Home owners (bought company property) 1277 14,7
Rental units 936 10,8
Hostels and single quarters 1630 18,7
QOther 4 845 55,8
Total 8 688 1000

Exxaro provides meals at two operations. The quality and nutritional value of these
meatls are determined by a dietician and is contractually regulated, and continually
monitored by qualified staff, Mechanisms are in place for employees to engage
with both management and suppliers on food issues.

Labour relations

Exxaro's corporate values were developed with employees, These values are aimed
at building and maintaining a high-performance culture which promotes teamwork,
commitment, creative thinking and open and honest corr_lmunication.

Exxaro respects the constitutional and legislative rights of all employees. Our
approach uses the principles of constructive engagement of all stakehalders in
dealing with matters about the employment relationship. The group recognises
several trade unions and each relationship is governed by respective collective
agreements which include minimum notice periods for significant operational
changes.

HOME OWNERSHIP

14,1%

10,8%

18.7%

m Home owners {bought
company property)

= Rental units
m Hostels and single quarters
» Other
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued

At Matla mine, Mpumalanga.

Exxaro's policy Is to invest at least 6% of _
total payroll each year on human resource
development, The average in the mining
industry is 3,4%.
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Approximately 60% of the Exxaro group's employees are unionised, predominantly
through the National Union of Mineworkers {NUM, 44%) and Solidarity (10%). Other
recognised unions are United Association of South Africa (UASA), National Union of
Metalworkers in South Africa (NUMSA), and Mineworkers Union of Namibia (MUN).
In all these unibns. employees have the right to elect shop stewards of their choice.

Relationships between the various employers in the Exxaro group and recognised
unions were sound during the year, as reflected by the virtual fack of industrial
action during 2007 despite substantive wage negotiations, Negotiations for
improving wages and conditions of employment are conducted in-house and through
the Chamber of Mines. A disputed dismissal resulted in a 10-day stoppage at Rosh
Pinah. The dismissal was upheld by Rosh Pinah.

Exxaro has a disciplinary’code that is used when necessary. This code is based on
the principle of fairness as required by tabour law, and supervisors have the skill to
implement the code.

Employee wellness
Employee assistance programmes conducted by external service providers are
available to employees and their dependants at all commaodity business units.

These programimes have been particularly successful in supplying a fast and
efficient response to employees experiencing trauma through both work-related
and community-based events.

Training and education

In 2007 alone, it is estimated that Exxaro trained more than 10% of all South
Africa’s artisans and more than 24% of artisans in the mining industry. Exxaro’s
policy is to invest at least 6% of totat payroll each year on human resource
development. In 2007, this was 6,5% (excluding the 19 skills levy) or an investment
of R100 million. The average in the mining industry is 3,4%.

Exxaro's human resources development professionals also contribute significantly
to the national and sectoral skills development process through membership and
participation in bedies such as Business Unity South Africa, Chamber of Mines'
committee for education and training, Mining Qualifications Authority (MQA)
sector skills planning committee and standards generating bodies of the MQA.



BENEFICIARIES OF TRAINING

Average

. number of

Total (% of hours per

staff in beneficiary

Job category category)* per annum

Legislators, senior officials and managers 69 44
Profassionals 70 45

Technicians and associated professionals 68 . 44

Clerks and administrative workers 62 30

Sarvice and sales workers 78 25
Craft and related trade workers 82 33

Plant and machine operators 60 19

Labourers and elementary occupations 60 14

Average across beneficiaries 66% 27 hours

*excludes induction and annual competence updale training.

Literacy and numeracy

In South Africa, adult basic education and training (ABET) is a cornerstone of
empowerment. Supporting its formal ABET pelicy to give all employees the
opportunity to become functionally literate, Exxaro has accredited ABET training
centres at Grootegeluk and Tshikondeni in Limpopo, and Matla and Arnot in
Mpumalanga. Annual training reports and workplace skills plems submitted and
approved by the MQA contain details on candidates completing various ABET
levels and short- and medium-term targets.

All potential candidates are assessed, counselled and encouraged to enroll for
ABET. An incentive scheme was introduced to reward candidates who successfully
completed an ABET level.

Our predecessor, Kumba Resources, achieved the national target of 70% of
employees with qualifications of NQF level 1 and above in September 2006. This
has decreased to 66% due to the unbundting of Kumba Iron Ore, merger with
Eyesizwe and taking over contractors at Leeuwpan and KZN Sands. In addition:
« More than 1000 employees have passed one or more ABET levels since its
inception. .-
* In 2007, 128 employees completed various ABET levels successfully
(13 passed level 4, 17 level 3, 43 level 2, 38 tevel 1 and 17 pre-ABET). Another
128 non-employees or members of the community passed various ABET levels
successfully.
» Grootegeluk achieved the national target of 70% of employees with
qualifications of NQF leve! 1 or higher.

Our challenge remains to motivate all ABET candidates to enroil, Accordingly,
ABET opportunities are continualty marketed to our pecple.

+ More than 1 000 employees have

passed one or more ABET levels since
its inception.

"+ In 2007, 128 employees completed

various ABET levels successfully

(13 passed level 4,17 level 3, 43 level 2,
38 level 1 and 17 pre-ABET). Another
128 non-employees or members of the
commuqity passed various ABET levels
successfully.

« Grootegeluk achieved the national

target of 70% of employees with
gualifications of NQF level 1 or higher.
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued

LEARNERSHIP AND SKILLS
DEVELCPMENT PROGRAMMES

4%
5.5%

10,5%

B0%

= Engineering learnerships
Plant skills development
Mining learnerships
Other
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Career development

Exxaro’s strateqy is to ensure that 80% of all new appoint-ments are made
internally. This requires a well-integrated process that is carefully aligned with
the group's strategy and industry needs to provide a steady stream of qualified
talent to tackle our growth and expansion projects. In 2006 and 2007, there were
some 140 trainees involved in proqrar-nmes supporting internal advancement and
ensuring that trainees entering the company are empowered, challenged and
appropriately rewarded:;

* Exxaro People Development Initiative: the Exxaro Foundation sponsors

24 previously disadvantaged students each year for a 12-month bridging course
at the University of Pretoria, Candidates must be grade 12 students from Exxaro
mining communities who want to study for a mining-related degree or diploma.
On completion of these studies, candidates may be considered for an Exxaro
bursary.

Bursary programme: Exxaro grants some 30 bursaries each year to school
leavers with a keen interest in mining-related disciplines such as engineering,
geology and mine surveying. Graduates are generally offered employment at
Exxaro, depending on the current need in that field, mostly through the group's
" formal three-year professionals-in-training programme. There are currently

79 bursars studying at South African institutions at a cost of RS million:
two-thirds are historically disadvantaged South Africans and 16% are women.
Professionals-in-training proq}ammé: the three-year programme bridges the
gap between academic theory and the work environment. Each professional-
in-training has a mentor who supervises exposure to the various commodities,
leadership and management training, and formal training from professional
bodies. In 2007, there were 48 professionals in training throughout Exxara in

a R17-million programme: 77% are from designated groups and almost half of
those are women.

Exxaro has 500 learners in various learnerships and skills development
programmes. Of these, over 400 are in engineering learnerships, 28 in mining
learnerships and 53 in plant skills development programmes. Exxaro alone
accounts for 30% of all engineering learnerships registered with MOA.

Over 77% of Exxaro's engineering learners are HDSAs and all these learners will
qualify with full artisan status in trades such as electrician, fitter and turner, plater/
welder/boilermaker, diesel mechanic and millwright. Artisans are considered scarce
and critical skills in South Africa and all these trades appear on the JIPSA (Joint
Initiative for Priority Skills Acquisition} scarce skills list.

As part of its social and labour plans, Exxaro has included a five-year engineering
learnership plan for 2007 to 2011. This R&6-million plan leading to full artisan status
provides for training 1 415 engineering tearners in varigus trades over the next five
years: 74% of these learners will be HDSAs while 81% will be male and 19% female.

To retain technical and engineering skills, a-retention strategy has been introeduced
for technical categories, in addition to our aggressive succession planning strateqgy.
Scarce and critical skills are captured in workplace skills plans submitted to and

approved by MQA, In addition, as part of monitoring our artisan-retention strategy,




the ratio of learnerships in the pipeline to the number of artisans employed in the
various trades is reported monthly to the executive committee.

Training to assist employees in managing career endings is part of the social and
labour plan for each mine, submitted to and monitored by the Department of
Minerals and Energy for renewal of individual mining licences.

All employees in the package category (non-bargaining unit employees) receive
formal performance and career development reviews bi-annually. All management
members, from first-line upwards, are assessed throughout the year and this
forms the basis for the individual succession programmes and talent management.
These assessments are also linked to reward and remuneration.

Although employees in the bargaining unit are not part of Exxaro's formal
performance management system, their development is driven by individual
development plans derived from an employee’s job profile, formal career plan and
individual preference.

The performance management process is entrenched in the culture of Exxaro. All new
package-category employees receive formal training on the perfermance management
process and system to reinforce the concept that reward is driven by perfermance.
Perfoermance management is also included in a web-based induction programme.

All training and development is based on a thorough needs analysis, taking
cognisance of business strateqy, identified skills deficiencies via the performance

management process, succession planning requirements, employee career pathing,

and the relevant employment equity plans.

Personal development emphasises the co-responsibility of employees to

manage their career growth. Accordingly, Exxaro provides financial assistance to
permanent employees with potential to further their education through part-time
studies of certain recognised, approved courses and programmes. Employees who
are nominated by the company to attend selected courses or programmes are fully
sponsored by Exxaro for tuition, examinations, travel, accommodation costs and
study leave.

Specific strategies to ensure the accelerated learning and development of black
people, women and people with disabilities include:

+ fast-tracking employees with {eadership and management potentiat

+ accelerated development for occupationally based skills

- adult basic education

« life skills programmes -

« learnerships.

Exxaro offers sponsored, voluntary adult basic education and training (ABET)
programmes at all commodity businesses, except where employees are fully
literate, Candidates are screened and counselled to ensure they are able to
make informed decisions, and an incentive scheme is in place to encourage
more employees to become functionally literate and numerate. More than
1000 employees have passed one or more ABET levels since its inception.

Operations at Grootegeluk mine, Limpsps.

All training and development is based on a
thorough needs analysis, taking cognisance of
business strategy, dentified skills deflclencies
via the performance management process,
succession planning reguirements, employee
career pathing, and the relevant employment
equity plans '

W
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued

In-pit operations at New Clydesdale mine,
Mpumalanga. A detailed soclal and fabour-plan
is developed for each operation
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Diversity and equal opportunity
Exxaro believes that achieving world-class standards and qglobal competitiveness
will require that the potential of every individual is developed and used.

Accordingly, the group has initiated a process of social transformation to remove
any barriers to the employment and advancement of all South Africans and to
accelerate the training and promotion of designated groups. By implementing
strategic employment equity programmes, Exxaro is creating an organisational
culture in which diversity is encouraged and valued, while focusing on shared
values to develop team spirit, promote mutual understanding, optimise potential
and achieve organisational goals in serving the community.

Since collective agreements determine specific guaranteed minimum salaries,
there is no discrimination between the salaries of men and women. In the
rmanagement and specialist category, all employees are on performance contracts
and individual salaries are based on performance.

MALE/FEMALE EMPLOYEES PER CATEGORY AND REGION

Bargaining Man and
unit Spec Category
Region Male Female Male Female Total
Gauteng 1062 192 517 181 1952
KZN 422 55 126 16 619
Limpopo 2010 145 311 - 40 2 506
Mpumalanga 2374 298 357 26 3054
Namibia 418 36 70 33 557
Total 6 286 726 1381 295 8 688

Human rights

As a responsible corporate citizen, Exxaro complies with all labour legislation in
South Africa and with International Labour Organisation guidelines. Accordingly,
the group encourages freedom of association and collective bargaining, ensures -
that child labour is not tolerated and that forced or compulsory labour is not
practised.

Induction programmes ensure employees are educated about human rights.
Policies on discrimination, harassment and racism are in place, as are structures to
protect employees’ human rights in the workplace.

Society

South African legislation and Exxaro policy stipulate that a social impact
assessment be conducted before starting an operation. On the basis of identified
issues, a detailed social and labour plan is developed for each operation and
submitted to the authorities. Each operation also reports on progress with its
stakeholder engagement plan. Commitments in terms of socia! and {abour plans
and environmental management plans form the backbaone of our programmes and
practices to manage the impact on our communities during entering, running and
exiting any operation.



For example, at the new Inyanda mine in Mpumalanga, and in line with the social
impact assessment completed ahead of commissioning, a new Eskom power line
from its substation to the mine will also supply electricity to the nearby low-

cost housing devetopment of Klarinet, Inyanda is also funding the design and
development of a sports facility in Klarinet.

In the Glen Douglas operating area of Henley-on-Klip, a new community liaison
forum has been established with the Henley Conservancy to address stakeholder
concerns including noise, dust and effects from blasting.

The symbiotic relationship between Exxaro and its communities is a dynamic one,
where constant change dictates an ongoing review of the underlying policies and
processes governing this relationship. '

During 2006 and 2007, we initiated comprehensive socio-economic assessments
across our commodity businesses. Seven of these studies were completed
during the review period, Their aim was firstly to analyse the nature, scope and
effectiveness of programmes and practices that assess and manage the impact
of our operations on communities, inciuding the degree of integration with lacal
economic development plans and interaction with other agencies. Secondly, the
Istudies highlighted key issues raised by internal and external stakeholders and
detailed management responses at each commodity business.

At Grootegeluk, for example, stakeholders were generally positive about the mine

_ and its impact as a corporate citizen. During the frequent public participation

processes, Hiflendale mine and its stakeholders identified and prioritised issues,
and together developed mitigation plans to the satisfaction of all communities.

At KZN Sands, resuits were positive overall, while management is also addressing a
broader set of issues with stakeholders.

With the formation of the new campany, Exxaro took the decision to adept the
previous practice of having a foundation or trust fund dedicated towards the social
and economic uptiftment of its communities. As a result, the Exxaro Chairman's Fund
and the Exxaro Foundation were created. Both funds are registered with the Scuth

" African Revenue Service as charitable institutions. Whilst the Exxaro Chairman's

Fund is specifically geared towards supporting those institutions that have section
18A status, the Exxaro Foundation supports all other charitable activities.

Both these institutions have independent trustees (including trustees not part
of Exxaro) who ensure that a uniform appreach is used in support of all socio-
economic development initiatives. A policy document that clarifies its objectives
and the criteria it uses for awarding funds ensures that sustainability forms the
cornerstone of its activities.

With the formation of the new company,
Exxaro took the decision to adopt the
previous practice of having a foundation
or trust fund dedicated towards the
social and economic upliftment of its
communities. As a result, the Exxaro
Chairman's Fund and the Exxaro
Foundation were created. Both funds are
registered with the South African Revenue
Service as charitable institutions. Whilst
the Exxaro Chairman's Fund is specificaliy
geared towards _suppor@ing those
institutions that have section 18A status,
the Exxaro Foundation supports all other
charitable activities.
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued

2007 DONATIONS;
ACTUAL PER FOCUS AREA

7%

7%

50%

a Discretionary (BUs)
= Education
Health and welfare
Enterprise

LED PROJECTS ACTUAL:
INVESTMENT PER FOCUS AREA 2007

® Health and welfare

® |nfrastructure development
®» Environmental stewardship
_® Sport and recreation

:: Enterprise development

a Formal education

LED PROJECTS FORECAST:
INVESTMENT PER FOCUS AREA 2008

® Health and welfare

& Infrastructure
'm Enterprise development

= Formal education

+ Environmental stewardship

Skills development and
capacity buitding

=]
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Case study

Education

* 5000 learners, 175 teachers and support staff

* Ten principals and deputy-principals, 28 heads of departments
* 40 members of school governing bodies

These are the beneficiaries of just one schoel project that Exxarc has pioneered
in the Kwa Thema/Springs district of Gauteng. Exxaro is both a core funder of
the project and has helped to develop a highly successful partnership model
that could form the basis of many similar initiatives in future.

In 2005, our group became involved with the Department of Education’s EQUIP
pragramme {Education Quality improvement Partnerships} to support four primary
schools and one high school near its operations on the East Rand.

Exxaro elevated the project to a new level by inviting Implats to participate in the
first funding partnership since the conceptualisation of EQUIP in 1995,

Although the programme has only been operating in Kwa Thema for two years,
results are most encouraging:

* Specialised school management software has been installed at each school,
and training provided in both administratien and basic computer skills,
Maths and science educators are studying for advanced certificates in education
at Wits University, while departmental heads are studying towards the middle
management course at Matthew Goniwe School of Leadership and Governance.
The Junior Achievement South Africa mini-enterprise programme was
successfully completed at Tlakula Secondary School.

Plans are in place to support the national and provincial post-strike recovery
programme (the result of a protracted civil servant strike in mid-2007, which
included teachers), and study skills workshops are under way.

Local economic development
In addressing the specific needs of Exxaro's communities, we work closely with

local government to ensure our plans are integrated for maximum positive impact,

Regular and in-depth engagement with stakeholders has refined our focus areas
to:

formal education

skills development

enterprise development, including small-scale mining
health and weifare

environment

infrastructure

agriculture

tourism’

sport and recreation.



Exxaro is atso concentrating on maximising the percentage of jobs available to
people from local communities. At December 2007, this ranged from 95% at
KZN Sands and Tshikondeni to over 50% at New Clydesdale.

Case study
Building small business at Rosh Pinah

As a major employer in the Karas region of southern Namibia, Rosh Pinah
Zinc Corporation is actively involved in the economic empowerment of local
communities. The region is faced with high levels of unemployment, school
drop-outs, HIV/Aids and very little development.

To help local unemployed people become setf-supporting, Rosh Pinah supplies
the infrastructure for potential entrepreneurs to market or manufacture their
products using the Exxaro SME Centre,

The centre provides basic skills training in manufacturing (brick-making, brick-
laying, woodwork, metalwork, welding, tailoring, needlework), poultry farming
and cleaning services. Other courses cover low-cost housing construction and
adult literacy.

Although established grievance mechanisms are in place at all Exxaro operations,
regular interaction with community members ensures management is able to deal
with most potential issues proactively.

Exxara has a formal policy on resettlement, which is clésely aligned with the World

Bank directive on involuntary resettlement. During the year, resettlements took
place at Rosh Pinah in Namibia and Arnot in Mpumalanga (pages 130 and 131),

Other projects within the Group include:

* Ezingeni Hydroponics Project

« Madoda Community Life Skills Development Centre
« Siyavuka integrated Youth Farming

* Somopho Community Creche

Careers in Mining Week

Erection of Community Centre in Marapong
Manketi Biosphere Awareness Project

Early Childhood Development

New Hospice Centre

Lepharo Base Metals Incubator project
Blesbokspruit Conservation Trust
Siyabonga Africa Baking project

Sanari Skills Development Centre

.

In 2008, LED projects valued at R25 million have been approved. Most of
these projects are focused on infrastructure development (building of houses,
roads, pravision of electricity and water for rural communities, whole schoo!
development and health and welfare).

Y

A brick-making business at Rosh Pinah Is an
example of how the mine is actively involved
in the economic empowerment of local
communities
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managing risk, issues and opportunities continued

The technology behind the renewable
energy pilot project at Tutungeni has
received enormous interest, given its low
environmental impact and use of waste
products from zine mining. Seven fuel
cell technicians have been trained to
service the 20 current beneficiaries in the
township and the pilot project has been
presented to the Namibian government
through the electricity control board and
ministry of mines and energy.
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Case study
Rosh Pinah - community relocation

The rapid growth of the so-called Sand Motel informal settlement on mine
grounds was addressed in 2005 when Exxaro was involved in retocating the
entire settlement to a new site cutside the mining area, currently known as
Tutungeni (let's build together).

At that time, over 1100 households or structures were relocated {in conjunction
with Anglo American's Skorpion Zinc Mine and RoshSkor town management),
with Rosh Pinah providing transport to carry material and people to the new
site. Plots were provided, water supplied {standard taps have since been
replaced by prepaid water meters), a road netwark built and a pilot project
started to test the viability of renewable energy using zinc fuel cells in a rural
environment, Temporary environmentally friendly ablution facilities were
erected at strategic places in the new settlement and a site office set up to
provide payment facilities for water supply and other services.

As this resettlement is an ongoing process, discussions were initiated during
the review period with the country's power utility, NamPower, to provide grid
electricity in Tutungeni. Cleaning and other services are now available through
a community-driven initiative in which Exxaro is participating fully,

Given the lack of a retail hardware outlet in the vicinity, the mine supplies basic
building material (cement, roof sheets and building boards, including scrap
drilling rods) to residents at affordable prices. It has also assisted residents by
contracting an outside builder to break down and help rebuild structures.

Families of Rosh Pinah employees living in the informal settlement were given
temporary accommodation while formal mine houses were being built.

Using a phased approach to solve housing needs and ensure quality
accommaodation across the board, some R29 million was spent in 2006 and
2007 to supply temporary accommodation, build 60 two- and three-bedroom
houses and supply electricity, sewerage and water reticulation. Between
2008 and 2010, over R71 million will be spent on upgrading hostels and single
quarters to living units and flats, and building another 36 houses of up to four
bedrooms.

The technology behind the renewable energy pilot project at Tutungeni has
received enormous interest, given its low environmental impact and use of
waste products from zinc mining. Seven fuel cell technicians have been trained
to service the 20 current beneficiaries in the township and the pilot project has
been presented to the Namibian government through the electricity control
board and ministry of mines and energy.

Exxaro is now piloting a new project at Tshikondeni to determine a viable
business plan for its zinc-battery fuel electrification project.



Arnot

In November 2006, Arnot management identified tweo families (collectively
13 peopie, livestock and domestic animals residing on adjacent properties
spanning 25 hectares) that needed to be relocated.

Following consuttation with the families and relevant ward councillor, suitahle
land was identified in December 2006 and relocation plans finalised. Before

the physicat event, however, Arnot was advised of a restitution claim over the
land by the Department of Land Affairs. An alternative site on local municipal

. land was initially rejected by the families as being too far from both the main

road and schools. Once acceptable land has been secured, Arnot will build
new houses for the famiiies, replicating their previous living spaces to a higher
standard.

Marketing communications

In line with its corporate values, Exxaro communicates regularly and openly with
all stakeholders. At all times, our communications adhere to the laws, standards
and voluntary codes of accepted marketing communication in the areas where we
operate. During the year, no incidents of non-compliance were recorded.

Case study
Remediation at Rosh Pinah

Rosh Pinah's remediation plant is literally the combination of garden refuse
from local residents, a mountain of contaminated soit and an equally large
amount of cattle manure.

According to 1IS040001 requirements, the mine has to rehabilitate and dispose
of soil contaminated by oils and carbons during the mining process. But bulking
agents such as hay, straw and woad chips are scarce in the Namibian desert,
which is how the mine's gardening enthusiasts and local farmers became
involved.

The mixture is stored in remediation ponds and watered weekly to allow
microbial degradation to occur. After nine months, the soil can be used
as compost or landfill, depending on the climate, ecosystem and human
disturbances.

Located on the rehabilitated site of an informal settlement, the affordable
project is creating new jobs in the focal community.

Underground power provision at Arnot mine,
Mpumalanga
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assurance report on SD performance

Independent assurance provider's report to the directors of Exxaro Resources Limited on
sustainable development performance information included in the 2007 annual report

We have been engaged by Exxaro Resources Limited (Exxaro) to provide independent assurance over selected
sustainable development (SD) performance infermation included in its annuat repart (the “report”) for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

This report is made solely to Exxaro in accordance with the terms of our engagement. Our work has been
undertaken so that we might state to Exxaro those matters we have been engaged to state in this report and for
no other purpose. We do not accept or assume respansibility to anyone other than Exxaro, for our work, for this
report, or for the conclusions we have reached,

The objective of our independent assurance engagement was to express reasonable assurance on the number of

fatalities (page 99) and limited assurance on:

* 5D Performance indicators: Lost time injury freguency rate (LTIFR) by employee and contractor (page 99);
Level 1 and Level 2 environmental incidents {(page 113); carbon dioxide (CO,) emissions (page 114); total energy
use {page 115); water used for primary activities (pagé 115}

* Qualifative disclosures relating to the: implementation of the HIV/Aids policy (pages 100 - 101) and application of
Exxaro's criteria for community investments (pages 20 and 118); and

* Management's assertions relating to compliance with the nine elements of the mining charter {the "mining
charter”) (pages 136 - 141.

The internally developed Exxaro SD reporting guidance as presented on the Exxaro website was used as criteria
for the selected SD performance indicators.

Our engagement relates only to the 2007 SD performance information in the report and does not extend to any
prior year SD performance information and disclosures or assertions relating to future SD performance plans/
strategies in the report.

The report (pages 27 and 32) sets out the evolving nature of Exxaro’s sustainable development as a resuit of
the integration of new operations into the group affecting the standardisation of data collection and analysis
for meaningful reporting purpases. It is important to understand the reliability of the 2007 SD performance
information in the context of these limitations.

Responsibilities of directors

The directors of Exxaro are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the report and the information and
assertions contained within it, for determining the Group’s objectives in respect of SD performance, including the
identification of stakeholders and material issues, and for establishing and maintaining appropriate performance
management and internal control systems from which the reported SD performance information is derived.
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Responsibility of the independent assurance provider

Our responsibility is to express our conclusions to Exxaro based on our work performed. We conducted our work
in accardance with the International Standard an Assurance Engagements 3000: Assurance Engageménts other
than Audits or Reviews of Historical Jnfor}nation. This standard requires, inter aiia, that the assurance provider
complies with the appropriate requirements of the IFAC Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants such that
their independence is not compromised and the assurance team members collectively possesses the necessary
professional competencies. Our work was carried out by a multidisciplinary team of safety, health, environmental,
and assurance speciatists with extensive experience in sustainability reportiné in the mining sector.

Summary of work performed

Our procedures selected depend on our judgement, including our assessment of the risk of material misstatements
of those 2007 selected SD performance indicators, disclosures and management assertions and our assessment
of the internal controls relevant to the company's preparation and presentation of the sustainability information

in the report. Our procedures were designed to gather sufficient appropriate evidence to determine that the 2007
selected SD performance information is not materially misstated. ’

Our work performed included:

« Interviews with management and senior executives at corporate level and with management at business unit
level; ‘

Testing of .process and systems in place at corporate level and business unit level to generate, collate, aggregate,
monitor and report the SD performance indicators for the year and to comply with requirements of the mining
charter;

Visits to three business units including Arnot (coal), KZN Sands (sands) and Rosh Pinah (base metals and
industrial minerals);

Telephone interviews and analytical reviews of SD performance indicators for business units not included in site
visits; and

Consideration of other SD performance information in the report to identify material inconsistencies with
evidence obtained from our assurance engagement.

We believe that the evidence obtained from our work performed provides an appropriate basis for our conclusions
expressed below. Where limited assurance is expressed, less assurance is obtained from our procedures than in

a reasonable assurance engagement. We do not express any assurance in relation to the 2007 performances
indicators not included above, further any reference to external audits of SHE-related policies, standards and
procedures (page 97) contained in the report have nothing to do with our independent assurance engagement to
report on the SD performance indicators. :

Unqualified conclusions

Number of fatalities, community investments, RIV/Aids policy, and compliance with the mining charter

Based on our work performed, in our opinion: :

V' The number of fatalities are fairly stated in all material respects in accordance with the internally developed
Exxaro 5D reporting guidance; and

2 Naothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the qualitative disclosures relating to
the application of Exxaro's criteria for community investments and implementation of the HIV/Aids policy,
in accordance with the internally developed Exxaro SD reparting guidance, and management's assertions
regarding compliance with the mining charter, are not fairly stated in all material respects.
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assurance report on SD performance continued

Modifications (Adverse conclusion and disclaimer of conclusion)
Lost time injury frequency rate (LTIFR), water used for primary activities, and Level 1 and Level 2 environmental
incidents

" We were unable to reconcile the underlying source data refating to these SD performance indicators to the SD
performance information in the report. There are significant controt weaknesses that prevent complete, consistent
and accurate reporting of SD performance data in accordance with the internally developed Exxaro SD reporting
guidance. Based on our work performed, these performance indicators are not fairly stated in all material respects.

CO, emissions and total energy use ]

The reported CO, emissions are only from diesel and electricity purchased, as disclosed on page 114. We were not
able to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence for reported CQ, emissions and total energy use as the underlying
source data relating to these SD performance indicators was not available and consequently we are unable to
canclude on these perfarmance indicators.

Commentary

Without affecting our conclusions presented above, we draw attention to the following:

* The new approved SD strategy, discussed in the report, is encouraging and should enable Exxaro to progress

. beyond a minimum of legal compliance. Exxaro are reviewing pelices and reporting quidelines against the new
SD strategy prior to implementation. The implementation of these policies and reporting guidelines are essential
for embedding the SD strategy and for reliable reporting of SD performance information across the group.

* The process of fully integrating the ex-Eyesizwe sites is proceeding and as discussed in the report, the alignment
of these sites with uniform policies, processes and systems of the Exxaro group is essential {o ensure reliable
reporting of the group's SD performance information. ’ .

= A mare comprehensive stakeholder engagement should be undertaken during the coming year to strengthen
the sustainabitity risk management process and allow Exxaro to respond proactively to its stakeholders when
reporting on its SD performance.

We recommend that Exxaro monitor these developments and integration processes and disclose the results in
future sustainability reports or other forms of communication.

KPMG SERVICES (PTY) LIMITED

Per PD NAIDOOQ
Director

Johannesburg
13 March 2008
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stakeholder enqaqemeht

<
AlICC

African Institute of Corporate Citizenship

www.aiccafrica.org
www.africagrowth.net

- AICC statement . _
AICC was requested by Exxaro Resources Limited to facilitate a multistakeholder panel to review the development
of the 2007 Sustainable Development (5D} report which forms part of the 2007 annual report. This statement
deals exclusively with the stakeholder engagement process and not the content of the report.

The panel was selected based on the issues in the report. In their broad categories these issues were: environment,
health and safety, black economic empowerment, local economic development and governance. AICC identified

10 panelists from the academic, consuiting, corporate and the NGO sector. In addition, AICC engaged three experts
on governance, health, safety and environment (HSE), black economic empowerment (BEE) and {ocal economic
development (LED) to provide insights and questions for the panelists to consider during the review process.

The review process, divided into three phases, focused firstly on the review of the issues matrix submitted by
Exxaro. Panelists commented on whether Exxaro had identified all the material issues linked to its business. The
views were provided to Exxaro to inform the data collection.

The second phase focused on the review of the draft report, examining how Exxaro accounted for the material
issues identified. Attention was given to the responsiveness of Exxare to stakeholder issues, the completeness of

“the informa‘tion and how it was being communicated. Gaps were highlighted by the panelists and sent to Exxaro.
These gaps related to governance, environmental and BEE issues relating to performance and targets.

AICC compiled the comments from the panet and submitted them to Exxaro. Exxaro has indicated that the
comments have informed the development of the 2007 report-and, more importantly, the strategy for reporting
on performance in 2008 and beyond.

The third phase focused on discussing the first proof of the report. Unfortunately, due to unexpected delays,
panelists did not have time to evatuate the report and establish how the gaps had been addressed. As a result
AICC is unabte to provide an opinion on the final report. ‘

AICC appreciates the oppartunity to keep strengthening stakeholder engagement in the mining sector. AICC
recommends that Exxaro Resources Limited address the gaps identified by the panel and continue to engage with
the panel of experts on issues of sustainability. :

PAUL KAPELUS
Director
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legislative compliance/mining charter progress

Progress against mining charter scorecard*

*Broad-based socio-economic empowerment charter for the South African mining industry

During the year, Exxaro obtained new-order mining rights for its Inyanda and New Clydesdale mines, reflecting the

group's steady progress in complying with the requirements of the mining charter.

REQUIREMENTS PROGRESS SECTION
Human resources development + Pay skills development levy 121-124

= Submit workplace skills plans and annual training

reports
* Provide training and encourage employees to
become functionally literate

Is there any interface with the Yes, through submission of statutory reports and 122
MQA? serving on sector skill planning committee and

technical reference groups
Have you formulated a Exxaro is ensuring that individual development 125
comprehensive skills audit? plans are in place for all employees. Roll-out plan is

in place
Have you interfaced with Currently interfacing with professors to examine 124
education authorities and are you this element. Bridging school, bursary and
providing schelarships to promote professionals-in-training programmes in place
mining-related educational
advancement?
Have you increased the number More than 30% of engineering learnerships 122 -125
of Iearnerships‘in the mining registered with MQA are trained by Exxaro,
industry? If so by how much? 408 engineering learners in the system, Additional

56 unemployed youths were trained at Collieries

Training Centre with Exxaro sponsorship and have

dane their on-job training at Exxaro mines
Have you, through the MQA, Exxaro's only mine closure to date was at Durnacol, 126
provided skills training where comprehensive reskilling and skills
opportunities to miners during development programmes were initiated years
their employment to improve before closure. This mine closure occurred well
their earning capacity after mine before MQA was established
closure? What training?
Have you offered every employee ¢ Fully company-sponsored, voluntary ABET 123

the opportunity to become
functionally literate and numerate
in consultation with labour?
Demonstrate.

programmes running at all mines (except where
employees are 100% literate — corporate office)
* All ABET training is accredited
* Screening and caunselling with all ABET
candidates for informed decisions about
participation - trade unions included in process
 Incentive scheme implemented to make ABET
more attractive
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REQUIREMENTS

PROGRESS

SECTION

Have you implemented career
paths to provide opportunities to
HDSA employees to progress in
their chosen careers?

Have you developed systems
through which empowerment
groups can be mentored as a
means of capacity building?

« Human resources development (HRD) paolicy in
place dealing with accelerated development

« Formal succession planning and individual
development plans rigorousiy used for all
management and professional categories

« HDSA employees receive special career planning
consideration and mentor support

* 77% of learners in engineering learnerships are
HDSAs

122 - 125

Employment equity

Have you published the
employment equity plan and
achievements?

Employees consulted about ptans and progress
communicated to employees at each business unit
and published via suitable media, eq intranet

Have you established targets No specific targets for different management . 2,120
for employment equity in junior categories have been identified. Progress is being
management category? monitored against an overall target of 40% HDSA

in management as stipulated in the mining charter
Have you established targets As above 2,120
for employment equity in senior
management category?
Have you detailed plans As above. Focus of Exxaro's employment eqguity 2,120
for employment equity at plan is on management
management level? N
Have you met the baseline of 40%  Aspiring to meet the target by 2009. Employment 2,120

by 20097 State your achievement

against the baseline.

equity plans are focused on reaching 40%,
compared to the current 36%

Do you focus overseas placement
and/or training programmes on
HDSAs?

Fast-tracking process includes exposure of senior
management to international operations. Exxaro
currently has limited international operations and
there is one HDSA broadening his experience in
Namibia.

Have you identified a talent pool?

Yes

ne -127

Is there fast tracking in the
company which includes high-
quality operational exposure?

Yes

ne -127
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legislative compliance/mining charter progress continued

REQUIREMENTS PROGRESS SECTION
Do you ensure higher levei of Exxaro has a succession plan system in place to 2,119,124
inclusiveness and advancement of fast-track women. There are currently two women
women? on the board and three an the executive committee
Have you supported the aspired The company is on target, with women comprising
baseline of 10%7? Demonstrate. 12% of the workforce.
Does the company set and publish The company sets targets on a fivesyear cycle, 2
targets? Information on targets is published in the annual

report, on the intranet and other suitable media

targeted at specific business units (eq bulletin boards,

line manager communication, newsletters, e-mails,

eto)
Migrant labour
Have you ensured non- Exxaro does not discriminate against any NA
discrimination against foreign employees, regardless of their country of birth.
labour?
Can the company demonstrate A policy on non-discrimination is in place. NA
how this was achieved?
Mine community and rural 20, 21, 25, 18,
development 128 - 130

Have you cooperated in the
formulation of integrated
development plans for
communities where mining takes
place and major labour-sending
areas?

Have you, in partnership with all
governmental spheres, undertaken
to develop infrastructure for these:
areas?

Assisted local authorities near our operations
to develop integrated development plans, and
participated in relevant forums.

Part of the commodity businesses’ secial and
labour ptans for conversion application.

* Stakeholder engagement forums established at
all business units

. » Skills and ABET provided for unemployed, skills

training for government institutions, training-of
trainers-programmes, capacity building

*» Partnerships with MQA to train ex-mineworkers

NA Not applicabie
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REQUIREMENTS PROGRESS SECTION
Housing and living conditions Yes 121
Have you consulted with Mine + Company housing policy is being revised, focusing
Health and Safety Council, Dept of on home ownership
Housing and organi | ron L

9 ,0 ganised labou * 936 employees (35%;) live in affordable rental
measures to improve the standard .

. units
of housing?
Have you upgraded hostels, = 1277 employees bought company-owned housing
converted hostels to family units, .. . . .

) « Bargaining-unit employees receive a housing/
and promoted a home ownership o ) i
option for mine employees? living-out allowance depending on thel_r grade to
P ' assist them to obtain accommaodation

Have mines established measures Part of the HIV programme
to improve nutrition of employees?
Procurement 2,21,22, 17

Have mines classified procurement
into capitat goods, services and
consumables?

Has the company given HDSAs
preferred supplier status, where
possible, in all three levels?

Have you identified current levels
of procurement from HDSA
companies?

Have you committed to a
progression of procurement from

'HDSA companies over a 3- to

5-year time frame, reflecting
genuine value-added HDSA
provider?

Have you encouraged existing
suppliers to transform, eg
forming partnerships with HDSA
companies, where no HDSAs
tender for goads and services?

Have you undertaken to develop
HDSA procurement capacity
and access to DT assistance
programmes to achieve this?

» Yes. Policy, guidelines and systems in place to
promote procurement from HDSA companies
in stipulated categories of capital goods,
consumables and services

» Preference given to black-owned and black-
empowered suppliers

An auditable system in place and performance
tracked

* Policies have been developed and targets set up
to 201

« Exxaro met its target of 35% of discretionary
procurement for 2007 or R1,97 billion

» Supports facilitation of regional and provincial
collaberation as initiated by Department of
Minerals and Energy

* Exxaro continues to conduct needs assessments
on potential suppliers and assists in areas that
require development. Continual contact with
SEDA on available development programmes to
assist HDSAs is seen as a vital relationship for
supplier development. Exxaro continues to advise
emerging HDSA companies where financing
is required. Referrals include the National
Empowerment Fund, Umsobomvu Youth Fund,
Industrial Development Corporation and other
institutions that offer capital financing.
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legislative compliance/mining charter progress continued

REQUIREMENTS PROGRESS SECTION
Ownership and joint venture
Does the company have ownership  Yes. Empowerment objectives achieved and 5

production of a final consumer
product emanating from a mining
process?

Have you identified your current
level of beneficiation?

Have you indicated to what extent
they can grow the baseline level of
beneficiation?

by HDSAs exceeded in 2006

Does the company have active Yes

HDSA control?

What is the company's HDSA 56%

ownership and controf percentage?

Does the company have collective  Yes 120
investments through ESOPS and
*mining dedicated unit trusts?

Does the company have passive Yes

involvement by HDSA?

What is the percentage of passive 3%

HDSAs involved in the company

ownership structure?

Beneficiation

Is the company involved in the No. Exxaro produces intermediate or partially N/A

refined products. These are sold to various
customers for beneficiation into final consumer
products

Yes. Applicable to all Exxaro's commodities

Yes, Coal beneficiation projects are detailed on 62
page 62 and opportunities are being investigated

for the downstream beneficiation of zircon,

pigment and titanium metal (mineral sands

commodity business}

N/A Not available
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REQUIREMENTS

PROGRESS SECTION

Exploration and prospecting

As an HDSA company, have you
used the support by government
in exploration and prospecting
endeavours? Institutional support.

n7

Yes, prospecting work done through legal
framework

Financing mechanism

As an HDSA company, have
you secured finance to fund
participation (R100 billion
assistance by the industry)

.

Exxara is an investor participant in the New Africa 263
Mining Fund established during 2003 to make

portfolio investments in junior mining projects in

Africa. Exxaro committed to contribute R20 million

to the Fund and can be called upon at any time to

make this contribution.

Exxaro contributed R9 million since March 2003
and was refunded a portion in 2007 resulting in a
recurring investment of R1,8 million at 31 December
2007,

EXXARO ANMUAL REPORT 2007

4




gri indicator index

Index to Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) indicators
This index includes the 2007 GRI guidelines (G3) and 2005 supplement for mining and minerals sector

GRI element ] Topic [ Page
Strategy and analysls
1 Statement from CEQ . 28
1.2 Key impacts, risks and opportunities a2
Organisational profile
21 Name ofC
2.2 Primary products &6
2.3 Operational structure 5
2.4 Location of head office 0BC
2.5 Countries of operation ’ 8
2.6 Nature of ownership 5
27 Markets served i 6,7
28 . Scale of organisafion 6,7
29 Significant changes to organisation . iFC, 28
2.10 Awards
Report parameters
31 Reporting period: 1 January 2007 - 31 December 2007
3.2 Date of previous report: Decemnber 2006
33 Reporting cycle: annual ’ '
34 Contact points i
3.5 Process for defining report content 18, 23-27
36 Boundary of report . 27
iz Limitations 27
3.8 ’ Basis for reporting on joint ventures, etc 27
39 Data measurement technigues and assumptians
310 Explanation of restatements
an Significant changes to scope, boundary or methods .
312 GRI index ) 142
313 Policy and practice on external assurance 26,132
Governance, commitments and engagement
4. Governance structure 80
4,2 Status of chairperson 82
4.3 Independent non-executive directors ) . 81
4.4 Mechanisms for stakeholders to interact with board 80, 87
45 Link between compensation and performance 80
4.6 Process for avoiding confiict of interest 80
47 Expertise of hoard ‘ 83
4.8 Policies on economic, environmental and social perfarmance . 23,97
49 Procedures for board oversight of economic, environmental and social performance B3
410 Board perfermance ' 83
41 Precautionary approach .
412 External principles endorsed ’ 18
413 Membership of industry associations and advocacy groups 122
414 Stakehelder groups 26
415 Basis for identification
416 Approach to stakeholder engagement 26
417 Topics and concerns raised, response ) 26,135
Economic
EC1 Economic value generated and distributed - 16
EC2 Financial implications, risks and opportunities due to climate change 106
EC3 Coverage of defined benefit plan obligations 121
EC4 Significant financial assistance from government
ECS Standard entry-level wage compared te local minimum wage n7
EC6 ) Policy, practices, and spending on local suppliers n7
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GRI element | Topic Page
Economic {continued)
EC7 Procedures for local hiring, proportion of senior management hired from focal community 126
EC8 Development and impact of infrastructure investments ana services for public benefit
EC9 Significant indirect economic impacts n7?
Revenue capture, management and distribution: sites where local economic contribution and
development impact is particularly significant
Value added disaggregated to country level
Environmental
Materials
EN1 Materials used by weight or volume na
% products from secondary materials
ENZ Percentage recycled input materials
Energy
EN3 Direct consumption by primary energy source 14
EN4 Indirect consumption by primary source 14
ENS Energy saved fro}n conservation and efficiency improvements 106
ENG Reductions from energy-efficient or renewable energy-basec products and services 106
EN7 Initiatives to reduce indirect energy consumption, reductions achieved 106
Water
ENB Total water withdrawal by source 10
ENG Sources significantly affected by withdrawal 101
EN1O Percentage and volume recycled and reused 101
Biodiversity
ENTI Location and size of land owned, leased, managed or adjacent to protected areas, areas of high 107 109
biodiversity value
EN12 Description of significant impacts of activities. Total land owned/leased/ managed for produétion 108, 112
activities or extractive use, ’
1. Land disturbed, not yet rehabilitated
2. Land rehabilitated in period vs agreed end use
Number and percentage sites with biodiversity management plans
Large volume mining and mineral processing waste
EN13 Habitats protected or restored ‘ 108, 12
EN14 Strategies, actions and plans for managing impacts on bicdiversity 108, 112
ENI5 IUCN Red List species and national conservation list species in areas affected by operations n2
Emissicns, effluents, and waste
EN16 Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions 14
EN17 Other relevant indirect greenhouse gas emissiens. n4
EN18 initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, reductions achieved 106
EN19 Emissions of ozone-depleting substances
ENZO NO,, 30, and other significant air emissians by type and weight
ENZ1 Total water discharge by quality and destination (o]
EN22- Total weight of waste by type and disposal method [}
‘ENZS Total number and voiume of significant spills n3
EN24 Waste transported under terms of Basel Convention (Annex i, Il ll, VI
ENZ5 Identity, size, protected status, and biodiversity value of water bodies and related habitats 107 - 110
significantly affected by discharges of water and runoff
Products and services
EN26 tnitiatives to mitigate environmentat impacts of products, extent of mitigation 18
ENZ7 Percentage of products sold and packaging materials reclaimed by category
. Compliance ‘
ENZ28 l Significant fines, sanctions for nen-compliance with environmental laws and reguiations l
Transport
EN29 Significant impacts of transporting products, and members of workforce
EN30O Total environmental protection expenditures and investments by type m
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manaqging risk, issues and opportunities continued
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GRI! element | Topic Page
*  Soclal performance: labour practices and decent work
Employment R
LAl Workforce by employment type, employment contract, and reqi_on 19 -120
LA2 Number and rate of employee turnover by age group, gender, ;g:nd regicn 120
LA3 Benefits for full-time employees not provided to temporary/part-time employees 121
Labour/management relations . N
LA4 Percentage employees covered by collective bargaining agreenjents 121
LAS Minimum notice period en significant changes, including specified in collective agreements 121
Occupational health and safety .
LAG Percentage workforce represented in formal joint heaith and séfetv committees to monitor and
advise an programmes .
LA7 Rates of injury, cccupational diseases, lost days, absenteeism, work-related fatalities 99 - 10t
LAS Educatien, training, counselling, prevention, and risk-control pregrammes to assist workforce 99 -100
members, their families or community members with serious diseases
LAY Health and safety topics covered in formal agreements with tréde unions
Training and education ) v
LAIG Average hours of training per year per employee by employee j;ategory 122
LAT Programmes for skiils management and lifelong learning that gupport continued employability 123-125
LAIZ Percentage of employees receiving reguiar performance and c_éreer devetopment reviews. 123-125
Diversity and equal opportunity _ ,
LAI3 Composition of governance bodies and breakdewn of employees per category: gender, age group, ng -126
A minority group membership, and other Indicators of diversity
LA14 Ratio of basic salary of men to women by employee category 126
Social performance: human rights
Investment and procurement practices
HR1 Percentage and number of significant investment agreements With 126
human rights clauses or human rights screening B
HR2 Percentage significant suppliers and contractors screenad on uman rights and actions taken
HR3 Total hours and percentage employee training on aspects of human
rights relevant to operations .
Non-discrimination . )
HR4 |Tota| number of incidents of discrimination and actions taken __
Freedom of asscciation and collective bargaining /
HRS Operations where right to freedom of asscciation and collectivé bargaining may be at significant risk, 121
actions taken to support rights ) -
HR6 Operations with significant risk for incidents of child labour, méasures to eliminate 126
HR7 Operations with significant risk of forced or compulsory Iabour,l measures to eliminate
Security practices _
HRS |Percentage security personne! trained in policies/procedures ¢n human rights relevant to operations ]
Indigenous rights
HR9 !Number of violations involving rights of indigencus people and actions taken ]



GRI element [ Toplc Page
‘ Social performance: society
Community
S01 Programmes and practices to manage impacts of operatiens en communities, including entering, 18, 25, 26,128
operating, and exiting
Significant incidents affecting communities, grievance mechanisms to resolve, outcomes 18, 127
Programmes that address artisanal and small-scale mining 128
Resettlement policies and activities: 126, 130
- Number households resettied
- Practices on resettlement/compensation, alignment with World Bank directive
Operattons with closure plans. Policy, stakehalder engagement processes, frequency of review, 20
financial provisions for closure
Process for identifying local communities' land and customary rights, including indigenous peoples’, 20
grigvance mechanisms to resalve disputes
Approach to identilying, preparing for and responding to emergency situations affecting employees,
communities, environment
Corruption
502 Percentage and number of business units analysed for risks related to corruption
503 Percentage of employees trained in anti-corruption policies and procedures
S04 Actions taken in response to incidents of corruption 80
Public policy
505 Public policy positions and participation in publi¢ policy develapment and lobbying
S06 Total vaiue of financial and in-kind contributions to pelitical parties, paliticians, and related
institutions
Anti-competitive behaviour
507 l Legal actions for anti-competitive behaviour, anti-trust and monopoly practices, outcomes
Compliance
508 l Significant fines, sanctions for non-compliance with laws and regulations
Saclal performance: product responsibility
Customer health and safety
PR1 Life cycle stages in which impacts of products and services are assessed for improvement,
percentage of significant products and services categories subject to such procedures
PR2 Number non-compliances with regulations and votuntary codes on health and safety impacts of
products and services during life cycle, by types of qutcomes
Products and service labelling
PR3 Type of information required, percentage of significant products concerned
PR4 Incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes on labelling
PRS Practices refated to customer satisfaction
Marketing communications
PR6 Programmes for adherence to laws, standards, and veluntary codes 131
PR7 Incidents of non-compliance
Customer privacy
PRS Substantiated complaints on breaches of customer privacy and losses of customer data
Compliance
PR9 Significant fines for non-compliance with faws and regulations concerning provision and use of

products and services.
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supplementary information

income statements for the year ended 31 December 2007

2Cav 2006
Mudiod Unaudited
A Rm
Revenue ' 10 157 8814
Operating expenses (8 713) {7 553)
MET OPERATING PROFIT 144 1261
Net financing costs (215} (315)
Income from investments a
Share of profit from equity accounted investments 126 6838
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 1e5z 1584
Taxation : (317 {595)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1447 989
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 145 962
Minority interest ‘ z 27
G LAY 989
Ordinary shares {million)
- inissue ’ : 2al 351
- weighted average number of shares 3% 313
- diluted weighted average number of shares ’ 334 318
ATTRIBUTABLE EARNINGS PER SHARE (CENTS)
- basic &1G 307
- diluted o 302
Dividend per share for the year (cents) 120 525
RECONCILIATION OF HEADLINE EARNINGS
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 1487 962,
Adjusted for:
- IFRS 3 Excess of acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost . (36)
- 1AS 16 Impairment of property, plant and equipment az
- 1AS 16 Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 17 3)
- IAS 28 Gains or losses on the disposal of associates or joint ventures (39)
- |1AS 28 Share of associate’s IAS 16 ~ Gains or losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment ! (1
- IAS 28 Share of associate's IAS 39 — Recycling of re-measurements from equity to the
income statement, including a hedge of net investment in a foreign entity but excluding
cash flow hedges {7,
- IAS 36 Impairment reversal of investment M
Taxation on adjustments ) 10
HEADLINE EARNINGS ' . 7500 893
HEADLINE EARNINGS PER SHARE (CENTS)
— basic L85 285
281

- diluted L5

EXXARO ANNUAL REPORT 2007

146 .



balance sheets at 31 December

P00/ 2006
Audiied Unaudited
HAm Rm
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment B 23 8 367
Biological assets 30 . 26
Intangible assets i) B89
Invesiments in associates and joint ventures - . 1oy 384
Deferred taxation 732 521
Other financial assets - R 693
Total non-current assets 10 831 10 060
Current assets
Inventories i b3i 1381
Trade and other receivables T eat 1663
Cash and cash equivalents 830 1367
Total current assets 4 337 4 421
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 2 2
TOTAL ASSETS 15 174 14 483
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ~
Capital and reserves
Share capital ’ . 20537 4 560
Non-distributable reserves 1 h00 1205
Retained income g 235 . 3395
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 287 9160
Minority interest . i 27
Total equity 9 i3 9 187
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 1249 1214
Nan-current provisions 73ns 931
Deferred taxation 10714 1116
Total non-currant liabilities 3 835 3 261
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables KR B 1321
Interest-bearing borrowings T4 613
Taxation . 13+ &7
Current provisions ar 30
Shareholders for dividend 4
Total current liabilities 13457 2035
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ‘ iEREE 14 483
NET DEBT =33 460
Cash flow statements for the year ended 31 December '
Cash flows from operating activities ' 1 E0, (1173
Cash flows from investing activities Tiie) (559)
Cash flows from financing activities i) 2 260
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (a3} 528

Supplementary information is compiled using the following assumptions:

- the iron ore business is excluded and the investment in SIOC is equity accounted from 1 January 2005
. — Eyesizwe is consolidated from 1 January 2005

- the non-recurring entries to give effect to the empowerment transaction are excluded

- the impairment of the mineral sands property, plant and equipment is excluded from the 2006 results

- net financing costs have been split on the assumption that Exxaro incurred the majority of external borrowings with SIOC
being cash positive ' . .
- the taxation charge has been split on.the assumption that STC incurred on dividend declaration was borne by Exxaro.
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selected group financial data translated into
US dollars for the year ended 31 December 2007 (unaudited)

The group statutory 2007 financial statemenits have been expressed in US doltars for information purposes. For comparability
the 2006 supplementary information as presented on pages 146 and 147, have been translated. The average US dollar/rand of
US$1:R7,03 (2006: US$1:R6,70) has been used to translate the income and cash flow statemenis, while the balance sheet has
been translated at the closing rate on the last day of the reperting period US$1:R6,7964 (2006: US$1:R8,9750).

2007 2006
usn UsbD
million million

INCOME STATEMENTS
Revenue 1644 1316
Operating expenses {1 240) ' {1128)
NET OPERATING PROFIT 205 188
Net financing costs {20) (47)
Income from equity accounted investments 104 95
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 279 236
Taxation (73) (89)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ‘ 203 147

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 203 143
Minarity interest 3 4
, . 203 147
ATTRIBUTABLE EARNINGS PER SHARE (CENTS) 6o 48
HEADLINE EARNINGS FROM OPERATIONS 203 133
HEADLINE EARNINGS PER SHARE (CENTS) 6o 43
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2007 2006
usp UsD
million million
BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1212 1200
Biological assets 4 4
iniangible assets 11 10
Investments in associates and joint ventures 111 55
Deferred taxation 108 75
Financial assets 152 99
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents . 125 196
Other 809 437 -
TOTAL ASSETS 2232 2076
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1442 1313
Minority interest 3 4
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 185 174
Deferred taxation and provisions 354 293
Current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 11 88
Other \ 237 204
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2232 2076
NET DEBT {refer definitions on page 151) 71 132
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
Cash flows from operating activities 214 (175)
Cash flows from investing activities {159} (83)
Cash flows from financing activities (64) 337
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {9} 79
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group cash value added statement
for the period ended 31 December 2007 (unaudited)

The value added statement shows the wealth the group has created through mining, beneficiation, trading ant investing
operations. The statement below summarises the total cash wealth created and how it was disbursed among the group's
stakeholders, leaving a retained amount which was re-invested in the group for the replacement of assets and further

development of operations.

39 Duecmber Wiezlth 31 December Wealth
26a7 created 2006 created
0 % Bm i %
Cash generated
Cash derived from sales and services 0 B82 14 149
Income fram investments and interest received are
Paid to suppliers for materials and services th 4857} . (6 605)
Cash value added 4819 1C0 7 544 100
Cash utilised to:
Remunerate employees for services 2407 50 2 362 3
Pay direct taxes to the state 462 10 C 1927 26
Provide lenders with a return on borrowings 292 4 392 5
Provide shareholders with cash dividends 223 5 3 396 45
Cash disbursed among stakeholders 3304 54 8077 107
Cash retained in the group to maintain and
develop operations 1507 31 (533} ]
Notes to the group value added statement
1. Taxation contribution
Direct taxes {as above) 52 1927
Value added taxes levied on purchases of goods '
and services TR 1445
Regional service council levies 10
Rates and taxes paid to local authorities 42 51
Gross contributions 1733 3433
2. Additional amounts collected by the group on
behalt of government '
Value added tax and other duties charged on .
turnover 1333 1032
Employees’ tax deducted from remuneration paid [k 759
1724 1791

CASH DISBURSED AMONG STAKEHOLDERS 2007

%

6%

14%

73%

‘CASH DISBURSED AMONG STAKEHOLDERS 2006

Provide shareholders with cash dividends

o Remunerate employees for services
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.deﬁnitions

Attributable cash flow per
ordinary share

Capital employed

Cash and cash equivalents

Current ratio .

Dividend cover
Dividend yield
Earnings per ordinary share

- Attributable earnings basis

- Headline earnings basis
Financing cost cover

« EBIT

+ EBITDA

Headline earnings yield

Invested capital

Net assets

Net debt to equity ratio

Net equity per ordinary
share

Number of years to repay
interest-hearing debt

Operating margin

Operating profit per
employee

Return on capital employed

Return on ordinary
shareholders’ equity

- Attributable earnings
- Headline earnings
Return on invested capital

Return on net assets
Revenue per employee

Total asset turnover

Weighted average number
of shares in issue

& 4 L S

Cash flow from operating activities after adjusting for minority participation therein, divided
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Total shareholders’ equity plus net debt minus non-current financial asset investments,

Comprise cash on hand and current accounts in bank, net of bank overdrafts, together with
any highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and not subject to
significant risk of changes in value.

Current assets divided by current liabilities. I
Headline earnings per ordinary share divided by dividends per ordinary share. !
Dividends per ordinary share divided by the closing share price at the JSE Limited. '

Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders divided by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders adjusted for profits and losses on items of a
capital nature recognising the taxation and minority impacts on these adjustments, divided by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Net operating profit (before interest and_ta_x) divided by net financing costs.

Net operating profit (before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, impairment charges and
net deficit/surplus on sale of investments and assets) divided by net financing costs.

Headline earnings per ordinary share divided by the closing share price at the JSE Limited.

Total shareholders’ equity, interest-bearing debt, non-current provisions and net deferred
taxation less cash and cash equivalents,

Total assets less current and non-current Habilities less minority interest which equates to
ordinary shareholders' equity.

Interest-bearing debt iess cash and cash equivalents as percentage of total shareholders' equity.

Ordinary shareholders' equity divided by the number of ordinary shares in issue at the year-end.

Interest-bearing debt divided by cash flow from operating activities before dividends paid.
Net operating profit as a percentage of revenue.
Net operating profit divided by the average number of employees during the year.

Net operating profit plus income from non-equity accounted investments plus income from
investments in associates as a percentage of average capital employed.

Attributable earnings to ordinary shareholders as a percentage of average ordinary
shareholders’ equity.

Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders as a percentage of average ordinary
shareholders’ equity.

Net operating profit plus income from non-equity accounted investments pius income from
investments in associates as a percentage of the average invested capital.

Net operating profit plus income from non-equity accounted investments ptus income from
investments in associates as a percentage of the average net assets.

Revenue divided by the average number of employees during the year.
Revenue divided by average total assets.

The number of shares in issue at the beginning of the year, increased by shares issued during
the year, weighted on a time basis for the period in which they have participated in the
income of the group. In the case of shares issued pursuant to a share capitalisation award in
lieu of dividends, the participation of such shares is deemed to be from the date of issue.
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directors’ responsibility for financial reporting

TO THE MEMBERS OF EXXARQ RESOURCES LIMITED

The directors of the company are responsible for maintaining adequate accounting records, the preparation of the annual
financial statements of the company and the group and to develop and maintain a sound system of internal control to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the group’s assets. [n presenting the accompanying financial statements, International Financial
Reporting Standards have been followed, applicable accounting policies have been used and prudent judgements and
estimates have been made. ’

In order for the directors to discharge their responsibifities, management has developed and continues to maintain a systemn of
internai control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost-effective manner. Such systems can provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The directors, primarily through the audit, risk and compliance
committee which consists of non-executive directors, meet periodically with the external and internal auditors, as well as
executive management to evaluate matters concerning accounting policies, internal control, auditing, financiat reporting and risk
management. The group's internal auditors independently evaluate the internal controls and co-ordinate their audit coverage
with.the extarnal auditors. The external auditors are responsible for reporting on the financial statements. The extarnal and
internal auditors have unrestricted access to all records, property and personnel as well as to the audit, risk and compliance
committee. The direciors are not aware of any material breakdown in the functioning of these controls and systems during the
year under review.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management and the internal auditors, and
on‘comments made by the external auditors on the results of their audit conducted for the purpose of expressing their opinion on
the annual financial statements, that the internal accounting conirots are adequate, such that the financial records may be relied on
for preparing the financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets and liabilities.

The directors have reviewed the group's financial budgets with its underlying business plans for the period to 31 December
2008. In the ight of the current financial position and existing borrowing facilities, they consider it appropriate that the annual
financial statements be prepared on the going-concem basis.

Against this background, the directors of the company accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which were
approved by the board of directors on 18 February 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

/Z /Q_ad———
SA Nkosi ' DJ van Staden

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

The external auditors have audited the annual financial statements of the company and group and their unmodified report
appears on page 158.

certificate by company secretary

In terms of the Companies Act 61 of 1973 of South Africa, as amended, |, MS Viljoen, in my capacity as company secretary,
confirm that for the year ended 31 December 2007, the company has lodged with the Registrar of Cormpanies all such returns
as are required of a pubtlic company in terms of this Act and that all such returns are trug, correct and up to date.

4

MS Viljoen
Company secrelary

19 Febryary 2008
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independent auditor’'s report to the members
of exxaro resources limited

We have audited the annual financial statements and group annual financial statements of Exxaro Resources Limited, which
comprise the directors’ repont, the balance sheet and the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2007, the income
statement and the consolidated income statemant, the statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the cash flow statement and the consolidated cash flow staterment for the year then ended, a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 157 to 269.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial stétements in accordance with
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Companies Act of South Africa. This responsibility
inctudes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

~ Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Intermational Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit {o obtain masonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financiat statements.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial staternents, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers infernal
control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial staterents in order to design audit proceduras
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinicn on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evatuating the appropriatenesé of-accounting principles used and the reasonabteness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion '
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the company and of the group

as at 31 December 2007, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with .
International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Companies Act of South Africa.

Mboe S

Deloitte & Touche
Registered Auditors

Per BW Smith
Partner

19 February 2008

Buildings 1 and 2, Deloitte Place
The Woodlands Office Park
Woodlands Drive

Sandion

National Executive: GG Gelink (Chief Executive), AE Swiegers (Chief Operating Officer), GM Pinnock (Audit), DL Kennedy (Tax},
L Geeringh (Consulting}, L Bam (Strategy), CR Beukman (Finance), T.J Brown (Clients and Markets), NT Mtoba (Chairman of the
Board), J Bhynes (Deputy Chairman of the Board} ' :

A full list of partners and directors is available on request '
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report of the directors

The directors have pleasure in presenting the annual financial statements of Exxaro Resources Limited {(Exxaro) and the group
for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Nature of business

Exxaro, incorporated in South Africa, is a mining group of companies focusing on extracting and processing a range of minerals
and metals including coal, heavy minerals, base metals, and selected industrial minerals. Exxaro also holds a 20% interest in
Sishan Iron Ore Company {Pty) Limited which extracts and processes iron ore. :

Corporate governance

The board endorses the Code of Corporats Practice and Conduct as set out in the King Il Report on Corporate Governance
and has satisfied itself that Exxarg has complied throughout the period in all material aspects with the King Il code. A detailed
report appears on page 80.

Registration details ) :
Exxaro is a listed company on the JSE Limited. The company registration number is 2000/011076/06. The registered office is
Roger Dyascn Road, Pretoria West, Republic of South Africa, 0183.

Activities and financial results ‘

Detailed reports on the activities and performance of the group and the various divisions of the group are contained in the
reports on pages 6 and 7 and pages 13 and 14 and in the business operations review on pages 48 to 61. These reports are
unaudited.

Capital management

As a diversified mining company Exxaro is exposed to the cyclical price movements associated with its suite of commodities.
The group's poficy is therefore 1o ensure that the group maintains a rabust capital structure with strong financial metrics which
can withstand a significant downturm in commodity cycles. Growth opportunities, debt levels and dividend distributions to
shareholders are considered against this backdrop.

The board of directors is ultimately responsible for monitoring debt levels, return on capital as well as compliance with
contractually agreed loan covenants. For the year under review the following key metrics were achieved:

- 2007 2006'
Net debt/equity ratio (%} ’ - g 5
Net financing cost cover — EBITDA (times) 10 6
Return on capital employed (refer definitions on page 151) 24 22

The capital base consists of total shareholders’ equity as disclosed, as well as interast bearing borrowings. As a new generation
empowerment company with a 55,861% BEE shareholding, Exxaro is constrained from issuing equity, and its memorandum
and articles accordingly incorporate various provisions limiting the issue of new shares or alterations of its share capital that
could result in a loss of its empowerment status. ‘

The group aims to cover its annual net funding requiremants through longer-term loan facilities with maturities spread evenly
over time. -

Although the intention is to progress to distributing 50% of attributable earnings ta sharshelders, adequate provision is made for
future commitments and working capital requirements in determining the level of interim and final dividends to sharsholders.

The group may from time to time repurchase its own shares in the market depending on prevailing market prices. These share
repurchases are primarily intended to settle the group's various employee share incentive schemes and decisions are made on a
specific transaction basis by the executive committee. The group does not, however, have a defined share buy-back plan.

! For comparable purposes 2006 metrics wéra calculated on the assumption that the empowerment transaction had been implemented with
effect from 1 January 2005, The investment in Sishen iron Ore Company (Pty) Limited has therefore been equity accounted from 1 January
2005 and Eyesizwe Coal (Pty) Limited consolidated from the same date.
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report of the directors continued

Ouring the year under review the group complied with all its contractually agreed toan covenants,
There were no changes in tha group’s approach to capital management during the year.
Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed regulatory capital requirements.

Property, plant and equipment
Capital expenditure for the pericd amounted to R1 296 miflion (2006: R2 010 million}.

Shareholders’ resolutions

In terms of the resofution passed at the general meeting on 2 November 2006, Exxaro, an 13 April 2007, exercised its option to
acquire 10 million shares from Anglo South Africa Capital (Pty) Limited at R45,99 per share and subsequently issued 10 million
new Exxaro shares at R64 per share. '

At the sixth annuat general meeting of shareholders, held on 25 April 2007, the following resolutions were passed:
- renewal of the authority that the unissued shares be placed under the control of the directors;

- general authority to issue shares for cash;

- special resolution to authorise directors to repurchase company shares.

Exxaro and its subsidiaries have passed no other special or ordinary shareholders’ resolutions of material interest or of
substantive nature.

Share capital
The total number of shares in issue increased during the vear to 352 907 400.

The increase can be summarised as follows:

Date of issue Number of shares
Opening balance ’ 351 277 206
Repurchase of shares . 13 April 2007 (10 000 000}
Issued in terms of repurchase agreement 13 April 2007 10 000 C0O

Issued in terms of the Kumba Management Share
) A : ] ) 2 January 2007 t
Option Scheme due to options exercised at prices ranging from vary °
R3,86 to R97,74 20 December 2007 . 1630194

Closing balance 362 907 400
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Shareholders

In addition to selling 10 million shares back to Exxaro in terms of a special resolution taken at the general mesting of
sharehotders held on 2 November 2006, Anglo South Africa Capital (Pty) Limited placed an additional nine million shares in
the market 1o dilute the Anglo group's shareholding in Exxaro to 8,9%, simultaneously resulting in Exxaro's free float increasing
to 34,2%.

An analysis of shareholders and shareholdings appears on page 90 of the annual report.

Dividend payments

Dividend number nine

Interim dividend number nine of B0 cents per share was declared in South African currency in respect of the period ended

30 June 2007. The dividend was paid on Monday, 10 September 2007 1o shareholders recorded in the books of the company
at the close of business on Friday, 7 September 2007. To compty with the requirements of STRATE the last day to trade cum
dividend was Friday, 31 August 2007. The shares commenced trading ex dividend on Monday, 3 September 2007 and the
record date was Friday, 7 September 2007.

Dwvidend number 10

Final dividend number 10 of 100 cents per share was declared in South African currency in respect of the period ended

31 December 2007. The dividend payment date is Monday, 17 March 2008 to shareholders recorded in the books of the
company at the close of business on Friday, 14 March 2008. To comply with the requirements of STRATE the last day to trade
cum dividend was Friday, 7 March 2008. The shares commenced trading ex dividend cn Monday, 10 March 2008 and the
record date was Friday, 14 March 2008

Investments and subsidiaries
The financial information in respect of investments and interests in subsidiaries of the company is disclosed in annexures 2
and 3 to the financial statements.

Subsequent events
The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial period not dealt with in
this report or in the group financial statements that would significantly affect the operations or the resuits of the group.

Namakwa Sands and Black Mountain/Gamsberg acquisition

Although Exxaro anncunced on 19 January 2007 that it had exercised the option to acquire the Namakwa Sands mineral sands
operation and a 26% interest in a company to be formed to hold the Black Mountain lead-zinc mine and the Gamsberg zinc
project, it has not yet acquired operational control as conversion and subsequent cession of mining «ights is still outstanding.
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report of the directors continued

Directorate and shareholdings
The names of the directors in office at the date of this report are set out on page 76.

During the period under review Mr M Msimang was appointed as non-executive director on 28 February 2007 and resigned
on 28 May 2007 to pursue his career as Director-General at the Departiment of Home Affairs, Dr CJ Fauconnier retired as chief
executive officer and director on 31 August 2007. Mr SA Nkosi was appointed as chief executive officer on 1 September 2007,

On 29 February 2008, Ms N Nyembezi-Heita resigned as non-executive director.

The directors below are required to retire by rotation in terms of article 16.1 of the articles of association and, being eligible, ofter
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting:

U Khumalo
Dr D Konar
RP Mohring
PKV Ncetezo

Company secretary
The company secretary is M3 Vilioen. The company secretary's registered address is:

Roger Dyason Road PO Box 9229

Pretoria West Pretoria

0183 0001

Republic of South Africa Republic of South Africa

Independent auditors .
The auditors of the company, Delcitte & Touche, will continue in office in accordance with section 270(2) of the Companies Act,
1973, of South Africa.

Change in accounting policies

The accounting poticies are consistent with those applied in the annual financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2008, except for the adoption of IFRS 7 Disclosure of Financial Instruments during the year. This is a disclosura
standard which has no impact on the measurement or recognition of financial instruments and accordingly the adoption thereof
has had no effect on the profit or equity for this period cr previously reported periods.
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directors’' remuneration

This report on remuneration and related matters covers issues which are the concern of the board as a whole, in addition to
those which were dealt with by the transformation, human resources, remuneration and nomination committee (‘TREMCOT).

Remuneration policy
TREMCO has a ¢learly defined mandate from the board aimed at:

- ensuring that the company’s chairman, directors and senior executives are fairly rewarded for their individual contributions to
the company's overall performance;

- ensuring that the company's remuneration strategies and packages, including the incentive schames, are related to
performance, are suitably competitive and give due regard to the interests of the shareholders and the financial and
commercial health of the company.

Directors’ service contracts .
There are no restraints of trade associated with the contracts of executive directors. Non-executive directors are not bound by
service contracts.

The service contract of Dr CJ Fauconnier terminated on 31 August 2007. Mr SA Nkosi assumed the office of chief executive
officer on 1 September 2007.

The senvice contracts of messrs MJ Kilbride and DJ van Staden terminate on 31 August 2008, however, both will use their
hest endeavours 10 ensure that their retirement from Exxaro does not coincide within a period of six months from such date of
termination.
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directors' remuneration continued

for the year ended 31 December 2007

Summary of remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2007

Retirement
Fees for  Performance Benefits and fund
Basic salary services bonuses’ allowances?  contributions
Namse R R R R R
Executive directors .
Or CJ Fauconnier* 2784 242 4 248157 324 313
SA Nkosi ' 3270 291 1332 094 * 71 309 277 110
MJ Kilbride ' 2375206 - 2939037 314 740 271 960
DJ van Staden 2441 796 2 939 037 303 820 271 960
10 871 465 11 458 325 1014182 821 030
Less gains on share scheme -
Add share-based payment expense
Total remuneration paid by Exxaro
Non-executive directors
Pt Baum® 191 657
JJ Geldenhuys 240 659 3676
U Khumalo 154 562
Dr O Konar 253 481
VZ Mntambo 176 201
RP Mohring 183 414 5737
M Msimang®*? 23 852
PKV Ncetezo 176 201 7383
NMC Nyembezi-Meita 197 840
NL Sowazi 183 414
D Zihlangu 179 292 9233
1960 573 26 029

At 31 December 2007, Exxaro Resources Limited did not have a chairperson of the board. The chairman for board meetings is

nominated from the ranks of the independent non-executive directors.

1 Al incentive schemes are performance refated and weare approved by the board. The thres-tisr short-term incentive scheme applies to alf employess

throughout the group.
2 Includies traved allowances.
3 Includes interest accrued on gains heid in trust until vested.
* Ratired on 31 August 2007.
S Fees paid to the respective empioyer and not the individual,
8 Appointed as non-executive director on 28 February 2007,
7 Resigned as non-executive director on 28 May 2007,

Retirement amounts paid or received by executive directors are paid or received under defined contribution retirement funds.
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Medical fund
contributions
R

Gains on

management

share option
scheme®

R

Compensation
on

retirement
from
executive
office

R

Other

Total

10 856
17 564
16 284
16 284

216 691

130678
114 490

4 248157

2043
5524
1916
4918

11 834 459
4973 892
6 049 B2
6 092 235

60 988

461 B59

4248157

14 401

28 950 407
(461 859)
958 837

29 447 385

191 657
244 335
154 562
253 481
176 201
189151

23 852
183 584
197 B840
183414
188 525

1986 602
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dﬁre_ctors’ remuneration continued
for the.year ended 31 December 2007

Summary of remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2006

Retirement
Fees for  Performance Benefits and fund
Basic salary” services bonuses' allowances?  contributions
Name R R R R R
Executive directors
Dr CJ Fauconnier 3207 532 8 309 065 537 422
MJ Kilbride 1833 508 4 451 315 933 911 218 058
CF Meintjes® 1534 643 3098 642 370 283 160 823
SA Nkosi® 236 122 ' 4790 19 422
DJ van Staden : 1890 538 4 476 453 297 858 218032,
8702343 21235475 2 144 364 616 335
Less gains on share scheme
Add share-based payment expense
Total remuneration paid by Exxaro
Non-executive directors
PM Baum?* 177 460
BE Davisor® 131187
TL de Beer® 85 B6B
JJ Geldenhuys 246154
U Khumalo’
Dr D Konar ’ 234 705
VZ Mntambo’
RP Mohring”
AJ Morgan® (Chairman) 293 858 8787
WA Naijrn*&8 162 672
PKV Ncetezo”
SA Nkosi 162 672
- NMC Nyembezi-Hsita” :
CML Savage® 131187
Dr NS Segal® 173166 11 281
NL Sowazi '
 Titi® 162 672
D Zihlangu”
PL Zim+#s 131187
- 2092 788 18 068

Performance bonuses include the following:

- Board approved performance related incentive scheme applicable to alf employess in the group;
- An incentive payment for developing and implementing an empowermnent transaction as fully disclosed in the Kumba Circular to Sharsholders and

Exxaro revised listing particulars dated 9 Oclober 2006;
- Unwinding of the 2005 long term incentive plan (LTIP); and

- Compaensation for 2006 share appreciation rights and LTIP awards not awarded due to the postponement of the effective date of implementation of the

empowerment transaction.
2inctudes travel aflowances.
SAppointed as executive director on 28 November 2006.
“Fess paid to their respective employers and not to them as individuals.
SRatirad on 12 Aprif 2006,
SResigned as executive director on 28 Novermnber 2006.
TAppointed as non-executiva director on 28 November 2006,
®Rasigned as non-executive director on 28 November 2006.

Retirement amounts paid or receivable by exacutive directors are paid or received under defined contribution retirement funds.
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Medical fund
contributions
R

Gains on

management -

share option
scheme
R

Gains on
management
cash settled
option

R

Compensation
on

retirement
from
executive
office

R

Other
R

Total

24 105
23 603
18 054

34 672

44 896 507
27 569 844
26 682 788

25 672 966

1831948

1641866 .

1481684

3718
2884
2478

299
2 883

58 810 297
36 674 989
34 249 385

260 633
32 593 502

100 434

124 822 105

4 955 498

12 262

162 588 816
(129 777 603)
3635848

36 447 061

177 460
131 187

85 868
246 154
234705
300 645
162 672

162 672

131187
184 447

‘162672

131187

2110856
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directors' remuneration continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

Directors’ beneficial interest in Exxaro shares at 31 December 2007

Director : Direct

Indirect

SA Nkosi )
MJ Kilbride 586

Dud van Staden . 565 -

PM Baum

JJ Geldenhuys

U Khumalo

Dr D Konar 168
VZ Mntambo

RP Mohring

PKV Ncetezo

NMC Nyembezi-Heita 1000
NL Sowazi

D Zihtangu

7 607 567

5248 077

724 564

2181 590
2818 552
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Directors’ beneficial interest inExxaro shares at 31 December 2006

Director

Direct Indirect

Dr CJ Fauconnier
MJ Kilbride

CF Meintjes

[J van Staden
SA NKkosi

PM Baum

BE Davison

TL de Beer

JJ Geldenhuys

U Khumalo

Dr D Kenar

VZ Mntambo

RP Mohring

AJ Morgan (Chairman)
WA Nairn

PKV Ncetezo

NMC Nyembezi-Heita
CML Savage

Dr NS Segal

NL Sowazi

F Titi

D Zihlangu

PL Zim

42 905
566

565
6 747 301

168
4 654 623

20000

724 564

3286825

28185852

There has been no change to the interest of directors in share capital since the year end.

On 31 December 2007 Mr SA Nkosi held 1,9% and Mr MZ Mntambo held 1,3% directly or indiractly in the share capitat

of the company.

No director held any non-beneficial interest in Exxaro shares at either 31 December 2007 or 2008. '
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directors’ remuneration continued

for the year ended 31 December 2007

Directors’' share options and restricted share awards

The following options and rights in shares in the company were outstanding in favour of directors of the company under tha

company's share option schemes:

Management share option scheme for the year ended December 2007

Proceeds if
exercisable at

Pre-tax gain if
exercisable at

Options held at Exercise 31 December 31 December
31 December price Exercisable 2007 2007
Name 2007 R period R R
Executive directors
CJ van Staden . 12440 12,80 16/3/2011 1286918 1126 442
Total 12 440 1286 M8 1126 442
'Based on a share price of R103,45 which pravailed on 31 December 2007.
Managemént share option scheme for the year ended December 2006
Proceeds if  Pre-tax gain if
exercisable at  exercisable at
Options held at Exercise 31 December 31 December
. 31 December price’ Exercisable 2006 20062
Name 2006 R period R R

Executive directors
Dr CJ Fauconnier

Total

MJ Kilbride

Total
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Options
exercised Exercise Sale price/ Date
during price market price Pre-tax gain exercised
the year R R R R
Cptions

exercised Exercise Sale price/ Date
during price* market price Pre-tax gain exercised
the year® R R R R
50 840 25,85 125,10 5 045 B70 9/10/06
5000 25,85 125,50 498 250 8/10/06
34 050 25,85 126,50 3427133 10/10/06
5950 25,85 125,90 ° 595 298 10/10/06
150 000 25,85 12589 15 021 000 10/10/08
41 680 25,85 126,00 4174 252 10/10/06
20 000 25,85 125,00 1 €83 000 10/10/05
65 440 32,80 126,00 6 099 008 10/10/C8
92 880 39,30 + 126,00 8 052 696 10/10/06

465 840 44 895 507
25 000 16,54 125,20 2716 500 9/10/06
10 B40 16,54 - 125,25 1178 416 9/10/06
151 320 25,85 125,25 15041 208 9/10/06
40 710 32,80 125,25 3763 640 9/10/06
3c 220 39,30 125,26 2 597 409 9/10/06
15430 39,30 150,00 1708101 20/10/08
5100 39,30 150,00 564 570 23/10/06

278 620 27 569 844
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directors’ remuneration continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

Management share option scheme for the year ended December 2006 (continued)

Proceeds if Pre-tax gain if
exercisable at  exercisable at

Options held at Exercise 31 December 31 December
31 December price' Exercisable 2006 2006°
Name 2006 R period R R
Executive directors
CF Meintjes
Total
DJ van Staden
12 440 12,90 16/3/2011 696 640 536 164
Total 12 440 696 640 536 164

VThe exarcise price of options not yet exercisad on 31 December 2006 was ra-priced by R2.20 per share, and further re-calculated by reference
to the 21 day volurme waighted average price spht between Exxare shares and Kumba Iron Ore shares of 32,81% and 67, 19% respectively.

Based on a share price of R56,00 which prevailed on 31 December 2006.

ICertdin options were exercised prior to their vesting date and will remain in trust until such vesting date. Vesting dates vary up to the earfiest date.

of service contract termination or 16 March 2011,

‘Options awarded and not yet exercised on 8 Seplember 2005 were re-priced by R2,20 per share subsequent to the special dividend declared to
sharsholders on 12 September 2005 from the post-tax option- and settlemant procesds of the Hope Downs project.
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Options

exercised Exercise Sale price/ . Date
during price* market price Pre-tax gain exercised
the year® R R R R
20 490 16,30 125,00 2 227 263 10/10/06
24 890 16,54 125,00 2 699 563 10/10/06
130 936 25,85 125,00 12 982 304 10/10/06
4704 25,85 125,01 466 449 10/10/06
17 810 32,80 125,00 1623 642 10/10/06
8 800 32,80 125,00 811 360 11/10/06
3810 32,80 142,75 418 810 18/10/08
5000 32,80 142,70 549 500 18/10/06
14 410 39,30 125,00 1234 937 10/10/06
10 000 39,30 146,00 1067 000 19/10/06
4000 39,30 148,35 436 200 20/10/06
6000 39,30 148,00 652 200 20/10/06
8624 39,30 150,50 G58 989 6/11/06
5008 39,3C 150,08 554 465 6/11/06

264 280 26 682 788
8 601 16,54 126,50 945 766 10/10/06
5 000 16,54 126,15 548 050 10/10/06
14 209 16,54 126,00 1565317 10/10/06
9270 16,54 149,00 1227 904 20/10/06
42 140 25,85 126,00 4 220 321 10/10/06
360 25,85 126,10 36090 10/10/06
10100 25,85 125,90 1010 505 10/10/06
19 900 25,85 125,60 1885025 10/10/06
14 708 25,85 125,20 1461 041 10/10/06
1000 25,85 125,11 99 260 10/10/06
2 664 25,85 125,10 264 402 10/10/06
50 480 25,85 125,00 5 005 092 10/10/06
1136 32,80 125,10 104 853 10/10/06
1000 32,80 125,05 92 250 10/10/06
24 584 32,80 125,00 2 266 645 10/10/06
6010 32,80 150,50 707 377 " BM11/06
2900 32,80 150,25 340 605 6/11/06
14 910 39,30 125,00 1277 787 10/10/06
8950 39,30 146,00 1061 665 19/10/06
12 430 39,30 157,0C 1463 011 13/11/06

251 350 25 672 966
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directors’ remuneration continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

Management cash-settled options for the year ended December 2007

The cash-settled options represent phantom option awards made to executive directors and a number of senior managers as
compensation for not being eligible to receive sharé option grants due to their involvement in the empowearmaent transaction.

The phantom option awards also have a grant price, vesting periods and lapse periods as other share option awards but are
classified as cash-settled since shares will not be issued when exercised.

Pre-tax gain/
Proceeds if (loss) if
exercisable at  exercisable at
Options held at Exercise 31 December 31 December
31 December price Exercisable 2007 2007
Name 2007 R period R R
_ Executive directors *
DJ van Staden 17 550 19,62 22/4/2012 1815 548 1471217
'Based on a share price of R103,45 which prevailed on 31 Decamber 2007
Management cash-settled options for the year ended December 2008
. Pre-tax gain/
Proceeds if {loss) if
exercisable at  exercisable at
Options held at Exercise 31 December 31 December
31 December price’ Exercisable’ 2006 20067
Name 2006 R period R R
Executive directors
Dr CJ Fauconnier
MJ Kilbride -
CF Meintjes . :
BJ van Staden ’ 17 550 19.62 22/412012 982 800 638 469
SA Nkosi

The exercise price of options not yet exercised on 31 December 2006 re-calculated by refarence o the 21 day volume weighted average price
split between Exxaro shares and Kurnba iron Ore shares of 32,81% and 57, 19% respectively.

?Based on a share price of R56,00 which prevaited on 37 December 20086.

Management share appreciation right scheme' for the year ended December 2007

- Pre-tax gain/

‘ Proceeds if (toss) if

exercisable at  exercisable at

Options held at Exercise 31 December 31 December

31 December price Exercisable 2007 20072
Name 2007 R period R R
Executive directors

SA Nkosi 38 680 60,60 1/3/2014 4 001 446 1 657 438
Management share scheme - long term incentive plan' for the year ended December 2007 .

Pre-tax gain/

Proceeds if {loss) if

exercisable at exercisable at

Options held at Exercise 31 December 31 December

31 December price Exercisable : 2007 20072
Name 2007 R period R R
Executive directors

SA Nkosi ) 38 €82 31/12/2009 4 001 653 4 001 653
Management share scheme - deferred bonus plan® for the year ended December 2007 R .

Pre-tax gain/

Praceads if (loss) if

exercisable at exercisable at

Options held at Exercise . 31 December 31 December
31 December price Exercisable 2007 20072
‘Name 2007 R period ‘ R R
Executive directors ’
SA Nkosi 361 86,45 31/12/2009 37345 6137

‘Schemes initiated 1 January 2007.
“Based on a share price of R1(:3,45 which prevailed on 31 December 2007.
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COptions
exercised Exercise Sale price/ Pre-tax
during price market price gain Date
the year R R R exercised
Options
exercised Exercise Sale price Pre-tax
during price market price gain Date
the year R R R exercised
28 020 59,80 12518 1831948 9/10/2006
18 450 59,80 148,79 1 641 866 20/10/2006
16650 59,80 148,79 1481684 20/10/2006
Options,
exercised Exercise Sale price/ Pre-tax .
during price market price gain Date
the year R R R exercised
Options
exercised Exercise Sale price/ Pre-tax
during price market price gain Date
the year R R R exercised
Options .
exercised Exercise Sale price/ Pre-tax
during price market price gain Date
the year R R R exercised
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income statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes Rm Am Rm Rm

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue 2 10157 7 263 636 706
Operating expenses 3 {8 713} {7 627) {697) {1 655)
Fair value adjustment on unbundling of subsidiary 17 263 18 329
NET QPERATING PROFIT/ALQSS) 1444 17 599 (61) 17 380
Interast income 4 96 5 10 36
Interest expense 4 {311) {312) (94) (145)
Income from investments 5 2 610 4 566
Income from equity accounted investments 15 728 169
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 1959 17 451 465 21 837
Taxation - 7 . (512) (578} {42) (369)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING
OPERATICNS 1447 16873 423 21 468
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED
COPERATIONS 8 2323
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1447 19 196 423 21 468
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1427 19169 423 21468
Minority interest 20 27

1447 19 196 423 21 468
ATTRIBUTABLE EARNINGS PER SHARE (CENTS)
- basic 18 6124
- diluted 402 6028
ATTRIBUTABLE EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (CENTS) ]
- basic 418 5382
— diluted 402 5297
ATTRIBUTABLE EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CENTS) 9
- basic 742
— diluted 73
Dividend paid per share {cents) in respect of the
previous financial period 160
Dividend paid per share (Cents) in respect of the
interim period 60 180 -
Special dividend paid per share (cents) on unbundling 185
Final dividend paid per share (cents) in respect of the
financial year 100
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balance sheets
at 31 December 2007

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes Rm Rm Rm Rm
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 8 235 7 583 133 108
Biological assets 13 30 28
Intangible assets 14 76 69
Investments in associates
and joint ventures 15 757 384
Investments in subsidiaries 16 1 964 1918
Deferred taxation 24 732 748 97 76
Financial assets 17 1031 693 10 42
Total non-cument assets 10 861 9 503 2204 2145
Current assets
Inventories 18 153 131
Trade and other receivables 19 1931 1663 4 583 50569
Cash and cash equivalents 850 206 306 290
Total current assets 4312 3960 4 889 5 349
Non-current assets classified as
held for sate 20 2 2
TOTAL ASSETS 15175 13 465 7 093 7 494
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 21 2 067 5139 2244 5316
" Non-distributable reserves 1502 1205 883 783
Retained earnings/loss) 6 235 1798 3118 (280).
Equity attributable o equity holders of the parent 9 804 8142 6 245 5819
Minority interest 19 27 .
Total equity 9823 8169 6 245 5819
Non-current liahilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 22 1258 1214 450 405
Non-current provisions 23 1329 931 24 21
Deferred taxation 24 1077 1116
Total non-current liabilities 3 665 3 261 474 - 426
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 1449 1321 327 646
Interést-bearing borrowings 22 74 613 55 619
Taxation 137 67 (8} {18)
Current provisions 23 27 30
Shareholders for dividend 4
Total current liabilities 1687 2035 374 1249
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15175 13 465 7 093 7 494
NET DEBT 483 921 199 734
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cash flow statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes Rm Rm Rm Rm
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated by/(utilised in} operations 26.1 2308 5068 {90) (189)
Net financing costs 2B.2 (116} (278) (83) (108)
Normal taxation paid 26.3 {462) (1927) {55) @11y
Dividends paid 26.4 (223) (3 396) {211) (3 391)
1 507 (533) {439) . (4 099)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments to maintain operations 26.5 (569) (689) {34) (60)
Investmants to expand operations ‘ 26.6 (727} (1321)
Investment in intangible assets (1}
Proceads from disposal of property, plant and
equipment . 50 170 6
Proceeds from disposal of associate 48 12
Investment in other non-current assets . 26,7 {249) {347) 33 10
Acquisition of subsidiary 27 (8) {1 545)
Proceeds from disposal of investments 26 3
Income from equity accounted invesiments 26.8 377
Income from investments 5 2 610 4 566
Foreign currency translations 26.9 6 300 5 2
{1119) {3 358) 614 4539
NET GASH INFLOW/QUTFLOW) 388 {3 891) 175 440
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
MNon-current interest-bearing borrowings raised 437 4196 300 434
Non-current interest-bearing borrowings repaid {465} (2 388) {10} (3777}
Current interest-bearing borrowings (repaid)/raised {539} {290) {563} 315
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 114 2199 114 2372
{453) 3717 {159) (656)
NET (DECREASE)INCREASE IN CASH AND .
CASH EQUIVALENTS {65} (174) 16 (216)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 906 1483 290 506
Less cash and cash equivatents of unbundled
subsidiaries : (403}
Special purpose entities consolidated )
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR 850 908 306 290
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GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes Rrm Rm Rm Rm
CALCULATION OF MCVEMENT IN NET DEBT: '
Net cash inflow/{outflow) as above 388 (3891)
Add:
- shares issued 114 2199
- share-based payments 54)
- increase in net debt on acquisition of subsidiary {25) (120)
- special purpose entities consolidated 9
- non-cash flow movements in net debt applicable
to currency translation differences of transactions
denominated in foreign currency 59 16
- non-cash flow movernents in net debt applicable to
currency translation differences of net debt items of
foreign entities 26.9 (107) (185)
- net debt of unbundled subsidiaries 2762
DECREASE IN NET DEBT 438 717

]
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group statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2007

Non-distributable reserves
Foreign
Share Share currency
capital premium - translation
Rm Rm Rm
OPENING BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER 2005 3 2937 (29)
Net gains/(losses) not recognised in income statement’ 433
Currency translation differences : . 438
Share of reserve movements of associates ' 6
Share-based paymenits movement
Financial instruments fair value movements recognised
in equity?
— recognised in current year profit or loss
- recognised in equity
Deferred taxation (11)
Net profit!
Dividends paid?
Share repurchase? ‘
Dividend in specie - fair value {25)
Dividend in specie — fair value adjustmant .
Dividend in specie — net asset value {25)
Issue of share capital . 1 237
Issue of share capital to share trusts . (173)

BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER 2006 4 5135 379

Net gains/{losses) not recognised in income statement? 148

Currency translation differences 179

Share of reserve movernents of associates {13)

Share-based payments movement

Financial instruments fair value movements recognised
in equity? .

- recognised in current year profit or loss

- recognised in equity

— fair value adjustment

Deferred taxation (18)

Net profit!

Dividends paid®'

Issue of share capitat* 23

Share placemeant® o

—.issue ' 640

- repurchase {460)

— expenses ' : (89)

Transfer to retained income ’

Minority share-tuy out

Special purpose entities now consolidated

Prior year dividend in specie reclassification {3 186)

BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 4 2063 527

‘Total recognised gains and losses A1 749 million (2006: R20 347 million).

2The STC on these dividends amount to Rnil milion after taking into account STC cradits (2006; R424 milion).

3Gains or losses through hedging reserve.

“Issued to the Kumba Resources Managernent Share Trust due to options exercised.

®Repurchase of 10 milion shares from Anglo South Africa (Pty) Limited on 13 April 2007 at R45,99 per share and the
subsaquent re-issue of 10 million new Exxaro shares at R64 per share, STC on the shara repurchase of R57,5 milion Is
included in net profit,
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Non-distributable reserves

Financial Equity- Attributable to
instruments settled Insurance Retained equity holders Minority Total
revaluation reserve reserve income  of the parent interest equity
Rm Rm Rm Rm Am Rm Rm
{9) 88 4325 7319 9 7328
31 714 1178 1178
1 439 439
(1) 3 8 "8
711 71 711
8 8 8
33 33 33
(10) 213 - {21)
: 18 169 19169 27 19196
(1 628} (1628) {9 (1637
(1 763) (1 763) (1 763)
2) (18 305) {18 332 (18 332)
(17 966) {17 966} (17 966)
(2} {339) {366) {3686}
2372 2372
(173) {173}
24 ) 802 1798 8142 .27 : 8169
{17} 182 9 322 (4} 318
e 176 176
1 49 2 46 46
133 133 133
(38 (36) (4) {40)
1 1 1
20 2 2
1427 1427 20 1 447
{208) (208) . () {219)
23 23
N 91
G40 640
(460) {460)
{89 (89)
{18) 16 .
: (13) (13)
7 7 7
3186
7 968 6 235 9 804 19 9823

© 000000000000 0C0OCOCOLIOIOO®OOLC

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency transtation reserve comprises all foreign exchan?e differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities that are not integral to the operations of the group.

Financial instruments revaluation reserve

The financial instruments revaluation reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of
cash flow hedging instruments where the hedged transaction has not yet occurred.

Equity-settled reserve

The equity-settled reserve represents the fair value of services received and settled by equity instruments granted.
lnsurance reserve .

The insurance reserve represents the unrealised portion of commission receivable from re-insurers.
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company statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2007

Non-distributable reserves

Foreign Financial

Equity-

Share Share currency instruments settled Insurance Retained Total

capital premium translation revaluation reserve reserve income equity
AT 31 DECEMBER 2005 3 2941 72 (25) 2991
Net gains not
recognised in income
statement! 711 711
Share-based payment
moverment 711 711
Net profit! 21468 21468
Share repurchase? (1763) (1763)
Cividends paid? (1628) {1628)
Dividend in specie - fair value (18 332) (18 332)
Dividlend in specie — fair value
adjustment (18329) (18 329)
Dividend in specie - net carrying
amount 3) 3
Issue of share capital 1 2 371 2372
BALANCE AT
31 DECEMBER 2006 : 4 5312 783 (280) 5819
Net gains not recognised in
income statement? 100 100
Share-based payment
movement 100 100
Net profit! 423 423
Cash dividends paid? {211) {211)
Issue of share capitaf 23 23
Share placement® 91 9
~ issue . 640 640
- repurchase (460) (460)
- expenses (89) (89}
Prior year dividend in specie
reclassification {3 186) 3186
BALANCE AT
31 DECEMBER 2007 4 2240 883 3118 6 245

- 'Total recognised gains and fosses R523 miflion (2006: R22 179 million).

2The STC on these dividends amount to Rnil million after taking into account STC cradits (2006: A424 million).

Yssued to the Kumba Resources Management Share Trust due to options exercised.

*‘Repurchase of 10 milion shares from Angio South Africa (Pty) Limited on 13 April 2007 at R45,99 per share and the subsequent re-issue of
10 miltion new Exxaro shares at R4 per share. STC on the share repurchase of R57,5 milfion is included in net profit.
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notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2007

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies of the group and the disclosures made in the annual financial statements comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards effective for the group’s financial year.

The financiat statements are prepared on the historical cost basis modified by the restaternent of financial instruments and
hiological assets to fair value.

Where comparative financial information is reported, the accounting policies have been applied consistentty for all periods.

Adoption of new and revised standards
The following standards and interpretations have been applied, whera relevant, to the financial statements for the period
ended 31 December 2007:

- IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29, Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies, efiective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006.

- IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006.

- IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2008.

- IFRIC 10 interim Financial Reporting and impairment, effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 November 2006.

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments; Disclosure, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

— Circular 08/07 Headline Earnings, effective for annual periods ending on or after 31 August 2007,

At the date of autharisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations were in issue but not

yet effective:

~IFRIC 11 IFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share transactions, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007.

—IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.

~IFRIC 13 Customer Loyaity Programmes, effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 Juty 2008.

- IFRIC 14 I1AS 10 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their interaction, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.

- IFRS 8 Operating Segments, effective for annual periods beginning on or atter 1 January 2008,

~ Revised |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.

- Ravised IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.

- Revised IAS 23 Borrowing Costs, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2000.

- Revised IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009.

- Revised IFRS 3 Business Combinations, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

The directors believe that nons of these new or ravised standards and interpretations will have an effect other than

enhanced disclosure.

Basis of consolidation

The group annual financial statements present the consalidated financial position and changes therein, operating results
and cash flow information of the company and its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are those entities in which the group has an

interest of more than half of the vating rights or the power to exercise control so as to obtain benefits from their activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included for the duration-of the period in which the group exercises control over the
subsidiary. All intercompany transactions and resultant profits and losses between group companies are eliminated on
consolidation. Where necessary.' accounting policies for subsidiaries are changed to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the group. If it is not practicat to change the policies, the appropriate adjustments are made on consofidation
to ensure consistency within the group.

The results of special purpose entities that, in substance, are controlled by the group, are consolidated.

The company carries its investments in subsidiaries at cost less accumutated impairment losses.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill
Goodwill is reflected at cost less accumulated impairment Iossés. if any. It represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the fair valus of the group's share of the identifiable net assets and contingent liabilities of that entity at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill is assessed for impairment on an‘annual basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of an entity includes the balance of goodwil relating to the entity.

Negative goodwill arising on a business combination represents the excess ot the fair value of the net identifiable assets
and contingent liabilities of the entity acquired over the cost of acquisition, and is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investments in associates and joint ventures .
The company carries its investments in associates and joint ventures at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

An associate is an entity over which the group has the ablllty to exercise significant influence, but which it does not
control,

A joint venture is an entity jointly controlled by the group and one or more other venturers in terms of a contractual
arrangement requiring unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions. it may involve a corporation,
partnership or other entity in which the group has an interest. '

Investments in associates are accounted for in the group financial statements using the equity method for the duration
of the period in which the group has the ability to exercise significant influence. Equity accounted income reprasents the
group's proportionate share of profits of these entities and the share of taxation thereon. The retained earnings of an
associate, net-of any dividends, are classified as distributable reserves.

Where the group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the carmying amount of the associate, the investment in the
associate is carried at nil value. Additional losses are only recognised to the extent that the group has incurred further
funding obligations or provided guarantees or surities in respect of the associate.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for in the group financial statements using the proportionate consolidation
method. '

Whare necessary, the results of associates and joint ventures are restated to ensure consistency with group policies.
Unrealised profits and losses are eliminated.

The group’s interest in associates is carried in the balance sheet at an amount that reflects its share of the net assets and
the unimpaired portion of goodwill on acquisition. Goodwill on the acquisition of associates and joint ventures is treated in
accordance with the group's accounting policy for goodwill.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and extensions under construction are stated at cost and are not depreciated. Buildings, including certain non-
mining residential buildings and alf other items of property, plant and equipment are reflacted at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged on a systemalic basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets after taking into account the
estimated residual value of the assets. Useful life is gither the peried of time over which the asset is expectad to be used
or the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the use of the asset.

Moutds and refractory furnace relines are depreciated based on the usage thereof.

Items of property, plant and equipment are capitalised in components where components have a different usefut life to the
main item of property, plant and equipment to which the component can be logically assigned.

The estimated useful life of assets and their residual values, are re-assessed pericdically with any changes in such
accounting estimates being adjusted in the financial year of re-assessment and applied prospectivety.
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The sstirmated useful lives of tems of property, plant and equipment are:

Mineral sands

2007 Coal Base metals
Buiidings and infrastructure
{including residential buildings) 2 - 25 years 3-40ysars 8 years - indefinite
Mineral properties 2 - 25 years 3-25years
Fixed plant and equipment 2 - 25 years 2,6 - 25 years 2 - 50 years
Mobile equipment, built-in process
computers, underground mining 16 000 - 40 000 hours
equipment and reconditionable spares or 2 — 16 years 2,5 - 20 years 2 - 15 years
Loose tools and computer equipment 2 -5 years 2,5-10 years 2 -8 years
Development costs 8-20 yeérs 4 - 10 years
Refractory relines 4 -6 years
Site preparation, mining development and
exploration 2-25vyears 3-25years
Industrial minerals Other

Buildings and infrastructura
{including residential buildings) 10 - 25 years 20 - 25 years
Mineral properties :
Fixed plant and equipment 5 - 25 years 5-10 years
Mobile equipment, built-in process
computers, underground mining equipment .
and reconditionable spares 5 - 15 years 5 years

" Loose tools and computer equipment 5 years 5 years '
Site preparation, mining development and :
exploration 20 years 5 years
2006 Iron cre’ Coal Mineral sands
Buildings and infrastructure
{including residential buildings) 5- 25 years 2 — 25 years 4 — 40 years
Mineral properties 10 - 25 years 2 ~ 25 years 10 - 25 years
Fixed plant and equipment 4 - 25 years 2-25years 2,5-25years
Mobile equipment, built-in process
computers, underground mining equipment 16 000 — 40 000 hours
and reconditionable spares 2 -~ 25 years " or2-17 years 2,5 - 20 years
Loose tools and computer equipment 5 years 2 - 10 years 2,5=10 years
Development costs 5-6years 8- 20 years 4 - 10 years
Refractory relines 4 - 6 years
Site preparation, mining development and
exploration 5— 25 years 2 - 25 years 3 - 25 years

' Base metals Industrial minerals Qther
Buildings and infrastructure
(including residential buildings) 7 years - indefinite 10 - 25 years 20 - 25 years
Mineral properties :
Fixed plant and equipment . 5 - 25 years 5— 25 years 5-10years
Mabile equipment, built-in process '
computers, underground mining equipment .
and reconditionable spares 2 -20years 5-15years 5 years
L.oose tools and computer equipment 2 -8 years Syears 5 years
Site preparation, mining development and
exploration 7 - 25 years 20 years 5 years

'\Estimated uselul ife as applied up to 31 October 2006 bafore the unbunedling of the iron ore business as part of the empowarment transaction.
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notes to the annuaﬂ financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Maintenance and repairs which neither materially add to the value of assets nor appreciably prolong their useful lives are
taken to profit or loss.

Direct attributable expenses relating to mining and other major capital projects, site preparations and exploration are
capitalised until the asset is brought to a working condition for its intended use. These costs include dismantling and site
restoration costs to the extent that these are recognised as a provision.

Financing costs directly associated with the construction or acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalised at interest rates
relating to loans specifically raised for that purpose, or at the average borrowing rate where the general pool of group
borrowings was utilised. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the asset is substantially complete.

Directly attributable costs associated with the acquisition, development and installation of certain software are capitalised.
Such assets are depreciated using the amortisation methods and periods applicable to computer equipment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are taken to profit or loss.

Leased assets

Leases involving plant and eguipment whereby the lessor provides finance to the group with the asset as security and
where the group assumes substantially all the benefits and risks of cwnership, are classified as finance leases. Assets
acquired in terms of finance leases are capitalised at the lower of fair value and the present value of the minimum

lease payments at inception of the lease and depreciated over the usefu! life of the asset. The capital element of future
obligations under the leases is included as a liability in the balance sheet. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The interest element of
the finance charge is charged against income over the lease period using the effective interest rate method.

For a sale and leaseback transaction that results in a finance lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying
" amount is deferred and recognised on the straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Leases of assets 10 the group under which all the risks and benafits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor, are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged against income on the straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Arrangements that contain the right to use an asset are evaluated for recognition, classification as a finance- or operating
lease, measured, and accounted for accordingly.

Biological assets
Biological assets are measured on initial recognition and at each balance sheet date at their fair value less estimated point-
of-sale costs and any change in value is included in the net profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Flantations are measured at their fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs. The fair value of the plantations is
determined by an independent a_ppraiser, based on the Faustman Formula as applied within the forestry industry.

Livestock are measured at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs, fair value beir'lg determined by the age and size
of the animals and the market price. Market price is determined on the basis that the animal is sold to be slaughtered.
Livestock held for sale is classified as consumable biclogical assets (inventories).

Game is measured at fair value fess estimated point-of-sale costs, fair value being determined as the market price.

Market price is deterrnined with reference to the most recent live auction selling prices. Game held {or sale is classified as
consumable biological assets (inventories).
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Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recegnised at cost |f it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and
the cost can be reliably measured. Amortisation is charged on a systematic basis over the estimated useful lives of the

" intangible assets.

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible assets is capitalised only if it increases the future benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. )

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
amortisation methods and estimated remaining useful lives are reviewed at least annually, The estimated maximum useful
lives of intangible assets in respect of patents, licences and franchises are 25 years.

The carrying amounts are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.

Research, development and exploration costs

Research, development and exploration costs are charged against income until they result in projects that are evaluated
as being technically or commercially feasible, the group has sufficient resources to complete development and can
dernonstrate how the asset will generate future economic benefits, in which event these costs are capitalised and
amortised on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the project or asset. The carrying amounts are
reviewed at each balance shest date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each baiance sheet date to determine whather there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated as the higher of the net selling price and the
value in use.

In assessing value in use, the expected future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. :

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to datermine the
recoverable amount, however not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined {net
of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. For goodwill a recognised impaimment loss is not
reversed.

Financial instruments

Recognition

A financial instrument is recognised when the group becomes a party to a contract which entitles it to receive contractuatly
agreed cash flows on the instrument. All acquisitions of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame
established by regulation or market convention (regular-way purchases} are recognised at trade date, which is the date on
which the group commits to acquire the asset.

. Derecognition

The group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the rights 10 receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred. Any interest in financial assets transferred that is
created or retained by the group is recognised as a separate asset or liability. :
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notes to the annual financial statements continved
for the year ended 31 December 2007

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

The group may enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all
risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained,
then the transferred assets ara not derecognised from the balance sheet.

The rights and obligations retained in the transfer of financial instruments are recognised separately as assets and
liabilities as appropriate. In transfers where control over the asset is retained, the group continues to recognise the asset
10 the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changas in the valug of the
ransferred asset. ’

Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-denivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt instruments, trade and other payables, cash
and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings and trade and other receivables.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case where financial instruments ars
not ai fair value through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, non-
derivative financial instruments are measured as described below.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
form an integral part of the group's cash management system and are included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for purposes of the cash flow statements. Cash and cash asquivalenis are measured at amortised cost.

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or foss

The group has designated financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or Ioss when either;

- the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair vatue basis; .

- the designation efiminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise; or

- the assets or llabilities contain an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
reguired under the contract and has to be separately disclosed and fair-valued through profit or loss.

All of the group's financial instruments designated as at fair-vatue through profit or loss were designated as such as it is
believed that the designation significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise,

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial instruments designated or classified as at fair-value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. '

Available-for-sale financial assets .

The group has designated certain assets as available-for-sale financial assets. In other circumstances available-tor-sale
financial assets are classified as such because they do not fall within the classification of loans and receivables, held to
‘maturity investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised directly in equity, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary
iterns. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised
in profit or loss. :

Financial instruments not at fair value through profit or loss, and not available-for-sale

- Receivables
Long-term receivables and trads and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or fiability {or
group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and atlocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. Amortised cost is the amount at which the long-term receivables and tracde and cther receivables are measured
at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
rate method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for
impairment or uncollectibility.
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- Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the effective interast rate method.

- Payables
Trade and other payables are reported at amontised cost, namely criginal debt less principal repayments and any
amortisation using the effective interast rate method. :

- Investrnent in equity instruments
The fair value of investments is based on quoted bid prices for listed securities or valuations derived from discounted
cash flow models for unlisted securities. Equity instruments for which fair values cannot be measured reliably are
recognised at cost less impairment. When equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the profit or loss statement as gains and losses from investment
securities.

- Held-to-maturity investments
Investments with a fixed maturity that management has the intent and ability 1o hold to maturity are classified as held-’
to-maturity. These investments are included in non-current assets, except for matusities within 12 months from the
balance sheet date, which are classified as current assets.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Denivative financial instruments .

The group holds derivative financial instruments 1o hedge its foreign currency, interest rate and price risk exposures.
Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the economic characteristics
and risks of the host contract and the embedded derivative are not closely related, a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative, and the combined instrument is not measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivative instruments are recognised initially at fair value; attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss
when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative instruments are measured at fair value, and changes in fair
value accounted for as described below.

Fair value hedges -

When a derivative is designated as a hedge of the change in fair value of a recognised asset or liability or a firm
commitment, changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognised immediately in profit or loss together with changes
in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer meets the criteria for fair value hedge accounting,
or the designation is revoked, hedge accounting is discontinued. Any adjustment up to that point, to a hedged item for
which the effective interest rate method is used, is amortised to profit or loss as part of the re-calculated effective interest
rate of the itern over its remaining life. '

Cash flow hedges

When a denivative is designated as a hedge of the variahbility in cash flows attributable to a particular risk associated with

a recognised asset or liability or a highty probable forecast transaction that could affect profit or loss, the effective portion

of changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognised directly in equity. The amount recognised in equity is removed !
and included in profit or loss in the same period as the hedged item's cash flows affect profit or loss under the same

income statement line itern as the hedged item. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is

recognised immediately in profit or loss. '

If the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer meets the criteria for cash flow hedge accounting,
or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued and tha armount recognised in equity remains in
equity until the forecast transaction affects profit or loss. If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, then
hedge accounting is discontinued and the balance in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}

Economic hedges

Hedge accounting is not applied to derivative instruments that econormically hedge monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies. Changes in the fair value of such derivatives are recognised in profit or loss as part of
foreign currency gains and losses.

- Net investments in foreign operation hedges

When a derivative, or a non-derivative financial liability, is designated as a hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument is recognised directly

in equity, in the foreign currency translation reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative
instrument is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The amount recognised in equity is removed and included in profit
or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

Separable embedded derivatives
Changes in the fair value of separable embedded derivatives are recognised immediately in profit or 10ss,

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objeciive evidence that it is
impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have
had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. An impairment allowance is raised when there
is an indication of i'mpairrnent and a write-off is only effected when the debtor Is deemed to be fully impaired and not
recoverable,

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
cartying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
An impairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference to its fair valua.

Individually significant financial agsets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are
assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

Allimpairment lasses are recognised in profit or loss. Any cumulative loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset
recognised previously in equity ts transferred to profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost and available-for-sate financial assets that are debt
sacurities, the reversal is recognised in profit or loss. For available-for-sale financial assets that are equity securities, the
reversal is recognised directly in equity.

Offset .

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the
group has a tegal right to set off the amounts and intends either to setile on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Determining fair vailues

The determinaticn of fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based on quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations for financial instruments traded in active markets. For all other financiat instruments fair value is determined by
using generally accepted valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value technigues, the discounted
cash flow method, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, and vatuation models.
The group uses widely recognised valuation models for determining the fair value of common and more simple financial
instruments like interest rate and currency swaps. For these financial instruments, inputs into models are available on the
market,
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The fair value of long and medium-term borrowings is calculated using quoted market prices, or where such prices are
not avaitable, discounted cash flow analyses using the applicable vield curve for the duration of the borrowing are used.
The fair value of financiat assets and financial abilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liguid
markets, is determined with reference to quoted market prices. The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analyses using prices from widely available current markst transactions. The fair value of derivative
instruments is calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available use is made of discounted cash flow
analysis for the duration of the instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives.

Financial guarantee conlracts
Financial guarantees are contracts thai require the group to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs bacause a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms ot a debt instrument.

Financlal guarantee liabilities are i.nitially recognised at thelr fair value, and the initiat fair value is amortised over the life

of the financial guarantee. The guarantee liabiiity is subsequently carried at the higher of this amortised amount and the
present value of any expected payment if a payment under the guarantee has become probable. Financial guarantees are
included within other liabilities.

Net finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested including available-for-sale financial assets and hedging
instruments that are recognised in profit or loss. Interest income is recegnised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the
effective interest rate method.

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings and agreements for ihe use of assets classified as finance
leases in terms of IFRIC 4, unwinding of the discount on provisions, and dividends on preference shares classified as
liabilities. All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest rate method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a nat basis.

Fees and commission

Fees and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or financial
liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate.

Other fees and commission expense relate mainly to transaction and service fees and are expensed as the services are
received. '

Inventories )
Inveniories are valued at the lower of cost, determined on the moving average basis, and net realisable value.

The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and fixed
production overheads, but excludes interest charges. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal
capacity. Write downs to net realisable value and inventory losses are expensed in the period in which the write downs or
losses occour.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

1,

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (centinued

Foreign currencies '

Transactions and balances .

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the transaction date.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
Gains or losses arising on translation are credited to or charged against income.

Foreign entities )
The financial statements of foreign entities are translated into South African rand as follows:

- assets and liabilities at rates of exchange ruling at balance sheet date.
—income, expenditure and cash flow items at weighted average rates.
- goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition at rates of exchange ruling at balance shest date.

All resufting exchange differences are reflected as part of shareholders' equity. On disposal, such translation differences
are recognised in the income statement as part of the cumulative gain or loss on disposal. '

Foreign currency hedges
Foreign currency hedges are dealt with in the financial instruments accounting policy.

Exchange rates used

The average US dollar to South African rand conversion rate, where applicable, of US$1:R7,03 (2006: US$1:R6,70) has
been used to translate the income and cash flow statements while the balance sheet has been translated at the closing
rate at the last day of the reporting period US$1:R6,7864 (2006: US$1 :R6,9750).

Revenue recognition
Revenue, which excludes value added tax, reprasents the gross value of goods invoiced. Export revenues are recorded
according to the relevant sales terms, when the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are
transferred to the buyer.

Revenue arising from services and royalties is recognised on the accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreements.

Interest and dividend income
Interest is recognised on the time proportion basis, taking account of the principal outstanding and the effective rate over
the period to maturity, when it is determined that such income will accrue to the group.

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Taxation .
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years in determination
of taxable profit (temporary differences), and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible (non-temporary
differences). The group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or'constructive obligation as a result of past events, for
which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the effect of discounting to present value is material, provisions are
adjusted to reflect the time value of money, and where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. ’

Decommissioning and environmental rehabilitation

Provision is made for environmental rehabilitation and decommissioning costs where either a legal or constructive
obligation is recognised as a result of past events. Estimates are based upon costs that are regularly reviewed and
adijusted as appropriate for new circumstances.

Where a provision is made for dismantling and site restoration costs, an asset of similar initial value is raised and amortised
in accordance with the group's accounting policy for property, plant and equipment.

Annual contributions are made to the group's Environmenta!l Rehabflitation Fund, created in accordance with statutory
requirements, to provide for the funding of the estimated cost of pollution centrol and rehabilitation during, and at the end
of the life of mines. The Bxxaro Environmental Rehabiiitation Fund is consolidated.

Expenditure on plant and equipment for peltution control is capitalised and depreciated over the useful lives of the assets
whilst the cost of ongoing current programmes to prevent and control pollution and to rehabilitate the environment is
chargad against profit or loss as incurred.

Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation is provided using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences between the carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes and the amounis used for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the associated unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred
tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no fonger probable that sufficient

* taxable profits will be available to allow alt or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation is calculated using taxation rates that have been enacied at balance sheet date. The effect on deferred
taxation of any changes in taxation rates is charged 1o the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
previously charged or credited.directly to'equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Employee benefits

Post-employment benefits

Retiremant

The group provides defined contribution retirement funds for the benefit of employees, the assets of which are held

in separate funds. These funds are funded by contributicns from employees and the group, taking account of the
recommendations of independent actuaries. The group's contribution to the defined contribution fund is charged to the
income statement in the year to which it relates.

The group does not provide guarantees in respect of returns in the defined contribution funds.
Exxaro is no longer a participating employer in any defined benefit funds. _

Medical .

A post-retirement medical contribution obligation exists for a selective number of in-service and retired employees of the
accredited medical aid funds. This benefit is ne longer offered to emplovees. The actuarially determined liability is raised as
a nor-current provision.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

- 1, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Short and long-term benefits

The cost of all short-term employee henefits, such as salaries, bonuses, housing allowances, medical and other
contributions, are recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The vesting portion of long-term benefits is recognised and provided for at balance sheet date, based on current total cost
to company.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee's employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits, '

The group recognises termination benefits when it has demonstrated its commitment to either terminate the employment
of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or to provide termination benefits
as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. If the benefits fall due more than 12 months after balance
sheet date, they are discounted to present value.

Equity compensation benefits
Senior management, including executive directors, have been granted share options and share appreciation rights (SARS).

The share appreciation.rights are subject to achievement of performance-related criteria before vesting. Grants are based
on existing ordinary shares and can be purchased or the purchase can be deferred. The option or purchase price equals
the market price on the date preceding the date of the grant.

When the options or SARs vest and are exercised, they can either be:

- purchased and if vesting according to the rules ‘of the scheme, recorded in share capital and share premium at the
amount of the option price, or

- payment can be deferred resulting in no increase in share capital or share premiurm until paid.for and vesting according
to the rules of the scheme.

The falr value of the options or SARs granted te senior management including executive directors, has been determined
at grant date using a suitable option pricing model and expensed over the vesting pericd of the cptions or SARS with a
comresponding increase in equity.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability equal to the portion of the goods or services recefved is recognised at
the current fair value determined at each balance sheet date.

Dividend :

Dividends paid are recognised by the company when the shareholder’s right (o receive payment is established. These
dividends are recorded and disclosed as dividends paid in the statement of changes in equity. Dividends proposed or
declared subsequent to the year end are not recognised at the balance sheet date, but are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Secondary tax on companies
Taxation costs incurred on dividends are included in the taxation line in the income statement in the year in which the
related dividends are declared.

Discontinued operations and non-current assets held for sale
Discontinued operations are significant, distinguishable components of an enterprise that have been sold, abandoned or
are the subject of formal plans for disposal or discontinuance. ’

The profit or loss on the sale or abandonment of a discontinued operation is determined from the formalised
discontinuance date. )

If the carrying amount of a non-current asset or disposal group will be recovered principally through a'sale transaction
rather than through continuing use, such an asset is classified as non-current assets held for sale and measured at the
lower of caying amount and fair value less cost to sell. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
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probable and the asset (or disposal group} is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be
commitied 10 the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.

Segment reporting
The primary business segments are coal, mineral sands, base metals, and indusirial minerals, whilst a significant equity
accounted interest is held in iron ore.

On a secondary segment basis, significant geographic marketing regions have been identified.

The basis of segment reporting is representative of the internal structure used for management reporting.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call, and
investments in money markat instruments, net of bank overdratts, all of which are available for use by the group unless
otherwise stated. The carrying amount of these assets approximate their fair value.

Judgements made by management

The following judgements, apart from those involving estimates (as mentioned below) have been made by management in
the process of applying the group's accountlng policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financia statements:

the identification of special purpose entities controllad by the group which must be consolidated {refer note 29},

in applying IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, management has made judgements
as to which non-current assets and discontinued operations fall within the scope of the standard and had to be
reclassified and measured in terms of IFRS 5;

in applying IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, management has made certain judgements in respect of the fair value option
pricing models to be used in determining the various share-based arrangements in respect of employees, as well as the
variable elements used in these models (refer note 31).

in applying IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease, and IAS 17, Leases, contractual agreements
were assessed 1o determing whether thay convey the right to use an asset and their ¢lassification as either an operating
or finance tease.

Key assumptions made by management in applying accounting policies

The following key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year if the assumption or estimation changes significantly:

Going concern

Management considers key financial metrics and loan covenant compliance in its approved mediurm-term budgets,
together with its existing term facilities, to conclude that the going concern assumption used in the compiling of its annual
financial statements, is relevant.

Environmental and decommissicning provision

Provision is made for environmental and decommissioning costs where either a legal or constructive obligation is
recognised as a result of past events. Estimates are made in determining the present obligation of environmental and
decommissioning provisions, which inctude the actual estimate, the discount rate used and the expected date of closure
of mining activities in determining the present value of environmental and decommissioning provisions. Estimates are
based upon costs that are regularly reviewed, by internal and external experts, and adjusted as appropriate for new
circumstances. Refer note 23.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}

Key assumptions made by management in applying accounting policies (continued)

Other provisions .

For other provisions, estimates are made of legal or constructive obligations resulting in the raising of provisions, and the
expected date of probable outflow of econcmic benefits to assass whether the provision should be discounted. Refer note 23.

Impairments and impairment reversats ]

Impairment tests-are performed when there is an indication of impairment of assets or a reversal of previous impairments
of assets. Management therefore has implemented certain impairment indicators and these include movements in
exchange rates, commoedity prices and the economic environment its businesses operate in. Estimates are made in
determining the recoverable amount of assets which include the estimation of cash fiows and discount rates used. In
estimating the cash flows, management base cash flow projections on reasonable and supportable assumptions that
represent managements’ best estimate of the range of economic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life

of the assets, based on publicly avaitable information. The discount rates used are pre-tax rates that reflect the current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which the future cash flow estimates
have not been adjusted. Refer note 8.

Contingent liabilities

Management considers the existence of possible obligations which may arise from legal action as well as the possible
non-compliance of the requirements of completion guarantees and other guarantees provided. The estimation of the
amount disclosed is based on the expected possible outflow of economic benefits should there be a present obligation,
Refer note 32.

Deferred taxation assets
Deferred taxation assets are recognised based on the probability that sufficient future taxable income will be available to
reduce the asset carried.

This requires management to make assumptions on a subsidiary by subsidiary level of future taxable income in
determining the deferred taxation asset to be raised. Refer note 24

Useful life and residual values

The depreciable amount of assets are allocated on a systermatic basis over its useful life. In determining the depreciable
amount management makes certain assumptions in respect to the residual value of assets based on the expected
estimated amount that the entity would currentty obtain from disposal of the asset, after daducting the estimated cost of
disposal. If an asset is expected to be abandoned the residual value is estimated at zero.

In determining the useful life of assets management considers the expected usage of assets, expected physical wear and
tear, legal or similar limits of assets such as mineral rights as well as ohsolescence. ’

Mineral resources

Management make estimates of mineral resources and ore reserves in accordance with the SAMREC Code (2000} for
South African properties and the JORC Code (2004) for Australian properties. Such estimates relate to the category for
the resource {(measured, indicated or inferred), the guantum and the grade.

Black economic empowerment (BEE) credentials .
The difference between the fair value of equity instruments issued as part of an empowerment transaction, and the
identifiable consideration received for such issue, représents a BEE credential expense that does not meet the recognition
criteria of an intangible asset and has been expensed through the income staterment,
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v
. GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
. Notes Rm Rm Rm Rm
2. REVENUE
Sale of goods 10157 13746 3
. Services 636 703
10157 13 746 636 706
. Revenue from discontinued operations 6 483
. Revenue from continuing operations 10157 7 263 636 706
3. COPERATING EXPENSES
Cost by type
. — Raw materials and consumables 3089 2 842 28 52
- Staff costs
- salaries and wages 2112 1984 318 305
. - share-based payments 105 185 37 116
- termination benefits ) 4 7 : 4 3
- pension and medical costs 185 186 27 26
. — Income from sale of investment 39 (15)
- General charges 1447 2006 283 570
) — Share-based payment: BEE credential -
. expense ) 580 580
- Railage and transport 446 1389 1 2
- Repairs and maintenance 1068 a37 4 3
. - Impairment charges 6 17 784
- Excess of minority interest over cost of :
acquisition (36)
. . - Energy 382 348 5 4
- Depreciation on property, plant and
©equipment 12 760 810 10 9
. - Amortisation of intangible assets 14 3 3
- Movement in inventories (840} . (937)
- Own work capitalised . {40} (37)
. — Sublease rentals received (25) (10 (20}
] 8713 11012 697 1 655
Operating expenses from discontinued )
operations 3 385
. Operating expenses from continuing
operations 8713 ) 7 627 697 1655
Cost by function 4
. - Costs of goods sold/services rendered ' 8287 8890 nv 1670
- Selling and distribution costs 434 1423
- Subleasa rentals received (25) . (10) {20}
. - Impairment charges B 17 784
- Excess of minority interest over cost of
acquisition (36)
. - Income from sale of investment {39) {15}
§713 11012 697 1 655
Operating expenses from discontinued
. operations 3385
] Operating expenses from continuing
operations 8713 7 627 697 16565
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notes to the annual financial statements continued ®
for the year ended 31 December 2007
GROUP COMPANY .
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes Rm Rm Rm Rm
OPERATING EXPENSES (continued} .
The above costs are stated after including:
Auditors’ remunaration
- audit fees 12 10 4 4 .
- other services 1 5 4
Consuttancy fees 75 254 22 181
Contingent rentals paid 9 8 .
Contingent rentals received 22) {53)
Cost of empowerment transaction,
unbundling, integration and branding 241 241 .
Depreciation and amortisation
- land and buildings 12 2
— minerat properties 12 164 59 .
- residential buildings i2 3
- buildings and infrastructure 12 74 a0
- machinery, plant and equipment 12 486 615 10 9 .
- leased assets under finance leases 12 10 11
- site preparation, mining development,
exploration and rehabilitation 12 21 35 .
— amortisation of intangible assets 14 3 3
Directors' emoluments (refer to the report
of the directors page 160) .
— executive directors
— remuneration received as directors of the
company 13 15 .
- bonuses and cash incentives 11 21
— compengation on retirement from ' )
executive office 4 .
- non-executive directors
- remuneration received as directors of the
company 2 2
Excess of minority interest over cost of .
acquisition {36) .
Exploration expenditure {equates to exploration
cash flow for the year) 54 39 .
Fair value {gains)losses on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss:
— designated upon initial recognition (51) (82) 2} 7y .
— held for trading (54} - 260 1) (44)
EXXARO ANNUAL REPDRT 2007
196 .



GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006

Notes Rm Rm Rm Rm
OPERATING EXPENSES (continuad)
Fair value (gains)fosses on financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss:
~designated upon initial recognition (@)
-held for trading {7} (34)
Loss on loans and receivables disclosed at
amortised cost 77
Impairment charges 6 17 784
Inventories write down to net realisable value 155 1
lnventories previously written down reversed {18)
Movement in provisions 23 241 227 2 6
Net loss/(profit) on disposal or scrapping of
property, plant and squipment 13 4] (6
Net profit on disposal of investment (39 (15)
Net realised losses/{profit) on currency
exchange differences 42 (199 12 37
Met unrealised losses on currency exchange
differances 32 97 2 75
Operating lease rentals expenses
- property 30 23 32 23
- equipment 51 77 15 16
Operating sublease rentals received
- property (25) (10} {20
Reconditionable spares usage 4 5
Research and development costs 6 7 4 5
Impairment charges, reversals and write-offs

1 {3) 3

of trade and other receivables

Note:
Pensions

Retirement amounts paid or receivable by executive directors are paid or received under defined contribution retirement

funds.
Lease arrangements - contingent rent received

The group has entered into various lease arrangements, of which some will include contingent rent received, the major

arrangements’ basis o determine contingent rent received are;
- 25% of all extraordinary maintenance of the building;

- the useful life of property, plant and equipment.
Lease arrangements — contingent rent paid

The basis to determine contingent rent paid is the difference between fixed escalations as specified in the contracts and

PP escalations.
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notes t0 the annual financial statements continved
for the year ended 31 December 2007

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Am Rm
4.  NET FINANCING COSTS ' o

Interest expanse and foan costs 153 354 93 144
Finance leases 59 39
Interest income (96) {115} (10) (36)
Net interest expense 116 278 83 108
Interest adjustment on non-current provisions
{refer note 23) 899 ~ 5B 1 1

215 336 84 109
Financing charges attributable to discontinued
operations included in net financing cost
above:
Interest income - (110
Interest expense : 139

29
Financing charges atiributable to continuing
operations included in net financing cost
above: )
interest income . ' (96) {5)
Interest expense 311 312
' 215 307

No financing costs were capitalised during the
year {2006: Rnil}
Included in net interest expense is the
following:
Interast expensa on financial liahilities
measured at amortised cost 128 272 50 65
Interest expense on bank overdrafts . 3 3 2
Included in interest income is the following:
Interest income on unimpaired held to maturity
investrnents 2
Interest income on unimpaired loans and .
receivables ) {11) @ 1) {2)
Interest income on cash and cash equivalents (83) . (B 7} {33)
Net fee costs on financial assets not at fair
value through profit or loss ‘ 2
Net fee costs on financial liabilities not at fair
value through profit or loss 5 6 5 6
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GROUP COMPANY

2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm
INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
Subsidiaries
Unlisted shares
- dividends 193 4551
- net interest received ' 42 15
235 4 566
Associates
- dividends 373
Other
Listed shares
- dividends 2 2 )
Total 2 610 4 566
IMPAIRMENT CHARGES
Included in operating expenses are the
following impairment losses:
Impairmeni on property, plant and equipment 23 784
Total impairment charges 23 784
Reversal of impairment of investment - {6)
Total impairment reversals {6)
Net impairments 17 784
Taxation effect ) (227)
Net effect on attributable earnings 17 557

Where further geological tests were done during the developmant phase of certain projects, the tests indicated that the
expenditure incurred could possibly not be recovered, thus indicating possible impairment. These expenditures

were fully impaired.

The impairment reversal refates to the preference shares that Exxaro group held in Rosh Finah Mine Holdings. On

28 February 2007, the group acquired 100% of the equity of the company, At this date the impairment charge was

reversed, after a valuation indicated that the value of the company had increased. The present value of future cash flows
exceeds the cumulative preference share dividends payable.

In 2006, the combined impact of a stronger currency outlook over the lite of the assets, a higher discount rate

resulting from an increase in interest rates, and a projected surplus of high-grade titanium feedstock on world markets,
necessitaied a review of the carrying value of the local mineral sands operations. As a result the carrying value of the
assets was impaired to & value in use, based on an 8,53% discount rate.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued - PS
for the year ended 31 December 2007 '
GROUP COMPANY .
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Am Rm
7. TAXATION .
Charge to income
South African normal taxation
— Current - current year 298 1028 .
- prior year 2 (31) 5
300 997 5
— Deferred - current year - (40) (308) {21} (55) .
— prior year {8) B8
{48y {302} (21) {55)
Foreign normal taxation .
- Current - current year 168 167
— prior year {4) {77
- 164 90 .
- Deferred - current year 5 69
- prior year 22 42
27 111 .
Share of joint ventures taxation {1}
Capital gains tax 1
Secondary Tax on Companies 58 424 58 424 .
Non-residents withholding tax . 11 4
Total 512 1324 42 369
Taxation applicable to discontinued operations 746 .
Taxation applicable to continuing operations 512 578
Reconciliation of taxation rates % % Yo % .
Taxation as a percentage of profit before
taxation 26,1 6.5 ) 9,0 1.7
Taxation effect of
- assessed iosses (not provided for} (0,2) .
- capital profits 0,5 ) 01
- fair valus adjustment on unbundiing of
subsidiary 254 24 .4 .
— disallowable expenditure {2,1) (1,9) {2,0) (1.2)
- environmental rehabilitation asset ’ 04 8
- exempt income 0,3 35,5
- special tax allowances 0,2 .
- share of associates’ and joint veniures’
differences 10,8 01
- tax rate differences {2,1) 0.2) . :
- temporary differences {not provided for) (0.2)
- Secondary Tax on Companies 2,9 (2.0} (12,4} (1,9
- withholding tax 0,5)
- Controfled Foreign Company profits {0,3) .
— foreign exchange differences - 0,1) 0,1
— prior year adjustment 0,7} 0.5 {1.1)
Standard tax rate . 29,0 29,0 29,0 20,0 .
Effective tax rate for cantinuing operations,
excluding income from eguity accounted
investments, impairment charges and share of
taxation thereon 41,0 ) 4,5 .
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GROUP
2007 2006
Rm Rm

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Exxarc unbundled its iron ore business effective 1 November 2006 as part of the revised
listing of Exxaro and now holds only a 20% interest in Sishen tron Cre Company (Pty)
Limited which is equity accounted.
The income statement of the disposed business was as follows:
Revenue 6483
Cperating expenses {3 385)
Net cperating profit 3008
Interest income 110
interest expense (139)
Pre-tax profit of discontinued operations 3 069
Taxation (746) -
Profit for the period from discontinued operations 2323
The assets and liabilities of the disposed business were as follows:
Property, plant and equipment 3400
Biclogical assets 4
Investments 1
Financial assets 144
Inter-company loans 1390
Deferred taxation — assets az
Cash and cash eguivalents 403
Trade and other receivables a11
Inventories 785
Total assets 7070
Retained income 427
Nen-distributable reserves 34
Interest-bearing borrowings 4504
Inter-company loans 51
Non-current provisions 167
Deferred taxation - liabilities 568
Trade and other payables 614
Taxation payable 358
Shareholders for dividends 357
Total liabities 7070
Net asset value 461
Net asset value of unbundled 72,38% 366
Fair value of net assets declared as dividend in specie 17 866
Total fair value of net assets unbundled as dividend in specie 18332 .
Net debt {2762)
The cash flows of the disposed business were as follows:
Cash flow attributable to operating activities 982
Cash flow attributable to investing activities (1079)
Nat cash outflow ©7)
Cash flow attributable 1o financing activities (93)
Cash flow attributable to discontinued operations (190)
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

GROUP
2007 2006
9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic headline earnings per share is calculated by dividing the headline earnings by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
Headline earnings (R million) (Refer note 11) . 1448 1698
Headiine sarnings/(loss} from continuing operations (R million) 1448 {630)
Headline earnings from discontinued operations (R million) : 2328
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue {million) i 313
Headline earnings per share {cents) . 425 542
Headline earnings/(loss) per share from continuing operations (cents) 425 ' (201)
Headline earnings per share from discontinued cperations {cents) ' 744
For the diluted headline eamings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary
shares is adjusted to assume conversion of not yet released purchased shares and
options under the Management Share Scheme, net of shares held by the scheme
for releasing purposes. Diluted headline earnings per share Is calculated by dividing
headine earnings by the adjusied weighted average number of shares in issue.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (million) as calculated above . 3a1 313
Adjusted for options and net purchased shares in terms of the Management Share
Scheme {million) 14 5
Weighted average number for diluted headling earnings per share {million) 355 318
Diluted headline earnings per share (caents) 408 534
Diluted headtine earnings/(loss) per share from continuing operations (cents) 408 (198}
Diluted headline earnings per share from discontinued operations (cents) 732
Basic attributable earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit
attributable to shareholders tiy the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.
Profit for the year attributable to equity holdars of the parent (R million) 1427 19169
Profit for the year from continuing operations attributable to equity holders of the
parent (R million) 1427 16 846
Profit for the year from discontinued operations attributable to eqwty holders of the .

- parent (R million) 2323
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue {million) i3 313
Basic earnings per share (cents) 418 6124
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations (cenis} 418 5382 .
Basic earnings per share from discontinued cperations {cents) 742
For the diluted attributable earnings per share the weighted average number of
ordinary shares is adjusted as above. -
Diluted earnings per share (cents) ' : 402 6028
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations (cents) 402 5297
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations {cents) 731

. For the current year, shares under option had an effect on the adjusted weighted
average number of shares in issue as the average option price atlached io the option
shares was lowsr than the average market price.

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm
10. DIVIDEND

Dividends paid during the year:
Cash dividends 208 1628 211 1828
Paid to minorities 1" e
Share repurchase as part of empowerment
transaction . 1763 1763
Dividend in specie - fair value : 18 332 18 332

219 21732 21 21723

STC on these dividends amounts 0 nil {2006: R424 millicn) after taking into account STC credits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

Gross Tax Net
Rm Rm Rm
RECONCILIATION OF GROUP HEADLINE EARNINGS
Net profit attributabte t0 equity holders of the parent 1427 1427
Adjusted for:
—1AS 16 Impairment of property, plant and equipment 23 23
- |AS 16 Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant
and equipment 17 {5 12
- IAS 28 Share of associate’s IAS 16 — Gaing.or losses
on disposal of property, plant and equipment (3) 1 {2}
- |AS 28 Share of associate’s IAS 39 — Recycling of
ra-measurements from equity to the income
statement, including a hedge of net investmant in
a foreign entity but excluding cash flow hedges 7 H (B}
- JAS 36 Impairment reversal of investment (6) {6)
HEADLINE EARNINGS 1 45i (3) 1448
For the year ended 31 December 2006
Gross Tax Net
Rm Rm ARm
Net profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 19169 19 169
Adjusted for:
- IFRS 3 Excess of acquirer's interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent kabilities over cost (36) (36)
- IFRS 5 Gains or losses on the measurement to .
fair value less cost to sell on disposal of assets or
disposal groups (17 963) {17 963)
-IAS 16 tImpairment of property, plant and equipment 784 (227) 557
- 1AS 16 Gains or losses on disposat of property, plant
and equipment ) 3 1 4
- |AS 27 Gains on the disposal of a subsidiary M (1)
- IAS 28 Gains or losses on the disposal of associates
or joint ventures (38} 7 (31)
— |AS 28 Share of associate'’s IAS 16 - Gains or losses
on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1) (1}
HEADLINE EARNINGS 1917 (219} 1 698
HEADLINE EARNINGS FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS 2328
HEADLINE LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (630)
GROUP HEADLINE EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECENMBER
. 2007 2006
HEADLINE EARNINGS PER SHARE (CENTS)
- basic 425 542
— diluted : ' 408 534
HEADLINE EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (CENTS) {Refer Note 9)
- basic 425 (201)
- diluted . 408 (198)
HEADLINE EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CENTS) (Refer Note 9)
- basic 744
- diluted 732
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 3t December 2007

12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Site
preparation,
mining
develop-
ment, Extensions
Residential  Buildings Machinery, exploration under
Land and Mineral  landand andinfra-  plantand and rehabili- con-
buildings properties  buildings  structure  equipment tation  struction Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm . Am Rm Rm Rm
GROUP
2007
Gross carrying amount
At beginning of year 136 2150 72 1582 7222 760 7 12643
Additions 27 15 49 2 4 804 1296
Changes in decommissicning ’
assels 3 19 40 3 65
Acuisition of subsidiary 18 18
Disposals of items of property,
plant and eguiprment (3 5 1] (240) {108) {363)
Net reclassification from
nor-currertt assets classified as
held for sale 1 1
Exchange differences on transiation 1 30 2 148 A 5 236
Other movements 8 2 15 72 419 (22) {492) 2
Atend of year 169 2 200 101 1746 7886 665 113 13898
Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year 6 209 33 527 37 382 4274
Depregiation charges 2 164 3 74 496 e 760
Accumulated depreciation on
disposa's of itens of property,
ptant and equipment {1) 6] (190 {100 (296}
Net reclassification from
non-current assets classified as
held for sale . 2 . 2
Exchange differences on fransation 10 12 78 13 13
Other movements 4 {2) 38 {37) 1
At end of year 12 381 kY] 644 3464 316 4854
Impairment of assets
At beginning of year 227 495 63 786
Impaiment charges 17 23
Atend of year 227 496 63 17 B09
Net canrying amount at
end of year 157 1813 64 875 3926 286 1114 8235
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12

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {(continued)

Site
preparation,
mining
develop-
: ment,
Residential  Buildings Machinery, exploration Extensions
Land and Minerat  landand andinfra-  plant and and under
buildings properties  buildings  structure equipment rehabilitation construction Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
GROUP
2006
Gross carrying amount
At beginning of vear 140 1040 113 1657 8685 1013 897 13543
Additions i1 60 2 ™ 388 8 1487 2010
Changes in decommissioning
assets 2 3 12 2 10
Acquisition of subsiciary 25 1740 54 600 47 2 2468
Disposals of items of property, plant
and equipment . )] (130) @ {5 {138) @ (293}
Exchange differences on transtation 4 59 1 37 263 57 5 426
Unbundling of subsidiary {35) (621) (46} {233) (2716) (325} {1545) (5521}
Other mavements B 3 127 (29 {135} .
At end of year 136 2 150 72 1592 7222 760 1 12643
Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year 211 89 474 3736 579 5069
Depreciation charges 59 90 626 K 810
Acquisition of subsidiary 6 56 47 312 21 442
Actumulated depreciation on
disposals of items of property,
plant and equipment {2 )} (109) 9 (123)
Exchange differences on translation 15 19 133 30 197
Unburidling of subsidiary (132 (37) (98) {1 591) (263 2 12%)
Other movements 3 ] 10 (il
Atend of year 6 200 33 527 3117 382 4274
Impairment of assets
At beginning of year 1 2 2 5
Impairment charges 227 494 63 784
Disposals of items of property,
plant and equipment (1) 2) 3
At end of year 227 496 63 786
Net carrying amount at
end of year 130 1941 39 838 3608 315 711 7583
2507 2006
Rm Rm
The net camying amount ¢f machinery, plant and equipment includes:
Assets held under finance leases {refer note 22)
-cost 203 210
- aecurnulated depreciation 53 45
147 164

For details of property, plant and equipment pledged as security rafer fo anngxure 1.
A register of iand and buildings is availabla for inspection at the registered office of the company.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2007

12

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Site
preparation,
mining
develop- .
ment, Extensions
Residential  Buildings Machinery, exploration under
Land and Mineral  landand andinfra-  plantand and rehabili- con-
buildings properties  buildings  structure  equipment tation  struction Total
Rm Am Rm Rm Am Rm Rm Rm
COMPANY
2007
Gross camying amount
At beginning of year 10 " p4 70 144
Additions 34 U
Disposals of items of property,
plant and equipmen {1 i (5
Other movements 2 22 (24}
At end of year 11 82 4] 173
Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year 6 2 H
Depreciation charges 10 10
Accumulated depreciation on
disposals of items of property, plant
and equipment {1) 4 {5}
Atend of year 5 3 39
Impaiment of assets
At beginning of year 1 1
Atend of year 1 1
Net carrying amount at
end of year 6 47 80 133
2006
Gross camrying amount
At beginning of year 10 35 24 89
Additions ‘ 14 46 60
Disposals of tems of property,
plant and equipment {9 - -8
At end of year 10 64 70 144
Accumulated depreciation
- Al beginning of year B 6 23 29
Depreciation charges 9 9
Accumulated depreciation on
disposals of items of property, plant
and equipment @ i)
At end of year 6 28 3
Impairment of assets
Al beginning of year 1 1
At end of year i 1
Net camying amount at
end of year 4 35 70 109
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13.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Plantation - Livestock’ Game Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm
GROUP
2007
Carrying amount
At beginning of year 6 5 15 26
Acquisitions 3 3
Gains arising from changes attributable to physical
changes and price changes 1 4 4 9
Disposals (1} {2) (3
Reclassification to inventory )] (2) {2) (5)
At end of year 6 6 18 30
Fair value of biological assets can be split as follows:
- mature 4 6 18 28
—immature 2 2
6 6 18 30
Thea plantation was valued by Mr 4 M Potgieter, an independent
appraiser, on 10 December 2007,
2006
Carrying amount
At beginning of year 7 7 14 28
Gains arising from changes attributable to physical
changes and price changes 1 1 6 8
Disposals {1) {1) {H (3)
Reclassification to inventory {1 (2 (3)
Unbundling of subsidiary {4 4
At end of year 8 5 15 26
Fair value of biclogical assets can be split as follows:
- mature 3 5 15 23
- immature 3 3
B 5 - 15 26

Plantations consist of wattle and blue gum trees.

Livestock consists of cattle and horses (2006: cattle, sheep, goats and horses).

Game consists of thing, buffalo, warthog, giraffe, ostrich and a large variety of antelope.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm BRm Rm Rm
14, INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Patents, licences and franchise
Gross carnrying amount
At beginning of year 96 81
Additions 1
Transfers from other assets ’ 2
Exchange differences 9 15
At end of year i 108 96
Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of year 27 20
Amortisation charge 3
Exchange differences 2 4
At end of year 32 27
Net carrying amount at end of year 76 89
15. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND

JOINT VENTURES
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
- unlisted ’ 757 384

757 364

Refer to annexure 2 for market and directors’ valuations of investments.

GROUP ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Invest-
ments Loans Total
2007 2007 2007
Rm Rm Rm
At beginning of year 384 384
. Net share of results 728 728
Dividends paid . (377) (377)
Exchange difference adjustments (23) {23)
Share of reserve movements 45 a5
At end of year (annexure 2) 757 757
GROUP ASSOCIATE COMPANIES JOINT VENTURES
Invest- Invest-
ments Loans Total ments Loans Total
2006 2006 2008 2006 2006 2006
Rm Rm Bm Bm Rm Rm
At beginning of year - 93 93 2 2
Additional interests acquired 40 40
Movement in indebtness to/from
associated companies : )] 1)
Disposals . {29) {29)
Net share of results 159 159
Exchange difference adjustments 18 18
Share of hedging reserve 8 8
Unbundling of subsidiary 95 95 {1} (1)
At end of year (annexure 2) 384 384
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15. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (continued)
2007 2006
Rm Rm
Aggregate post-acquisition
reserves:
- associate companies 470 86
- joim ventures 2 396 2250
Total 2 866 2 336
COMPANY ' ASSOCIATE COMPANIES JOINT VENTURES
Invest- tnvest-
ments Loans Total ments Loans Total
2006 2006 . 2006 20086 2006 2006
Rm Rm Bm Rm Rm Rm
At beginning of year 24 24 7 7
Reclassification as financial asset {24} (24)
Impairmant loss (7} 7
At end of year {annexure 2)
GROUP ‘COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Bm Rm Rm Bm
16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Shares at cost less impaimment losses 1514 1513
Indebiedness
- by subsidiaries 4 966 5415
- 1o subsidiaries {178) {439}
Total {annexure 3) 4788 4976
Less curment portion included in trade and
other receivables (4 516) 5010)
Less current portion included in trade and
other payables 178 439
Non-current portion 450 405
1 964 1918
Aggregate attributable after tax profits and
losses of subsidianes:
- profits 10 262 23073
- losses (7 390) (16 181)
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notes to the annual financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December_ZOO?

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm
17. FINANCIAL ASSETS
Environmental Rehabilitation Trust asset 274 237 8 8
Long-term receivables 429 271
Investments (refer annexure 2) 328 185 2 34
1031 893 10 42
For detadl refer to note 28 on financial
instruments.
18. INVENTORIES
Finished products 650 555
Work-in-progress 292 371
Raw materials 334 ’ 252 .
Plant spares and stores 249 208
Merchandise 6 ]
1531 1 391
Included above are inventories relating to
Exxaro Sands {Pty) Limited and Rosh Pinah
Zinc Corporation (Pty) Limited which might
be sold or utilised in production over mere
than 12 months. Included in merchandise are
biological assets held-for-gale classified as
inventories.
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables 1585 | 1558
Other receivables 306 101 70 49
Indebtness by subsidiaries {refer note 16) 4516 5010
Derivative instruments (refer note 28.1) 47 11
Specific allowances for impaimment {4} 5) {3)
Collective allowances for impairment (3} @)
_ _ 1931 1663 4 583 5059
Trade receivables are stated after the following
allowances for impairment:
Specific allowances for impairment )
At beginning of year {(5) (10) 2
Impairment loss recognised (3) ) {3)
Impairment loss reversals 3 5
Foreign cumrency translation difierences (1)
QOther reconciling items 1 2 2
At end of year . (4) (5) (3)
Collective allowances for impairment
At beginning of year {2)
Impaimment loss recognised 1) {1)
Other reconciling items (1)
At end of year (3) {2)
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GROUP

2007
Rm

2006

COMPANY

2007 2006
Rm Rm

20.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

Property, plant and equipment

21,

SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital at par value

Authorised

500 000 000 ordinary shares of R0,01 each
Issued

352 907 400 (2006: 351 277 206} ordinary
shares of B0,01 each

Share premium

Shares held by Kumba Resources
tManagement Share Trust and the Exxaro

Employee Empowerment Participation
Scheme Trust (MPower)

Total
The Kumba Resources Management

Share Trust and the MPower have been
consolidated.

Refer to statement of changes in equity

{page 178 to 180) for details of movements.
Reconciliation of authorised shares

not issued-(million)

Number of authorised unissued ordinary
shares at beginning of year

Number of shares repurchased during the year
Number of shares issued during the year

Number of unissued authorised shares at
end of year

2240

(177)

5312

(177

2240 5312

2 067

5138

2244 5316

149
10
02

194
38
83)

149 184
10 38
(12) (83)

147

149

147 149
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

21,

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The following resolutions pertain to the unissued ordinary shares under the control of the directors until the forthcoming
annual general meeting:

1

- Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 61 of 1973, as amended (the Act), and the requirements of the

JSE Limited (JSE), the directors be and are hereby authorised to allot and issue at their discretion such number of the
remaining authorised but unissued ordinary shares of one cent each in the capital of the company as may be required
to be allotied and issued pursuant to the Share Incentive Scheme ({the scheme). -

. Directors are authorised to issue the unissued ordinary shares of one cent sach in the capital of the company (after

setting aside so many shares as may be required to be allotted and issuad by the company pursuant to the scheme)

for cash, without restrictions to any public shareholder, as defined by the JSE Listings Reguirements, as and when

suitable opportunities arise, subject to the following conditions:
- this authority shall not extend beyond the next annual general meetlng or 15 months from the date of this annual
general meeting, whichever date is earlier;

- a press announcement giving full details, including the impact on net assst value and eamings per share, be
published at the time of any issue representing, on a cumulative basis within one year, 5% or more of the number of
shares in issue prior to the issue/s;

- the shares be issued to public shareholders as defined by the JSE and not to related parties;

—any issue in the aggregate in any one year shall not exceed 15% of the number of shares of the company’s issued
ordinary share capital; and :

—in determining the price at which an issue of shares be made in terms of this authority, the maxirnum discount
permitted will be 10% of the weighted average traded price of the shares aver the thirty days prior to the date that
the price of the issue is determined ¢r agreed 10 by the directors. In the event that shares have not traded in the said
thirty day period, a ruting will be obtained from the committee of the JSE.

. Directors are authorised to acquire from time to time shares issued by the company, provided:

— that the repurchase is effected through the order book operated by the JSE trading system and is done without any
prior understanding or arrangement between the company and the counterparty:

- that this authority shall not extend beyond 15 months from the date of this resolution or the date of the next annual
general meeting, whichever is the earlier date;

- that an announcement containing full details of such repurchases is published as soon as the company has
repurchased shares constituting, on a cumulative basis, 3% of the number of shares in issue prior to the repurchases
and for each 3%, on a cumulative basis, thereafter;

- that the repurchase of shares shall not, in the aggregate, in any one financial year, exceed 20% of the company’s
issued share capital at the time this authority is given;

- that at any cne time, the company may only appoint one agent to effect any repurchase;

- that the repurchase of shares will not take place during a prohibited period and will not affect compliance with the
shareholders’ spread requirements as laid down by the JSE; and

= that shares issued by the company may not be acquired at a price greater than 10% above the weighted average
traded price of the company’s shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of repurchase

The above authorities are valid unitil the next annual general meeting.
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GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm _ Rm Rm Rm
INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS
Summary of loans by financial year of redemption
2008 . 74
2009 100 a0 81
2010 44 88 81
2011 43 201 81
2012 . 452 140 369 81
2013 onwards 620 695 81 81
Total non-current borrowings (refer annexure 1) 1333 1214 450 405
Current portion included in current liabilities (74)
Total 1259 1214 450 - 405
Details of intarest rates payable on borrowings '
are shown in annexure 1.
INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
Non-current borrowings 1259 1214 450 405
Short-term borrowings 613 55 619
Current portion of non-current borrowings 74
Total short-term borrowings 74 613 55 . 619
Total 1333 1827 505 1024
Included in the above interest-bearing
borrowings are obligations relating to finance
leases (refer note 12). Details are:
Minimum lease payments:
- less than one year 54 54
—more than ona year and less than five years 254 249
— more than five years 3427 3485
Total 3735 3798
Less: Future finance charges 34% 3 555
Present value of lease liabilities 244 243
Representing leass liabilities:
- current : ' 4
- non-current {more than one year and less
than five years) 18
- non-current {more than five years) 222 243
Total 244 243

Exxaro entered into numerous operating and finance lease arrangements. All major lease arrangements are renewable if
there is mutual agreement between the parlies to the arrangements with some contracts specifying extension periods.
Arrangements containing escalation clauses are usually based on CP1 or PPl indexes. None of the lease arangements
contains restrictive clauses that are unusual to the particular type of lease.

There wera no defaults or breaches in terms of interest-bearing borrowings during both reporting periods.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

23,

PROVISIONS
Cash-
Environ- Post settled
mental retirement share-
rehabili- Decom- Restruc- medicat based
tation  missioning turing obligation payment Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
GROUP
2007
At beginning of year 770 156 32 3 961
Charge to income statement 175 25 26 5 241
Additional provision 183 25 36 5 249
Unused amounts reversed {8) (8)
Interest adjustment (refer note 4) 84 10 5 99
Provisions capitalised to property,
plant and equipment 65 65
Utilised during year (15) {6) 2) {23)
Exchange differences 6 7 13
Al end of year 1020 263 K] 36 6 1 356
Current portion included
in current liabilites (18) (9} {27)
Total non-current provisions 1002 263 22 36 6 1329
2006
At beginning of year 572 156 23 751
Charge to income statement 210 (1) 13 5 227
Additional provision 210 13 5 228
Unused amounts reversed {n (1
Interest adjustment {refer note 4) 37 21 58
Provisions capitalised to property, .
plant and equipment : 10 10
Acquisition of subsidiary 68 68
Utilised during year (13) (4) {2 (19)
Exchange differences 11 12 23
Unbundling of subsidiary (+15) (42) {157)
At end of year 770 156 32 3 961
Current portion included in
cuirent liablities {21) ) (30}
Total non-current provisions 749 156 23 3 931
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23.

PROVISIONS (continued)

Cash-
Post settled
Environ- retirement share-
mental Decom- Restruc- medical based
rehabilitation missioning turing  obligation payment Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
COMPANY
2007
At beginning of year 18 3 21
Charge to income statement — .
additional provision 2 2
Additional provisions [ 2
Additional provisions — charge to
subsidiaries 2 2
Interest adjustment {refer note 4) 1 1
Utilised during year 2) (2)
Total non-current provisions 19 5 24
2006 '
At beginning of year 16 16
Charge to income statement —
additional provisions 1 5 6
Interest adjustment {refer note 4} 1 1
Utilised during year ’ @ @)
Total non-current pravisions 18 3 21

ENVIRONMENTAL REHABILITATION

Provision is made for environmental rehabilitation costs where either a legal or constructive obligation is recognised as
a result of past events. Estimates are based upon costs that are regularly reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for new
circumstances.

DECOMMISSIONING ) .

During 2005 the environmental rehabilitation provision was reclassified into two separate provisions, namely the .
environmental rehabilitation provision and the decommissioning provision, the opening batarce was adjusted to reflect
the split. The decommissioning provision relates to decommissicning of property, plant and equipment where either a
legal or constructive obligation is recognised as a result of past events. Estimates are based upon costs that are regularty
reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.

FUNDING OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND DECOMMISSIONING REHABILITATION

Contributions towards the cost of the mine closure are also made t¢ the Exxaro Environmental Rehabilitation Fund

and the balance of the Fund amounted to R284 million {2006: R246 milion} at year end. Of this amount R274 million
(2006; R237 million) is included in financia! assets and R10 million (2006: R9 million} in trade and other receivables of the
group. Cash flows will take place when the mines are rehabilitated.

RESTRUCTURING

The kability includes accruals for plant and facility closures, including the dismantling costs thereof, and employee
termination costs, in terms of the announced restructuring plans for the Durnacol Mine. Provision is made on a piecemeal
basis only for those restructuring ebligations supported by a formally approved plan. The restructuring will be completed
within the next eight years.

POST RETIREMENT MEDICAL OBLIGATION

After the merger with Eyesizwe {Pty} Limited in November 2006 and the successful creation of Exxaro, it was discovered
that a post-employment healthcara benefit had been provided to a group of continuation and in-service members

on the Witbank Coal Medical Aid Scheme and the BHP Billiton SA Medical Scheme. This benefit, which is no longer
offered, applied to selective employees previously employed by Eyesizwe or Ingwe Coal and comprises a subsidy of
contributions. The obligation represents a present value amount, which is actuarially valued on an annual basis. Any
surplus or deficit arising from the valuation is recognised in the income staternent. The provision is expected to be utilised
over the expected lives of the participants of the scheme.

CASH-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

Exxaro offered a cash-settled payment, based on the company's share price performance, to certain individuals who
were under an embargo and not entitled to accept share scheme offers, due to their involvement in the empowerment
transaction. The payments will be made over the next five years depending on the share price performance of the
company and the contracts of the individuals. : ’
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notes to the annual financial statements continued

for the yvear ended 31 December 2007

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm
24. DEFERRED TAXATION
The movement on the deferred taxation
account is as follows:
-At beginning of year 368 645 (76) 21
Non-distributable reserve charge
. —current 2) 2
Income statement charge
- current {refer noie 7) (35) (240) {21) (55)
- prior 14 48
Acquisition of subsidiary 430
Unbundling of subsidiary (536)
At end of year 345 368 (97) (76)
Comprising:
Deferred taxation liabilities
- property, plant and equipment 1137 1148
- bad debt reassessment (1} (1)
—foreign taxation losses carried forward (3} (3)
—inventories 16 6
- leave pay-accrual (26) {25)
- financial instruments (20) 10
- provisions {16)
— Exxaro Environmiental Rehabilitation asset 7 60
- lease liability 1) (3}
~ decommissioning provision (5) (4}
- restoration provision {91) {77)
- pre-payments 3 s 3
~ unrealised profits 15 3
- assessed losses (2 {1
1077 1116
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GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
. Rm Rm Rm Rm
24. DEFERRED TAXATION {continued)
Deferred taxation assets ]
~ provisions {8) {13)
- property, plant and equipment 274 119 2
— Exxaro Environmental Rehabilitation asset 12 10 4 4
- decommissioning provision 8) i) .
- unrealised foreign exchange loss 4 {8) (8)
- restoration provision (52) 48) (5) (5)
- inventories {3
- bad debt reassessment {1 (1)
- |lease liahility (70) (67)
- leave pay accrual (23) {20) 4] {B8)
— pre-payments 1 1 ‘
— taxation losses carried forward : (755) (584) (88) (59)
— foreign taxation losses carried forward (94} (129)
732) (748) (99 76)
345 368 {97} (76}

CALCULATED TAXATION LOSSES
— tax losses utifised to reduce deferred taxation
against Scuth African taxable income
included above 2610 2m7 303 203
- tax losses utilised to reduce deferred taxation
against foreign taxable income included
. above ' 334 444
" The total deferred taxation assets raised '
~with regard to assessed losses amount 1o
R854 million (2006: R717 million), and is
mainly attributable to the ramp-up phase of
the mineral sands project.
The total deferred taxation assets not raised
amount to R54 million {2006: R34 million).

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES .
Trade payables 644 636 22 19 |

Other payables 536 523 102 167
Leave pay accrual 173 158 25 21
Indebtness to subsidiaries (refer note 16) 178 438
Derivative instruments {refer note 28.1) 95 4

1449 1321 327 646
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm
26. NOTES TC THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
26.1 CASH GENERATED BY/(UTILISED IN)
OPERATIONS
Net operating income/(loss} 1444 20697 61) 17 380
Adjusted for non-cash movements '
- depreciation and amortisation 763 813 10 9
- impaiment charges and reversals 17 784
~ excess over cost of acquisition of minority
interest (36)
— provisions 241 227 2 5
— foreign exchange revaluations and fair value
adjustments (35} 43) 1 27
- reconditionable spares usage 4 )
- net loss/(profit) on disposal or scrapping of
property, plant and equipment 13 @ ©)
~ net profit on disposal of investrments (39) (15)
— fair value adjustment on unbundiing of
subsidiary (17 963) (18 329)
- share-based payment expenses 102 765 34 696
2549 5208 (14) (233)
Working capital movements
- increase in inventoties {1any (583)
- {increase)/decrease in trade and other
receivables (69) 280 (17 41
- (decrease)/increase in trade and other
payables (42) 172 (57) 5
- utilisation of provisions (refer note 23) {23) {19) (2) 2)
Cash generated by/(utilised in) operations 2 308 5068 (90) (189)
26.2 NET FINANCING COSTS ]
Net financing costs for continued and ’
discontinued operations {215) (336) (84) (109
Financing costs not involving cash flow
(refer note 23) 99 58 1 1
{116) {278) {83) (108}
26.3 NORMAL TAXATION PAID
Amounts (unpaid)freceivable at beginning of .
year 67) (773) 16 29
Amounts charged to the income statements {532) {1515} (63) (424)
Acquisition of subsidiary (13)
Arising on translation of foreign entities {51}
Unbundling 358
Amounts unpaid/(receivable) at end of year 137 67 8 (16}
{462) {1927} {55) {411)
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GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm
26. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
{continued)
26.4 DIVIDENDS PAID
Amounts unpaid at beginning of year (4)
Dividends declared and paid (208) {21 723) {211) (21 723)
Non-cash flow dividend in specie on
unbundling of subsidiary 18 332 18332
Dividends declared and paid by subsidiaries
to minorities (11} ©
Amounts unpaid at end of year 4
{223) {3 396} (211) {3 391)
26.5 INVESTMENTS TO MAINTAIN OPERATIONS
Replacement of property, plant and equipment {534) (661) (34) (60)
Reconditional spares (35) 28)
(569) (689) (34) (60)
26,6 INVESTMENTS TO EXPAND OPERATIONS )
Expansion and new technology (727} {1321)
{727) {1.321)
26.7 INVESTMENT IN OTHER NON-CURRENT
ASSETS
Increase in associates, joint ventures and
other investments (268) 40)
Increase in investments in subsidiaries (1} 3
Decrease/(increase) in non-current financial
assets 19 (307) 34 13
{249) (347) 33 10
26.8 INCOME FROM EQUITY ACCOUNTED R
INVESTMENTS
Income from equity accounted investments as
per income staternant 728 159
Dividends received from equity accounted
investments kYA
Non-cash flow income from equity accounted
investments (728) (159} -
377
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007 '

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm
26. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
{(continued)
269 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
RESERVE .
At beginning of year a79 (30) 1
Closing balance 527 379
Movement 148 409 (1}
Transters from non-distributable reserves (NDR) 18 '
Unrealised {losses)/profits in relation to foreign )
transactions ' (37) 23 2 1
Revaluation of long-term loans {169) 4 3 1
Unbundling of subsidiary 25
Less: Arising on translation of foreign entities: (48) 161 (1)
- inventories 32 57
- accounts receivable 33 152
- financial assets 15 (49)
- accounts payable (15) (130 -
- utilisation of provision (12) 22)
- taxation paid {51)
— dividends paid 1
— property, plant and equipment acquired 123 233
- intangible assets 6 11
- investments acquired (50} 150
- long-term loans (107) (203) M
- short-term loans 8
- share capital 73) 4
‘ ‘ 6 300 5 2
26.10 TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Translation differences on cash and cash
aquivalents 36 191
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27.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 27 Fepruary 2007, the graup acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Rosh Pinah Mine Holdings {Pty) Limited,

which is included in the base metals business segment.

The acquired business contributed neither revenue nor operating profits to the group for the period from 27 February

2007 to 31 December 2007.

This transaction increased the Exxaro effective shareholding in Rosh Pinah Zine Cerporation (Pty) Limited from 89,5%

10 93,9%.

Details of assets acquired are as follows:
Purchase consideration:

- cash paid on acquisition

- fair value of assets acquired

Goodwill

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

- property, plant and equipment

- investments

- interest-bearing borrowings

Fair value of net assets

Total purchase consideration

Cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiary (refer to cash flow statement)

2007
Rm

(8)

18
15
{25)

{8
{8
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS .
28.1 CARRYING AMOUNTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The tables below set out the group’s and company's classification of each class of financial assets and liabilities,

as well as their fair vafues.

At fair value through

profit or loss

Held-for-
trading

N Rm

Designated
Rm

GRQUP

2007 *
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, ptant and equipment

Biological assets

Intangible assets

Investments in associates and joint ventures

Deferred taxation

Financial assets, consisting of:

282

- Exxaro Environmental Rehabilitation Trust asset
- Richards Bay Coal Terminal (RBCT)

- New Africa Mining fund

—lgoda

- Mafubse

- Ndzalama game reserve

- long-term receivables

274

Total non-current assets

282

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Derivative financial instruments 47
Cash and cash equivalents

10

Total current assets ’ a7

10

Non-current assets classified as he!d for sale

Total assets . 47

292 -

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital
Non-distributable reserves
Hetain arnings

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Minerity interest

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Non-current provisions
Deterrad taxation

82

Total financial non-current liabilities

82

Currant liabilities

Trade and other payables

Derivative financial instruments 96
Interest-bearing borrowings

Taxation

Current provisions

69

Total current liabilities 95

69

Total liahilities g6
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Held-to- Available-
maturity Loans and for-sale Financial Non-financial
investments receivables financial liabilities assets and Total Fair value
at amortised at amortised assets at at amortised liabilities carrying of financial
cost cost fair value cost at cost amount instruments
I Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Am
. 8235 8235
30 30
76 76
. 757 757
732 732
429 320 103 1031
274 274
. 290 290 290
2 2
25 25 25
L) 5 5
o c :
429 429 429
_. 429 320 9830 10 861
1531 1531
21 1853 1884 1884
. 47 47
850 850 850
1 2703 1531 4312
r 2 :
21 3132 320 11 363 15175
. 2 067 2 067
1502 1502
6 235 6235
i 9 804 9 804
19 19
9823 9823
. 938 239 1259 1044
1329 1329
1 077 1077
_. 938 2 645 3 665
1353 1353 1353
98 96
. 5 74 74
137 137
27 27
_. 1 353 169 1687
229 12637 15175
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
28.1 CARRYING AMOUNTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued}

At fair value through

profit or loss

Held-for-
frading

Rm

Designated
Bm

GROUP

2006

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Biological assets

Intangible assets

Investments in associates and joint ventures
Deferred taxation

Financial assets, consisting of:

— Exxaro Environmental Rehabilitation Trust asset
- Richards Bay Coal Terminal (RBCT)

- New Africa Mining Fund

- igoda

- Mafube

- Ndzalama game reserve

- Mineral Deposits Limited

- long-term receivables

— other

348

237

13

Total non-current assets

348

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Cash and cash equivaients

11

Total current assets

11

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Total assets

11

357

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves

Share capital

Non-distributable reserves

Retained earnings .

Equity attributable to aguity holders of the parent
Mingrity interest

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Non-current provisions
Deferred taxation

Total financial non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables-
Derivative financial instruments
In{erest-bearing borrowings
Taxation

Current provisions
Shareholders for dividends

Total current liahilities

4

Total liabilities

4

As disclosed in the table above, financial liabilities with a carrying amount and fair value of R151 (2006: R0}

have been designated at {air value through profit or loss.
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Held-to- Available-
. maturity Loans and for-sale Financial Non-financial
investments receivables financial . " liabilities assets and Total Fair value
. at amortised at amortised assets at at amortised liabilities carrying of financial
cost cost fair value cost at cost amount instruments
j Rm Am Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
7 583 7583
26 26
69 69
. 384 384
748 748
21 2n 53 693 693
. 237 237
23 - 23. 23
: 13 13
25 . 25 25
. 5 5 5
6 6
a2 92
271 271 271
_. 21 21 23
21 271 . 53 8810 9503
. 139 1 391
1643 1 652 1652
1" 11
_. 906 906 906
2 549 1 391 3 960
2 2
_. _ 21 2820 53 10203 13 465
5139 5138
. 1205 1205
1798 1798
8142 - 8142
’ 27 27
8169 8169
. 965 249 1214 848
931 9N
1116 1116
. 965 2296 3261
1317 1317 1317
4 4
. 819 6} 613 619
67 67
30 30
7 4 4 4
1 1940 o1 2035
2905 10 556 13 465
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
28.1 CARRYING AMOUNTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

At fair value through
profit or loss

Held-for-
trading Designated
Rm Rm

COMPANY

2007

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intercompany loans debits
Investments in subsidiaries
Deferred taxation

Financial assets, consisting of: 10
- Exxarg Environmental Rehabilitation Trust asset 3
— New Africa Mining fund 2
Total non-current assets 10
Current assets .

Trade and other receivables 5
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets 5
Total assets 15

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital
Non-distributable reserves
Retained earnings

Totat equity

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Nan-current provisions

Total financial non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing borrowings
Taxation

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities
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Held-to- Available-
maturity Loans and for-sale Financial Non-financial
investments receivables financial liabilities assets and Total Fair value
at amortised at amortised assets at at amortised liabilities canying of financial
cost cost fair value cost at cost amount instruments
Rm Rm Am Rm Rm Rm Rm
133 133
450 450
1514 1514
97 97
10 10
8 8
2 2
450 1744 2204
21 4 557 4583 4583
306 305 306
21 4 863 ] 4 889
21 5313 1744 7093
2244 2244
883 883
3118 3118
6 245 6 245
450 450 450
24 24
450 24 474
327 327 327
55 55 55
(8) (8)
382 {8) 374
a32 6 261 7093
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notes to the annual financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2007

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

28.1 CARRYING AMOUNTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

~

At fair value through
profit or loss
Held-for- .
trading Designated
Rm Rm

COMPANY
2006
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and eguipment Y
Intercompany loans debits
Investments in subsidiaries
Deferred taxation .
Financial assets, consisting of: - 21
- Exxaro Environmental Rehabilitation Trust asset 8
- New Africa Mining fund 13
— other
Total non-current assets 21
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 5
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets 5
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital
Non-disiributable reserves
Retained loss

26

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Non-current provisions

Total financial non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing borrowings
Taxation

Total current liabilities

Tota! liabilities
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. Held-to- Available-
maturity Loans and for-sale Financial Nen-financial ]
investments receivables financiat liabilities assets and Total Fair value
. at amortised at amortised assets at at amortised liablities - camying of financial
cost ’ cost fair value cost atcost amount instruments
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
. 109 109
405 405
1513 1513
() 6 o
21 42 42
8 8
@ | 3 13
21 2 21
’ o2 405 1698 2145
5 054 5059 5 059
’ 290 280 290
5344 5349
_. 5749 1698 7 494
53186 5316
. 783 783
{280) {280)
l 5819 5819
405 405 405
21 21
‘ 405 21 426
. 646 646 646
619 619 619
(16) (16)
’ 1265 (16) 1249
1670 5824 7 494
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007 -

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)
28.1 CARRYING AMOUNTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As disclosed in tha table above, there were no financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss as at
31 December 2007 or 2006 for the company.

The camrying amount of the financial kabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss at 31 December 2007
was R2 milion lower than the contractual amount at maturity date {2006: RO ) for the group.

The Exxaro Environmental Rehabilitation Fund {EERF), previously Kumba Environmental Rehabilitation Fund,
was created and complies with the requirements of both the Minerals and Petroleumn Resources activitias, The
EERF receives, holds and invests funds contributed by the Exxaro group of companies for the rehabilitation or
managament of negative environmental impacts associated with mining and exploration activities. The EERF
receives, holds and invests funds contributed by the Exxaro mining operations, which contributions are aimed
at providing for sufficient funds at date of estimated closure of mining activities to address the rehabilitation and
environmental impacts.

The trustees of the fund are appointed by Bxxaro and consist of sufficiently qualified Exxaro employees capable
of fulfiling their fiduciary duties. The funds are invested by Exxaro’s in-house treasury department with reputable
financial institutions in accordance with a strict mandate to ensure capital preservation and real growth. Funds
accurnulated for a specific mine or exploration project can only be utilised for the rehabilitation and environmental
impacts of that specific mine or project.

If a mine or exploration project withdraws from the fund for whatever valid reason, the funds accumulated for
such mins or exploration project are transferrad to a simfar fund approved by the Commissioner of South African
Revenue Services. The fund cannot be closed down without the perrmss:on of the Commissioner of the South
African Revenue Services.

Included in the long-tenm receivables is an amount of R388 million {2006: R203 million) recoverable from Eskom in
respect of the rehabilitation and environmental expenditure of the Matla and Armot mines at the end-oi-life of these
mines. The cormesponding anticipated liability is disclosed as part of non-current provisions {refer note 23,

R179 million {2006: R155 million) of the investments designated at fair vatue through profit or loss and the EERF
are equity investrnents listed on JSE Ltd.

A two percent increase in the JSE industry average at reporting date would have increased equity by R2.8 million
(20086: RB,2 million) after tax; an equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased equity by

R0,9 million (2006: R2 milien). The impact on profit or loss would have been an increase or decrease of R1,9 mllhon
(2006: R1,7 million) after tax. The analysis has been performed on the same basis for 2006.

There were no allowances for impairments on long-term receivables or investments in equity instruments at cost
during the period under review.

FAIR VALUES

At 31 December 2007 the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables approximate their fair values due 10 the short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities.

Of the financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2007 and 2008, the interest-beanng barrowings had their
fair values determined based on published price guotation in active market. The borrowings’ Net Present Value
(NPV) is calculated using the Nominal Annual Compounding Annually (NACA) rate.

No i nanc:al assets and liabilities had their fair value determined using valuation techniques during the year ended
31 December 2007 or 2006.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2007, the investment in Richards Bay Coal Terminal (RBCT) had no
active market available, RBCT is the largest single export coal terminal in the world and is situated in Richards
Bay. It is a 24-hour operation shipment/export. Exxarc acquired B 862 shares (1,20% stake) in RBCT through
the merger of the former Eyesizwe (Pty) Ltd and Kumba Resources Limited which was valued at R2 milion

on 1 November 2008, Additional 10 000 shares were acquired in RBCT on 30 June 2007 for R213 million.
These shares were purchased at a price of $30 million. The 10 000 ordinary shares entitle Exxaro to a

1,39% shareholding in RBCT. The 10 000 shares also sntitle Exxaro to 1 Mt ton of export allocation. All the
shareholders in RBCT acquire equity instruments in order to obtain the right to export coal,

EXXARO ANMNUAL REPORT 2007

230



28,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The South Dunes Coal Terminal Co. (Pty) Limited (SDCT) alse holds an investment in RBCT, of which Exxaro

Coal (a 100% subsidiary of Bxaro Resources Limited} holds 33% in SDCT, with the effective value of R74 milion

at 31 December 2007 (2006: R20 milion). All this coupled with minor wharfage expenses, result in the overall
investrnent in RBCT with a carrying value of R290 million. The fair value could not be measured reliably because
RBCT shares do not form part of an active market as there are na other shares available in South Africa. Wiling
buyers and selters cannot be found at any time (restricted 10 a select few) of the same nature {homogenous) and
prices are not available 1o the public. Although one could attach a certain set of market influences that significantly
affect the value of such shares, the volatility of e.g. freight rates would cause the valuation to vary significantly.

28.2

28.3

28.4

The fair vatue of financial instruments at initial recognition was determined to be the transaction price. Upon initial
recognition no differences existed as a result of the fair value upon initial recogrition differing to the value of the

financial instrument determined using a valuation technique.

Subsequent to initial recognition, as the fair value of the Investment in RBCT could not be measured reliably,
the investment has been carried at cost. The carrying value of the investrent in RBCT is R290 million

(2006: R23 million}.

It is not anticipated that the RBCT investment will be disposed of in the near future as the group has no intent {0

dispose of it

RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
Na reclassification of financial assets occurred during the pericd.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

An investment designated at fair value through profit or loss was disposed of during the year under review. The

entire investrment quatified for derecognition.

The investmant comprised of a 3,78% equity interest in Mineral Deposits Limited, an entity listed on the Australian
Stack Exchange, and was soid on 2 July 2007 resulting in a net cash inflow of R&4,6 miltion (AUD 14,0 million),

The greup did not enter into transactions whereby it transferred assets recognised on its balance sheet whilst

retaining the risks and rewards of the transferred asset during the period under review.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Included in the statement of changes in equity are the following adjustments relating 1o financial instruments:

GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Effective portion of change in fair value of
cash flow hedge (36) 33
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred
to profit or loss 8
Amount removed from equity and included
in initial carrying amount or cost of nen-financial
asset ' 1
{35) 41
The above amounts are split in the reserves
as follows:
Hedging reserve (35) . 41
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28.5
28.5.1

28.5.2

RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk management

The group's corporate treasury function (other than Exxaro Australia Sands Pty Limited which operates on a
degentralised basis but within the approved group palicies), provides financial risk management services to

the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets, and monitors and manages
the financial risks relating to the operations of the group through internal risk reports which analyses exposures
by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk ({including foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The group's objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing these risks are detailed below. The group’s management of capital is detaited in the report of the
directors. .

The group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge these ,
risk exposures. The use of derivative financial and exposure limits is reviewed by the internal auditors on a
continuous basis and results are reported to tha board audit committee.

The group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for
speculative purposes. The group enters into financial instruments to manage and raduce the possible adverse
impact on earnings of changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commedity prices.
Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the internal auditors annually, with the resuits being
reported to the audit committee.

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates, commoduty
prices and equity prices will affect the group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

The chjective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters while optimising the return on risk,

The group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates

(ses 28.5.2.1 below), commodity prices (see 28.5.2.2 below) and interest rates {see 28.5.2.3 below). The group

enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure o interest rate, foreign currency

risks and commodity price risks, including:

- forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on the export of coal, base metal’
and mineral sands products as well as imported capital expenditure;

— forward interest rate contracts to manage interest rate risk;

- interest rate swaps to manage the risk of rising interest rates

- forward exchange contradts to hedge the commodity prices arlsmg on the export of zinc and lead.

28.5.2.1 Foreign currency risk management

The group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange
rate fluctuations arise.

The currency.in which transactions are entered into is mainly denominated in US Dollars (USD},
Euro, and Australian Dollars (AUD). Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy
parameters utilising forward exchange contracts (FEC's), currency aptions and currency swap
agreements.

The group maintains a fully covered exchange rate position in respect of foreign currency borrowings
and imported capital equipment resulting in these exposures being fully converted to rand. Trade- ~
related import exposures are managed through the use of economic hedges arsing from export
revenue as well as through FEC's. Trade-related export exposures are hedged using FEC's and
options with specific focus on short-term receivables.

Uncovered forgign debtors at 31 December 2007 amount to USSnil million (2006: US$21 million).

All capital imports were fully hedged. Imparts (other than capital imports) not fully hedged amount to
US$nit million (2006: US$E milion). Menatary items have been translated at the closmg rate at the last
day of the reporting pericd US$1:R8,80 (2006: US$1:R6,98).

Tne FEC's which are used 10 hedge foreign currency exposure mostly have a maturity of less than one
year from the reporting date. When necessary, FEC's are rolled over at maturity.

Pre-tax unrealised exchange gains or losses amounting to R83 miflion (31 December, 2006: R41 million)
arising from the revaluation of Exxaro Australia Sands (Pty) Limited foreign cumency koans which are a
natural hedge against specific future export sales revenue, are recognised in equity as hedge accounting
has been applied.
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28,

FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28.5

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
The following significant exchange rates applied for both group and company during the year:

Average Average Closing
spot rate achieved rate spot rate
2007 _ .
UsD» - 7,03 7.26 6,80
Euro 9,62 8,48 10,02
Canadian Dollar 6,56 6,27 6,86
Australian Dollar 5,89 5,19 6,00
2006 . '
usD 8,70 6,76 6,98
Euro ] ’ 8,50 8,24 - 9,15
Canadian Dollar 5,93 6,44 6,02
Australian Dollar ' 5,02 5,28 553

Fareign currency

Material FEC's and currency options, which relate to specific balance sheet itemns, that do not form
part of a hedging relationship or for which hedge accounting was not applied at 31 December 2007
and 31 December 2008, are summarised as follows:

GRGUP Market Recognised
related Foreign Contract fair value
value amount value profits/{losses)
Rm million Rm Rm
2007
Exports
United States Dollar - FEC's 137 20 143 6
2006
Exports
United States Dollar - FEC's 105 14 C 102 )]
Imports .
United States Dollar — FEC's 72 10 74 2
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
28.5 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Cash flow hedges - foreign currency risk

The group has entered into certain forward exchange contracts, which relate to specific foreign
commitments not yet due and export earnings for which the proceeds are not yet receivable. Details
of the contracts at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006 are as follows:

Market Recognised
related Foreign Contract fair value
GROUP value currency value in equity
2007 Rm million Rm Rm
Imports
United States Dollar - FEC's
Less than 3 months 62 9 62
3 months 3 3
& months 26 4 27 (n}]
1 year 1 1
Total 92 13 93 - {1}
Euro - FEC's
Less than 3 months - 1 1
Total 1 1
Exports
United States Dollar -
Note holders loan
> 3 year 397 60 304 - 93
Attributable to tax (31}
Total 397 60 304 62

Note: In respect of a US$60 million (2006: USFEO million) loan fiability of Exxaro Australia Sands Pty
Limited, an economic hedge exists between USE revenue and US$ borrowings. Accordingly, future
sales proceeds to be applied to the repayment of USS borrowings are recorded at the historical

exchange rate effective at the date of loan draw down.,

With respect to the above-mentioned cash flow hedges, the future expected cash flows are

represented beiow:

2008 2009 >2009 Total
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Expected future cash flows
- United States Dollar - FEC's 93 93
—Euro - FEC's 1 1
- United States Dollar -
Note helders loan 304 304
Expected gain/{loss) in profit or
loss
- United States Dollar -
Note holders loan 93 93
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuad)

‘285

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market Recognised
related Foreign Contract fair value
GROUP value currency value in equity
2006 ) Bm million Rm Rm
Imports
United States Dollar - FEC's
Less than 3 months 17 2 18 M
3 months 6 1 8
6 months 13 2 13
1 year 10 1 10
Total 46 6 47 )
Euro — FEC's
Less than 3 months 9 1
Totat 9 1
Canadian Dollar - FEC's
Less than 3 months i 1
Total 1 1
Australian Dollars — FEC's
Less than 3 months 4 1 4
6 months 4 1 4
1 year 3 3
Total 11 2 1t
Exports
United States Dollar —
Nate holders loan
> 3 year 407 60 366 41
Attributable to tax . (16)
Total a07 60 366 25

With respect to the above-mentioned cash flow hedges, the future expected cash flows are

represented below: :

2007 2008 2009 > 2009 Total
fm Rm Rm Rm Rm
Expected future cash flows
- United States Dollar -

FEC's 37 10 47
- Euro-FEC's : 9 g
- Canadian Dollar - FEC's 1 1
— Australian Dotlars - FEC's 8 3 11
-~ United States Doltar —

Note holders loan 365 366
Expected gain/{loss} in
profit or loss
- United States Dollar —

FEC' ) (1)
- United States Dollar —

Note holders loan 41 41
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007 -

28,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28.5

RISK MANAGEMENT (continu
( e Market Recognised
related Foreign Contract ° fair value
value currency value in equity
COMPANY Rm million Rm Rm
2007
Imports
United States Dollar - FEC's
_ess than 3 months 1 0,2 1
Total 1 0,2 1

With respect to the above-mentioned cash flow hedges,

represented below:

the future expected cash flows are

2008 2009 2010 Total
Rm Rm -Rm . BRm
Expected future cash flows
- United States Dollar - FEC's 1 1
No gains or losses are expected from
these FEC's .
Market Recognised
related Foreign Contract fair value
value currency value in equity
Rm million Rm Rm
2006 .
Imports
United States Dollar - FEC's .
Less than 3 months 1 0,2 1
Total 1 0,2 1
Euro - FEC's )
Less than 3 months 5 1 5
Total 5 1 5
With respect to the above-mentioned cash flow hedges, the future expected cash fiows are
represented below:
) 2007 2008 2009 Total
Rm Rm Rm " Am
Expected future cash flows i
- United States Dollar — FEC's 1 ' 1
- Euro - FEC's 5 5

No gains or losses are expected from these FEC's
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28,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

28.5 RISK MANAGEMENT (conunued)
Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table includes outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 10% increase in foreign currency rates and details the group
and company sansitivity thereof. Foreign currency denominated maongtary items such as cash
balances, trada receivables, trade payables and loans have been included in the analysis. A positive
number represents a gain whilst a negative number represents a loss.

For exports {US$), an increase in the exchange rate of the rand (ZAR) against the dollar (US$)
(e.g., FEC taken out on exports at BB, 10:US$1, with actual rate coming out at R6,50:US$1) )
represents a weakening of the rand against the US dollar, which results in a loss incurred of R0,40.

Profit or (loss) ) Equity
2007 2006 2007 2006
Group ’ Bm Rm Rm Rm
us$ 68 - 90 (29) (29)
Euro 2 2 2, 2
+ Company ' -
uUs$ 2 13

For imports (Euro), an increase in the exchange raie of the rand (ZAR) against the suro (e.g., FEC
taken out on exports at R10,00:€1, with actual rate coming out at R11,00:€1) represents a weakenlng
of the rand against the euro, wh|ch resutts in a gain incurred of R1,00.

A 10% decrease in the rand agalnst each foreign exchange rate would have an equal but opp031te
effect on the above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant,

28.5.2.2 Commaodity risk management

The group enters into commodity derivatives to hedge certain of its export product expaosures, in
terms of lead and zinc prices. As of 31 December 2007 the net fair value of commodity derivatives
reflected a R92 million loss (2006: RO million). The potantial loss in fair value for such commodity
hedging derivatives from a hypothetical adverse 10% move against Exxaro’s position in commodity
prices would be approximately B2 million,

Prices for future purchases and sales of goods and services are generally established on normal
commercial terms through agents or direct with suppliers and customers. Price hedging is undertaken
on a limited scale for future zinc sales ai Rosh Pinah Zinc Corporation (Pty} Uimited and Exxaro Base
Metals (Pty) Limited to secure aoperating margins and reduce cash flow volatility. Price hedging is also
undentaken for future lead sales at Rosh Pinah.

The potential profit or loss in accounting for changes in fair value for such commedity hedging

derivatives assuming an adverse 10% move in commaodity prices is demonstrated below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for

20086.
Profit or (toss) Equity
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Lead (2)

The impact of the zinc sensitivity is less than a million.

_A 10% positive move against the above commedity prices at 31 December would have had the equal
but opposite effect on the above derivatives to the amounts shown above on the basis that all other
variables remain constant.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2007

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)
28.5 RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
Cash flow hedges - commodity risk

The forward hedged position at balance sheet date is shown below:

Market Foreign
related cumrency Contract Recognised

value value in equity fair value
2007 Tons Rm million Rm - Rm
Recognised transactions 13 000 213 18 121 ' {92}
Altributable to:
—{ax 34
- mingrity shareholders : 4
13 000 213 18 121 (54)
With respect to the above-mentioned hedges, the future expecied cash flows are reprasented below:
31-Dec-08  31-Dec-02  31-Dec-10 Total
Expected future cash outflows 66 34 21 121
Expected gain/(oss) in profit or loss 37 (30) (25} {92)

2006

Recognised transactions

28.,5.23

Interest rate risk management

The group is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows and deposits funds at both fixed and floating
interest rates on the money market. The risk is managed by maintaining an appropriate mix between
fixed and floating rate borrowings taking into account future interest rate expectations. The risk is
also managed by entering into interest rate swaps. The financial institutions chosen are subject to
compliance with the relevant regulatory bodies. A proportion of term borrowings was entered into at
floating interest rates in anticipation of a decrease in the interest rate cycle.

The interest rate repricing profile is summarised below:

1-6 7-12 Beyond Total

months - months 1 year borrowings

At 31 December 2007 Rm Bm Rm Rm

Term borrowings 681 652 1,333

% of total borrowings 51 49 100

) At 31 December 2006 .

Term borrowings . 857 657 1,214

Call bomowings 613 613

1,170 657 1,827

% of total borrowings ' . 64 36 100

The following table reflects the potential impact on earnings, given a movement in interest rates of 50

basis points: .
' Increase of 50 basis points  Decrease of 50 basis
in interest rate points in interest rate
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Profit or {loss) (3) {2) 3 2
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
28.5 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
28.5.3 Liquidity Risk Management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as {ar as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due, under normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the group's reputation.

The uttimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the group's short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements.

The group manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows in compliance with loan covenants and
ensuring that adequate unulilised borrowing facilities are maintained. The group aims o cover at least its net
debt requirements through long-tarm borrowing facilities.

Financial guarantes liabilities are initially recognised at their falr value, and the initial fair value is amortised over
the life of the financial guarantee. The guarantes liability is subsequentiy carried at the higher of this amortised
amount and the present value of any expected payment if a payment under the guarantee has become probable.

Financial guarantees are included within other liabilities.

Borrowing capacity is determined by the directors in terms of the articles of association, from time to time:

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Amount approved 12 254 10178 2600 4648
Total borrowings 1333 1827 505 1024 -
Unutilised borrowing capacity 10921 8 351 2095 3624

The group's capital base, the borrowing powers of the company and the group were set at 125% of shareholders’
funds for both the 2007 and 2006 financial years.

Standard payment terms for the majority of trade payables is the end of the menth following the menth in which
the goods are received or services are performed.

A number of trade payables do however have shorter contracted payment periods.

To aveid incurring interest on late payments, financial risk management policies and procedures are entrenched
to ensure the timeous matching of orders placed with goods received notes or services acceptances and
invoices.
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‘notes to the annual financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2007

28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
28.5.3 LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
: Maturity profile of financial instruments

The following table detaits the group’s contractual maturities of firancial liabilities, including interest payments:

Maturity -
More
Canying Contractual  0-12 1-2 2-5 than
amount cash flows months years years 5 years
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
. Group
2007
Finangial assets
Exxaro Environmental Rehabiliiation
Trust asset . 274 274 82 45 147
Richards Bay Coal Terminal (RBCT} 290 230 290
New Africa Mining Fund 2 2 2
lgoda ) 25 25 25
*Mafube 5 5 5
Ndzalama game reserve 6 6 6
Long-term receivables 429 429 1 428
Trade and other receivables 1884 1 884 1884
Derivative financial instruments 47 47 47
Cash and cash equivalents 850 850 850
312 3812 2781 89 47 895
Percentage profile (%) . 100 100 73 2 1 24
Financial liabilities ’
interest-bearing borrowings 1089 1089 69 96 525 399
Trade and other payables .1353 1353 1353 .
Shareholders for dividends '
2442 2442 1422 96 525 399
Percentage profile (%) 100 100 58 4 22 16
Derivative financial liabilities
(included in the above)
Interest rate swaps used for
hedging
- Foreign exchange forward
contracts
used {or hedging
- Sell 143
Other forward exchange
contracts '
~ Buy 91
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
28.5.3 LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Maturity
Carrying Contractual 0-12 1-2 2-5 More than
amount c¢ashflows months years years 5years
Rm’ f]m Rm Bm Am Rm
Group
2006 .
Financial assets
Exxarc Environmental Rehabilitation
Trust asset 237 237 24 14 199
New Africa Mining fund 13 13 13
Richard Bay Coal Terminal (RBCT) 23 23 23
Igoda 25 25 25
Mafube . 5 5 5
Ndzalama game reserve 6 6 6
Mineral Deposits Limited 92 a2 92
Long-term receivables 271 271 21 3 219
Other 21 21 21
Trade and other receivables 1652 1662 - 18652
Derivative financial instruments 11 oM o
Cash and cash equivalents 906 206 906
) 3262 3262 2 569 66 51 578
Percentage profile (%) 160 100 .79 2 1 18
Financial liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 1584 1584 619 408 559
Trade and other payables 1317 1317 1317
Derivative financial instruments 4 4 4
Shareholders for dividends 4 4 4
2909 2909 1944 406 559
Percentage proflie (%) 100 100 67 ' 14 19

Derivative financial liabilities
{included in the above)

Recognised transactions

—Buy ) 74
—Sell . 102
Forecast transactions '

— Buy 67
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
28.5.3 LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Maturity
Carrying Contractual 0-12 1-2 2-5  More than
amount cash flows months years years 5 years
Rm Rm . Rm Rm Rm Rm
Company
2007
Financial assets
Exxaro Environmeantal Rehabilitation
Trust asset 8 8 ; 8
Other 2 2 2
Intercompany loan debits 450 450 . 369 R B1
Trade and other receivables 4583 4 583 4 583
Cash and cash eguivalents 306 306 306
5349 5349 4 889 379 81
. Percentage profile (%} 100 100 g1 7 2
Financial liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 5058 505 55 369 B1
Tradke and other payables 327 327 327
Shareholders for dividends
832 832 382 369 81
Percentage profile (%) 100 100 46 44 10
Derivative financial liabilities '
(included in the above)
Forecasted transactions
- Buy 2
2006
Financial assets
Exxaro Envircnmental Rehabilitation -
Trust asset 8 8 8
New Africa Mining fund 13 13 13
Other . 21 21 21
Intercompany loan debits 405 405 243 162
Trade and other receivables 5059 5 059 5059
Cash and cash equivalents 290 290 290
5796 5796 5349 285 162
Percentage profile (%) _ 100 100 92 5 3
Financial liabilities
interest-bearing borrowings 1024 1024 619 243 162
Trade and other payables 646 646 648
Shareholders for dividends
1 670 1670 1265 243 162,
Percentage profile (%) ' 100 100 76 14 10

Derivative financial liabilities

(included in the above)

Other forward exchange contracts

- outflow 7
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)
28.5.4 CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT
Credit risk relates to potential default by counterpartues on cash and cash eguivalents, mvestments trade
receivables and hedged positions.

The group limits its counterparty exposure arising from money market and derivative instruments by only dealing
with well-established financial institutions of high credit standing. The group exposure and the credit ratings of
its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded are spread
amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is contralled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and

* approved by the board annualty.

Trade receivables consist of a numbear of customers with whom Exxaro has long-standing relationships. A high
portion of term supply arangements exists with such clients resulting in kmited credit expasure which exposure,
where dictated by customer credit worthiness or country risk assessment, is further mitigated through a
combination of confirmed letters of credit and credit risk insurance.

Exxaro establishes an allowance for non-recoverability or impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments. The main components of this allowance are
a specific loss companent that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component
established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have historical data of payment statistics for
similar financial assets.

At the reporting date, the amount of change in the fair value of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss, attributable to credit risk is as follows:

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Am " Rm
Cumulative 6 —_ -
Current financial year ' 6 R _

Exposure to cradit risk

The carrying amourt of financial assets represents the maximurn credit exposure. None of the financial
instruments below were held as collateral for any security provided.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at both reporting dates was equal to the carrying value of financial assets
for both group and company.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28.5.4 CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Detait of the trade receivables credit risk exposure

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
% % %% . %
By industry
Manutacturing {including stnuctural metal) 70 76
Pubtic utilities 19 21
Other 11 3
L1 I 100
By geographical area . ’
South Africa 50 59
Asia 4 B
Europe 20 11
USA - 25 21
Other . 1 3
' 100 100

The group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
‘counterparties having similar charactenistics.

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the group to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Group o Company
2007 2008 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm

The carrying amount of the financial assets
at reporting date was:
Neither past due nor impaired 3 560 3166 5 346 5796
- trade and other receivables 1632 1556 4580 5059
- other financial assets 1031 603 10 42 |
- intercompany loan debits 450 405
- derivative financial instruments 47 11
- cash and cash equivalents 850 . 806 T 306 290
Past due or impaired 252 96 3
— trade and other receivables 252 96 3
Total financial assets 3812 3262 5349 5796

The group strives to enter into sales contracts with clients which stipulate the required payment terms. It is
expected of each customer that these payment terms are adhered to. Where trade receivables balances become
past due, the normal recovery procedures arg followed to recover the debt, where applicable new payment
terms may be arranged to ensure that the debt is fully recovered. Therefore the credit quality of the above assets
deemed to be neither past due nor impalred Is considered to be within industry norm.

There were no financial assets with re-negotiated terms during the 2007 or 20086 reporting periods.
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28.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28.5.4

28.5.5

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
Age analysis of financial assets
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Past due but not impaired ]
1 - 30 days overdue 180 67
31 - 60 days overdue 16 14
- 90 days overdus 18 17
90+ days overdue 27 1
Total carrying amount of financial
instruments past due but not impaired 251 89 .
Past due and impaired . _
90+ days overdue 1 (3) 3
Total carrying amount of financial
instruments past due and impaired 1 (3) 3
Total carrying amount of financial
instruments past due or impaired 252 96 ' 3

Before the financial instruments can be impaired, they are evaluated for the possibility of any recovery as well as
the length of time at which the debt has been long outstanding.

No collateral was held by the Exxaro group as security and other enhancement over the fi nanmal assets dunng
the years ended 31 December 2007 or 2006.

Loans and receivables designated at fair value through profit or loss
The group had no loans and receivables designated as at fair value through profit or loss during the period.

Collateral

The group may require collateral in respect of the credit risk on derivative transactions with a third party. The
amount of credit risk is the positive fair value of the contract. Collateral may be in the form of cash or in the form
of a lien over a debtor's assets, entitling the group to make a claim for current and future liabilities.

The group is also expesed to a situation where a third party may require collateral with respect to the transaction
with that third party.

The carrying valus of financial asssts that may be re-pledged or re-sold by counterparties are as follows:

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm
Cash and cash equivalents 11 2

These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to standard lending and borrowing
activities. .

No financial assets were re-pledged during the year under review for collateral purpases.
Guarantees

The group did not during the perled obtain financial or non-financial assets by taking possession of collateral it
holds as security or calling on guarantees.

There were no guarantees provided by banks tc secure financing during the financial years ended 31 December
2007 or 2006.

OTHER PRICE RISKS
The group is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments. Equity investments are held for
strategic rather than trading purposes. The group does not actively trads these investments.
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- nhotes to the annual financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2007

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During-the year the company and its subsidiaries, in the ordinary course of business, entered into various sale and
purchase transactions with associates and joint ventures. These transactions occurred under terms that are no less

favourable than those arranged with third parties.
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Details of investments in associates and joint ventures are disclosed in note 15 and annexure 2 whilst income is disclosed
in note 15. There were no finance costs or expenses in respect of bad debts or doubtful debts incurred with regard to the
joint ventures or the associates during the financial years ended 31 Decernber 2007 or 20086.

Iltems of income and expense incurred during
the year are as follows:

- group sales of goods )
- group purchases of goods and services

The outstanding balances at year end are

as follows:

—included in trade and other receivables {refer note 19)

—included in trade and other payables (refer note 25)

- included in cash and cash equivalents {refer annexure 2)

- included in financial assets (refer note 28 and
annexurg 2)

2007 2006

Joint : Joint
ventures Associates ventures Associates
Rm Bm Rm Rm
1 85 7
205 . 78
2 11
16 6 ] a1

337 184 394
74 20

During both years under review, there was no provision raised for doubtful debts refated to the outstanding balances above.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of income from, and |nvestments in subsidiaries are dlsclosed in notes 5 and 16 respectively, as well as in

annexure 3,

Corporate service fee from subsidiaries

The following corporate service fees were received by Exxaro Resources Limited for essential services rendered:

Sishen Iron Ore Company (Pty) Limited
Exxaro Coal (Pty) Limited

Exxaro Base Metals {Pty) Limited
Exxaro Sands (Pty) Limited

SPECIAL PURPOSE ENTITIES

2007 2006
Rm Rm
58

94 57
52 : 17
41 15
187 147

The group has an interest in the following special purpose entities which are consolldated unfess otherwise indicated:

Entity

Nature of business

Ferrosure (South Africa) Insurance Company Limited

Bxxaro Environmental Rehabilitation Fund

Exxaro Employee Empowerment Participation Scheme Trust
Exxaro Foundation

Exxare Chairman'’s Fund

BExxarc People Development Initiative

Kumba Resources Management Share Trust

Merrill Lynch Insurance PCC Limited

Insurance captive

Trust fund for mine closure

Employes share incentive trust

Local social economic development!

Local social economic development!

Local social economic development-bridging classes’
Management share incentive trust

QOffshare insurance captive

'Non-profit organisations.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

DIRECTORS

Details relating to directors’ emoluments and shareholdings {including options) in the cormpany are disclosed in the report
of the directors. .

SENIOR EMPLOYEES
Details relating to option and share transactions are disclosed in note 31.

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
For Exxaro Resources Limited other than the executive and non-executive directors, ne other key management personnel
were identified. Refer to page 161 for details on directors’ remuneration.

For the group, the directors of the major subsidiaries have been identified as being key management personnel. The
major subsidiaries are considered 10 be the following:

Sishen lron Ore Company (Pty) Limited'
BExxaro Coal (Pty) Limited

Exxaro TSA Sands (Pty) Limited

Exxaro Sands (Pty) Limited

Exxaro Australia Sands Pty Limited
Exxaro Base Metals (Pty) Limited
Kumba Intarnational BY'

Exxaro International BV

2007 2006

Rm Bm

Short-term employee benefits 59 43
Termination benefits 9 5
Share-based payments - related expense 4 23
Total compensation paid to key rﬁanagement personnel 72 71

1 Major subsidiary untit 31 October 2006.

ANGLO GROUP

For the period until 31 October 2006 Kumba Resources's majority shareholder and parent was Anglo American Capital
Lirmited, with the ultimate controliing party being Anglo American plc. During 2006, Kumba Resources group purchased
goods and services to the value of R295 million from, and sold goods to the value of R52 million to fellow subsidiaries of
the Anglo group.

From 1 November 2006, Anglo American Capital Limited and its subsidiaries were no longer considered to be a related
party. .

There were no outstanding balances at either 31 December 2007 or 2006.

SHAREHOQLDERS

The principal shareholders of the company at 31 December 2007 are detailed in the “Analysis of Shareholders” schedule
on page 90 of the annual report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details are disclosed in note 32.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued

for the year ended 31 December 2007

30.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Iron ore Coatl Mineral sands
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2008
fm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
BUSINESS SEGMENTATION
Segment revenue - continuing
operations
- Total revenue 5087 2882 2172 1869
- Inter-group revenue
External revenue 5087 2882 2172 1859
Segment revenue discontinued :
operations 6 483
Segment net operating profit/(loss) -
continuing operations 885 509 (97) {698}
Segmem net operating prefit —
discontinued operations 3098
Depreciation and amortisation of
intangible assets ' 226 384 208 296 303
Impairment charge and reversals 18 784
Excess over cost of acquisition of
minority interest (36)
Net surplus on disposal of
investment (1571)
Fair valus adjustrment on unbundling
on subsidiary
Other non-cash flow items not
disclosed above 14 264 217 47 20
Cash inflow from operations 1767 1551 1024 246 373
Cash generated by oparations 3286 1577 804 304 . 235
Income/{loss} from equity accounted
investments 746 118
Capital expenditure 1214 876 T 338 193 266
Segment assets and liabilities
- Assets 417 2905 660 644
- Investments in associates and joint
ventures .

- Deferred tax assets 2 526 533
Total assets 4173 2905 1186 1177
— Liabilities 1707 1035 1175 1185
- Deferred tax liabilitias 03 863 134 194
- Taxation 77 78 (4)
Total liabilities 2 687 1976 1309 1375
Number of employees (number) 5942 5782 641 943
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Base metals Industrial minerals Other Total
2007 2006 207 2006 C7 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm Pm Rm Rm Rm
2732 2379 159 1486 12 32 10162 7298
(24) {5) (1) {51 {35)
2732 2379 159 122 7 21 10157 7 263
6483
688 609 (3) 26 {29) 17 063 1444 17 589
3008
68 60 6 6 11 10 763 813
(1) ' 17 784
(36)
3 20 1515 {(39)
(17 963) (17 963}
5 14 2 7 687 325 952
758 680 5 52 {11 1312 2549 5208
521 348 7 24 (101} 371 2308 5068
(18) 41 728 159
170 116 15 5 42 71 1295 2010
1014 723 53 103 7 788 7 968 13 686 12 333
116 161 641 223 757 384
3 5 8 193 210 732 748
1133 889 G1 103 8622 8 391 15175 13 465
530 525 23 21 703 1347 4138 4113
22 43 9 7 9 9 1077 1116
44 21 1 16 13 137 67
585 547 3z 29 728 1369 5352 T 5296
1229 1186 194 148 682 757 B 688 8814
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

30.

SEGMENT REPORTING {continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTATION

Additions to  Additions to
property property

Segment Segment Segment Segment Carrying Canying plant and plant and
revenue - revenue - revenye - rovenue - amount of amountof  equipment  equipment
continuing  continuing  discontinued  discontinued segment segment {accrued {accrued
operations  operations  operations  operations assels assets cash flow) cash flow)
2007 2006 2007 2006° 2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm
- South Africa 7156 4828 788 13527 10 523 1073 1796
— Alfrica 5 3 509 382 84 61
— Europe 996 859 1919 22 18
- Asia 397 384 3776 136 113 _
- Australia 9 8 225 1631 139 153
- Other 1594 1481 24 50
Total segment 10157 7263 6483 14 443 12717 ° 1296 2010

Total segment revenue, which excludes value added tax and sales between group companies, represents the gross value

of goods invoiced. Export revenue is recorded according to the relevant sales terms, when the risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred. .

Total segment revenue further includes operating revenues directly and reasonably allocable to the segments.
Segment revenue includes sales made between segments. These sales are made on a commercial basis.

Segment net operating profit equals segment revenue less segment expenses and includes |mpaerent charges and
goodwill amortisation.

Segment expenses represent direct or reasonably allocable operating expenses on a segment basis. Segment expenses

exclude interest, losses on investments and income tax expenses, but include corporate costs.

Segment assets and liabilities include directly and réasonably allocable operating assets, investments in associates and

joint ventures and liabilities.

31.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Retirement funds

Independent funds provide retirement and other benefits for all permanent employees, retiredt employees, and their
dependanis. At the end of the financial year, the main defined contribution retirement funds to which Exxaro was a
participating employer, were as foliows: :

- Exxaro Selector Pension Fung and Exxaro Selector Provident Fund.

- Iscor Employees’ Provident Fund.,

- Mine Workers Provident Fund.

- Sentinel Mining Inclustry Retirement Fund.

In comptiance with the Pension Fund Act after the unbundling of Kumba Iron Ore Limited, Sishen Iron Ore Company
employees were transferred to the newly created Kumba Iron Ore Selector Pension and Provident Fund during the
current financial year after all regulatory approvals had been obtained.

Members pay a contribution of 7%, with the emiployer's contribution of 10% to the above funds, being expensed as
incured.

All funds registered in the Republic of South Africa are governed by the South African Pension Funds Act of 1956
{the Act).
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31.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Defined contribution funds

Membership of each fund at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006 and employer contributions to each fund were
as follows:

Working Working Employer Employer

GROUP members members contributions contributions
2007 2006 2007 2006*

Number Number Number Number

Exxaro Selecior Funds 2323 3496 52 66
Iscor Employees’ Provident Fund 3 402 56499 28 33
Mine Workers' Provident Fund? 1914 1686 14 2
Sentinel Mining Industry Retirement Fund? 754 623 20 5
Other funds 924 811 30 20
9317 12325 144 126

Contributions of Sishen lran Ore Company (SIOG) employess is for the 10-months period to 31 October 2006, however membership
nurnbers at 31 December 2006 still include SIOC members.

*Contributions for two months only in 2006, due to the acquisition of Evesizwe Coal (Pty) Lid effective 1 November 2006.

3Contributions in 2006 are for the former Kumba employees for the fufl year to December 2006 and Eyesizwa Coal employees for the two
months to December 2006. ’

Working Working Employer Employer

COMPANY members members contributions contributions-
2007 2006 2007 2006

Number Number Number Number

Exxaro Selector Funds 611 576 18 18
Iscor Employees’ Provident Fund 146 ° 116 i 1

Sentinel Mining Industry Retirement Fund? ) 23 8 1

780 700 20 19

Contributions in 2006 are for the former Kumba empioyees for the full year to December 2006 and Eyesizwe Coal employeas for the two
months to Decernber 2006.

Due to the nature of these funds the accrued liabilities by definition equate to the total assets under control of these
funds.

Defined benefit funds i

Exxaro previously disclosed Its interast as a participating employer in the closed defined benefit funds namety the Mittal
Steel South Africa Pension funds and Iscor Retirement Fund. Such interest was disclosed while final confirmation was
awaited on either the approval by the Registrar of Pension Funds of the schemne for the apportionment of an existing
surplus, or the permission to not submit a surplus apportionment scheme in terms of section 158 of the Act. Both such
final confirmations have now been received.

Medical funds

The group and company contribute to defined benefit medical aid schemes for the benefit of permanent employees and
their dependants who choose to belong io one of a number of employer accredited schemes. The contributions charged
against income amounted to R&1 million (2006: RS4 million). Exxaro has a post-retirement medical obligation to a limited
number of in-service and retired employees belonging to two medical schemes for which an actuarially determined liability
has been raised. Eyesizwe's contribution to the post-retirement medical aid obligation for the year ended 31 December
2007 amounted to R1 milion {2006: R1 million}
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

3.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS {continued)
Equity compensation benefits

The shareholders of Kumba Resources approved on 2 November 2006 an empowerment transaction which in essence
entailed the unbundling of Kumba's iron ore business. Kumba Iron Ora Limited (Kumba Iron Ore) which listed on

20 November 2008, ewned 74% of Sishen Iron Ore Company (Pty) Limited (Sishen Iron Ore) in December 2008. Kumba
Resources was renamed Exxaro Resources on 27 November 2006.

As Sishen Iron Ore Company was a whally owned subsidiary of Kumba Resources before the unbundling of Kumba

Iron Ore Limited, senicr employees and directors of Sishen Iron Ore Company were eligibla to paricipate in the Kumba
Resources management share incentive plans.

In order to place, as far as possible, all participants in the Kumba Reseurces Management Share Option Scheme in the
position they would have been in if they were shareholders of Kumba Resources at the time of the implementation of the
empowerment transaction, the schemes continued in Exxaro and in Kumba Iron Ore, subject to certain amendments that
were made to the Kumba Resources Management Share Option Plan.

Kumba Resources cperated the Kumba Management Deferred Purchase Share Scherme and the Kumba Management
Share Option Scheme for senior employees and executive directors of Kumnba.

The Kumba Management Deferred Purchase Share Scheme consisted of a combination of an option scheme, a
purchase scheme and a deferred purchase scheme and governed to maturity the share scheme rights and obligations
of employees which were in existence at the time of transfer of the employees from Iscor to Kumba on unbunding of
Kumba effective Juty 2001. ‘

Participants of the Exxaro and Kumba Iron Cre Management Defarred Purchase schemeas who have been granted
deferred purchase shares received an Exxaro share and a Kumba Iron Ore share for every deferred purchase share held
under the original purchase agreement.

The Kumba Management Share Option Scheme consisted of the granting of options in respect of ordinary Kumba
shares, at market value, to eligible participants.

Shares and/or options held in terms of Exxaro Management Deferred Purchase Share Scheme are released in five equal
tranches commencing on the second anniversary of an offer date and expire on the ninth anniversary of an offer date.

Options granted in terms of the Exxaro Management Share Option Scheme can be exercised over five years * .
commencing on the first anniversary of the offer date. If the options are accepted by participants, the vesting periods,
unless decided otherwise by the directors, are as follows:

- 10% after first anniversary of offer date;

- additional 20% after second anniversary of offer date;

- additional 20% after thirg anniversary of offer date;

- additional 25% after fourth anniversary of offer date;

— additional 25% after fifth anniversary of offer date;

The options not exercised lapse by the seventh anniversary of the offer dale.

Participants of the Exxaro and Kumba tron Ore Management Share Option schemes exchanged each of their Kumba
Resources options for an Exxaro option and a Kumba tron Ore option. The strike price of sach Kumba Resources opticn
was apportioned between the Exxaro option and the Kumba lron Qre option with reference to the volume weighted
average price (VWAP) at which Exxaro and Kumba Iron Ore traded for the first 22 days post the implementation of the
empowerment transaction. The VWAP was calculated as 32,81% for Exxaro and 67,19% far Kurmnba lion Ore.

" The Exxaro employees’ options in the Bxxaro Management Share Option schemes are released on the dates that the

original options would have vested.

Their options relating to Kumba Iron Ore are released on the earlier of:
- the date that the original options would have vested; or
- 24 months fram the date of unbundling.

The Kurnba Iron Ore options held by Exxaro employees lapse 42 months after the date of unbundling.
The same periods apply to Kumba Iron Qre employees’ options in Exxaro.
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31.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS {continued)

According to the rules of the Long-term Incentive Plan {LTIP) executive diractors and senior employees of Bxxarc
Resources and its subsidiaries are awarded rights to a number of ordinary Exxaro shares. The vesting of the LTIP awards
are conditional upon the achievement of group performance levels (established by the Transformation, Remuneration,
Human Resources and Nomination committee of the Board) over a performance period of three years. The extent to
which the performance conditions are met governs the number of shares that vest. The performance conditions set for

the initial grant were as follows:

- the total shareholder return (TSR) condition: the Exxaro TSR wiill be compared to the TSR of a peer group over the
thres-year performance period, averaged over a six-month period. The peer group comprises of at least 16 members.

- the return on capital employed (ROCE) condition: the ROCE measure is a return on capital employed measure with a
number of adjustments.

Targets are set by the committee based on existing ROCE performance in the base year of an LTIP and planned ROCE
performance in the final year of the LTIP performance period.

Kumba, at its election, would have settled the conditional awards by issuing new shares or by |nstruct|ng any third
party to acquire and deliver the shares to the participants. Kumba however, elected to collapse the scheme before the
implermentation of the empowerment transaction, since it would have been difficutt to firstly measure the performance
post the unbundling and also to take into account that employses of both Exxaro and Kumba Iron Ore needed to be
compensated for accrued/vested benefits up to the date of the unbundling,

The extent to which the conditions were satisfied up to the date of the unbundling, determined the number of shares
deemed to vest for each participant. The cash settlement amount payable to each participant was determined by
muttiplying the number of shares deemed to vest in each participant by the 30-day YWAP of Kumba Resources shares
as at the last practicable date prior fo the posting of the transaction documentation to Kumba shareholders.

According to the Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP) rules, executive directors and senior employees of Kumba and its
subsidiaries had the opportunity to acquire shares {pledged shares) on the open market with 50% of the after tax
component of their annual bonus. After the pledged shares have been acquired, the shares are held by an escrow agent
for the absolute benefit of the participant for a pledge period of three years.

A participant may at its election dispose of and withdraw the pledged shares from escrow at any stage. However, if the
pledged shares are withdrawn from ascrow, before the expiry of the pledge period, the participant forfeits the matching
award. The participant will qualify for a matching award at the end of the pledge peried on condition that the participant is
still employed and the pledged shares are still in escrow. The matching award entitles a participant to a number of shares
equal in value to the pledged shares. Upon vesting, the pledged shares and the matching award are transferred and
released 1o the participant and rank pari passu in all respects with the existing issued shares of Exxaro.

The company may settle the matching award by issuing new shares or alternatively, instruct any third party tc acquire
and deliver the shares to the participant. The scheme was also collapsed before the implementation of the empowerment
transaction. Participants received 6 012 matching shares in total.

After ihe collapse of Kumba's LTIP and DBP schemes, Exxaro Resources awarded and will in future award rights in
accordance to the rules of the new schemes.

As a result of restrictions related to the empowerment transaction of Kumba Resources, certain executives and senior

_managers who participaied in the Kumba Resources Management Share Option Scheme were not able to receive cartain

grants of options which would normally have been made in the ordinary course of operations. The Hurman Resources

and Remuneration Committea of Kumba consequently awarded “phantom options” to the affected participants within the

following framework:

- awards of “phantorm options” were made, with the grant price, vesting dates, and lapse periods set to be the same as
those of the options awardable;

- on exercise, the participants are paid {in cash) the difierence betwsen the market price (volume weighted average price
on the day preceding exercise) and the grant price;

— all other rules and arrangements In respect of the amended Kumba Resources Management Share Option Scheme
were replicated for the Kumba Resources Phantom Share Option Scheme;

- the Kumba Resources Phantom Share Option Scheme was replicated for Kumba Iron Ore;

- Exxaro and Kumba [ron Ore entered into an agreement that facilifaies the settlement of abligations towards participants
of the Phantom Option Schernes.

Accounting costs for Exxaro and Kumba lron Ore Phantom Optnon Schemes require recognition under IFRS 2
Share-based Payment using the treatment for cash-setiled share-based payments. This treatment is more volatile than
that of the conventional (equity-settled) scheme and the fiability will require marking to market at each reporiing period.
Under the above scheme 98 140 shares are outstanding at 2007 and 20086.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year_ended 31 December 2007

3.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Bxecaro made the first annual grant in the Share Appreciation Right Scheme {SARS) to participants in 2007, as well as
new appointmeants. Under the rules of the scheme, participants obtain the right 1o receive a number of Exxaro shares to
the value of the difference between the exercise price and the grant (or offer) price.

The performance period’s first review is on 1 March 2010 when the rights will vest it Exxaro’s headline earings per share
(HEPS) increased by a minimum of CPI plus six percent in the three years. In 2011 and 2012 the minimum increase in
HEPS to achieve is CPI plus eight percent and CPI plus 10% respectively. The committee has the discretion to determine
the setttement method, being shares or cash.

Exxaro also created an Employee Empowerment Participation Scheme (MPOWER) wharaby employees in junior levels
are given the opportunity to share in the growth of the company. Employees are awarded shars units which entitle

them to dividends of Exxaro in the five-year period ending November 2011, By the end of the five-year period or capital
appreciation period, the units that employee beneficiaries hold in the Trust, will be sold. The capital distribution is the
profit that is made on the share units after it is sold, and the outstanding loan (used 1o buy the shares) to Exxaro is
settled.

Exxaro wilt be limited to issuing a maximum of 30 milion shares, which amounts to approximately 10% of the number of
issued shares as at the date of the general meeting where approval was given. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Exxaro
may on instruction of the Exxaro board and the Transformation, Remuneration, Human Resources and Nomination
Committee, and as a fallback provision only, pay any Exxaro employee participating in the share incentive plans an
equivalent amount in cash in lieu of any Exxaro shares.

The maximum number of Exxaro shares to which any one eligible participant is entitled in total in respect of all schemes
albeit by the way of an allotment and issue of Exxarc shares and/or the gran: of options shall not excead one percent of
tha shares then in issue in the share capital of Exxaro.

As at 31 December 2007, the maximum number of shares approved and allocated by shareholders for the purposes of
the schemes (30 million) represent 8,5% of the issued shares. Of the total of 30 million shares, 21,1 million shares are
available in the share scheme for future offers to participants, while 8,9 million shares (2,5% of the issued shares) are
allocated as options, LTIP, DBP. deferred purchase shares, or SARS to participants.

Details are as follows:

Mitlion

Number of shares approved by shareholders 30,0

Options, LTIP, DBPF, Deferred purchase instruments and SARS held by Exxaro employees/participants 7.0

Options and Deferred purchase instruments held by Kumba Iron Ore employees/participants (1,9
: 211

At 31 December 2007 the company’s loan from the Kumba Resources Management Share Trust amounted to
R67 142 835 (2006: R96 741 038 ). The loan is interest free and has no fixed repayment terms. This amount is reflected
as an inter company loan in the company’s accounts and eliminated at group level.

The market value of the shares available for utilisation at the end of the year amounted to
R2-188 055 019 (2006: R1 605 933 336).

Details of the schemes and plans are:

Options
Exxaro employees Kumba Iron Ore empleyees
December December December December

2007 2006 2007 2008

000 '000 '000 ‘000
Cutstanding at beginning of year 6451 13923 2258
Issued 2632
Transferred to Kumba lron Ore! {333) (2 264) ‘ 333 2264
Transferred from Kumba Iron Ore? 102 {102)
Adjustments 10 : 9
Exercised (1 044) (7 432) (569) {6) .
Lapsed/cancelled?® {116} {408) {60)
Cutstanding at end of year : 5070 6 451 1 B69 2258

Exercisa price range for transfarred to Kumba Jron Ore: RB,48 - R42,32 (2006 R7,85 - RY7,74),
2Exarcisa price range for transferred from Kumba lron Cre: R8,48 - R33,47 (2006; RO),
* 3Exercisa price range for lapsed/cancelied options: R8,48 - R60,60 (2006: R14,09 — R102,00).
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a31.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Quistanding at beginning of year
Transferred to Kumba Iron Ore
Exercised

Qutstanding at end of year

Qutstanding at beginning of year
Issued

Exercised

Lapsed/cancelted?

Outstanding at end of year

Deferred Purchase

‘There is no amount payable by participants on vesting. They will be awarded rights tc ordinary shares in the company.

Qutstanding at beginning of year
Issued

Exercised

Lapsed/cancelled

Outstanding at end of year

Details of issues during the period are as follows:
Expiry date .

Exercise price (Share price range} (R}

Total proceeds if options are immediately
exercised/deferred purchase shares
immediately paid (R million)

Expiry date

Exercise price (Share price range) {R)

Total proceeds if options are immediately
exercised/deferred purchase shares immediately
paid (R million)

Expiry date

Exercise price per share {Share price range) (R}
Total proceeds if options are immediately
exercised/deferred purchase shares
immediately paid (R million)

Exxaro employees Kumba Iron Ore employees
December December December December
2007 2006 2007 2006
6 560 96 520 820
(820} 820
{1 360) {89 140) {420) -
5 200 6 560 400 820
Deferred Bonus Plan Long-term Incentive Plan’
December December December December
2007 2006 2007 2006
'000 '000 '000 '000
1 216
2 : 4 491 14
5) {217)
10) {13}
2 481
Phantom schema SARS
December December December December
2007 2006 2007 2006
‘000 '000 '000 '000
98
217 1,453
{119)
31
98 a8 1,422
Options Long-term Incentive Plan
December December December December
2007 2006 2007 2006
2010/2013 2009 2010/2013
58,20 145,47 60,60-7284 62,74-144,39
2956 29.9 1,5
Deferred Bonus Plan Deferred Purchase
December December December December
2007 2006 2007 2006
2009 20102013
86,45 12506-128,15
0,2 0,56
Phantom scheme SARS
December December December December
2007 2008 2007 2006
2012 2014
56,00 -100,10 58,33 - 87,22
88,4
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007 '

31.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS {continued)

Details of options/deferred purchase shares exercised during the year are as follows:

Exercise price per share

{Share price range) (R}

- Kumba Resources employees
{pre-unbundling)

— Exxaro employees in Exxaro
{post-unbundling)

- BExxaro employees In Kumba Iron Ore
{post-unbyndling)

- Kumba Iron Ora employees in Exxaro
{(post-unbundling)

Total proceeds if shares are issued

{R million)

Exercise price per share (Share price
range} (R)

Total proceads if shares are issued
{R million)

Exercise price per share

- (Share price range) (R},

Options . Long-term Incentive Plan
Decermnber December December December
2007 2006 2007 2006
100,80 - 159,00 131,45
51,74 -110,00 . 54,40-55,00
109,90 - 300,00 108,80 -111,00
53,15-108,03 54,50 - 54,99
3251 791.8 34,0
Deferred Bonus Plan Deferred Purchase
December December December - December
2007 2006 2007 ) 2006

6500  54,40- 159,00

01 8,6
Phantom scheme SARS
Decemher December December December
2007 2006 2007 2006
56,00 - 64,80

Terms of the options and deferred purchase shares outstanding at 31 December 2007 are as follows:

Share options held by Exxaro employees in Exxaro:

Expiry date
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

. 2013

TOTAL

Total proceads if shares

are issued (R million)

Expiry date

2009 -

2010
TOTAL

Total proceeds if shares
are issued {R million)
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Options

Long-term Incentive Pian

Exercise price Qutstanding  Exercise price Outstanding
R '000 R ) ’000
8,48 - 20,34 697 i

9,48 - 20,34 409 60,60 - 72,84 481
7,52-19,62 194
11,09-1478 941
13,72-32,84 1378
33,47 -47,73 1451

5070 481

12,7 29,6

Deferred Bonus Plan

Deferred Purchase

Exercise price Qutstanding Exercise price Qutstanding
R '000 R
) 2 697 -- 9,1/ 4,000
18,36 23,26 1,900
2 5,200
0,2 0.1




31.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
Share options held by Exxaro employees in Exxaro: (continued)

SARS Phantom scheme
Exercise pn’cé Qutstanding Exercise price Qutstanding
Expiry date R 000 R '000
‘ 2012 59,80 - 100,10 98
. 204 58,33 - 87,22 1422
TOTAL ' 1422 08
Total proceeds if shares
are issued (R million} 87,9
Share options held by Exxaro employees in Kumba Iron Ore:
Options
: Exercise price Qutstanding
Expiry date R '000
2008 17,37 - 41,66 517
2009 19,42 - 41,66 338
2010 11,11 -87,74 3877
TOTAL 4732
Total proceeds if shares
are issued (R million} 2224

Share options held by Kumba Iron Ore employees in Exxaro:

Options Deferred Purchase
Exercise price Outstanding Exercise price Outstanding
Expiry date R '000 R
2008 8,48 -19,93 159
2009 3,84 -16,11 207
2010 6,91 - 47,73 1 503 21,06 ) 400
TOTAL 1 869 400
Total proceeds if shares
are issued (R million) 42,4
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

a1.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

The exercise prices of the options held by Exxarc employees in Exxaro and Kumba tron Ore respectively at 31 December
2007, have been recalculated with reference to the VWAP split of 32,81% for Exxaro and 67,19% for Kumba iron Ore.
The last date for exercising these options is 2 May 2010,

Terms of the options and deferred purchase shares outstanding at 31 December 2006 are as follows:

Share options held by Exxaro employees in Exxaro: .
Options Deferred Purchase

. Exercise price Outstanding Exercise price Outstanding
Expiry date R ‘000 R
2007 3.86 29
2008 5,67 -9.20 1025 . 17.31 1360
2009 9,48 -15,49 624 6,97 - 9,17 4 000
2010 4,49 - 12,31 287 18,36 - 23,26 1200
2011 11,09 - 15,50 1287
2012 13,72-3284 1641
2013 33,47-47,73 1 558
TOTAL 6 451 6 560
'I"otal proceeds if shares are
issued (R million) 138, 1 0.1
- Phantom scheme
Exercise price QOutstanding
Expiry date R 000
2012 59,80 - 100,10 98
TOTAL _ 98

Total proceeds if shares are
issued {R million)

Share options held by Exxaro employees in Kumba iron QOre:

' Options
: : -Exercise price Qutstanding
Expiry date R ‘000
2007 7,89 29
2008 ’ 17,37 - 41,66 1 006
2009 6.97 - 41,66 609
2010 7.80-97.74 4834
TOTAL , ’ 6478
Total proceeds if shares are
issued {R million) 273
Share options held by Kumba Iron Ore employees in Exxaro:
Options Deferred Purchase
Exercise price QOutstanding Exercise price Outstanding
Expiry date R '000 R
2007 3,86 10
2008 8,48 -9,20 424
2009 3.84-1611 265
2010 6,91 - 47,73 1559  21,06-2306 820
TOTAL 2258 820
Total proceeds if shares are
issued {R million) 477
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3.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
Share options helq by Kumba lron Ore employees in Exxaro:

Options Deferred Purchase
December December Deccmber December
2007 2006 2007 2006
Details of options vested but not sold during the year
are as follows:
Kumba Resources employees (pre-unbundling)
Number of shares 2395 280 6 370
Exercise price {Share price range) (R) 6,97 - 145,47 9,70 - 18.36
Exxaro employees in Exxaro {post-unbundling)
Number of shares 1 559130 1 665 160
Exercise price {Share price range) (R} 3,86-47,73 3,88-3347
Exxaro employees in Kumba Iron Ore
(post-unbundling)
Number of shares 1221160 1623 730
Exercise price {Share price range) (R) 1538-97.74 7.89-67,26
Kumba Iron Ore employees in Exxaro
(post-unbundling}
Number of shares 570,070 667,260
Exercise price (Share price range) (R) 3,84-47,73 3,84-3284
Long-term
Incentive Deferred . Deferred
Options Plan Bonus Plan Purchase SARS Total
000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
Exxaro shares/options
only
Number of shares
vesting at beginning .
of year . 8710 7 8717
- Bxxaro employees :
in Exxaro 6 451 . 7 6 458
- Kumba Iron Ore
employees in
Bxxaro 2259 2 259
Net change
during year (1771) 481 2 (2) 1422 132
Number of shares
vesting at end of year 6939 481 2 5 1422 8 849
- BExxaro employees .
in Exxaro 5070 481 2 5 1422 6 980
~ Kumba Iron Ore
_employees in _
Exxaro 1 869 1 869

Directors’ interests in shares
For details refer to the report of the directors.
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

3t. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)
Fair value of equity-settled share-based payment transactions with employees
The group appties IFRS 2 to grants of shares, share options or other equity instruments that are granted.
In determining the fair value of services received as consideration for equity instruments, measurement is referenced to
the fair value of the equity instruments granted. '
The group applied the transitional provisions of IFRS 2 and applied the principles to grants that were granted after
7 November 2002, ) ]
Kumnba Resources listed on 26 Novernber 2001 and the volatility of its share price since then has been used to determine
the calculations.
The changes 1o the schemes brought about by the empowerment transaction were treated as a modification. The
services received were measured at the grant date fair value of the original equity instruments granted. Any incremental
increase in the fair value of the equity instruments granted is recognised over the revised vesting period.
The fair value of the gptions issued under the Management Share Option Scheme was determined immediately before
and after the modification using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The weighted average incremental fair value granted per option at the original strike price as a resutt of the modification
amounted to R12,55 while the incremental fair value for a re-priced option amounted to R14,93.
As discussed above, the LTIP and DBP have been collapsed before the implementation of the empowerment
transaction. 415 884 shares were granted and settled in cash in terms of the rules of the scheme and approved by the
Transformation, Remuneration, Hurman Resources and Nomination Gommittee of the board.

A volume weighted average price of R131,45 per share was used and the total amount paid out amounted to

R34 million. )
2007 ’ 2006
After unbundling "After unbundling
Kumba Before " Kumba

. Exxaro Iron Ore unbundling Exxaro {ron Ore
The Black-Scholes methodology is
used to calculate the fair value of
options granted to employees.
The inputs to the model are as follows: .
Share price (R) 49 110,00 142,00 49 110,00
Weighted average exercise price range
— original strike price (R) 34,76 71,18 105,94 34,76 71,18
- re-priced strike price (R} 13 26,86 39,98 13 26.86
Annualised expected volatility (%) 37,90 37,90 37.90 37,90 37,90
Option life {years) (weighted average) 3,11 3,08 3,10 3,11 3,08
Dividend yield (%) 4 4 4 4 4
Risk-free interest rate (%)
(weighted average) 8,26 8,26 8,26 8,26 8,26
Expected employee attrition (%) 6,69 6,69 9,42 9,42 9,42

The Black-Scholes methodology is used to calculate the fair value of Share Appreciation Rights (SARs) granted to employees.
SARs vesting SARs vesting SARs vesting

The inputs to the model are as follows: in 3 years in 4 years in 5 years
Share price (R) 61,24 61,24 61,24
Weighted average exercise price range (R) 60,60 60,60 80,60
Annualised expected volatility (%) 36,78 ' 36,78 36,78
Option life (years) (weighted average} . 5 55 6
Dividlend yield (%) 2,98 3,13 3,08
Risk-free interest rate (%) (weighted average) 7,70 7.64 7,64
Expectaed employee attrition (%) . 6,69 ‘ 6,69 6,69
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31.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Fair value of equity-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

The Monte Carlo valuation methodology is used to calculate the fair value of LTIP, DBP and MPOWER grants to employees.
The inputs to the LTIP model for 2007 are as follows:

Date of grant . : 2B/2/2007
Share price at grant date (R) 61,24
Risk-free rate (%j) 7.68
Cividend yield (%) 283
Expected volatility (%) 34,88
Time to vesting three years from date of grant
Expected employee attrition (%6) ) 5,54
The inputs to the DBP model for 2007 are as follows:

Date of grant 28/2/2007
Share price at grant date (R) 86,45
Risk-free rate (%) . 8,50
Dividend yield (%) 3,15
Time to vesting three years from date of grant
Expected employee attrition (%) 4,45
The inputs to the MPower model for 2007 are as follows:

Date of grant 31/1/2007
Share price at grant date (R} 71,00
Risk-free rate (%) 8,20
Dividend yield (%) - 3,00
Expected volatility (%} 37.0
Vest date 28/11/2011
Vesting probability (%) ) ) 100,0
The inputs 1o the Phantom scheme for 2007 are as follows: .

Date of grant 22/4/2005 - 1/12/2005
Share price at grant date {R) 18,37 -32,84
Risk-free rate (%) 8,54 -8,70
Dividend yield (%) 4,12
Expected volatility (o) i 34,24
Time io vesting - Mainly over five years in tranches
Vesting probability (%) 100,0
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notes to the annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2007

GROUP

(SA) Limited and Eskom respectively, 72
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~ COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Bm Rm Rm Rm
32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Contingent liabilities at balance shest date, not
otherwise provided for in these annual financial
statements, arising from:
- guarantees in the normal course of business
from which it is anticipated that no material
liabilities will arise ) 165 83 1 1
- other? _ 36 17
YIncludies the group's share of contingent kabilities of associates and joint venturas of R22 milion (2006: RS milkon;.
These contingent liabilities have no tax impact.
The timing and occurrence of any possible outflows are uncertain.
33. COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments at balance sheet date
GROUP COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm ~ Bm Rm Rm
Capital expenditure contracted for plant and
equipment 450 842 a3 a0
Capital expenditure authorised for plant and
equipment but not contracted 1278 732 24 5
The above Includes the group's share of capital
commitments of associates and joint ventures., 157 521
Capital expenditure will be financed from
available cash resources, funds generated from
operations and available borrowing capacity.
Capital expenditure contracted relating to
captive mines Tshikondeni, Arnot and Matta,
which will be financed by ArcelorMittal
8




CONMMITMENTS (continued)
Capital commitments at balance sheet date (continued)

A trust known as The New Africa Mining Fund was established during 2003 to make portfolio investments in junior mining
projects within the Republic of South Africa and elsewhera on the continent of Africa. Exxaro Resources, as an investor
participant to the fund, has committed to contribute R20 million towards the fund. The Fund Manager can draw down this
balance or any portion as and when required, by serving a 10-day notice to Exxaro. The commitment period commenced
on 1 March 2003 and expires on 28 February 2009. Exxaro has contributed RS million towards the fund since March
2003. The fair value of the trust fund on 31 December 2006 was 812,9 million. During 2007 the New Africa Mining Fund
distributed R12 mition back to Exxaro, the book value of the investment in the fund at 31 December 2007 is R1,8 milion.
On 19 January 2007 Exxaro announced that, pursuant to the empowerment transaction, it had exercised the options
te acquire the Namakwa Sands mineral sands operation and a 26% interest in a company to be formed to hold the
Black Mountain lead-zinc mine and the Gamsberg zinc project. Shareholders approval for the acquisition have since been
obtained with assurnption of operational control now only subject 1o conversion of mining rights and cession thereof to Bxxaro.

The value of the transaction is estimated at R2 353 million.

2007
Am

GROUP COMPANY

2006 2007 2006
Rm Bm - Rm .

Operating lease commitments

The future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

- less than one year ) 70
- more than one year and less than five years ' 48
- more than five years 8

54 46 37
64 8 43

Total 126

124 54 80

Included in above operating lease commitments
is an operating lease commitment relating to a
building, which terminates in 2008,

Various options are available to both the lessor
and lessee on mutuai agreement on termination
of the operating lease. )

Exxaro received R20 million from Sishen lron Ore
Company as part of their commitment to the
building lease which has been terminated.

This is included in operating sublease rentals
received.

_Operating sublease

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are
receivable as follows:

- less than cne year 1
- mare than one year and 'ess than five years
- more than five years

w o,

Total 1
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annexure 1
non-current interest-bearing borrowings
Rate of Rate of
Final interest per interest per
repayment year (payable year (payable
date half-yearty) half-yearly)
2007 2006 GROUP COMPANY
Fixed Floating Fixed Floating 2007 2006 2007 2006
% % Y% Y% Rm Rm Rm Rm
LOCAL
Unsecured loans
2009 6,890 ! 151
2012 12,360 300 300
2013 12,460 10,200 150 405 150 405
2016 12,300 10,020 80 25 .
681 430 450 405
LOCAL
Secured loan
2008 _ 10520 2 10
2011 12,130 12,130 3 3 4
2011 17,490 17,480 4 2 2
2012 11,420 11,420 5 1 2
2013 19,840 € 4
2013 13,540 13,540 ? 11 12
2025 8,330 8,330 8 25 26
2026 10,710 10,710 ¢ 13 13
2031 22,200 22,200 1 a1 78-
2032 32,930 32,830 i 106 96
242 247
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Rate of Rate of
Final interest per interest per
repayment year {payable year {payable
date half-yearly) half-yearty}
2007 2006 GROUP COMPANY
Fixed Floating Fixed Floating 2007 2006 2007 2006
% % Y% % Rm BRm Rm Rm
FOREIGN
Unsecured loans (US$)
2016 6,640 6,640 7,440 2 408 535
408 535
FOREIGN
Secured loan {AU$)
2010 7,850 7,850 3 2 2
2 2
Total non-current interest-
bearing borrowings (refer note 22) 1333 1214 450 405

} The interest is based ot US PPI and is settled in rands based on the USS/ZAR exchange rate. The PPI NACS on 31 December 2007 was 6,89%.
2 Finance lease agreement in respect of machinery and equipment with a book value of nil (2006: R4 million).

Finance leases recognised due to IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Agreement contains a Lease:

? Finance lease agreement between Bxxaro Sands (Ply) Limited and Mhiathuze Water in respect of & plant with a book value of R2 million

(2006: R3 mitiior).

4 Finance lease agreement between FerroAlloys (Ply) Limited and African Oxygen Limited (Afrox) in respect of machinery and equipment with a

book value of nif (2006: A1 milion).

5 Finance lease agreaement between Exxarc Sands (Pty) Limited and Eskorn in respect of buiidings with a book value of R1 milion (2006: R1 million).
8 Finance lease agreement between Exxaro Base Malals (Pty} Limited and Thuthuka Project Managers in respect of plant with a book value of nil

(2006: R3 miffion).

7 Fnance kease agreament between Exxaro TSA Sands {Ply} Limited and Air Products in respect of plant with a book value of R8 mifion (2006: RS rrdion).
8 Finance lease agreement between Exaro TBA Sands {Ply) Limited and Mhiathuze Water in respect of plant with a book value of R23 miflion

{2006: R24 milion).

9 Finance lease agreement between Exxaro TSA Sands (Ply} Limited and Eskom in respect of buildings with & book value of R14 million

(2006: R15 milion}.

OFinance lease agreement between Exxaro Sands (Ply) Limited and Kusasa Bulk Terminals (Phase 1) in respect of plant with a book value of

R47 million (2006: R49 million).

""Hnance lease agreement between Exxaro Sands (Ply} Limited and Kusasa Bulk Terminals (Phase 2) in respect of plant with & book value of

R51 million (2006: R53 miflion).

12UISS60 million senior notes issued by Ticor Finance (A.C.T.} Pty Limited, an entity controfled by Exxaro Australia-Sands (Ply} Limited, and a

syndicated loan facility of US$60 million, of which US$17 million was drawn on 31 December 2007.
Yrinance lease agreements in respect of computer equipment with a book value of R1 milion (2006: A2 miflion).
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annexure 2

investments in associates, joint ventures and other investments

Nature

of

business!

Country

of Number

incor- of shares
poration? held

Percen-
tage
holding
2097

%

2008
"%

Group
carnying

amount

2007

Rm .

2006
-Rm

Company
carrying
amount
2007

Rm

2006
fiem

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Unlisted

Chifeng Kurmba Hongye Zinc Corporation
Limited S

Chifeng NFC Kumbia Hongye Zinc
Corporation Limited .

Sishen Iron Ore Company (Pty) Limited
Totat associated companies (refer note 15)
JOINT VENTURES

Incorporated

Unlisted :

RoshSkor Township (Pty) Limited

South Dunes Coal Terminal Co. (Pty) Limited
Thakweneng Mineral Resources (Pty) Uimited
Unincorporated

Moranbah Coal Project

Tiwest

INVESTMENT COMPANIES

Listed

Mineral Deposits Limited

Unlisted

Other

Total other Investments
{refer note 17)

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

The investments are valued at balance sheet
date. Listed sharss are valued &t market
value and unlisted shares at directors’ value.

Unlisted investments in associates
- direclors’ valuation

Listed other investments

- market value

Unlisted other investments

- directors’ valuation

A&M

A&M

YA - Mining, C - Service, £ - Exploration, M - Manutacturing.
’RSA - Republic of South Afiica, CH - Peopie’s Republic of China, HK - Hong Kong, NAM - Namibia, AUS - Austrafia
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CH 58520000

CH 42500000
RSA 240000000

NAM 50
RSA 1333
RSA 1

AUS 11293435

38,00

25,00
20,00

38,00

25,00
20,00

95

pal
641

124

37
223

797

384

50,00
33,33
60,00

50,00
50,00

50,00

3333
50,00

50,00

3,78

328

g2

93

34

328

185

34

1085

569

34

9110

328

4812

92

93



annexure 2

investments in associates, joint ventures and other investments (continued)

The group’s effective share of balance sheet, income statement and cash flow items in respect of associated companies and

joint ventures is as follows:

Associated companies Joint ventures
2007 2006 2007 2006
Rm Rm Rm Rm

INCOME STATEMENTS
Revenue 2935 1072 1192 1082
QOperating expenses {1 749) (890} {1112) (804)
NET OPERATING PROFIT 1186 182 80 178
Net financing (costs)/income (68) {9) 6 10
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 1118 173 86 188
Taxation ' {3586) {47) 1 {1
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 762 126 a7 187
NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
SHAREHOLDERS 762 126 87 187
BALANCE SHEETS
Non-current assets 1333 807 1643 1473
Current assets ' 898 840 1120 1092
TOTAL ASSETS 227 1747 2783 2 565
Equity and liabilities
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HCLDERS OF
THE PARENT 757 377 2324 2215
Naon-current liabilities .
Interest-bearing borrowings 241 594 B1 26
Non-current provisions 63 31 152 132
Deferred taxation and other 315 132 16 18
Current liabilities . .
Interest-bearing borrowings 537 269 1 1
Other 318 . 344 1889 175
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 223 1747 2763 2 565
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
Net cash flows from operating activities 488 {587) 258 235
Net cash flows from investing activities (482) {104) {204) {18
Net cash flows from financing activities (44) 861 89) (209)
Foreign currency translations (15) (13} (31) (1)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (43) 167 {66) 3
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‘annexure 3
investment in subsidiaries!
Issued
Gountry capital-
of  Nature unlisted
incor- of ordinary
poration® business® shares Interest of company
Investment
in shares Indebtedness
2007 2006 2007 2008
R R R Rm Rm
DIRECT INVESTMENTS
AloyStream (Pty) Limited RSA M 1 1 1
AlloyStream Holdings {Pty) Limited* RSA H i 746 163 10
Clipeus Investment Holdings {Pty) Limited RSA H 1 1 1
Colonna Properties (Pty) Limited RSA B 200 2518 966 2518 966
Cullinan Refractories Limited RSA A 1000 1000 1000
Exxaro Base Metals and Incustrial Minerals Holdings
{Pty) Linitad RSA H 1 1 1
Exxaro Base Metals (Pty) Limited RSA M 5500000 247712500 247 712500 222 191
Exxaro Chairman’s Fund RSA T
Exxaro Coal [Pty) Limited ASA A 1 1000 1000 1783 1823
Exxaro Employee Empowarment Participation )
Scheme Trust RSA T
Exxarc Environmental Rehabilitation Fund RSA T
Exxaro FerroAlloys {Pty) Limited RSA M i 1 ki 7] @
Bxxare Foundation RSA T
Exxaro Holdings (BVY) SAS BVI & RSA H 566 827 459517 297 12 161942 5
Exxaro People Development Initiative RSA E
Exxaro Properties {Groenkloof) {Pty} Limited RSA .B 1. 1 1 2
Exxaro Properties (Kloofzicht) {Pty) Limited RSA B 1 1 1
Exxaro.Properties (Princess Grant) (Pty) Limited RSA B 1 1 1
Exxaro TSA Sands (Pty) Limited RSA M 510 510 510 2205 2 154
Beare Sands (Pty) Limited RSA A 200 6 003 355 6003 355 710 845
Ferroland Grondtrust {Ply) Limited RSA b 2 2 2
Ferrosure {South Africa) Insurance Comparty Limited RSA | ‘ 10 10
Glen Douglas Dolomite {Pty) Limited RSA A 10000 10 000 10000 4 132)
Kumba Base Metals Namibia (Pty) Limited NAM C 1 1 1
Kumba Resources Management Sharg Trust RSA T (67) {an
Mernill Lynch Insurance PCC Limited ILE I 2 2
Mineral Exploration Company of
Southern Africa (Pty) Limited RSA B 200 200 200
Rocsi Holdings (BVI) Limited BV & RSA H B47044943 653722945 1101078300 {40} 255
Ticor (Bermuda) Holdings Limited BER H 74838 143502000 143502 000
INDIRECT INVESTMENTS
Bertini Pty Limiteck AUS C 10
Coastal Coal [Pty) Limitedt ASA A 5000 63} 73
Crisa Pty Umited® AUS C 10
Exxaro Australia Pty Limited AUS c i {1
Exxaro Australia Sands Pty Limited AUS A 2038299 354 1 {164)
Exxaro Base Metals (Namibia) (Pty) Limited  + NAM H 100 i
Exxara Base Metals China Limited HK C 1354
Exxaro Base Metals International BY NE A 119 209 (68)
Exxaro Coke (Pty) Limited RSA M 1
Exxaro Finance Ireland IRL C 893656391




. Issued
Country capital-
of  Nature unlisted
incor- of ordinary
poration® business® shares Interest of company
Investment
in shares Indebtedness
2007 2008 2007 2006
-R R R - Rm Am
INDIRECT INVESTMENTS (continuad)
Exxaro Mineral Sands BV NE A 134873
Exxaro Holdings (Australia) Pty Limited AUS H 5
Exxaro Holdings Sands (Pty) Limited RSA H 40 000
Exxaro international BY NE H 662 037
Bxxaro International Trading BY NE c 172 866
Exxarc International Coal Trading BY NE C 172 866
Bxxaro Investments (Ausiralia) Pty Limited AUS H 5
Exxare Reductants {Pty) Limited® RSA M 1
Exxaro Sands Holdings BY NE H 165999 .
Eyesizwe Coal (Pty) Limited RSA A 100 000 21 148
Inyanda Coal (Pty) Limited RSA A 1000
Magnetic Minerals Pty Limited AUS A 31740964
Omacor Sac PERU C 10
Creco Leasing Limited MAU F 1
Pigment Holdings Pty Limited AUS C 10
Rocit Investments (Pty) Limited RSA H 1020
Rosh Pinah Mine Holdings (Pty) Limited NAM H 1000
Rosh Pinah Zinc Corporation (Pty) Limited (83,9%) NAM A 2280 5 )
Senbar Holdings Pty Limited AUS C 10
Synthetic Rutite Holdings Pty Limited AUS C 10
The Durban Navigation Colligries (Pty) Limited® ASA A 516 000
The Vryheid (Natal) Raiway Coal and
Iron Company Limited RSA A 3675
Ticor {Barmuda) Minerals Limited BER H 74 836
Ticor {Overseas) Holdings Pty Limited AUS H 10
Ticor Chemical Company Pty Limited AUS M 10
Ticor Chemicals Ghana Pty Limited GHANA C 10
Ticor Energy Pty Limited AUS F 10
Ticor Finance (A.C.T.) Pty Limited AUS F 10
Ticor Resources Pty Limited AUS H & 111 062
Ticor Titanium Australia Pty Limited ALS H 0
Tific Pty Limited AUS H 10
Ti02 Corporation NL AUS A 85101 240
Yalgoo Minerals Pty Limited AUS H 48216010

. TOTAL INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES {refer note 16)

1513735958 1512989 785 4788 4 976

¥ At 100% holding excep! where otherwise indicated

2RSA - Republic of South Africa, AUS - Australia, NAM - Namibia, HK - Hong Kong, BV1 - British Virgin Islands, ILE - ise of Man, 1RL - lreland, MAU - Mauritius,

NE - Netheriands, BER - Bermuda

34~ Mining, B~ Propenty, C - Service, D - Land management, £ - Section 21 compeny, F — Finance, H - Holdings, | - insurance, M - Manufacturing, T - Trust,

*pcor NV was converted into a South African company as AlloyStream Holdings (Pty) Limited!

% Previously Kumba Holdings (BV) SA
8 Deragistered during 2007
T Previously Exxaro Heavy Minerals BY

EXXARC ANNUAL REPORT 2007

269



notice of annual general meeting

Notice is hereby given that the seventh annual general meeting of members of Exxaro Rescurces Limited will be held at the
Corporate Office, Roger Dyason Road, Pretoria Wast, South Africa, at 10:00 on Friday, 25 April 2008.

The following business will be transacted and resolutions, of which due and proper notice has been given, are proposed to be
passed with or without modification:

1. CRDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 1
Approval of financial statements
To receive and adopt the annual financial statements of the group for the pericd ended 31 December 2007, inciuding the
directors’ report and the report of the auditors therecn, ’

2. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 2
Re-appointment of independent auditors
To ratify the re-appoiniment of Deloitte & Touche as auditors of the company for the ensuing year.

3. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 3
Auditors’ fees
To authorise the directors to determine the auditors’ remuneration for the period ended 31 December 2007.

4, ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 4
Re-election of directors .
To re-elect, by separate ordinary resclutions numbered 4.1 to 4.4, the following directars who are required in terms of article
16.1 of the anticles of association, to refire by rotation as directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting and who are
eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting:
41 U Khumalo
4.2 DrD Konar
4.3 RP Mgchring
4.4 PRV Ncetezo

An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of each director offering themselves for re-election is set out on page 273 of the
annual report.

5. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 5
Remuneration of non-executive directors
To approve the proposed remuneration for the period 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008:

Current Proposed

R R

Chairman : 309123 333853
Director ' : 154 562 166 927
Audit committee chairman 98 919 106 833
Audit committee member 49 460 ' 53417
Board committee chairman : 74 190 80125
Board commitiee member : : 37 095 . 40 063

6. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 6
Renewal of the authority that the unissued shares be placed under the control of the directors
“Resoived that subject to the provisions of article 3.2 of the articles of association of the company, the provisions of the
Companies Act, 61 of 1973, as amended (the Act), and the Listings Requirements of JSE Limited (JSE), the directors are
hereby authorised to allct and issue at their discretion until the next annual general mesting of the company, authorised but
unissued shares for such purposes as they may determing, after setting aside so many shares as may, subject again to,

article 3.2 of the articles of association of the company, be required to be allotted and issued by the company pursuant 1o the

-company’s approved employee share incentive schemes {the schemes).”

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 7

General authority to issue shares for cash

“Resolved that subject to article 3.2 of the articles of association of the company, the Act, and the Listings Requirements
of the JSE, the directors are hereby authorised, by way of a general authority, to allot and issue ordinary shares for cash on
the following basis, after setting aside so many shares as may, subject again to article 3.2 of tha articles of association of

o
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the company, be required to be allotted and issued by the compény pursuant 10" the schemes, to any public shareholder, as
defined by the Listings Requirements of the JSE, as and when suitable opportunities arise, subject to the following conditions:

7.1
7.2
7.3
7.4

75

this authority shall not extend bayond the next annual general meeting or fifteen months from the date of this annual
general meeting, whichever date is earlier;

a press announcement giving fsll details, including the impact on net asget value and earnings per share, be published
at the time of any isstia representing, on a cumulative basis within cne year, 5% or more of the number of shares in
issue prior to the issue/s;

the shares be issued to public sharehclders as defined by the JSE and not to related parties;

any issue in the agaregate in any one year shall not exceed 15% of the number of shares of the company’s issued
ordinary share capital; and

in determining the price at which an issue of shares be made in terms of this authority, the maximum discount permitted
will be 10% of the weighted average traded price of the shares over the thirty days prior to the date that the price of the
issue is agreed in writing between the issuer and the paﬁy/parties subscnbing for the securities. In the event that shares
have not traded in the sald thirty day period a ruling will be obtained from the committee of the JSE.”

_The approval of a 75% majority of the votes cast by shareholders present or represénted by proxy at the meeting is
required for ordinary resolution number 7 to become effective.

8. SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 1
Authority to repurchase shares
“Resolved that by way of a general authority, the company or any subsidiary of the company may, subject to the Act, article 36 of
the articles of association of the company or arficles of association of a subsidiary respectively and the Listings Requirements of
the JSE, from time to time purchase shares issued by itself or shargs in its holding company, as and when deemed appropriate.”

Pursuant ¢ the above, the following additional information, required in terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE, is submitted.

It is recorded that the general repurchase will be subject to the following limitations:

T8
8.2

8.3

8.4
85
86
87

8.8

that the repurchase is effected through the order book operated by the JSE trading system and is done without any
prior understanding or arrangement between the company and the counterparty,;

that this authority shall not extend beyond 15 months from the date of this resolution or the date of the next annual
general meeting, whichever is the earlier date_;

that an announcement contain?ng full details of such repurchases is published as soon as the company has
repurchased shares constituting, on a curmuiative basis, 3% of the number of shares in issue prior to the repurchases
and for each 3%, on a cumulative basis, thereafter;

that the repurchase of shares shall not, in the aggregate, in any one financial year, exceed 20% of the company's issued
share capital at the time this authority is given;

that at any ong time, the company may only appoint cne agent to effect any repurchase;

that the repurchase of shares will not take place during a prehibited period (unless it forms part of a repurchase
programme which meets the reguiréments of the JSE) and will not affect compliance with the sharehelders' spread
requirements as laid down by the JSE;

shares issued by the company may not be acquired at a price greater than 10% above the weighted average traded
price of the company’s shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of repurchase;

The sponsor will sign off on working capital as per Schedule 25 of the Listings Requirements of the JSE prior to the
commencement of the general repurchase;

The reason for this special resolution number 1 is, and the effect thereof will be to grant, in terms of the provisions of
the Act and the Listings Requirements of the JSE, and subject to the terms and conditions embodied in the articles
of the company or any subsidiary and the said special resolution, a general authority to the directors to approve the
repurchase by the company of its own shares.

At the present time the directors have no specrr c intention with regard to the utilisation of this authority, which will only
be used if the circumstances are appropriate.

9, To transact such other business as may be transacted at an annual general meeting.
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notice to annual general meeting continued

DISCLOSURES REQUIRED IN TERMS OF THE LISTINGS REQUIREMENTS OF THE JSE
In accordance with paragraph 11.26 of the Listings Requirements, the attention of shareholders is drawn 1o:

* authorise the company, or any of its subsidiaries, t0 repurchase any of its shares as set out in the special resolution above;
and

* the general authority to issue shares for cash as set out in ordinary resolution number 7.,

Working capital statement

The directors of the company agree that they will not undertake any repurchase unless:

* the company and the group will be able, in the ordinary course of business, to pay its debts;

* the assets of the company and the group have been consolidated, fairly valued. in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards, in excess of its consolidated liabilities;

* the share capital and reserves of the company and the group will be adequate for ordinary business purposes; and

* the working capital resources of the company and the group will be adequate for ordinary business purposas.

Litigation statement .

Other than disciosed or accounted for in these annual financial statements, the directors of the company, whose names

are given on page 76 of these annual financial statements, are not aware of any legal or arbitration proceedings, pending or

threatened against the group, which may have or have had a material effect on the group’s financial position in the 12 months

preceding the date of this notice of annual general meeting. '

Directors’ responsibility statement )

The directors, whose names are given on page 76 of these financial statements, accept responsibility for the accuracy of the
information given, and certify that to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no facts that have been omitted which
would make any statements faise or misleading and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made.

Material changes

Other than the facts and developments reported cn in these annual financial statements, there have been no material changes
in the affairs, financial or tracing position of the group since the signature date of this annual report and the posting date thereof.

The following further disclosures required in terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSE are set out in accordance with the
reference pages in these annual financial staternents of which this notice forms part:

* Directors and management — refer to pages 74 1o 77 of this report;

* Major shareholders of the company - refer to page 90 of this report;

» Directors' interest in the company’s shares — refer page 166 of this report;
¢ Share capital of the company - refer page 211 of this report.

By order of the board

4

MS Viljoen

" Company Secretary

Pretoria
13 March 2008
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SHORT BIOGRAPHIES OF EXXARQ DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-ELECTICN

Name: U Khumalo - Ufikile (42} .

Designation: Non-executive director

Academic qualifications: BSc (Eng); MSc Eng (UCT); MAP (Wits); Snr Exec Dev Programme (Harvard); AMP (Insead)

Experience: Ufikile served with Sasol and Eskom as a senicr engineer and Bevcan as a manufacturing manager prior to joining
the IDC. He held several positions during 1999 - 2005, including head, international finance; executive vice president industrial
sectors and executive vice president; projects, He provided strategic direction in the industrial sectors on large projects. He was
also invelved in evaluating investment proposals thus contributing to successfully implementing the IDC's development mandate.”

Name: Dr D Konar - Len (54)
Designation: Non-executive director and chairman cf the audit, risk and compliance committee
Academic qualifications:; BCom; CA(SA); MAS; DCom

Experience: Immediatety after completing his articles of clerkship at Ernst & Young in Durban, Len began his career as an
acadernic at the University of Durban-Westville. He then spent six years with the Independent Davelopment Trust as head of
investments and internal audit, prior to becoming a professional director of companies and consultant.

Name: RP Mohring — Rick (60}
Designation: Nen-executive director
Academic qualifications: BSc Eng. (Mining); Professional Engineer

Experience: From 1998 until 2000, Rick was the chief executive officer of NewCoal, a black empowerment initiative set

up by Anglo Coal and Ingwe Coal Corporation to identify a suitable BEE group to purchase certain assets belonging to the
vendors and establish a new BEE coal company. Eyesizwe Coal, the largest BEE coal company in South Africa, was formed

in November 2000 through this process. From 2000 until 2003, Rick was the deputy chief exscutive officer of Eyesizwe Coal.
As such, he was responsible for the operational control of mines producing 25 million tonnes of coal per annum, new business
development, technical services and health and safety. After 37 years in the mining industry, Rick retired from Eyesizwe Coal in
December 2003, and set up a private consulting company, Mohring Mining Consulting.

MName: PKY Ncetezo - Pinkie (31)

Designation: Non-executive director

Acadermic qualifications: BA Social work (UniZul); MEd (Ohio University USA); MAP (Wits Business School); MBA (Open
University UK); Diploma in Management (Open University UK)

Experience: Pinkie was chief executive officer of SAWIMIH from Novermber 2003 te October 2007. She was a member of the
business development committee of SAWIMA from May 2003 until February 2004. From 1983 to 1985 and 1988 to 2003, she
held a number of positions at IBM, including Client Relationship Manager, Team Leader — Customer Service Cperations and
Business Administrator. Currently a non-executive director of Exxaro, Eyabantu Consortium, Main Street 333 (Pty) Limited and
Basadi Ba Kopane {Pty) Limited. Currently a director of Tisang Investments and Thobo Holdings (Pty} Limited.
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notice to annual general meeting continued

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO RESOLUTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ORDINARY BUSINESS ) -

Resolution 1: Approval of financial statements

The directors must presant to shareholders at the annual general meeting the annuat financial statements incorporating the
directors’ report and the report of the auditors, for the period ended 31 December 2007. These are contained within the annual
report.

Resolution 2: Re-aﬁpointment of independent auditors

The reason for proposing ordinary resolution number 2 is to confirm the re-appointment of Deloitte & Touche as external
auditors of the company. Deloitte & Touche was appointed as the company's statutory auditors since 16 February 2004,
Resolution 3: Auditors’ fees

It is usual for this matter to be left to the directors, as they will be conversant with the amount of work that was involved in the
audit. The chairman will therefore move a resolution to this effect authorising the directors to attend to this matter.

Resolution 4: Re-election of directors

Under the articles of association, one third of the directors are required to retire at each annual general meeting and may offer
themselves for re-election. In additian, any person appointed 1o fill a casual vacancy on the board of directors, or as an addition
thereto, is similarly required to retire and is efigible for re-election at the next annual general meeting. Biographical detaits of the
directors, who are offering themselves for re-election, appear on page 273.

Resolution 5: Hemuneratlon of non-executive directors

The company in general meeting as per the articles of assocaatlon shall from time to time determine the remuneration of
directors, subject to shareholders’ approval.

Resolution 6 and 7: Directors’ control of unissued ordinary shares

The existing authorities relating to resolutions 6 and 7 are due to expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
directors consider it advantagecus to renew these authorities to enable the company to take advantage of business
opportunities, which might arise in the future.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
Special Resolution 1: General authority to permit the repurchase of shares

The reason for the special resolution is to grant the directors of the company a general authonty for the acquisition of the
company's shares by the company, or a subsidiary of the company.

The effect of the special resolution, once registered, will be to permit the company or any of its subsidiaries to repurchase such
securities subject to the limitations applicable. This authority will only be used if circumstances are appropriate.
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EXXARO RESOURCES LIMITED
{Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
{Registration No. 2000/011076/06)
{Exxaro or the company)

JSE Share code; EXX
ISIN code: ZAE 000084992

TO BE COMPLETED BY CERTIFICATED SHAREHOLDERS AND DEMATERIALISED SHAREHOLDERS WITH "OWN
NAME”" REGISTRATION ONLY

For completion by registered members of Exxaro unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at
10:00 on Friday, 25 Aprit 2008, at the Exxaro Corporate Centre, Roger Dyason Road, Pretoria West, South Africa or at any
adjournment thereof,

i"we

of . (address}

being the holder/s of : shares in the company, do hereby appoint:

1. or, failing him/her
2. 7 or, failing him/her

the chairman of the annual general meeting, as my/our proxy to attend, speak and, on a poll, vote on my/our behalf at the
annual general meeting of members to be held at 10:00 on Friday, 25 April 2008 at Exxaro Corporate Centre, Roger Dyason
Road, Pretoria West, Gauteng or at any adjournment thereof, and to vots or abstain from voting as follows on the ordinary and
special resciutions to be proposed at such meeting:

For Against | Abstain

Ordinary business

1. Resolution to adopt the 2007 audited group financial statements

Resolution to re-appoint Deloitte & Touche as auditors

2
3. Resolution to authorise the directors to determine auditors’ remuneration
4

Resolution to re-elect directors required to retire by rotation in terms of article 16.1 of
the articles of association

4.1 U Khumalo

4.2 Dr D Konar

4.3 RP Mohring

4.4 PKV Ncetaezo

5. Resolution to approve the non-executive directors’ remuneration for the period
1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008

6. Resolution to authorise directors’ o allot and issue unissued ordinary shares
7. Resolution to authorise directors’ to allot and issue ordinary shares for cash
Special business

1. Special resolution to authorise directors to repurchase company shares

Please indicate with an “X" in the appropriate spaces provided above haw you wish your vote to be cast. If no indication is
given, the proxy may vote or abstain as he/she sees fit. ’

Signed at this day of 2008

Signature

Assisted by me, where applicable (name and signature)

Please read the notes on the reverse side.
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notes

—_

. A form of proxy is only to be completed by those ordinary shareholders who are:

1.1 holding ordinary shares in certificated form; or
1.2 recorded on sub-register electronic form in ‘own name’.

If you have already dematerialised your ordinary shares through a Central Securities Depository participant (CSDP) or broker
and wish to attend the annual general meeting, you must request your CSDP or broker to provide you with a Letter of
Representation or you must instruct your CSDP or broker to vote by proxy on your behalf in terms of the agreement entered
into between yourself and your CSDP or broker.

. A member may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the member’s cheice in the space
provided. The person whose name stands first on the form of proxy and who is present at the annual generat meeting of
shareholders will be entitled 1o act to the exclusion of those whose names follow.

. On a show of hands a member of the company present in person or by proxy shall have one (1) vote irrespective of the

number of shares he/she halds or represents, provided that a proxy shall, irrespective of the number of members he/she
represents, have only one (1) vote. On a poll a member who is present in person or represented by proxy shall be entitled
to that propartion of the total votes in the company, which the aggregate amount of the nominal value of the shares held by
him/her bears to the aggregate amount of the nominal value of all the shares issued by the company.

. A member’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of the relevant numbers of votes exercisable by the

member in the appropriate box provided. Failure to comply with the above will be deemed to authorise the proxy to vote or
to abstain from voting at the annual general meeting as he/she deems fit in respect of all the member’s votes exercisable
thereat, A member or the proxy is not obliged to use all the votes exercisable by the member or by the proxy, but the total
of the votes cast and in respect of which abstention is recorded may not exceed the total of the votes exercisable by the
member or by the proxy.

Forms of proxy must be lodged at, or posted to Computershare Investor Services 2004 (Pty) Limited, to be received not
{ater than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays).

For shareholders on the Scuth African register:

- Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd

11.

Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg 2001
PO Box 61051, Marshalliown 2107
WWW.computershare.com

Tel: +27 11 370 5000

Over-the-Counter American Depositary Receipt (ADR) holders:
Exxaro has an ADR facility with The Bank of New York {BoNY) under a deposit agreement. ADR holders may instruct BoNY
as to how the shares represented by their ADRs should be voted.

American Depositary Receipt Facility (ADR) -
Bank of New York ‘

101 Barclay Strest

New York, NY 10288

www.adrbny.com
shareowners@bankofny.com

Tek +{00-1) 888 815 5133

. The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant member from attending the annual generai

meeting and speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof.

. Documentary'r evidence esiablishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity or other

legal capacity must be attached to this form of proxy, unless previously recorded by the transfer secretaries or waived by
the chairman of the annual general meeting.

. Any alteration or correction made to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatoryfies.
10.

Notwithstanding the aforegomg the chairman of the annual general meeting may waive any formalities that would o:hemnse
te a prerequisite for a valid proxy.

If any shares are jointly held, all joint members must sign this form of proxy. If more than one of those members is present at
the annual general mesting either in person or by proxy, the person whose name first appears in the register shall be entitled
to vote.
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administration

Secretary and registered office

Commercial bankers
Absa Bank Limited

shareholders’ diary

Corporate law advisers

MS Viljoen CLS Consulting Services {Pty) Limited
Exxaro Resources Limited -
Roger Dyason Road United States ADR Depositary
Pretoria West The Bank of New York
-Pretoria 101 Barclay Street
0183 New York NY 10286
PO Box 9229, Pretoria United States of America
0001 '
South Africa Sponsor
Telephone +27 12 307 5000 JP Morgan Equities Limited
1 Fricker Road
Company registration number: 2000/011076/06 llove
. Johannesburg
JSE share code: EXX 2196
ISIN code: ZAEOOQ084992
: Registrars
Auditors Computershare Investor Services {Pty) Limited
Deloitte & Touche Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street
Private Bag X6 Johannesburg, 2001
Gallo Manor PO Box 61051
2052 Marshalltown
2107

FINANCIAL YEAR-END 31 December
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - April/May
REPORTS AND ACCOUNTS Published
Interim report for the half-year ending 30 June August
Announcement of annual resuits February
Annual report March
DISTRIBUTION

Final dividend declaration February
Payment March
Interim dividend declaration August
Payment September

This report is printed on Cycfué, a paper made entirely from post-consumer waste in a fully environmentally friendly production
process where even the by-products are recycled. This makes Cyclus 100% recycled. By printing on Cyclus, Exxaro is playing a
part in eliminating a 120kt waste mountain instead of felling trees.

BASTION GRAPHICS




*
N
L\ ~
\ : T ) ———la
]
~
\ hY
\ \
. e P2
I oo ..
h";,\_ - T~
‘. " N ‘:r__ LU - o
. _ ot - e
TN . . ' -
S -
” ’ S, . N * AR
g R .
- _'.-_:,'\Jf." ‘ -
L'\ . | - - g -~ i 7 ‘ . L
%:: ': -.‘ ' ': .-: h
N LR 3 EXXAROCORF‘ORATECENTRE_ e
8 . ! ) . ; -
- ., - Pretoria, South Africa *
. ~ - . ] . [
s -~ . - :
. - P:+2712 307 5000 - T
r . B - . - g
L JF: +27 12 307 4760 S,
-~ ot R S Lee o T ey .
. N . R . .
\Roqer Dyason Road, Pretoria West 0183, South Africa. e i
: LTl : T e D3N
- ~ . PO Box 9229, Pretoria 0001, South Africa BRI SN
- RISt A
- . <. - .— , L. al
R i
C s T nam
< WWW.eXxaro.com Eog
- iy
r ’I ~
. R [ - ‘i '
- _ - ’- . ’;;) - s
- i e — - - 11
~ .
e
f L/ . ./
- - ]
. ) ~ _—s T
. i » 'y i



